
 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 
City Council Chambers, City Hall 

Monday, August 21, 2023 at 6:00 PM 

AGENDA 

UPDATED 8.18.2023 Peyton Jamison, Mayor 

CITY COUNCIL  

DISTRICT 1                           DISTRICT 2                           DISTRICT 3 

Andrea Verhoff – Post 1       Juliette Johnson – Post 1        Jan C. Jacobus – Post 1 

Carol Cookerly – Post 2         Paul Moore – Post 2           Rick Mohrig – Post 2  

___________________________________________________________________________________ 

INVOCATION 

1) CALL TO ORDER 

2) ROLL CALL 

3) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE (Led by Mayor Peyton Jamison) 

4) APPROVAL OF MEETING AGENDA (Add or remove items from the agenda) 

(Agenda Item No. 23-210) 

5) PUBLIC COMMENT (General) –  

6) CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Approval of the August 7, 2023 Regular City Council Meeting Minutes. 

(Agenda Item No. 23-211) 

(Tammy Lowit, City Clerk) 

B. Approval of the August 14, 2023 Work Session Meeting Minutes. 

(Agenda Item No. 23-212) 

(Tammy Lowit, City Clerk) 

C. Approval of the August 14, 2023 Special Called City Council Meeting 

Minutes. 

(Agenda Item No. 23-213) 

(Tammy Lowit, City Clerk) 

1



CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING - Monday, August 21, 2023 PAGE | 2 

 

2006 Heritage Walk, Milton, GA 30004  ǀ  678.242.2500  ǀ  www.miltonga.gov 

D. Approval of the Financial Statements & Investment Report for the Period 9 

– June 2023. 

(Agenda Item No. 23-214) 

(Karen Ellis, Finance Director) 

E. Approval of a Construction Services Agreement Between the City of 

Milton and Prudencio Hernandez Romero dba Exceed Tree Care for the 

Cleanup of Fallen Trees at Providence Park, Birmingham Park, and the 

Milton City Park and Preserve. 

(Agenda Item No. 23-215) 

(Tom McKlveen, Parks and Recreation Director) 

F. Approval of an Order Form Agreement with Addendum No. 1 between 

Fulton Communications, Inc. dba Vertical Communications, Inc. and the 

City of Milton for Implementation of a Hosted VOIP Phone Services. 

(Agenda Item No. 23-216) 

(Ashley Smith, IT Director) 

G. Approval of MSA between GoTo Communications, Inc. and the City of 

Milton for hosted VOIP Phone Services. 

(Agenda Item No. 23-217) 

(Ashley Smith, IT Director) 

H. Approval of Professional Service Agreement between the City of Milton 

and William F. Ross dba ROSS+associates for the Preparation of the 

Impact Fee Program Amendment. 

(Agenda Item No. 23-218) 

(Robert Buscemi, Community Development Director) 

I. Approval of a Professional Services Agreement between the City of Milton 

and It’s My Party, LLC for Rental Equipment at Crabapple Fest 2023. 

(Agenda Item No. 23-219) 

Robert Buscemi, Community Development Director) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2

http://www.miltonga.gov/


CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING - Monday, August 21, 2023 PAGE | 3 

 

2006 Heritage Walk, Milton, GA 30004  ǀ  678.242.2500  ǀ  www.miltonga.gov 

J. Approval of Subdivison Plats and Revisions. 
Name of Development / 

Location 
Action 

Comments / 

 # lots 

Total 

Acres 
Density 

1. Lot 9 Canterbury on the 

Lake – Ron Barber 

210 Canterbury Lane 

LL 457 & 480 

Dist. 2  Sect. 2 

Minor Plat 

 

Subdivide the parcel into 

two lots.  Lot 9-A will contain 

4.187 acres and Lot 9-B will 

contain 3.863 acres. 

8.05 

Acres 

0.25 

Lots/Acre 

(Agenda Item No. 23-220) 

(Robert Buscemi, Community Development Director) 

7) REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS 

A. Proclamation Recognizing Dizzy Dean World Series Champions from 

Hopewell Baseball. 

(Mayor Peyton Jamison) 

B. Discussion of Short Term Work Program Projects. 

     1. Arnold Mill Small Area Plan 

     2. Larger Lot Zoning Categories 

(Robert Buscemi, Community Development Director) 

C. Discussion of the Milton City Park & Preserve (MCPP) Concept Plans for 

Passive Park Improvements. 

(Sara Leaders, Public Works Director) 

8) FIRST PRESENTATION 

A. Consideration of RZ23-02  - A Text Amendment with Respect to 

Notification Requirements for Various Types of Land Use Permits and 

Variance Requests and Other Procedural Updates to Comply with Latest 

Amendment to Georgia State Zoning Procedures Law in Chapter 64, 

Zoning of the City of Milton City Code. 

(Agenda Item No. 23-221) 

(Robert Buscemi, Community Development Director) 

B. Consideration of RZ23-03 - A Text Amendment with Respect to the 

Following Alcohol-Related Uses of Limited Food Service Restaurant and 

Limited Tap Establishment within Chapter 64, Zoning of the City of Milton 

City Code. 

(Agenda Item No. 23-222) 

(Robert Buscemi, Community Development Director) 

3

http://www.miltonga.gov/


CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING - Monday, August 21, 2023 PAGE | 4 

 

2006 Heritage Walk, Milton, GA 30004  ǀ  678.242.2500  ǀ  www.miltonga.gov 

9) PUBLIC HEARING 

A. Consideration of a Resolution Authorizing the Transmittal of a Draft Capital 

Improvements Element (CIE) 2023 Annual Update Relating to the City’s 

Impact Fee Program to the Atlanta Regional Commission (ARC) for 

Regional and State Review. 

(Agenda Item No. 23-223) 

(Robert Buscemi, Community Development Director) 

B. Consideration of the Issuance of an Alcohol Beverage License to BevShop 

LLC dba Beverage Shop, 13800 Highway 9 North Suite S, Milton, Georgia 

30004. 

(Agenda Item No. 23-224) 

(Karen Ellis, Finance Director) 

C. Consideration of the Issuance of an Alcohol Beverage License to Whitetail 

Bicycles Inc., 1885 Heritage Walk, Milton, Georgia 30004. 

(Agenda Item No. 23-225) 

(Karen Ellis, Finance Director) 

D. Consideration of an Ordinance of the Mayor and Council of the City of 

Milton, Georgia, to Establish the Ad Valorem Tax Rate of the City of Milton 

for Fiscal Year 2024; and for Other Purposes.. 

(Agenda Item No, 23-202) 

(Bernadette Harvill, Deputy City Manager) 

10) ZONING AGENDA 

11) UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

A. Consideration of an Ordinance of the Mayor and Council of the City of 

Milton, Georgia, to Establish the Ad Valorem Tax Rate of the City of Milton 

for Fiscal Year 2024; and for Other Purposes.. 

(Agenda Item No, 23-202) 

(Bernadette Harvill, Deputy City Manager) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4

http://www.miltonga.gov/


CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING - Monday, August 21, 2023 PAGE | 5 

 

2006 Heritage Walk, Milton, GA 30004  ǀ  678.242.2500  ǀ  www.miltonga.gov 

12) NEW BUSINESS 

A. Consideration of Final Plats. 
Name of Development / 

Location 
Action Comments / # lots Total Acres Density 

 

Whisper Woods 

New Providence Road 

LL 847 & 848 

Dist. 2   Sec. 2 

 

Final Plat 

 

5 Single-Family Lots 

 

 

11.492 

Acres 

 

 

 

0.44 

Lots /Acre 

 

 

(Agenda Item No. 23-226) 

(Robert Buscemi, Community Development Director) 

B. Consideration of a Resolution of the City of Milton, Georgia Authorizing 

Issuance of Seven-Day Notice of Termination of Consulting Contract with 

Vernetta Keith Nuriddin and Termination of Said Contract and Approving 

Consulting Contract with Lavania White. 

(Agenda Item No. 23-227) 

(Steven Krokoff, City Manager) 

13) MAYOR AND COUNCIL REPORTS 

14) STAFF REPORTS 

15) EXECUTIVE SESSION (if needed) 

16) ADJOURNMENT 

(Agenda Item No. 23-228) 

Persons needing special accommodations in order to participate in any City meeting 

should call 678.242.2500. 

5

http://www.miltonga.gov/


CITY OF MILTON - NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Period Ending June 30, 2023

Financial Overview / Highlights

GENERAL FUND

►   Total revenue collections are $30,549,487 , 4.18% above anticipated year to date.

►   Total expenditures to-date are $28,685,156 , 8.28% less than expected year to date.

Variance Analysis

Account Name YTD Actual % of Budget Explanation

Revenues

Franchise Fees $1,207,093 53.59% Payments rec'd quarterly - on target
Business & Occupation Tax $982,788 114.73% Trending above budget estimates
Insurance Premium Tax $0 0.00% Normal, collected in September
Alcohol Beverage Licenses $227,072 101.39% Trending above budget estimates
Interest Earnings $944,083 94.39% Above interest rate projected in budget

Expenditures

Elections $4,876 0.00% New department for FY2023

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

Expenditures within this fund continue to occur on a project-by-project basis.  With a total project expenditure budget 
of $48,799,748, capital expenditures-to-date total $9,129,550 - figures have been updated to reflect retainage payable 
booked to FY 2022 in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).

OTHER MISCELLANEOUS NOTES

Please note, certain variances are the result of timing of revenues received/expenditures paid versus when they 
were anticipated and may not result in the need for an amendment. 

Karen Ellis, Finance Director

Steve Krokoff, City Manager

$0

$1,000,240

Annual Budget

$2,252,442
$856,646

$3,400,000
$223,950

6

Section 6, Item D.



City of Milton

STATEMENT OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES
General Fund
For the Period Ending June 30, 2023

Actual Budgeted Variance
over/(under) Actual Budgeted Variance

over/(under)
Property Tax 14,269,426              18,790             77,445             (58,655)            14,033,562      14,037,204      (3,642)              
Motor Vehicle Tax 2,004,715                230,484           151,854           78,631             1,427,443        1,396,571        30,873             
Intangible Tax 400,000                   26,647             54,211             (27,564)            199,807           182,896           16,911             
Real Estate Transfer Tax 135,068                   16,464             14,583             1,881               90,871             76,665             14,206             
Franchise Fees 2,252,442                169                  5,253               (5,084)              1,207,093        1,161,744        45,348             
Local Option Sales Tax 12,538,381              1,143,061        985,217           157,844           8,697,852        8,321,815        376,037           
Alcohol Beverage Excise Tax 354,543                   30,957             42,687             (11,730)            286,575           228,964           57,611             
Fireworks Excise Tax 250                          -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Business & Occupation Tax 856,646                   6,579               8,652               (2,073)              982,788           818,697           164,091           
Insurance Premium Tax 3,400,000                -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Financial Institution Tax 50,000                     -                  -                  -                  48,792             50,000             (1,208)              
Penalties & Interest 46,200                     1,690               3,848               (2,159)              48,522             34,636             13,886             
Alcohol Beverage Licenses 223,950                   5,282               4,609               673                  227,072           212,352           14,720             
Other Non-Business Permits/Licenses 34,945                     2,184               2,682               (498)                26,465             26,822             (357)                
Zoning & Land Disturbance Permits 215,175                   15,787             17,924             (2,137)              147,102           161,317           (14,215)            
Building Permits 1,050,660                125,042           102,097           22,944             698,993           729,334           (30,341)            
Intergovernmental Revenue 5,000                       -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Other Charges for Service 614,505                   76,045             86,571             (10,527)            624,524           494,490           130,034           
Municipal Court Fines 640,000                   61,615             67,335             (5,720)              483,986           441,991           41,995             
Interest Earnings 1,000,240                192,741           16,680             176,061           944,083           683,507           260,577           
Contributions & Donations 45,950                     -                  -                  -                  15,062             45,950             (30,888)            
Other Revenue 272,153                   31,915             20,171             11,743             330,540           211,542           118,998           
Other Financing Sources 75,500                     6,700               1,666               5,034               28,354             6,664               21,690             

Total Revenues 40,485,749 1,992,151 1,663,487 328,664 30,549,487 29,323,161 1,226,325

Actual Budgeted Variance
over/(under) Actual Budgeted Variance

over/(under)
Mayor and Council 162,948                   16,647          15,781             866                  108,207           125,523           (17,315)            
City Clerk 186,119                   15,684          15,143             541                  126,125           134,098           (7,972)              
City Manager 853,852                   91,629          88,675             2,954               654,242           664,253           (10,011)            
Elections -                           4,853            -                  4,853               4,876               -                  4,876               
General Administration 58,349                     5,263            1,715               3,548               53,091             54,932             (1,840)              
Finance 847,368                   71,738          76,718             (4,979)              559,933           664,107           (104,174)          
Legal 500,000                   49,082          32,904             16,179             350,938           370,042           (19,104)            
Information Services 1,600,944                102,111        136,107           (33,996)            940,288           1,229,843        (289,555)          
Human Resources 482,822                   40,162          41,114             (952)                327,589           399,633           (72,044)            
Risk Management 327,645                   28,570          8,977               19,593             302,591           322,983           (20,392)            
General Government Buildings 396,226                   18,906          26,199             (7,293)              190,847           312,453           (121,606)          
Communications 458,088                   36,599          42,688             (6,089)              253,619           340,550           (86,931)            
Municipal Court 429,086                   46,066          39,421             6,645               300,616           329,329           (28,713)            
Police 6,969,574                623,690        682,698           (59,008)            4,755,324        5,319,856        (564,532)          
Fire 9,481,828                939,960        931,817           8,142               6,762,323        7,235,533        (473,210)          
Public Works 3,107,968                278,149        287,726           (9,577)              2,007,612        2,324,283        (316,670)          
Parks & Recreation (Active) 1,818,792                232,898        213,974           18,923             1,179,596        1,378,680        (199,084)          
Passive Parks/Greenspace 241,456                   12,812          12,650             163                  99,856             188,892           (89,035)            
Community Development 2,353,698                214,965        240,911           (25,946)            1,612,363        1,785,452        (173,089)          
Operating Transfers to Other Funds 12,405,147              1,434,677        1,434,677        -                  8,095,117        8,095,117        -                  
Operating Reserve 181,334                   -                -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

Total expenditures 42,863,244 4,264,461 4,329,894 (65,433) 28,685,156 31,275,558 (2,590,402)

Net Income/(Loss) (2,377,495) (2,272,310) 1,864,331

Fund Balance - Beginning 13,748,281 13,748,281
Fund Balance - Ending 11,370,786 15,612,612

Revenues Annual Budget
Current Month Year-to-Date

Operating Expenditures Annual Budget
Current Month Year-to-Date

Page 1
7

Section 6, Item D.



Original 
Budgeted 
Amounts

Amended
Budgeted 
Amounts

Current Period 
Actuals

Year-to-Date
Actuals

Variance with 
Final Budget -

Positive (Negative)

REVENUES
Crabapple Fest Vendor Fee 15,000$              15,000$  -$  19,215$              4,215$  
Interest Revenues - - 0 7 7 
Crabapple Fest Sponsor 7,500 7,500 - 7,500 - 
Mayor's Run Sponsor - - 2,500 2,500 2,500 
Other Misc Revenue/T-Shirt Sales - - - - - 

Total revenues 22,500$              22,500$  2,500$  29,222$              6,722$  
EXPENDITURES
Current:

Special Events 130,846$            130,846$             9,066$  100,065$            30,781$  
Total Expenditures 130,846$            130,846$             9,066$  100,065$            30,781$  

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in from General Fund -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  
Transfers in from Hotel/Motel Tax Fund 55,000 55,000 5,781 42,550 (12,450) 

Total other financing sources and uses 55,000$              55,000$  5,781$  42,550$              (12,450)$  
Net change in fund balances (53,346)$             (53,346)$              (28,293)$             

Fund balance - beginning 110,389              110,389 110,389              
Fund balance - ending 57,043$              57,043$  82,097$              

City of Milton
Special Events Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Period Ended June 30, 2023

Page 2
8

Section 6, Item D.



Original 
Budgeted 
Amounts

Amended
Budgeted 
Amounts

Current Period 
Actuals

Year-to-Date
Actuals

Variance with 
Final Budget -

Positive (Negative)

REVENUES
Cash Confiscations/State Funds -$                       -$                        -$                       -$                       -$                                
Cash Confiscations/Fed Funds -                         -                          -                         -                         -                                  
Interest Revenues/State Funds -                         -                          -                         -                         -                                  
Interest Revenues/Federal Funds -                         -                          1                        6                        6                                 

Total revenues -$                       -$                        1$                      6$                      6$                               
EXPENDITURES
Current:

Police -$                       16,914$              -$                       22,625$              (5,711)$                       
Total Expenditures -$                       16,914$              -$                       22,625$              (5,711)$                       

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in from General Fund -$                       -$                        -$                       -$                       -$                                

Total other financing sources and uses -$                       -$                        -$                       -$                       -$                                
Net change in fund balances -$                       (16,914)$             (22,619)$            

Fund balance - beginning 79,485                79,485                79,485                
Fund balance - ending 79,485$              62,571$              56,865$              

City of Milton
Confiscated Assets Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Period Ended June 30, 2023

Page 3
9

Section 6, Item D.



Original 
Budgeted 
Amounts

Amended
Budgeted 
Amounts

Current Period 
Actuals

Year-to-Date
Actuals

Variance with 
Final Budget -

Positive (Negative)

REVENUES
E-911 Fees 1,200,000$         1,200,000$         80,362$              587,517$            (612,483)$                   

Total revenues 1,200,000$         1,200,000$         80,362$              587,517$            (612,483)$                   
EXPENDITURES
Current:

Public Safety 1,200,000$         1,200,000$         80,362$              587,517$            612,483$                    
Total Expenditures 1,200,000$         1,200,000$         80,362$              587,517$            612,483$                    
  Net change in fund balances -$                       -$                       -$                       

Fund balance - beginning -                         -                         -                         
Fund balance - ending -$                       -$                       -$                       

City of Milton
E-911 Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Period Ended June 30, 2023

Page 4
10

Section 6, Item D.



Original 
Budgeted 
Amounts

Amended
Budgeted 
Amounts

Current Period 
Actuals

Year-to-Date
Actuals

Variance with 
Final Budget -

Positive (Negative)

REVENUES
Intergovernmental Revenues

GA Supplement Grant -$                    -$                    -$                        -$                    -$                             
CJCC -                         -                         -                         51,143                51,143                         

Interest Revenues -                         -                         0                         5                         5                                  
Total revenues -$                        -$                        0$                       51,148$              51,148$                       

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General Administration -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -                                   
Police -                         -                         -                         11,400                11,400                         

  Total Expenditures -$                        -$                        -$                        11,400$              11,400$                       
Excess of revenues over expenditures -$                        -$                        0$                       39,748$              39,748$                       

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers Out to General Fund -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                                 

Total other financing sources and uses -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                                 
Net change in fund balances -$                    -$                    39,748$              

Fund balances - beginning 65,370                65,370                65,370                
Fund balances - ending 65,370$              65,370$              105,118$            

City of Milton
Operating Grant Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Period Ended June 30, 2023

Page 5
11

Section 6, Item D.



Original 
Budgeted 
Amounts

Amended
Budgeted 
Amounts

Current Period 
Actuals

Year-to-Date
Actuals

Variance with 
Final Budget -

Positive (Negative)

REVENUES
Intergovernmental Revenues

American Rescue Plan -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                            
Interest Revenues -                         -                         1                        22                      22                                
Realized Gain or Loss (GA Fund 1) -                         -                         15,294                114,645              114,645                       

Total revenues -$                       -$                       15,295$              114,667$            114,667$                     
EXPENDITURES
Current:

City Clerk -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                            
City Manager -                         -                         -                         -                         -                                  
Finance -                         -                         -                         -                         -                                  
Communications -                         -                         -                         -                         -                                  
Court -                         -                         -                         -                         -                                  
Police -                         -                         -                         -                         -                                  
Fire -                         -                         -                         -                         -                                  
Public Works -                         -                         -                         -                         -                                  
Parks & Recreation -                         -                         -                         -                         -                                  
Community Development -                         -                         -                         -                         -                                  

  Total Expenditures -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                                
Excess of revenues over expenditures -$                       -$                       15,295$              114,667$            114,667$                     

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers Out to Capital Projects Fund -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                                

Total other financing sources and uses -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                                
Net change in fund balances -$                   -                         114,667$            

Fund balances - beginning 35,064                35,064                35,064                
Fund balances - ending 35,064$              35,064$              149,731$            

*  Although the City has received $14,783,224 in ARPA funds through FY2022, only $10,925,003 has been recognized for 
    eligible expenditures.  As additional expenditures arise towards the remaining $3,858,221, a budget amendment will 
    be presented to council for their approval.

City of Milton
American Rescue Plan (ARP) Act of 2021 Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Period Ended June 30, 2023

Page 6
12

Section 6, Item D.



Original 
Budgeted 
Amounts

Amended
Budgeted 
Amounts

Current Period 
Actuals

Year-to-Date
Actuals

Variance with 
Final Budget -

Positive (Negative)

REVENUES
Taxes

Hotel/Motel Taxes 55,000$              55,000$              5,781$                42,550$              (12,450)$                      
Total revenues 55,000$              55,000$              5,781$                42,550$              (12,450)$                      

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out to Special Events Fund 55,000$              55,000$              5,781$                42,550                12,450$                       

Total other financing sources and uses 55,000$              55,000$              5,781$                42,550$              12,450$                       
Net change in fund balances -$                        -                          -$                        

Fund balance - beginning -                          -                          -                          
Fund balance - ending -$                        -$                        -$                        

City of Milton
Hotel/Motel Tax Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Period Ended June 30, 2023

Page 7
13

Section 6, Item D.



Original Budgeted 
Amounts

Amended
Budgeted 
Amounts

Current Period 
Actuals

Year-to-Date
Actuals

Year-to-Date
Actuals + 

Encumbrances

Variance with 
Final Budget -

Positive (Negative)

REVENUES
Charges for Service

Infrastructure Maintenance Fee 110,000$               110,000$                 -$                         91,951$                 91,951$                 (18,049)$                      
Infrastructure Maint Penalty & Interest -                         -                           -                           -                             -                             -                                   
Fulton County IGA Funding -                         481,553                   -                           481,553                 481,553                 -                                   
Forsyth County IGA Funding -                         -                           -                           -                             -                             -                                   
City of Roswell IGA Funding 250,000                 250,000                   -                           -                             -                             (250,000)                      
Tree Recompense -                         -                           -                           594                        594                        594                              
Landfill Use Fees -                         -                           -                           -                             -                             -                                   
Other Misc Revenue -                         -                           -                           50                          50                          50                                

Interest Revenue -                         594                          38                        1,660                     1,660                     1,066                           
Insurance Proceeds/Public Works -                         -                           -                           86,637                   86,637                   86,637                         

Total revenues 360,000$               842,147$                 38$                      662,445$               662,445$               (179,702)$                    
EXPENDITURES
Capital Outlay

Finance 61,665$                 61,665$                   -$                         -$                           -$                           61,665$                       
Information Services 54,839                   54,839                     -                           18,024                   18,024                   36,815                         
General Govt Bldg 67,293                   67,293                     -                           24,087                   30,887                   36,406                         
Police 739,734                 739,734                   -                           498,879                 686,687                 53,047                         
Fire 5,229,092              8,669,788                13,036                 2,237,882              2,695,688              5,974,099                    
Public Works 11,395,814            11,395,814              7,160                   2,917,274              3,509,321              7,886,492                    
Parks & Recreation (Active) 22,149,117            22,149,117              -                           3,250,349              3,296,463              18,852,654                  
Passive Parks/Greenspace 4,714,175              4,749,091                -                           16,850                   49,013                   4,700,077                    
Community Development 873,234                 912,408                   3,392                   166,205                 232,727                 679,681                       

  Total Capital Outlay 45,284,962$          48,799,748$            23,588$               9,129,550$            10,518,811$          38,280,937$                
Excess of revenues over expenditures (44,924,962)$         (47,957,601)$           (23,550)$              (8,467,105)$           (9,856,366)$           (38,460,639)$               

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in from General Fund 7,129,426$            10,570,122$            1,282,258$          6,723,348$            6,723,348$            (3,846,774)$                 
Transfers in from ARPA Fund 2,188,167              2,188,167                -                           -                             -                             (2,188,167)                   
Transfer out to TSPLOST Fund (250,000)                (769,046)                  (519,046)              (519,046)                (519,046)                250,000                       
Contingencies (212,668)                (212,668)                  -                           -                             -                             212,668                       

Total other financing sources and uses 8,854,925$            11,776,575$            763,212$             6,204,302$            6,204,302$            (5,572,273)$                 
Net change in fund balances (36,070,037)$         (36,181,026)             739,662               (2,262,803)             (3,652,064)             

Fund balance - beginning 36,181,506            36,181,506              36,181,506            36,181,506            
Fund balance - ending 111,470$               481$                        33,918,703$          32,529,442$          

City of Milton
Capital Project Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Period Ended June 30, 2023

Page 8
14

Section 6, Item D.



Original 
Budgeted 
Amounts

Amended
Budgeted 
Amounts

Current Period 
Actuals

Year-to-Date
Actuals

Year-to-Date
Actuals + 

Encumbrances

Variance with 
Final Budget -

Positive (Negative)

REVENUES
Real Property Tax-Current Year 1,659,981$        1,659,981$      1,969$               1,662,614$        1,662,614$              2,633$                     
Public Utility Tax-Current Year 11,900               11,900             -                     12,341               12,341                     441                          
Real Property Tax-Prior Year 7,000                 7,000               -                     10,964               10,964                     3,964                       
Personal Property Tax-Current Year 19,309               19,309             4                        16,475               16,475                     (2,834)                      
Motor Vehicle Tax 2,323                 2,323               324                    3,191                 3,191                       868                          
Personal Property Tax-Prior Year 3,000                 3,000               -                     200                    200                          (2,800)                      
Penalties & Interest - Real Property -                     -                   58                      3,899                 3,899                       3,899                       
Penalties & Interest - Personal Property -                     -                   0                        153                    153                          153                          
Interest Revenue (Regions) 10,000               135,000           18,785               134,303             134,303                   (697)                         
Interest Revenue (Truist) -                     -                   0                        38                      38                            38                            

Total revenues 1,713,513$        1,838,513$      21,141$             1,844,176$        1,844,176$              5,663$                     
EXPENDITURES
Capital Outlay

Passive Parks/Greenspace 5,064,748$        5,211,904$      -$                       -$                       12,000$                   5,199,904$              
Fiscal Agent's Fees 1,306                 1,306               -                         1,306                 1,306                       (0)                             
Bond Principal 985,000             985,000           -                         985,000             985,000                   -                               
Bond Interest 724,375             724,375           -                         724,375             724,375                   -                               

  Total Capital Outlay 6,775,429$        6,922,585$      -$                       1,710,681$        1,722,681$              5,199,904$              
Excess of revenues over expenditures (5,061,916)$       (5,084,072)$     21,141$             133,495$           121,495$                 (5,194,240)$             

Net change in fund balances (5,061,916)$       (5,084,072)       133,495$           121,495$                 

Fund balance - beginning 5,146,590          5,146,590        5,146,590          5,146,590                
Fund balance - ending 84,674$             62,518$           5,280,086$        5,268,086$              

City of Milton
Greenspace Bond Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Period Ended June 30, 2023

Page 9
15

Section 6, Item D.



Original 
Budgeted 
Amounts

Amended
Budgeted 
Amounts

Current Period 
Actuals

Year-to-Date
Actuals

Year-to-Date
Actuals + 

Encumbrances

Variance with 
Final Budget -

Positive (Negative)

REVENUES
Transportation Local Option Sales Tax (I) -$                        -$                         -$                        -$                        -$                            -                           
Transportation Local Option Sales Tax (II) 7,500,000           7,500,000            718,182              5,681,750           5,681,750               (1,818,250)              
City of Roswell IGA (TS2-2311) -                      -                       10,577                10,577                
Interest Revenues (I) -                      -                       -                      32                        32                           32                            
Interest Revenues (II) -                      -                       97                        678                      678                         678                          
Realized Gain or Loss (GA Fund 1) (I) 150,000              150,000               82,227                616,390              616,390                  466,390                   
Realized Gain or Loss (GA Fund 1) (II) -                      -                       -                      -                      -                          -                           

Total revenues 7,650,000$         7,650,000$          811,084$            6,309,426$         6,298,849$             (1,351,151)$            
EXPENDITURES
Capital Outlay

Public Works 37,370,523$       37,370,523$        249,880$            2,127,326$         6,463,024$             30,907,500$           
  Total Capital Outlay 37,370,523$       37,370,523$        249,880$            2,127,326$         6,463,024$             30,907,500$           

Excess of revenues over expenditures (29,720,523)$      (29,720,523)$       561,204$            4,182,100$         (164,174)$              (32,258,651)$          
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in from General Fund 180,000$            180,000$             15,000$              135,000$            135,000$                (45,000)$                 
Transfers in from Capital Projects Fund 250,000              769,046               -                      519,046              519,046                  (250,000)                 
Transfers in from Capital Grant Fund 4,200,000           4,000,000            -                      -                      -                          (4,000,000)              

Total other financing sources and uses 4,630,000$         4,949,046$          15,000$              654,046$            654,046$                (4,295,000)$            
Net change in fund balances (25,090,523)$      (24,771,478)$       4,836,146$         489,872$                

Fund balance - beginning 25,869,968         25,869,968          25,869,968         25,869,968             
Fund balance - ending 779,445$            1,098,490$          30,706,114$       26,359,840$           

City of Milton
Transportation Local Option Sales Tax (TSPLOST) Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Period Ended June 30, 2023

Page 10
16

Section 6, Item D.



Original 
Budgeted 
Amounts

Amended
Budgeted 
Amounts

Current Period 
Actuals

Year-to-Date
Actuals

Year-to-Date
Actuals + 

Encumbrances

Variance with 
Final Budget -

Positive (Negative)

REVENUES
Intergovernmental Revenues

Assistance to Firefighters Grant -$                        -$                   -$                        -$                        -$                         -$                             
Recreation Trail Program 4,160,130           4,160,130       -                          -                          -                           (4,160,130)               
Land & Water Conservation Grant 95,000                95,000            -                          -                          -                           (95,000)                    
LMIG Funds 440,000              440,000          -                          435,697              435,697               (4,303)                      
GA Urban Forestry Grant -                          24,000            -                          -                          -                           (24,000)                    
Trail Connection to Big Creek Greenway 200,000              -                     -                          132,584              132,584               132,584                   

Interest Revenues -                          -                     3                         46                       46                        46                            
Total revenues 4,895,130$         4,719,130$     3$                       568,327$            568,327$             (4,150,803)$             

EXPENDITURES
Capital Outlay

Unallocated
Public Works 866,934$            896,934$        -$                        -$                        426,934$             470,000$                 
Parks & Recreation 224,631              224,631          -                          216,020              221,020               3,611                       

  Total Capital Outlay 1,091,564$         1,121,564$     -$                        216,020$            647,954$             473,611$                 
Excess of revenues over expenditures 3,803,565$         3,597,565       3                         352,307              (79,627)                (4,624,413)               

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in from General Fund -$                        6,000$            -$                        -$                        -$                         (6,000)$                    

Transfer out toTSPLOST Fund (4,200,000)          (4,000,000)     -                          -                          -                           (4,000,000)               
Total other financing sources and uses (4,200,000)$        (3,994,000)$   -$                        -$                        -$                         (4,006,000)$             

Net change in fund balances (396,435)$           (396,435)$      352,307$            (79,627)$              

Fund balance - beginning 396,449              396,449          396,449              396,449               
Fund balance - ending 15$                     15$                 748,757$            316,823$             

City of Milton
Capital Grant Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Period Ended June 30, 2023

Page 11
17

Section 6, Item D.



Original 
Budgeted 
Amounts

Amended
Budgeted 
Amounts

Current Period 
Actuals

Year-to-Date
Actuals

Year-to-Date
Actuals + 

Encumbrances

Variance with 
Final Budget -

Positive (Negative)

REVENUES
Admin Fund 40,000$              40,000$              2,486$                17,173$              17,173$                (22,827)$                  
Law Enforcement Fund 15,500                15,500                1,043                  7,304                  7,304                    (8,196)                      
Fire Fund 87,500                87,500                5,979                  40,352                40,352                  (47,148)                    
Road Fund 130,000              130,000              7,462                  50,877                50,877                  (79,123)                    
Park Fund 825,000              825,000              68,366                466,133              466,133                (358,868)                  
Interest Revenues/Admin Fund -                          -                          0                         5                         5                           5                              
Interest Revenues/Law Enforcement Fund -                          -                          0                         1                         1                           1                              
Interest Revenues/Fire Fund -                          -                          0                         5                         5                           5                              
Interest Revenues/Road Fund -                          -                          0                         6                         6                           6                              
Interest Revenues/Park Fund -                          -                          1                         54                       54                         54                            

Total revenues 1,098,000$         1,098,000$         85,338$              581,909$            581,909$              (516,091)$                
EXPENDITURES
General Government Buildings -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                          -$                             
Fire 87,500                87,500                -                          87,500                87,500                  -                               
Public Works 400,409              400,409              -                          -                          -                            400,409                   
Parks & Recreation (Active) 2,124,141           2,124,141           -                          1,882,668           2,011,730             112,412                   
Community Development 95,095                95,095                -                          -                          31,962                  63,132                     

  Total Capital Outlay 2,707,145$         2,707,145$         -$                        1,970,168$         2,131,192$           575,953$                 
Excess of revenues over expenditures (1,609,145)$        (1,609,145)          85,338$              (1,388,258)$        (1,549,283)$          (1,092,044)$             

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers Out to General Fund (40,000)$             (40,000)$             -$                        -$                        -$                          (40,000)$                  
Transfer Out to General Fund/Law Enforcement (15,500)               (15,500)               -                          -                          -                            (15,500)                    

Total other financing sources and uses (55,500)$             (55,500)$             -$                        -$                        -$                          (55,500)$                  
Net change in fund balances (1,664,645)$        (1,664,645)          (1,388,258)$        (1,549,283)$          

Fund balance - beginning 1,664,645           1,664,645           1,664,645           1,664,645             
Fund balance - ending -$                        -$                        276,386$            115,362$              

City of Milton
Capital Projects Fund - Impact Fees

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Period Ended June 30, 2023

Page 12
18

Section 6, Item D.



Original 
Budgeted 
Amounts

Amended
Budgeted 
Amounts

Current Period 
Actuals

Year-to-Date
Actuals

Year-to-Date
Actuals + 

Encumbrances

Variance with 
Final Budget -

Positive (Negative)

REVENUES
Interest Revenues (Regions) -$                        -$                     8,328$                63,803$              63,803$                63,803$                  
Interest Revenues (Truist) -                      -                   -                      3                         3                           3                             

Total revenues -$                        -$                     8,328$                63,806$              63,806$                63,806$                  
EXPENDITURES
Capital Outlay

Fire 2,697,997$         2,697,997$      1,509$                2,621,135$         2,737,012$           (39,015)$                 
Bond Principal 850,000              850,000           -                          850,000              850,000                -                              
Bond Interest 797,219              797,219           387,984              797,219              797,219                0                             
Fiscal Agent's Fees 1,807                  1,807               -                          1,806                  1,806                    1                             

  Total Capital Outlay 4,347,023$         4,347,023$      389,493$            4,270,160$         4,442,675$           (95,652)$                 
Excess of revenues over expenditures (4,347,023)$        (4,347,023)$     (381,165)$           (4,206,354)$        (4,378,869)$          159,458$                

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in from General Fund 1,649,025$         1,649,025$      137,419$            1,236,769$         1,236,769$           (412,256)$               

Total other financing sources and uses 1,649,025$         1,649,025$      137,419$            1,236,769$         1,236,769$           (412,256)$               
Net change in fund balances (2,697,998)$        (2,697,998)$     (2,969,586)$        (3,142,100)$          

Fund balance - beginning 2,707,195           2,707,195        2,707,195           2,707,195             
Fund balance - ending 9,197$                9,197$             (262,390)$           (434,905)$             

City of Milton
Capital Projects Fund - Revenue Bond

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Period Ended June 30, 2023

Page 13
19

Section 6, Item D.



Amount Percent Yield
Money Market - HomeTrust Bank 5,467,228    8% 4.99%
GA Fund 1 40,772,972  59% 5.12%
GA Fund 1 (ARPA) 3,649,079    5% 5.12%
GA Fund 1 (TSPLOST) 19,619,270  28% 5.12%

Grand Total Investment Portfolio 69,508,549  100%

 Current 
Month  YTD  Current 

Month  YTD  Current 
Month  YTD

Interest earned 219,855       1,143,980    15,294         114,666       82,325         617,099       
Budgeted interest 94,603         851,430       -               -               12,500         112,500       
Variance over/(under) 125,252       292,550       15,294 114,666 69,825         504,599       

FY2023 amended 1,135,240    -               150,000       

ARPA Fund

City of Milton
Investment Portfolio

For the Period Ending June 30, 2023

General Fund TSPLOST Fund

Page 14
20

Section 6, Item D.



 
  STAFF MEMO: 

                                                                                     FINANCIAL 

 

 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
FROM: Tom McKlveen, Parks & Recreation Director 
DATE: Submitted on August 10, 2023 for the Monday, August 21, 2023 Regular City 

Council Meeting 

AGENDA ITEM: Approval of a Construction Services Agreement Between the City of Milton 
and Prudencio Hernandez Romero dba Exceed Tree Care for the Cleanup 
of Fallen Trees at Providence Park, Birmingham Park, and the Milton City 
Park and Preserve. 

  
 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
On July 20, 2023 a large storm moved through the North Atlanta area, causing many trees 
to fall within the park system. Staff quickly responded using our on-call contractors at the 
parks to remediate the trees that affected daily park utilization, such as trails or active 
components.  
 
For the other fallen trees that were not as time sensitive to remediate, staff went out to bid 
as a cost saving effort. This contract addresses some of the largest trees that fell at 
Birmingham Park, along with Milton City Park & Preserve and Providence Park. Birmingham 
Park had eleven (11) trees across multiple trails, four (4) Trees in Milton Park and Preserve, 
and two (2) in Providence Park. 
 
Staff recommends approval of this Construction Services Agreement with Exceed Tree Care. 
 
PROCUREMENT SUMMARY 
 Purchasing method used:   3 Written Quotes ($5,000-$49,999) 

Account Number: Multiple Accounts 
 Requisition Total:   $9,800.00 
 Vendor:   Exceed Tree Care 
  
REVIEW & APPROVALS 
 

 Financial Review: Karen Ellis, Finance Director – August 14, 2023 
 Legal Review:   Jennifer McCall, Jarrard & Davis, LLP – August 8, 2023 
 Concurrent Review:  Steven Krokoff, City Manager 
 Attachments:  Construction Services Agreement 

21

Section 6, Item E.



22

Section 6, Item E.



23

Section 6, Item E.



24

Section 6, Item E.



25

Section 6, Item E.



26

Section 6, Item E.



27

Section 6, Item E.



���������
28

Section 6, Item E.



29

Section 6, Item E.



30

Section 6, Item E.



����������	�

31

Section 6, Item E.



32

Section 6, Item E.



33

Section 6, Item E.



34

Section 6, Item E.



 
  STAFF MEMO: 

                                                                                     FINANCIAL 

 

 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
FROM: Ashley Smith, IT Director 
DATE: Submitted on August 11, 2023 for the August 21, 2023 Regular City Council 

Meeting 

AGENDA ITEM: Approval of an Order Form Agreement with Addendum No. 1 between 
Fulton Communications, Inc. dba Vertical Communications, Inc. and the 
City of Milton for implementation of a hosted VOIP Phone Services. 

  
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
 
This is a contract for implementation of the hosted GoTo Connect Voice Over IP Phone 
Services for the City.  IT conducted a competitive bid process for a hosted VOIP solution and 
services and selected GoTo Communications and Vertical Communications as the 
vendor(s) of choice.  Vertical Communications is the integrator for the project providing 
installation services and on-going support.  The project will encompass the full deployment 
of the GoTo VOIP platform, hardware configuration (handsets and conference phones), 
Microsoft Teams integration setup, and end user/administrator training.  This system will be 
replacing the current on-premises Shortel system that is end-of-life by the vendor.  This is a 
one-time cost totaling $0.   
 
 
PROCUREMENT SUMMARY 
 Purchasing method used:   RFP 

Account Number:  100-1535-523850106 
 One-Time Total:             $0 
  

REVIEW & APPROVALS 
 

 Financial Review:  Karen Ellis, Finance Director – August 14, 2023 
 Legal Review:   Jennifer McCall, Jarrard & Davis, LLP – July 26, 2023 
 Concurrent Review:  Steven Krokoff, City Manager 

Attachments:            Order Form Agreement with Addendum No. 1  

35

Section 6, Item F.



36

Section 6, Item F.



37

Section 6, Item F.



�����������	�
������������������������ ������������ ! "��������#��$��%&
'�� (�)����� )���*��	�� +�����,���� -�������� ./������0�������1����)���� ������ �������2)	���3�����,���������3�#�4��0������� 56�7�� 5��$%�7���� +���7 856�7�� 85��$%�7��5�7��5�7��9:9�;� 5�7��<=9><?�� ���@��)��������������A*�
'�� (�)����� )���*��	�� +�����,���� -�������� ./������0�������1����)��5�7��5�7��5�7��9:9�;� 5�7�����@��)�������� ! +)��! %B�6B6�6$0��������*)��! 0�����3�C����� 0������� !D�	�*��	��! 0����7�7 !�'�,�E�)! -�13�+��,��'�,�������0���������������! 6��&������)@��
)�FC�������#���$����
0���������,,��G)�! +)��!�)����"�,������)��G�!H7�H���'�+��� �)����"�,B4��' !IJK�:LLMNO�>PO�:QRS�+)���H����! H�����T�!

:<�=<�I:<U
�OPNKMVWMJQ�JL�XYZQ[O���������,���������3����,������)�����,,����3���#�4��0���������,������)����7

)@�����3�� 38

Section 6, Item F.



�

� ��

�

��

����������	��
�������������������	�����������
����
������������
������������� � �����!"#����$%$&�'�()����)#�"!)%������$"��$%'��!�����$�*+��,-�������.������/������001234536�7849:2;�<2=9:536�:>�?@ABCDEF�:G2�?5:H�I9H�J>347J:�:G2�K54�>823536�L59�9�L5<:79=�I22:536M��N2;8>34536�K5442<;�O5==�K2�2I95=24�9�I22:536�=53P�;G>7=4�:G2�3224�:>�G>=4�:G5;�:H82�I22:536�9<5;2M� 
������)Q��$&�R���S���TUUVTWX�YZ[\]̂_ZŴ�TẀa]_\̂TaW��RR����$"�����$�*+��-�������!".�)Q��!#")%������/$�"��%"�����b����!"$&��c$#d��!#")%-�e������f� �+)%���bgh��f���S����c��R!"���iiij�!#")%&$j&)k�TWÛ]Vl̂TaWU�̂a�a`̀Z]a]U��#�*"�)%!*�����!""$#��mm[nopoqrsq�tuqv�wx�quwtyvvxz�xsx{vno|y{rss}�~yr�_ysvo|�q��yzWxv�pno{unxtx|v�ponvrs�psrv�ont�rv�����tysvo|�r��o~��T��}ou��r~x�|ov�nx�yqvxnxz�rq�r�~x|zon�~yr��yzWxv��x�x|{ounr�x�}ou�vo�nx�yqvxn���̂�xnx�yq�|o�{oqv�vo��oy|��r|z�}ou��yss�wx�|ovy�yxz�o��r|}�povx|vyrs�wyz�opponvu|yvyxq��yv��v�x�lyv}�o��_ysvo|�rq��xss�rq�ov�xn�r�x|{yxq���o�rnx�prnv�o��v�x�Xxon�yr�[un{�rqy|��Xnoup��
�$�d��%k�#)/���$*d$&�������
������������� �
$���)Q��)�/$%.�)���!�����/�*!$#��%R"��*"!)%R����$'#!%��Q)��c�!""�%���R"!)%R��$�*+� g-�������.�S����������������������!"����R"!)%R�)%#!%��k!$�"+���!'
�"�������!��*"�/�)*�����%"�/)�"$#�$"�iiij�!#")%&$j&)k�T_[a]̂\Ŵ��UZZ�Û\WY\]Y�̂Z]_U�\WY�laWYT̂TaWU��a`̀Z]a]U�_VÛ�la_[�ẐZ�̂�Z�̀a��a�TWX�a��xnon�Wrtx�\zznxqq����� \uv�ony�xz�a��xnon�Uy�|rvon}�����[sxrqx�pny|v�|rtx�r|z�qy�|�y|�y|���a��xnon�[�o|x�Wutwxn�� a��xnon�̀\��Wutwxn���a��xnon�̀xzxnrs�T�Y��Wutwxn�� a��xnon�Z�trys�\zznxqq���a`̀Z]a]U�_VÛ�]ẐV]W�̂�TU�la�Z]�U�ZẐ��T̂��]̀[�]ZU[aWUZ��� ����� ��� 39

Section 6, Item F.



�����������	
������������������������������������� !"#�$���%#� "��&������'������(��)"�*�$$������+$�) $���,��#-).#$�)+-�,/���'�+$�0�1��#�23��4 ��-&"�����5.�+$�����4� $#�+��6�����7� $��.��.#�8�)+-�	+�$�& $#�+����4� $#�+��6������4$)+-)�-�	+���')$#�+���4� $#�+��6��4 �(�����4��.# ����4� $#�+�96����������:&)"#�# )$#�+���4� $#�+�;6�����$����(��)"��4� $#�+�<6��5.)"&)$#�+���#$��#)���4� $#�+�=6��4$)+-)�-���+$�) $�	+���')$#�+���4)'("��4$)+-)�-���+$�) $���� �
40

Section 6, Item F.



�����������	
���� ����������������������
����������� !"�"#$%�
�"&'�����(��)�"&��"&*�+��&����)�&*"&'����$&�����,�!����� "�-��,��"%��&���.///////��$*������&�"!��*�#01�&�.�2����#!"�"#$%�"��1���0#��$�3�1$&*$��!-�!�40"!�1�&��5��0))%"��6��!7"#���!�40"!�*5��081"��$%�*$���5�&018�!��,�#�)"���!�40"!�*�,�!��081"��$%5�,0&*"&'�$1�0&��$&*���0!#�5�#�&�!$#��!�40"!�1�&���9".�.:�#�&�!$#��)�!,�!1$&#����#0!"�-:�"&�0!$&#��!�40"!�1�&��:�)�!,�!1$&#��$&*6�!�!�)�!�"&'�!�40"!�1�&��:���#.;.���.///////2��������)!�#0!�1�&���,,"#�!<��&$1�:�$**!���:�)��&��&018�!��$&*���1$"%�$**!���.��
�"��"�������&%-�)�!��&�-�0�$!��$%%�=�*����#�110&"#$���="���!�'$!*"&'���������$&*�"��$&��>#�%%�&����0!#���,�"&,�!1$�"�&�,�!�$&-�40���"�&��-�0�1$-��$7�.���.///////?���&*�����)!��40$%","#$�"�&��#�&,�!�&#��",��&��"���,,�!�*.�
�����#�&,�!�&#���)!�7"*��$&��))�!�0&"�-����$�@�#%$!",-"&'�40���"�&�:��8�$"&�$�8����!�0&*�!��$&*"&'��,�����)!�A�#�:��!����&��",-����� "�-��,�$&-�$18"'0"�"��:�"&#�&�"���&#"��:��!��!!�!��"&��������.�B.///////
$@��$*7$&�$'���,�����C40���"�&�$&*�$&�=�!D�)�!"�*.�E081"��-�0!�40���"�&���������)!�#0!�1�&���,,"#�!�8-�����*0��*$���%"���*�"&�����E#��*0%���,�F7�&���$&*�7"�=�����$&�=�!��'"7�&�"&�����,�!1$%�C$**�&*$D�"��0�*�,�!��������.�?%%�$**�&*$�"��0�*�,�!�$&�����$!��)����*��&����� "�-G��=�8�"���$��HIIJKLLMMMNOPQIRSTUNTRV��="%%�"&#%0*��$%%�40���"�&��$�@�*�$&*�$&�=�!�*�#�&#�!&"&'��������.���W.///////��%%�=�����,�!1$��!�40"!�*�"&���������=��&�)!�)$!"&'�-�0!�!��)�&��.��!�7"*��)�"&��8-�)�"&��!��)�&�������$%%���#�"�&��"&�$�#%�$!�$&*�#�&#"���1$&&�!.���X.///////��!�7"*��#�1)%����$&�=�!�6*��#!")�"�&�.���$*�$&*�$&�=�!�$%%�40���"�&��$&*�!�40"!�1�&��.�Y�&G��$��01������ "�-��!��7$%0$�"�&�#�11"�����="%%�@&�=�=�$��-�0!�#�1)$&-�#$)$8"%"�"���$!���!�=�$��"��1�6��!7"#���-�0�#$&�)!�7"*�:��7�&�",�-�0��$7��)!�7"�0�%-�#�&�!$#��*�="������� "�-.�
����081"��$%��$!���7$%0$��*�8$��*���%�%-��&�����"&,�!1$�"�&�$&*�1$��!"$%��)!�7"*�*�"&�-�0!�!��)�&��.��Z.///////[�������,�!1��)!�7"*�*:�".�.:�#�7�!�)$'�:��$1)%��80*'���,�!1:�#�!�","#$�"�&�,�!1�:���#.�\.�/////// ��#@�����=�8�"���,�!�����$**�&*$.�]�,�!���081"��"&'�-�0!�!��)�&��:�#��#@����� "�-G��=�8�"���$��HIIJKLLMMMNOPQIRSTUNTRV��������=�����!�$&-�$**�&*$�=�!��"��0�*�,�!��������.�	,���:�-�0�10����081"��$��"'&�*�#�7�!�������,�!��$#��$**�&*01�"��0�*�$%�&'�="���-�0!�����!��)�&��.���̂.�///////��7"�=�$&*�!�$*���������*�#01�&��$'$"&����1$@���0!����$��-�0��$7��$**!����*�$%%�!�40"!�1�&��.�_�0!��!"'"&$%�!��)�&���$&*�����!�40����*�#�)"���10���8��"*�&�"#$%�$&*�8��#�1)%���.�
���#�)"���$!��)!�7"*�*���������7$%0$�"�&�#�11"�����1�18�!��$&*�="%%�8��0��*�����#�!��-�0!�!��)�&��.���.�///////E081"��-�0!�!��)�&����&��"1�.�2����$%%�����*$����$&*��"1���%"���*�"&�����E#��*0%���,�F7�&���$&*�="��"&�����*�#01�&��$&*�8���0!������081"��$%%�!�40"!�*�"��1���&��"1�.�̀$����081"��$%�!��)�&����$!��&�7�!�$##�)��*.��
�"��#��#@%"���"��)!�7"*�*�,�!�$��"��$&#���&%-�$&*����0%*�&���8���081"���*�="���a,,�!�!G��!��)�&��.�
41

Section 6, Item F.



����������	
������� ���� ������������������������������������������������������������� ����!"#�$%&'�"#�$%&�("#)*%#+&,�%$�)-'.-"/0�)%01&"2+1"%0#�-0(�$-'"*3�','2,&�&,*-1"%0#�4"1!�5"13�%$�6"*1%0�%$$")"-*#7,'.*%3,,#8����*,-#,�)%'.*,1,�1!"#�$%&'�-0(�&,1+&0�-#�.-&1�%$�3%+&�����.-)9-/,�4!,0�"1�"#�#+2'"11,(8����:-',�%$�;$$,&%&��<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<���:-',�-0(�1!,�%$$")"-*�.%#"1"%0�%$�1!,�6"*1%0�;$$")"-*�1%�4!%'�1!,�)-'.-"/0�)%01&"2+1"%0�4-#�'-(,�=�*,-#,�+#,�-�#,.-&-1,�$%&'�$%&�,-)!�%$$")"-*�1%�4!%'�-�)%01&"2+1"%0�!-#�2,,0�'-(,�"0�1!,�.-#1�14%�=�>�3,-&#8>���<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<�����?"#1�1!,�(%**-&�-'%+017@-*+,�-0(�(,#)&".1"%0�%$�,-)!�)-'.-"/0�)%01&"2+1"%0�'-(,�%@,&�1!,�.-#1�14%�=�>�3,-&#�23�1!,�A..*")-017;..%0,01�1%�1!,�0-',(�6"*1%0�;$$")"-*8���A'%+017B-*+,� C,#)&".1"%0��<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<� <<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<��<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<� <<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<��<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<� <<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<����*,-#,�*"#1�-03�$-'"*3�','2,&�1!-1�"#�)+&&,01*3�=%&�!-#�2,,0�,'.*%3,(�4"1!"0�1!,�*-#1���'%01!#>�23�1!,�5"13�%$�6"*1%0�-0(�3%+&�&,*-1"%0D��<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<� <<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<��<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<� <<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<�� �
42

Section 6, Item F.



����������	
���� ���������������������������������������� �������!�"�#��$������������%&�'()')*&�+)�,-(./*0�1.2�2&3/4&(�1.5�1.2�133�),�+0&�2&3/4&(163&*�1.2�*&(4/7&*�.18&2�/.�+0&��&9-&*+�,)(��()')*13�:��	
��;<�=1.1>&2�?)
��@)3-+/).A��
+�/*�-.2&(*+))2�1.2�1>(&&2�+01+�B&�014&�(&12�+0&�C/+5D*�*'&7/,/71+/).*�*0)B.�)(�(&,&(&.7&2�/.�+0&�����1.2�+01+�+0/*�'()')*13�/*�812&�/.�177)(21.7&�B/+0�+0&�'()4/*/).*�),�*-70�*'&7/,/71+/).*A�E5�)-(�B(/++&.�*/>.1+-(&�).�+0/*�'()')*13<�B&�>-1(1.+&&�1.2�7&(+/,5�+01+�133�/+&8*�/.73-2&2�8&&+�)(�&F7&&2�1.5�1.2�133�*-70�C/+5�*'&7/,/71+/).*A�%&�,-(+0&(�1>(&&<�/,�1B1(2&2�1�7).+(17+<�+)�2&3/4&(�>))2*�1.2�*&(4/7&*�B0/70�8&&+�)(�&F7&&2�+0&�*'&7/,/71+/).*A��0&�C/+5�(&*&(4&*�+0&�(/>0+�+)�(&G&7+�1.5�)(�133�'()')*13*<�B1/4&�+&70./713/+/&*<�1.2�/.,)(813/+/&*<�1.2�+)�81H&�1.�1B1(2�/.�+0&�6&*+�/.+&(&*+�),�+0&�C/+5A������I�I@JK�@
LMJ�N�O�JMP�CO��
�
CJ�
IM�
�-.2&(*+1.2�7)33-*/4&�6/22/.>�/*�1�4/)31+/).�),�@+1+&�1.2��&2&(13�K1B�1.2�71.�(&*-3+�/.�,/.&*<�'(/*).�*&.+&.7&*<�1.2�7/4/3�2181>&�1B1(2*A�
�1>(&&�+)�16/2&�65�133�7).2/+/).*�),�+0&�'()')*13�1.2�7&(+/,5�+01+�
�18�1-+0)(/Q&2�+)�*/>.�,)(�85�7)8'1.5A�
�,-(+0&(�7&(+/,5�+01+�+0&�'()4/*/).*�),�+0&�I,,/7/13�C)2&�),�L&)(>/1�J..)+1+&2<�@&7+/).*�R�	�	���&+A�*&9A�014&�.)+�6&&.�4/)31+&2�1.2�B/33�.)+�6&�4/)31+&2�/.�1.5�(&*'&7+A����J-+0)(/Q&2�@/>.1+-(&SSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSP1+&SSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS��(/.+T�5'&�M18&SSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS��(/.+T�5'&�C)8'1.5�M18&�U&(&SSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS�
43

Section 6, Item F.



����������	
���� ����������������������������������������������������������������� �� ���!�����������������������"������!�����#$�%&%'()*+,�)-*.�/00*1/2*)3�)-%�(+1%4.*,+%1�'5+)4/')54�2%4*0*%.�*).�'5678*/+'%�9*)-�:;<;=;>;�?��	�	@3�.)/)*+,�/00*46/)*2%8$�)-/)�)-%�*+1*2*1(/83�0*463�54�'54754/)*5+�9-*'-�*.�%+,/,%1�*+�)-%�7-$.*'/8�7%40546/+'%�50�.%42*'%.�5+�A%-/80�50�)-%�<*)$�50�B*8)5+�-/.�4%,*.)%4%1�9*)-3�*.�/()-54*C%1�)5�(.%�/+1�(.%.�)-%�0%1%4/8�954D�/()-54*C/)*5+�745,4/6�'5665+8$�D+59+�/.�E	F%4*0$3�54�/+$�.(A.%G(%+)�4%78/'%6%+)�745,4/63�*+�/''541/+'%�9*)-�)-%�/778*'/A8%�7452*.*5+.�/+1�1%/18*+%.�%.)/A8*.-%1�*+�:;<;=;>;�?��	�	@;���(4)-%4654%3�)-%�(+1%4.*,+%1�'5+)4/')54�9*88�'5+)*+(%�)5�(.%�)-%�0%1%4/8�954D�/()-54*C/)*5+�745,4/6�)-45(,-5()�)-%�'5+)4/')�7%4*51�/+1�)-%�(+1%4.*,+%1�'5+)4/')54�9*88�'5+)4/')�054�)-%�7-$.*'/8�7%40546/+'%�50�.%42*'%.�*+�./)*.0/')*5+�50�.('-�'5+)4/')�5+8$�9*)-�.(A'5+)4/')54.�9-5�74%.%+)�/+�/00*1/2*)�)5�)-%�'5+)4/')54�9*)-�)-%�*+0546/)*5+�4%G(*4%1�A$�:;<;=;>;�?��	�	@HAI;����<5+)4/')54�-%4%A$�/))%.).�)-/)�*).�0%1%4/8�954D�/()-54*C/)*5+�(.%4�*1%+)*0*'/)*5+�+(6A%4�/+1�1/)%�50�/()-54*C/)*5+�/4%�/.�058859.JKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKK�%F%4*0$�L(6A%4��KKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKK�M/)%�50�>()-54*C/)*5+���KKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKK�L/6%�50�<5+)4/')54����B/+/,%1�F5
��N58()*5+�L/6%�50��45O%')��<*)$�50�B*8)5+3�=%54,*/�L/6%�50��(A8*'�E6785$%4���������

�-%4%A$�1%'8/4%�(+1%4�7%+/8)$�50�7%4O(4$�)-/)�)-%�054%,5*+,�*.�)4(%�/+1�'544%');��E&%'()%1�5+�KKKKKKKKKKKKKKK3�KKKKKK3���KKK�*+�KKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKH'*)$I3�KKKKKKH.)/)%I;��KKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKK�N*,+/)(4%�50�>()-54*C%1�:00*'%4�54�>,%+)��KKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKK��4*+)%1�L/6%�/+1��*)8%�50�>()-54*C%1�:00*'%4�54�>,%+)��NP#N<�
#EM�>LM�NQ:�L�#E�:�E�BE�:L��R
N��RE�KKKKKK�M>S�:��KKKKKKKKKKKKKK3��KKK;�������KKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKK��������������L:�>�S��P#T
<��� UL:�>�S�NE>TV�������B$�<566*..*5+�E&7*4%.J�KKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKK�

44

Section 6, Item F.



����������	
����

�

� ��������������������������� �����
�� !����� "#$%&��'������()*!�+)�)*�,-./011.23.34�567�207�1823870-9:� "#$%&�;'������#*��<���#=�>!#?@)A!�BC$�D !�*)CA�� "#$%&��'�����'�EF�;<���GH=H�I(��JA�K!$���C�*!?�EF�*&!�L)*F�MJ??!A? =N� OA�C$�#EC *'�"#$%&���'������PQRSR��T���U�� VW�XYZZ�S[\[�����R]�̂�Q_̀�Xab�XZXc�JK#$?�LCA*$#%*� "#F�'������MG$CGC�!?N�������Y�P��d�������e������f�g�h�V�f���ì��SYjjkkk[\lT�R]m�[mRno���p�d�����d�d�������������P�d���[����� �
45

Section 6, Item F.



����������	
����

�

�������������������������������������������������� � !��"#���������������$�����%����������&'�()*+�,-�.)/*,0�)1�233'4*)05�1'2/'6��7,4,12/1�-7,8�9:2/)-)'6�-)781�*,�47,;)6'�2�$<=<>?@��A����ABCDEA=��F//�G--'7,71�8:1*�3,84/+�H)*&�2//�5'0'72/�206�14'3)2/�7'9:)7'8'0*1�,-�*&'�����)0-,782*),0�206�)01*7:3*),01�'03/,1'6�&'7')0I���7,J'3*�3,84/'*),0�)1�'K4'3*'6�L+�M'4*'8L'7�N�����I�������������#O���������%�����������7,8�*&'�62*'�*&)1��'9:'1*�-,7��7,4,12/1�P���Q�)1�)11:'6�:0*)/�2�(,0*723*,7�)1�1'/'3*'6N�G--'7,71�27'�0,*�2//,H'6�*,�3,88:0)32*'�H)*&�20+�()*+�1*2--�,7�'/'3*'6�,--)3)2/1�7'5276)05�*&)1�47,3:7'8'0*N�'K3'4*�2*�*&'�6)7'3*),0�,-�R,0,7�.,*'1N��7,3:7'8'0*�.2025'7I�F0+�:02:*&,7)S'6�3,0*23*�82+�6)19:2/)-+�*&'�G--'7,7�-7,8�-:7*&'7�3,01)6'72*),0I�(,0*23*�)0-,782*),0�-,7�*&'�1)05/'�4,)0*�,-�3,0*23*�)1�21�-,//,H1T����7,3:7'8'0*�G--)3'T��R,0,7�.,*'1N��7,3:7'8'0*�.2025'7�F667'11T�����U�R'7)*25'�V2/WN�.)/*,0N�XF�����Y��'/'4&,0'�Z:8L'7T��U[�	�Y�	�\�[��]	82)/�F667'11T��&,0,7I8,*'1̂8)/*,052I5,;�������_� ��̀ �������������FI��';)'H����I�G--'7,71�1&,:/6�327'-://+�7';)'H�*&'�)01*7:3*),01a�82062*,7+�7'9:)7'8'0*1N�14'3)-)32*),01N�1*206276�*'781�206�3,06)*),01N�206�1*206276��3,0*723*��1'*��,:*��)0��*&)1�������206��47,84*/+��0,*)-+��*&'�47,3:7'8'0*�,--)3'�)6'0*)-)'6�2L,;'�;)2�'	82)/�,-�20+�28L)5:)*+N�)03,01)1*'03+N�:06:/+�7'1*7)3*);'�14'3)-)32*),01N�,7�'77,7�H&)3&�*&'+�6)13,;'7�:4,0�'K28)02*),0�,-�*&)1����I���bI��,78�,-�c:'1*),01I��G--'7,71�H)*&�9:'1*),01�,7�7'9:)7)05�3/27)-)32*),0�,7�)0*'747'*2*),0�,-�20+�1'3*),0�H)*&)0�*&)1�����8:1*�1:L8)*�*&')7�9:'1*),01�;)2�*&'�1,/)3)*2*),0�/)0W�,0�b)6Z'*�d)7'3*N�*&'�47,3:7'8'0*�4,7*2/�,0�*&'�()*+e1�H'L1)*'N�,0�,7�L'-,7'�f��$�g���h�A=�$<ijk��lm�_ _nI�]23&�9:'1*),0�8:1*�47,;)6'�3/'27�7'-'7'03'�*,�*&'�1'3*),0N�425'N�206�)*'8�)0�9:'1*),0I�c:'1*),01�7'3');'6�2-*'7�*&'�6'26/)0'�82+�0,*�L'�3,01)6'7'6I���(I�()*+e1�F01H'71I���&'�()*+�H)//�47,;)6'�20�,--)3)2/�H7)**'0�201H'7�*,�2//�9:'1*),01�,0�,7�2L,:*�$<ijk�__m�_ _n���&'�()*+o1�7'14,01'�H)//�L'�L+�-,782/�H7)**'0�266'06:8I�
46

Section 6, Item F.



����������	
����

�

����������������������������������������������������������������������  �����!��!��"����#��������$���%���������� ����������""��"#����  �!�������"�� �����"����������������������������&''()**+++,-./'0123,204�,5���������#����������"����#��������""��"#�������������������������%���6%�7���"��"�$�������%��8���#!��������������������������������5�����������������������������������$���9������"��"���������%�:#���������� ���#������� #"�"������������"��"������������� �������;#������������������ ��%���;#����������<��������������������"��"�������������������������""�"����=��������#���!���#!�����"������������#�����������������������"��!�=��!������"��������������������������>�	��� �"�;#��������������������5������9�����������������"��#���!������������"�!������<� ��������������������<�����������!�������?�����"���������������������������  ���=���������5������9���!� �������������"�����������������������������������%�����$���������=�����������������""��������	������� ������������#!������� ���;#����������<����������������������������������5�������"#�������������������������%������������ ���#!������=��������������<�����������;#����"���"�������"������������"��"���������"����"���������"�����"��"���������� ���#������  �!���""�����"������������� ����������""��"#�����#�"����������������"���  ���� ������  ������������ ���#!������������������������������%���@%�:��"��������;#��������%�����!��� ���! �����������"������������5��������#�����������������������  ����"��������;#��������%�����$������  �"��������������������5������9������������������� �����������������������������;#��������%��������������������"����������������#  ������������  ���;#��������� ����"�����������������!���#!A���������������"#�������"#����������=� #���������������������!��"����"����	��������=�%����B,C� DEDFGHIJKHLHDMNHED��  �;#� ����"���� ���������  ������=�������"�������������#�������"������������"�������� �����������"����!� ������� ����� ����� ���������������� ������<������������ �������%���B,O� IPQLHNNHDR�SKESEIMTI��5���������#���������U��������������� ����������������������  ���������  ������������%���������������������������� ��������� #"����  ��������� �������������������A���%��%�7#!����� ���;#��������%�������� �����  ���� #"��������  �����V�%�$�������:� ������;#��������������� ���=��������W������������������"���"������"V��������������������"��#����X�
47

Section 6, Item F.



����������	
������

�

��������������������������������������� !�	�������������������"��#����������������#����������� !�$����%���#�����"��#�&�#�'��������%#���(��������!���������� � �"#���������)���"#����!*��#+��������������*��#+�*�#� ���,���� ������� ��������������(#� ��%��"#���������+��������������
"������������-#�%����%���#�����"��#��.%#�������#��&��#����/������#��0������ �����/�����#�#���*�"��/������#�����*�,�#�����#����������%��"��/������#�*�#� �(%#��������%����#��#"#���+�1��2���#��0�"��)� ��#��#�����"#�� �"��/������%� ����(��%���3�3���#��#��#����� �'��������������� *�#���#�����"#�� ��%#�������*�#� �#�������)#��)��#""��#�%���������#�� ����/�����#� �������������#�������+���%���#����4!���"������#������(��%������������#� ��%�� �����������)��)����������%����#��������%��������������#��"��"��#��#���������4���������������������� � � ����������.���.�������4�!��4�5""���#+���5  �� #�5�2��(�� �����������������������#��!��� 6��#������������"���(��%���������������7���������#������������"���(��%��%������������������#��+����+/�������"����� � ���������%��������#��#�����%�������������)#��#��*��#�� �������
���"����)�*�#� 3����#�� ��,�#��������������%�������� ��#�����#���,�#�����#�������%#�� �����������(��%�����������#�*�#��� �������������� ����#� *�#��� ��������������# *����#�����������#�����,����� �������#���������-����������.�+����#����,���� �#� ���# ��������������"��������"��#����89:;:<=><�?@<A�BC�<@B?DAACE�C>CFA9:GDF=>>H�ID=�JD>A:GK<�LDEMCA�;9:F@9C?CGA�;:9A=>N;>=AO:9?�=A�PPPQ?D>A:GR=QR:I�BH�STUU�8J�:G�J=9FV�SWX�SUSYQ����"��#���(����+���"��� �#��#""��Z��#������&	��"��#� ��#�������������(����+��#������� ��[[\]̂ _̀ â�bc_de]f�g]hdè̂a�ei�jklmnopqr�es]�j̀et�udt�vî _bve�es]�ẁ_�ic]̂ `̂a�x̀d�d�x̀gebdh�u]]è̂ay��z]fcî _̀ â�i{{]gigf�|̀hh�w]�]ud̀h]_�d�u]]è̂a�h̀̂}�fsibh_�es]�̂]]_�ei�sih_�es̀f�etc]�u]]è̂a�dg̀f]y����~#������"��#�������#� ���������#���*��#����"��"��#����(����������+���#���"�� ��#� ��(�����#����#���#�����+�� ��,�#����� ����������%�������� ��#���������%#���+���%��7�����������������2����#������"��"��#���#�����+����� �)�#��%��6� '����������"�����������"���#��+���%�� �����#�� ������~#���"��"��#���(��������+��#���"�� �
48

Section 6, Item F.



�����������	
�����

�

������������������������������������������������������ !""!#$�%�&'�()#�'�")�"*!�����+�,--'&)&�%$&''��")�%#��#.'&�"%#.!#$�)-�%#.�/) (0!%#/'�1!"*�"*'��('/!-!/%"!)#��%#.�&'2�!&' '#"��.'�/&!�'.�!#�"*!�����3�����4�� ��������5��5����6�5��5���7�� ��83�9!"��:)"��'�()#�!�0'�-)&��&'(%&%"!)#�9)�"�3���*'�/)�"��-)&�.';'0)(!#$�%#.�.'0!;'&!#$�&'�()#�'��")�"*!������%#.�%#������'2�'#"�(&'�'#"%"!)#��)-�"*'�(&)()�%0�%��&'2�'�"'.����"*'�9!"��%&'�'#"!&'0��"*'�&'�()#�!�!0!"��)-�"*'�,--'&)&3��*'�9!"��!��#)"�0!%�0'�-)&�%#��'<('#�'�!#/�&&'.����"*'�,--'&)&�!#�"*'�(&'(%&%"!)#�%#.�(&'�'#"%"!)#�)-�"*'!&�(&)()�%0�3����3�800��! '0��=�� !""'.�>%"'&!%0���'/) '�9!"���&)('&"�3��800� %"'&!%0����� !""'.�!#�&'�()#�'�")�"*!�������'/) '�"*'�(&)('&"��)-�"*'�9!"��)-�>!0")#�%#.�%&'�")��'�%(('#.'.�")�%#��-)& %0�.)/� '#"%"!)#+�1*!/*�1)�0.�-�&"*'&�.'-!#'�)&�'<(%#.�%#��/)#"&%/"�%0�&'0%"!)#�*!(��'"1''#�"*'�9!"��%#.�,--'&)&�&'��0"!#$�-&) �"*!������(&)/'��3������ �

49

Section 6, Item F.



�����������	
�����

�

���������������������������������������� �������� ��!"#�����"#�"##$%&�$'&%(�)!%�*$)!+("),�+-�)!%�."),�+-�/"0)+'1���!%�����2(+3%##�"#�*�2(+3$(%4%')�+2)"+'�*00+5"'6�)!%�*5*(&�)+�7%�7*#%&�+'�#)*)%&�%8*0$*)"+'�3(")%("*1��!%�����#)*)%#�)!%�(%0*)"8%�"42+()*'3%�+-�*00�%8*0$*)"+'�3(")%("*1�9+�+)!%(�%8*0$*)"+'�3(")%("*:�+)!%(�)!*'�*#�+$)0"'%&�"'�)!%����:�5"00�7%�$#%&1�����;� ����������������������!%�."),�%'3+$(*6%#�-(%%�*'&�+2%'�3+42%)")"+'�*4+'6�<--%(+(#1�=!%'%8%(�2+##"70%:�)!%�."),�5"00�&%#"6'�#2%3"-"3*)"+'#:�2(+2+#*0�(%>$%#)#:�*'&�3+'&")"+'#�)+�*33+420"#!�)!"#�+7?%3)"8%:�3+'#"#)%')�5")!�)!%�'%3%##"),�)+�#*)"#-,�)!%�."),@#�'%%&�)+�2(+3$(%�)%3!'"3*00,�#+$'&:�3+#)	%--%3)"8%�#%(8"3%#�*'&�#$220"%#1������� �����������������A�������BA�������������C1��$70"3�
'-+(4*)"+'1�C00�"'-+(4*)"+'�(%3%"8%&�"'�(%#2+'#%�)+�)!"#����:�"'30$&"'6�3+2,("6!)%&�4*)%("*0:�"#�&%%4%&�2$70"3�"'-+(4*)"+'�*'&�5"00�7%�4*&%�*8*"0*70%�-+(�2$70"3�8"%5"'6�*'&�3+2,"'6�*-)%(�)!%�)"4%�-+(�(%3%"2)�+-�>$*0"-"3*)"+'#�!*#�2*##%&:�*'&�)!%�*5*(&�!*#�7%%'�4*&%:�5")!�)!%�-+00+5"'6�-+$(�%D3%2)"+'#E�F�G�7+'*�-"&%�)(*&%�#%3(%)#�4%%)"'6�3+'-"&%')"*0"),�(%>$"(%4%')#�)!*)�!*8%�7%%'�2(+2%(0,�4*(H%&:�#%2*(*)%&:�*'&�&+3$4%')%&I�F�G�4*))%(#�"'8+08"'6�"'&"8"&$*0�#*-%),�*#�&%)%(4"'%&�7,�)!%�."),�+-�/"0)+'I�F�G�*',�3+42*',�-"'*'3"*0�"'-+(4*)"+'�(%>$%#)%&�7,�)!%�."),�+-�/"0)+'�)+�&%)%(4"'%�8%'&+(�(%#2+'#"7"0"),:�$'0%##�2("+(�5("))%'�3+'#%')�!*#�7%%'�6"8%'�7,�)!%�<--%(+(I�*'&�FJG�+)!%(�3+'#)")$)"+'*0�2(+)%3)"+'#1���K1��(+3$(%4%')�<--"3%(��%8"%5�+-��(+2+#*0#1��L2+'�+2%'"'6�)!%�#$74"))*0#�(%3%"8%&�"'�(%#2+'#%�)+�)!"#����:�)!%�2(+3$(%4%')�+--"3%�5"00�(%8"%5�)!%�2(+2+#*0#�*'&�#%2*(*)%�+$)�*',�"'-+(4*)"+'�)!*)�4%%)#�)!%�(%-%(%'3%&�%D3%2)"+'#�"'�M%3)"+'��1�FCG�*7+8%:�2(+8"&"'6�)!%�-+00+5"'6�3+'&")"+'#�!*8%�7%%'�4%)E���1�.+'-"&%')"*0�"'-+(4*)"+'�"#�30%*(0,�4*(H%&�*'&�#%2*(*)%&�-(+4�)!%�(%#)�+-�)!%�#$74"))*01���1�C'�*--"&*8")�-(+4�*'�<--%(+(@#�0%6*0�3+$'#%0�*))%#)"'6�)+�*'&�%D20*"'"'6�)!%�8*0"&"),�+-�)!%�)(*&%�#%3(%)�30*"4�"#�*))*3!%&�)+�%*3!�#$74"))*0�3+')*"'"'6�)(*&%�#%3(%)#1��0%*#%�3+')*3)�N+'+(�/+)%#:��(+3$(%4%')�/*'*6%(:�-+(�*&&")"+'*0�"'-+(4*)"+'1��� 
'-+(4*)"+'�#%2*(*)%&�+$)�$'&%(�)!"#�2(+3%##�5"00�7%�*8*"0*70%�-+(�(%8"%5�+'0,�7,�)!%�2(+3$(%4%')�+--"3%:�)!%�%8*0$*)"+'�3+44"))%%�4%47%(#:�*'&�0"4")%&�+)!%(�&%#"6'%%#1�<--%(+(#�4$#)�7%�2(%2*(%&�)+�2*,�*00�0%6*0�3+#)#�*'&�-%%#�*##+3"*)%&�5")!�&%-%'&"'6�*�30*"4�-+(�3+'-"&%')"*0"),�"'�
50

Section 6, Item F.



�����������	
�����

�

��������������������������������������� !���"#� ����$�����������%&���'()�� *+,--./.*,0.12�,23�45,+6,0.12�1/�78171-,+-��9&�
����:�;:�  ����������������� �: �� ��� ��� �������<���� ��� ���&������� �: �$�%�=����#�������� ��� ��������%��$���#�����������:#����������  ��������������������>������%���������"#����������$������ ������������?���� #=$����������� ���#�����=���@��  ������������"#���� �$�� #����=%��������� �������������?�������"#�:���������� ������������� ����������� ��� ���=���������"#��������������&�
����"#�:���������� ���#�����=������� ��� ���>�����::����=����� ��������#����&��A&�B���$������������ ��� �=�:�%&���������#��$������������::�����$����������C��������� �$����� ������ ������ ��� �=�:�%&��D#���������$�������$�%�=��$��������%��$���#�����������:#����������  ��������#����������������������������$����� #����� ������#:���� #:����������$��������������� ��� ���&���;&�E��:#������������� �: &���������:#�������$$������::����:#��������$������������ �: ���������$$��������������������������������������� � �������C���������>��������  ��%>��� ������ �#  ���F�������������������������$������������ � �������C������&�9::��� ��� ��������� �: ���::�=�����:#����=� ������ �������:#������������&�
�� ������������ � �����������>����;�%�$�%���� ����� #�������� �� ������������# �%� ������ ���������$�����������:#���������::������"#�:������������ ��� � &���� �� ���� ���::�=��# ���������$�������$� ����������# ���������������;�%&���B&�;�$�:����  ��������� �: &��D�:������������������::�=��=� ���������C������G ������ �: ������������$ ��#:���������� ����&�D#=$������ ��� � �$�%�������:#������������ ��������$�����:�������: ������>� #���� �
��������= �� ����:�=����� >�#�:�  � ��������::%���"#� ��&�
����$��������$�����: ���� �����=%�C������ ��# ����������$�:��� ��� ����� #= �"#����� �#  ���F���������>������"#� ��>���::����=����� ������>���::���������=������������%������>�����$�%��� #:�������C�������=������� "#�:���������$��#�������� ��������&���E&�C����#��%�����B� �#  ���F<������������F���C��:���� ������F����#��B�$�� �����&��9���������������::������ �: ��������������������$������������������>����;�%�$�%���������� �#  ��� ������������$����C������ �
51

Section 6, Item F.



����������	
�����

�

�������������������������������������������������� ��������!�������������"���������!�#����������$���������������%���$���������!�����������������������������������$�����������������������������������������������������&� ������������������$��$�������������"���������$������������'�����&�(����������������������������������������������$���������������!������� ����$�����������������$���������!�����������&������"������&����������������� ������)���*$�������� ���+�������������� ���������,+�������������� ����-��������$������.���������������/������������������$�������0�����$��!��������/���������"�������,��������������������-����!��������!��������������������������������!�����������"���������!�#�������������������� ��������!������������������#�����������������!���������,��������������������&-�0�����!�������������������������������������%���������������������������/���������.������������������"�������,��������������������-�������������&�������&����������$����%�������������� (��1.���������/�!!����������!!�������������/��������20�����������.�����������!!������0����$��.������0�����������!!�����������������������0�������3����"���������4���!�����5��������6$���������������0���������.�����������!!�����)������!!��������������������������0���&������$������!������������!�����������,��"���������4���!�����5�����-������������������������ �����������������������"��������������������!����&����������$�����!�������������&�����������������������������!�����������$���������,��"���������4���!�����5�����-���������������������������������������0��#�!����������������������������������������$�������������$�����������/��������5����������������$������!���������������%����������$���!������$���������.���!������������������������������0�����������$����.����������$��������� ��������0���������!������������.��������������������������������&����������&�����!������.�����������������/�������������������������������������������������������������������� ����������������$��.������������������!�������������!�������������!����!�����&������������������������������������&�����/����!������!������������������������������������������0����������*������������������ ����������7��/��������20������/���������0���&�������&�0�������!��������������������������� �������0���$��.�����������"����������!������������������������!$�����������������������������
52

Section 6, Item F.



����������	
�����

�

������������������������������������ ��!��"#��$�%!��&��&��'&��'�"("%)�"�*'&�%"*��"#�"�%�#+���',����#����-��##+"&*��',����������&�&'�("!�*'&#���+��#�"�*'..��.�&��/!����� ��!��',��0���'&���'��"("%)��"&)���1�*+����"��*'&�%"*�2��34'&�"�)���%.�&"��'&�#+*��"*��'&#�('+�)�/���&���#�/�#���&��%�#�-����� ��!-��&���#�#'���)�#*%���'&-�%�#�%$�#�����%�5����'6��� �2�0')�,!-�*"&*��-�'%���%.�&"������#����-���2���7�*��"&!�'%�"���4%'4'#"�#�%�*��$�)��&�%�#4'&#���'����#����-��	2�8���*��"&�9,,�%'%�(���'+���'�)�&5��&��%$��(#-�:2��"�$��"&!�+&)�#�%"/��-��&*'&#�;+�&��"�-�'%��&*'&#�#��&��4%'$�#�'&#�',����#�����(��*��('+�)�&'���"$��#�5&�,�*"&���.4"*��'&�"&!�#+/.���"�-���2��'�%�;+�#��,+%���%�)'*+.�&�"��'&�'%��&,'%."��'&-�"&)��'�)�#*+##�"�����#+/.���"��,'%�"&!�4+%4'#���&�'%)�%��'�"&#(�%�;+�#��'&#�'%��'�4%'$�)��*�"%�,�*"��'&-�<2�=("%)�"�4'%��'&�',����#�����'%�&'��"("%)�"&!�4'%��'&�',����#������,�����#��&�����/�#���&��%�#��',����� ��!�&'���'�4%'*��)�(����*'&�%"*���1�*+��'&>�'%��?2��,�"("%)�)-���%.�&"���"&!�*'&�%"*���&�"**'%)"&*��(����������%.#�"&)�*'&)���'&#�',�����*'&�%"*���,����� ��!�)���%.�&�#�")�;+"���,+&)#�"%��&'��"$"��"/��2���� �

53

Section 6, Item F.



����������	
�����

�

������������������������������������������������� ���!�������"#����$�����%�������������&������'(�)*+,�-.�/*0+-1�2)*+,34�*5�5((6*17�89*++(1�:9-:-5;05�.9-<�=>;0*.*(?�@(1?-95�.-9�+'(�*<:0(<(1+;+*-1�-.�;�A-<:9('(15*@(�B-5+(?�/;1;7(?�C-���D-0>+*-1E���F..(9-9�5'->0?�';@(�;?(=>;+(�:9*-9�(G:(9*(1A(�8-96*17�8*+'�0-A;0�7-@(91<(1+E���'(�)*+,�-.�/*0+-1�*5�0--6*17�.-9�+8-�:-+(1+*;0�5,5+(<5�+-�H(�:9-:-5(?I���E���JKLMNO�&����LPLMNQ�KR�MJN�SNTOKUL�VJKKLWTX"���'*5�A;1�H(�;1,�'-5+(?�CF���5,5+(<�+'(�@(1?-9�8->0?�9(A-<<(1?E��E���!WVUKLKRM��NYQL�LKZ[MWKT"���'(�)*+,�8->0?�0*6(�+-�5((�;�:9-:-5;0�.-9�;��(;<5�H;5(?�:'-1(�5,5+(<E���'*5�8->0?�1((?�+-�*1A0>?(�+'(�;::9-:9*;+(�/*A9-5-.+�	�\�0*A(15*17�-9�F..*A(�	�\�0*A(15*17�8';+�8->0?�H(�1((?(?E��]-+(I���'(�)*+,�*5�A>99(1+0,�*1�+'(�F	�\�̂�0*A(15*17�5:;A(�H>+�8*00�H(�<-@*17�+-�/	�\�̂�0*A(15*17E���.�+'(�:9-:-5*17�.*9<�?-(5�1-+�';@(�+'(�A;:;H*0*+*(5�+-�?(5*71�-9�?(:0-,�;�/*A9-5-.+��(;<5�5-0>+*-14�+'(,�A;1�5+*00�:9-:-5(�;�5-0>+*-1�+'(,�.((0�8->0?�.*+�+'(�9(=>*9(<(1+5�;1?�1((?5�+'(�)*+,�';5�0*5+(?�*1�+'*5����E����9-:-5;05�;+�;�<*1*<><�5'->0?�*1A0>?(I��_� 1̀58(95�+-�(;A'�-.�+'(�*+(<5�0*5+(?�*1��;565��
�E���(5:-15(5�.-9�(;A'�+;56�?-�1-+�';@(�+-�H(�0*1(�H>+�A;1�H(�*1�;�5><<;9,�.-9<;+E�_� �̀.>00�5A-:(�-.�8-96�?-1(�H,�+'(�F..(9-9�;1?�;1,�5>HA-1+9;A+-9�+'(,�<;,�(17;7(�+-�.>0.*00�+'(�5A-:(�-.�8-96E�_� �1*+*;0�C-���9(=>*9(<(1+5�9(@*(8�;1?�*<:0(<(1+;+*-1�-.�<;1;7(?�C-���D-0>+*-1�.-9�+'(�.-00-8*17�?(:;9+<(1+5I��a� �-0*A(��a� �*9(��a� )*+,�/;1;7(9b5�F..*A(��a� )*+,�)0(96��a� )-<<>1*+,�c(@(0-:<(1+��a� �>H0*A�d-965��a� />1*A*:;0�)->9+��a� )-<<>1*A;+*-15��a� B><;1��(5->9A(5��a� �*1;1A(��a� �1.-9<;+*-1��(A'1-0-7,��a� �;965�e��(A9(;+*-1��_� �̀?(+;*0(?�+9;*1*17�:9-79;<�.-9�)*+,�>5(95��_� c(+;*0(?�:9-f(A+�:0;1�8*+'�;�?(5*71;+(?��9-f(A+�/;1;7(9�+';+�8*00�8-96�8*+'�+'(�)*+,�;5�+'(��-*1+�-.�)-1+9;A+�+'9->7'->+�+'(�:9-f(A+E�
54

Section 6, Item F.



����������	
�����

�

�� ������������������������������������������������ �����!������"#��������������$��� ��%������%������&���'%���������%��!���(�������)���)������������������������$������(��������*������+������%��%��������)������������������� �������,�����%����������������� ���!��%�� ���%���(������������������������)�(�&�����%�%$���-./01�������������%��(���)�)�������'����������������!��������)���2����� "���%��%��3��������!�4���������5��%�����6��$��� 7�����������������)����������!�4������������������86��96������%�":#���8���%������ �����������"��������*�������
�����$���� 4�&����%���������%���&���������!��*"������%���%��������)�$��������*�������������%�)��������������&����(����)��������������������;����)�������%���)�������������'���������%���������������%������%���������������<�����������%�)����������������������)�������������)��������<����$����=�����&�%�&�������������������<�������������������������&�������%�%���%��(���)���;����)����$����>?0@?A0B�.C�DE@@0F/�GAH/.F�IJK/0L��3�������( �����3��(����4�������������!�������%���%�"���������
���)�����M*����(���)$������"��������=��������������������������������N$��&���%��9$NO$PO$�������!������5��%������������������������M4�����7"Q��8$P��������)���$�������(���)�����R�S�"�������"T
9
��M*��������������������!������������)��(���������� �3��(�U������%�������&����"����(�3�)���,$�����������������������9�����%������������)�,����)�%��� ����	! ���NO ���NO! ���P8 �"������������O$������3��(���������(�����RNS���)���������"����������%���3�))����(�3�������������������������������������������(���)������������������%�&��'����3��(�U����&(�M�V��������$����WXKY�Z1�D.@0�[EF\/A.FXHA/J���]̂�>@_XFÀX/A.F�IJK/0L�ab.F0�cA@0\/.@Ĵ��d�"(���)�)�����������&����
���������%�������(�������&�������������%�������%�����������������������$��d�=���������(���)������������&��������������������������������������(��,���������������%�������($�=�����&����������%�������(���%�����6����&����������������������'������%�����!�����,��������
55

Section 6, Item F.



����������	
�����

�

�������������������������������� !"#��$%&�'()�*"%+�,�$)-!��$%.�'(/�")�/(-*.�/(!0���1�2�3���4���������5������6�7������������5����8�9�6���:������5����66����6�7���������6�7���;;���<����� !"#��)'��=&�)�>��<$**�?(!/$!."%+�<$@$#"*")"������1�2������������:���������;��4������36��A6�5�������������������5����B�����7�4���������:���������������������;��4�����7����������������;;�������4����4��C��7���D�����������<$**�E!$%�,�!�F!( ������1�9�6���:������6�6��DA6��:�������������6;�������6����D�:������G���6����1��6�����6�6��D��:������53�������6�:��C��;�����������G��:��������6;�����8�1��6�����6�6��D��:������;��4������36��A6�5����������������D����������5����8�H����� !"#��$%&��@� "," �>(#"*")&�,�$)-!���$��/�**�$��)'��$#"*")&�)(��-@@(!)�!�>()��/(!0�!���?��F'&�" $*�I$%.��)�J@)"(%���1����G��������6���;������G����:�������6��6�K4��������4�����66�����6��6B�6�;����������5����6LD����MB�4�����6��D�������6���1�9�6���:��������D��6���������3D:����;�����6��6�:�6��������3��6��3������N��O@@*" $)"(%�P%)�+!$)"(%��1�9�6���:��4������5�6��;�:36���66��55�������������7�����������6��3�������6��Q�7���7�����������7������6�4����R����6�;��	ST��I��<(%,�!�% ��<$**"%+���1�9�6���:������������������;�������:���7����5�:������6�������5������6��1�U�����5���6�:��53������;���������;���������������������7���4�D����5��5���4���������������B�4���������V��������������B�4�����������6����������;��D���������B�����������������9�;��D�����������
����3D:��8��P��<$**�W� (!."%+���1��6������������5�������������������6������D����������G����6������������66������6����������6������6��9�6���:����4����6�4����4��C��1�9��6�����6�6��D���G�������:������������������������6���D��7�����������3���;�65���;���5������3D:��68�1�U������;�����������6�:����������8���X��?$Y�<$@$#"*")"����1�9�6���:��������:�3��������3�:�3���;�Z���5�:������6��;���3��6��3�������1�9�6���:����4��������������7�����4����R����6�;��[3����C��\��<$**�!�P��$%.�<$**�)!$ 0"%+�1�2������������:�������������C��������7�������������9�����37�������3��������;�����������G����;�����������6�����6;�������1�2������������G������D��7���������9���65����������3������6�������6�;��5������]���!$%."%+�1�U���4����G���3����D5������7���55�������������65�����;������3��
56

Section 6, Item F.



����������	
�����

�

�������������������������
������������������������� ���!�����"�#��$�����$�!����������������%����������������������!����������%������ ���&�'������������(������)�����������������*+,-�./�012343+546478�+9:�;4,+,7<2�=<>?3<28��� @"������������� ������������������������%�����!����������!����� ���"��A"��������������!���������������&�������&���������������%�������������&�$����"�("���������������%��������$��&���$�����$����������������%�����$������&�$��� ��"��"���������������%��������$��&���$�����$����������������������&���������������"�B"�������������������������������������������!�������������������������&������������*+,-�C/�D+61<�E::<:�F2?:1>7,�+9:�0<234><,����@"����� ������������������!��� �������G������%������%�����������������%������� ���������$$����������������&����� �����$�� ����������������������� ��������������!���$����������������� ����������������������������%�� ���������!��!�����!��� ��"���*+,-�H/��I+497<9+9><�01JJ?27�@"�����������������������&����� !!����$������������������$�����������!��
�����!���
� �
�%��"��A"�K�����������������������������������������������$�������� �
�%�������$�����
���%����� !!�����$��������� �
�%�����$����L�����������������%������������ ���)������ �
�%�������!���
� �
�%��"�("����������������������������&����� !!�����$����� �
�%��"�������������������MN@���$��&������$���&�O�������&������ ��)��L����� ���)����!�������&���$����������&���������������� !!���"����������&�O�������&��������������$���&�������������� ��"�����������!�������&���$���&�O�������&�����&�������������� ��"��"����������������������)���)�&�����������$����������������������"�K����!����������� !������������� �������� ��&���������������������������&���)�&�����$� !�����L�!������L����� !)�����"�@������������ �������!�����$�����&����������������������������������� ����!������)������&� !����������������������&� !)����������!������"��*+,-�P/��Q4><9,49R�@"����������������������)���� �� �������������$���S ����)���������������������
57

Section 6, Item F.



�����������	
�����

�

����������������������������������������������������� �����!�����������������������"�#��$%��������������&������������������������������������"�'��'�����(��)!��(��������������������)���!��!�������������%���������*+,-�./�*0+12123�4��'�����(����������� ��(���!������������������������������������ ����� �������������������������� �����������������5��������������������������5�����!�����6�����������������  ���7��$%��������������������"����������������(�����������������"����������������(��������(������!��  �������	�!�	�������������!����"�$%�����%����������������(��������(��"�� ���'�����(���)���������������������������������������������$%��������������������"������������������������������5���%����%�������������������������  ������������"�
�����������������(��������"�'�����(������������(������������������ ���)��������������������������������������������������89:*;<=�>/��<??9@<@�A@<A<8BC8���>DE���:;*FG8�@;HI*�*<�;=J98*;HB*9������#��)���)���&���!�����������������������������������)������������������(����)� �����K  ������������������!����������L����� ��������������������� ��������>DM���<??9@<@�;=?<@NB*;<=BC�@9OP;@9N9=*8��������������������������������������������������(�����������������!���(���(�����������������Q����������������������������(������R������������ �
58

Section 6, Item F.



�����������	
�����

�

��������������������������� ��������������������� ����������������������!��������!�"#$��%&���'(�)**(+,+-.�/,.0�1+,1,.23�.'233�4(�.567(8�49�27�2:0',+5;(8�26(70�,*�0'(�/,<1279=��'(+(�5.�7,�<2>5<:<�126(�35<50�0,�.(/05,7�?=�� ���'(�:78(+.567(8�)**(+,+@�'2A576�*2<5352+5;(8�0'(<.(3A(.�B50'�0'(�B,+C�+(D:5+(8�49�0'(����@�0'(�.,35/50205,7�8,/:<(70.@�0'(�.50(�B'(+(�0'(�B,+C�5.�0,�4(�1(+*,+<(8@�233�32B.@�+(6:3205,7.@�278�,0'(+�*2/0,+.�2**(/0576�1(+*,+<27/(�,*�0'(�B,+C@�278�'2A576�.205.*5(8�50.(3*E'5<.(3*E'(+.(3*�,*�0'(�(>1(7.(�278�85**5/:305(.�200(78576�1(+*,+<27/(�,*�0'(�B,+CF�G(+(49�1+,1,.(.�278�26+((.@�5*�0'5.�,**(+�*,+�0'(�24,A(�72<(8�1+,H(/0�5.�2//(10(8�0,�(70(+�570,�2�/,70+2/0�0,�1(+*,+<�233�B,+C�7(/(..2+9�0,�0'(�.://(..*:3�/,<13(05,7�,*�0'(�/,70+2/0F�278�0,�.:1139�233�+(D:5+(8�.:4<50023.�2.�5785/20(8�,+�.1(/5*5(8�57�0'(�����278�0'(�458�8,/:<(70.�0,�4(�1(+*,+<(8�,+�*:+75.'(8�49�)**(+,+�*,+�0'(�0,023�/,70+2/0�1+5/(�,*I��
0(<��=��+5/(�*,+�233�(D:51<(70@�.:11,+0@��5<13(<(70205,7�278�0+257576�/,.0.���� JKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKK��
0(<��=���,023�L2570(727/(��((.�*+,<�0243(�4(3,BI��M(2+���L2570(727/(��((I� J�M(2+���L2570(727/(��((I� J�M(2+���L2570(727/(��((I� J�M(2+�N�L2570(727/(��((I� J�M(2+�?�L2570(727/(��((� J����� JKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKK��
����OPQR��STUV�WXYZ�O[��PVZ�&�Q\]��PVZ�"̂��_�̀̀ `̀`̀`̀`̀`̀`̀`̀`̀`̀`̀`̀`̀`̀`̀`̀`̀`̀`̀`̀���ST\P��OPQR��STUV�T\��OS]X��̀̀ `̀`̀`̀`̀`̀`̀`̀`̀`̀`̀`̀`̀`̀`̀`̀`̀`̀`̀`̀`̀`̀`̀`̀`̀`̀`̀ �̀����+570E�91(�a,<1279�b2<(I��KKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKK����c:0',+5;(8�d56720:+(KKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKe20(KKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKK������+570E�91(�b2<(�278��503(�KKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKK�����

59

Section 6, Item F.



������������	
����

�

�������������������������������������� ��������������������
����� !" #$%&�'%(($##���)$!!�*��$�)� &+��� !" #��#���,*%,%- !-� ''%*+$&.�#%�#���/%!!%)$&.�'*$#�*$ 0��1�2�-�!�'#$%&�#� (�*�,*�-�&#$&.�3%#��4$#$�-�)$!!�$&$#$ !!5��� !" #�� &+�-'%*�� !!�-"3($## !-�*�'�$��+6��1��*%,%- !-�&%#�(��#$&.�#���($&$("(�*�7"$*�(�&#-� &+�#�%-��)�%� *��&%&�*�-,%&-$���)$!!�&%#�3��'%&-$+�*�+6��1�4%-#��*%,%- !-�)$!!�3��*��$�)�+� /#�*�#���#�'�&$' !�*��$�)�,*%'�--6���*%,%- !�8� !" #$%&�4*$#�*$ ����6��*%,%-�+�-%!"#$%&9-:� 3$!$#5�#%�(��#�#���*�7"$*�(�&#-�%/�#�$-�����������������������������;��<=>��������������������������������������������������������������?�4%*���"&'#$%& !$#5�9*�/�*�&'��
 -@��:��?�A"*�$� 3$!$#5� &+�B$- -#�*���'%��*5�9*�/�*�&'��
 -@��:���6��*%C�'#��! &� &+�B�,!%5(�&#�A'��+"!��� ����������������������������������DE�<=>6��?��*%C�'#� ,,*% '��?��*%C�'#�#� (�'*�+�&#$ !-F'�*#$/$' #$%&-�?�A'��+"!����6�G & .�+�HI	��,*%�$+�*J-�( $&#�& &'�� &+�-",,%*#�' , 3$!$#$�-� &+�AK2-����L��<=>��?�I*. &$M #$%&�-#*�&.#�� &+�-# 3$!$#5�?�8+"' #$%&� &+��N,�*$�&'��%/�#��� --$.&�+�-# //�?�O�5�,�*-%&&�!J-�!���!�%/�$&�%!��(�&#�?��*%N$($#5� &+� � $! 3$!$#5�%/�@�5�,�*-%&&�!��P6���/�*�&'��4��'@-�� � �� �� �� �� �� �������������������������D��<=>6�����?�H�&+%*J-�7" !$/$' #$%&-� &+�-# 3$!$#5���?�K -#�Q�$(,!�(�&# #$%&-��?�K���!R�S" !$#5R� &+�#5,��%/�'!$�&#�#* $&$&.� &+�#�'�&$' !�� --$-# &'��,*%�$+�+6�� ����Q6�
%# !�4%-#R�)�$'��'%&-$+�*-�3%#��$&$#$ !� '7"$-$#$%&� &+�%&.%$&.��������������������������LE�<=>6�������
60

Section 6, Item F.



������������	
����

�

���������������������������������������������������� �!"#$%&'$()�*"+�,%-+./#�0$1-")#%*#'-"�	2�3445673859:�;<=>?�56;?9@�A9B@=>;�C655�89�6BD6?9@�?=�E3F9�3�4>9;9B?3?6=B�?=�?<9�G6?H�=2�I65?=BJ�K?�?<6;�?6E9:�?<9H�73B�4>=D6@9�56D9�@9E=B;?>3?6=B;�3B@�@6;7L;;�?<9�89B926?;�C6?<�?<9�G6?HJ�K�ML9;?6=B�3B@�3B;C9>�C655�2=55=C�?<9�4>9;9B?3?6=BJ��N �O'"*P�Q*"R'"S�T4=B�7=E459?6=B�=2�?<9�6B?9>D69C;�3B@�@9E=B;?>3?6=B;:�?<9�9D35L3?6=B�7=EE6??99�C655�>3BF�?<9�;<=>?�56;?9@�4>=4=;35;�83;9@�=B�3�7=E86B3?6=B�=2�?<9�9D35L3?6=B�;7=>9;�3B@�4>9;9B?3?6=B�;7=>9;J�
<9�?=4�>3BF9@�4>=4=;35�C655�89�>97=EE9B@9@�2=>�7=B?>37?�3C3>@:�49B@6BU�;L779;;2L5�B9U=?63?6=B;J�� �

61

Section 6, Item F.



�����������	
����

�

�������������������������������������������������������������������������� !"#$%�%"&'(&)(�*+'")&*"�!%�&""&*��(�"+�"�!%�(+*,-�'"�&%�.//�'(!0�.1�233�)+)�%�+,4(�'+"!3#�"��� !"#�+3�&'#�"�)-%�5!"�!'�"���%"&'(&)(�*+'")&*"�"�&"�/)�*4,(��"��-�3)+-�)�%/+'(!'6�"+�"������1���!%�'+"!3!*&"!+'�-,%"�7��-&(��7#�"���(�&(4!'��3+)�)�*�!/"�+3�5)!""�'8�	-&!4�(�9,�%"!+'%�+)�5!"��"���233�)+)$%�����)�%/+'%�1�.'#�)�9,�%"%�3+)�-&"�)!&4:�%,7%"&'"!;�:�!-/+)"&'"��0*�/"!+'%�"+�"���%"&'(&)(�*+'")&*"�5!44�7��&(()�%%�(�!'�&'#�3+)-&4�5)!""�'�&((�'(,-�!%%,�(�7#�"���/)+*,)�-�'"�+33!*�)�!'�*�&)6��+3�"���%+4!*!"&"!+'1����� !"#�)�%�);�%�"���)!6�"�"+�&(()�%%�&'#�'+'	-&"�)!&4:�-!'+):�!'%,7%"&'"!&4��0*�/"!+'%�"+�"���%"&'(&)(�*+'")&*"�5!"��"����!6��%"�%*+)!'6�233�)+)�&"�"���"!-��+3�*+'")&*"�'�6+"!&"!+'1�����<�������������=����������>��?��������������������!%�����&'(�&'#�&((�'(&:�"���233�)+)$%�����)�%/+'%�:�!'*4,(!'6�&'#�&-�'(-�'"%:�&�7�%"�&'(�3!'&4�+33�):�&'#�*4&)!3!*&"!+'�9,�%"!+'�)�%/+'%�%:�&'(�&'#�'�6+"!&"!+'%�%�&44�7��!'*4,(�(�!'�&'#�)�%,4"!'6�*+'")&*"1����� !"#$%�%"&'(&)(�*+'")&*":�&""&*��(�&%�.//�'(!0�.:�*+'"&!'%�"���*+'")&*"�"�)-%�&'(�*+'(!"!+'%�5�!*��5!44�3+)-�"���7&%!%�+3�&'#�*+'")&*"�'�6+"!&"�(�7�"5��'�"��� !"#�&'(�"����!6��%"�%*+)!'6�233�)+)1�����*+'")&*"�4&'6,&6��*+'"&!'�(�!'�.//�'(!0�.�(+�%�'+"�(�3!'��"���"+"&4��0"�'"�+3�"���*+'")&*"�4&'6,&6��"�&"�-&#�7��'�6+"!&"�(1�
'�"����;�'"�+3�&�(!%/,"��&%�"+�"���(,"!�%�&'(�)�%/+'%!7!4!"!�%�+3�"���/&)"!�%�,'(�)�"�!%�*+'")&*":�"���*+'")&*":�&4+'6�5!"��&'#�&""&*�-�'"%�/)�/&)�(�7#�"��� !"#:�5!44�6+;�)'�!'�"���%&-��+)(�)�+3�/)�*�(�'*��&%�4!%"�(�!'�"���*+'")&*"1�����@�����AB�����������������!6��%"�%*+)!'6�233�)+)�5!44�7��"���/)!-��*+'")&*"+)�!3�&�*+'")&*"�!%�&5&)(�(�&'(�%�&44�7��)�%/+'%!74�:�!'�"+"&4:�3+)�&44�5+)C�+3�&'#�%,7	*+'")&*"+)%1�.44�%,7	*+'")&*"+)%:�!3�&'#:�-,%"�7��4!%"�(�!'�"���/)+/+%&4%1����� !"#�)�%�);�%�"���)!6�"�"+�&//)+;��&44�%,7	*+'")&*"+)%1����� +'")&*"+)�%�&44�7��)�%/+'%!74��"+�"��� !"#�3+)�"���&*"%�&'(�+-!%%!+'%�+3�&44�%,7	*+'")&*"+)�+)�&6�'"%�&'(�+3�/�)%+'%�(!)�*"4#�+)�!'(!)�*"4#��-/4+#�(�7#�%,*��%,7	*+'")&*"+):�&'(�3+)�"���&*"%�&'(�+-!%%!+'%�+3�/�)%+'%��-/4+#�(�(!)�*"4#�7#�"��� +'")&*"+)1��,)"��):�'+"�!'6�*+'"&!'�(�5!"�!'�"�!%�(+*,-�'"�+)�&'#�*+'")&*"�(+*,-�'"%�*)�&"�(�&%�&�)�%,4"�+3�&'#�*+'")&*"�&5&)(%�(�)!;�(�3)+-�"�!%�����%�&44�*)�&"��&'#�*+'")&*",&4�)�4&"!+'%�!/%�7�"5��'�&'#�%,7*+'")&*"+)�&'(�"��� !"#1��� ����D����E�����=����A��������FA����������G���%&-/4��*+'")&*"1����
62

Section 6, Item F.



�����������	
����

�

������������������������������ ��������������������!"�#$%&'()&$'�*+�'",-*'".�&$�+-//01�&!"�#*&1�$2�3*0&$%�4*&!�/'$$2�$2�)$5/0*(%)"�4*&!�&!"�6$'7"'+8�#$5/"%+(&*$%�9)&�4!*0"�/"'2$'5*%:�4$'7�2$'�&!"�#*&1;��<"*&!"'�&!"�#$%&'()&$'�%$'�*&+�"5/0$1""+�('"�"5/0$1""+�$2�&!"�#*&1;��!"�/'$$2�$2�*%+-'(%)"=">"5/&*$%�5-+&�?"�'")"*@".�?1�&!"�#*&1�$2�3*0&$%�4*&!*%�&"%�A�B�4$'7*%:�.(1+�$2�&!"��",-"+&�2$'�C$)-5"%&+�<$&*)"�(%.�5-+&�?"�7"/&�)-''"%&�2$'�&!"�"%&*'"�&"'5�$2�&!"�)$%&'()&;���#D<��9#�E�6
FF�<D��GH�
EEIHC��D�D��H�D�E�6JD��9
F��D���DK
CH��JH��HLI
�HC�CD#I3H<�9�
D<�6
�J
<��JH�9FFD��HC��
3H���93H;�����M���������������������������!"�#$%&'()&$'�5-+&N�*%�/"'2$'5(%)"�$2�4$'7�-%."'�&!*+�)$%&'()&N�2-001�)$5/01�4*&!�(00�(//0*)(?0"�2"."'(0N�+&(&"N�$'�0$)(0�0(4+N�'-0"+�(%.�'":-0(&*$%+N�*%)0-.*%:�&!"�#*@*0��*:!&+�9)&�$2�OPQN�&!"�9:"�C*+)'*5*%(&*$%�9)&�$2�OR�N�&!"�95"'*)(%+�4*&!�C*+(?*0*&*"+�9)&�$2�OO�N�(%.�E")&*$%���Q�$2�&!"��"!(?*0*&(&*$%�9)&�$2�OR�;��9%1�+-?0"&&*%:�$'�+-?	)$%&'()&*%:�?1�&!"�#$%&'()&$'�+-?S")&+�+-?	)$%&'()&$'+�&$�&!"�+(5"�/'$@*+*$%;��!"�#$%&'()&$'�(:'""+�&!(&�&!"�!*'*%:�$2�/"'+$%+�&$�/"'2$'5�&!"�)$%&'()&�4*00�?"�5(."�$%�&!"�?(+*+�$2�5"'*&�(%.�,-(0*2*)(&*$%+�(%.�&!"'"�4*00�?"�%$�.*+)'*5*%(&*$%�?(+".�-/$%�'()"N�)$0$'N�'"0*:*$%N�)'"".N�/$0*&*)(0�*."(+N�+">N�(:"N�5('*&(0�+&(&-+N�/!1+*)(0�$'�5"%&(0�.*+(?*0*&1N�$'�%(&*$%(0�$'*:*%�?1�&!"�/"'+$%+�/"'2$'5*%:�&!"�)$%&'()&;������T�������������������������E""�+(5/0"�)$%&'()&;����
63

Section 6, Item F.



�����������	
���	���������
������
���������

64

Section 6, Item F.



�����������	��
������������������

�������������� ��!�"���#$!��%�������& �'(�"%$�)*+#!,(��&-./�01213-4�.5�6.2781/49:�-;1<91�18<3;:�5<=�.0�8<3;�4>39�-<?1�4.@����������� � �34A�.5� 3;4./������������������������ �44/@�B./.0� .419:�$702><93/?��55321�������������������������� ),,C�B1034<?1��<;D���������������������������  3;4./:�����*,,,E�� � � $>./1@��CFG+)E)+)H,,�������������������������������%<=@��CFG+)E)+)EII��8<3;@�>./.0J8.419K83;4./?<J?.L���#�>101MA�<2D/.N;16?1�01213-4�.5�6.2781/49�-104<3/3/?�4.�4>1�<M.L1�015101/216�"%$J����� $��O��� �@�PPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPP�����!��!�$�"Q��@�PPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPP�����"�QQ@�PPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPP���#!O@�PPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPP�Q!�!�@�PPPPPPPPPPPP�R#$@�PPPPPPPPPPPPP��$B���@�PPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPP�%�S@�PPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPP��� �#�����"�QQ@�PPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPP��PPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPP������PPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPP�Q3?/<4701��������������������������������������������������������������<41�������& �'(���
65

Section 6, Item F.



�����������	���
�����������������

� �������������� �!"#$%&���''()*�+,-*�./0�1)234--456�70/7/1,81�9,1�2**5�*:-*5+*+�-/�;<==�7>3>�/5�?*+5*1+,@A�B7048�CA�;=;D�''��EFGHIJKLH�MLN�OLHPGQH��RSJH�ONNGLNFT�UKQTH�M�VMQI�KU�ISG�WKLIQMWI�NKWFTGLIH�MLN�XYZ[\[]̂�ISG�KQJ_JLM̀�aRb�NKWFTGLIH�MH�LKIGN�cG̀KPd�� ef�aghG�QGhJGPGN�ISG�ijk�NKWFTGLIH�MLN�ISGQG�MQG�LK�HVGWJUJWH�̀JHIGN�MH�IK�lFMLIJIJGH�KU�̀JWGLHGHmNGhJWGHf��OQG�nKF�Mc̀G�IK�VQKhJNG�ISJH�InVG�KU�JLUKQTMIJKL�KQ�WML�nKF�V̀GMHG�̀GI�TG�oLKP�PSGL�JI�PJ̀̀�cG�MhMJ̀Mc̀Gp�q�rss�FHGQH�MLN�ess�NGhJWGH�tVSKLGHmSMLNHGIHu��rf�OQG�ISG�NGIMJ̀H�McKFI�JLIGQLGI�HVGGNHv�VQKhJNGQv�MLN�TGNJFT�KU�NG̀JhGQn�tUJcGQv�WKMwv�GIWu�MhMJ̀Mc̀G�UKQ�ISG�̀KWMIJKLH�̀JHIGN�JL�ISG�ijk�ISMI�PJ̀̀�cG�QGWGJhJL_�xyak�HGQhJWGp�q�aLIGQLGI�HVGGNH�MI�GMWS�̀KWMIJKL�MQG�ess�TcVHv�PJIS�M�e�_cVH�NJQGWI�UJcGQ�WJQWFJI�cGIPGGL�zJIn�{M̀�̀MLN�k|f��RSG�}�jJQG�HIMIJKLH�SMhG�r~s�TcVH�UJcGQ�JLIGQLGI�WJQWFJIHf����f�|K�M̀�̀KU�ISG�̀KWMIJKLH�WFQQGLÌn�SMhG�kK��HPJIWSGH�IK�MWWKTTKNMIG�M�xyak�VSKLG�HnHIGTp�q�Ò�̀̀KWMIJKLH�QFL�kK��zJHWK�HPJIWSGHv�GJISGQ�zMIM̀nHI�r��s��KQ�zMIM̀nHI��rss��}f��SMI�JH�ISG�IKIM̀�LFTcGQ�KU�|a|H�KQ�JLNJhJNFM̀�VSKLG�LFTcGQH�ISMI�PJ̀̀�LGGN�IK�cG�HFVVKQIGN�cn�ISG�QGV̀MWGTGLI�HK̀FIJKLp�RSMLoH��q�RSG�IKIM̀�LFTcGQ�KU�|a|��JH�e�s��~f��SMI�MQG�ISG�RKIM̀��FTcGQ�KU�FHGQH�PSK�LGGN�IK�cG�HGIFV�PJIS�RGMTH�kSKLG��nHIGTp�q�e�s���f�|K�nKF�QGlFJQG�M�zKLIMWI�zGLIGQ�tzM̀�̀zGLIGQup�q��Kv�M�WKLIMWI�zGLIGQ�JH�LKI�LGGNGNv�cFI�PG�PKF̀N�VKHHJc̀G�̀JoG�IK�HGG�SKP�JI�KVGQMIGH�MLN�TMn�MNN�JIf���f�{KP�TMLn�FHGQH�PJ̀̀�cG�GLMc̀GN�UKQ�zKLIMWI�zGLIGQp�q��GG�ISG�MLHPGQ�McKhG�McKFI�ISG�zKLIMWI�zGLIGQ���f��|KGH�ISG�VQKVKHGN�HK̀FIJKL�LGGN�IK�HFVVKQI�MLM̀K_�NGhJWGHp�q��GHv�JI�PJ̀̀�LGGN�IK�HFVVKQI�UMw�̀JLGH�tKQ�SMhG�ML�GUMw�KVIJKLu�MLN�KFQ�G̀GhMIKQmUJQG�M̀MQTH�MI�HKTG�̀KWMIJKLHf���f��SMI�JH�ISG�IKIM̀�WKFLI�KU�MLM̀K_�NGhJWGHp�OQG�ISGn�TKHÌn�jMw�MLN�zMQN�iGMNGQH�KQ�NK�ISGn�SMhG�MLM̀K_�VSKLGH�IKKp��GLIJKL�WKFLI�KU�GMWS�PSGQG�VKHHJc̀Gf�q�ISGQG�MQG�MVVQKwJTMIG̀n�es�UMw�̀JLGHf��
66

Section 6, Item F.



�����������	��
������������������

���������������� !"#�"$���������%!&���'#()#�"� !"#�"�(�*�)#��(�)%!)������)��+��#�)�",!)��$� *�!(��(%!,����-+�,��.���&#/�(�)%!)�0��*��,�1�#,��!�!*�"���/����/)�,(�.�,� !"#�"$�2�)%�,��#(���������.�,�3!"#�"�!)�)%#(�3�#�)4�+�)�0��0��*��*#5��)%��(�()�-�)��+��/!3!+*���.�!��#�"�)%#(�.�!)�,��#��)%��.�)�,��������6�0�-!�����(5�3%���(4�7��.�,��/��3%���(4�&#����/��.�,��/��3%���(�!,��,�1�#,��$�8,#)��#��#&#��!*�/���)��.��!/%�)�3��!(�0�**�!(�-���*�!���+,!���3,�.�,��/����2��� 9� ��(5�3%���(:�;<�)�)!*�3%����(3*#)(�+�)0����)%�(��-���*(=���� >��? ><�"�@#)�*AB%�,)�*���� C=? DE��@#)�*AB%�,)�*���� �=? EDD�@#)�*AB%�,)�*��� �E=? ><��@#)�*AB%�,)�*���� F<=�? CF�"�@#)�*AB%�,)�*�9� 7��.�,��/��3%���(:�<�9� G#����7��.�,��/��3%���(:�����C��8%�,��!,��7�()�-�,�H-!#*(�%�()��$�2�@#/,�(�.)�FED�I77���F��J,�������3���)��(0#)/%#�"��'#()#�"�K�*�/�-� ,�&#��,$�8%!)�#(�)%���!-���.��'#()#�"�3,�&#��,$�2�L�(4�JKMK���>��������������)�� �,)� %����N�-+�,($�6�0�-!��� %������-+�,(������)��+��3�,)��$�2�L�(4�#.�0��(0#)/%�3,�&#��,(���K%��/�,,��)�,!�"���.���-+�,(�"��(�.,�-�C><�=CO<�4�!�)�)!*��.�C;;����D��6!&��.���(�+����!33,�3,#!)���!���-!���!&!#*!+*��.�,�)%#(�7��),!/)$�2�L�(���?.�(�4�.�,�%�0�-!�����!,(��.�3�,.�,-!�/�$�2��P�,�)%��.#,()���!,��.�(�,&#/��!���!���!*�!.)�,���?.���)4�0%������(�)%��7#)��!�)#/#3!)��.���(�+�#�"�!33,�3,#!)���!���-!���!&!#*!+*�$�2��P���#�"�%!(�+����!33,�3,#!)���!���#(���0�!&!#*!+*����6�0�0#**�Q..�,�,(�+��(����)#.#��$�2�)%#(�J������-�(�,&�(�!(��..#/#!*���)#.#/!)#������E��8��3*!�����+�#�"�3,�(��)�.�,�)%����(#)��&#(#)����)%���D)%��8�R��*#5��)��#�/*����!�-�-+�,��.���,�)�!-�,�-�)�*���J,��)%�,��/!**=#�A/��.�,��/#�"��3)#��(�.�,�)%#(��&��)$�2�)%#(�#(�-�,���.�!�ST�+=0!*5U�.�,�!))�����(�)��&#�0���,��..#/��!����1�#3-��)V�)%�,�.�,�4�0��0#**���)�%!&��)%��/!3!+#*#)��.�,�/��.�,��/#�"��3)#��(���W��()#��(�0#**���)�+��)!5���!)�)%����(#)��&#(#)4�+�)�-�()�+��(�+-#))�����*#���&#!���,�3,�/�,�-��)�3�,)!*4�X#�N�)��#,�/)���J�(0�,(�0#**�+��3�+*#(%���#��)%��.�,-!*�J������-����O��J,������3*!��#�"����3�,/%!(#�"���0�3%���(�!(�3!,)��.�)%����0�(�*�)#���!(��33�(���),�#�"�)��5��3�!����)#*#Y���'#()#�"�3%���($�Z�()�0#(%#�"�)��/��.#,-��2�8��0#**�3�,/%!(����0�3%���(�.�,�()!..�)%!)�0!�)�!�3%�(#/!*�%!��(�)��
67

Section 6, Item F.



�����������	��
������������������

�������������� !�"��#�$!�!%&'(&)*�!(#! )!(�" �+'��)"�+� ('��$�&��,�!��(�����#�)"'!(���-�(&�)'��'�.!����'�'.&(-#�+� ('��$�&��,�!��/)��(#! �.� "'�� !�����!%+!-(&)*�,&"�.&))! �(��+ �$&"! �)!.�.& &)*�� �0�'(��'!�!%&'(&)*�.& &)*��)"�+� ('�(#�(��� !�"��!%&'(��1�2#!�3�)( �-(� �4.&))&)*�,&""! 5�.&���)�(�#�$!�(��"���)��-�,�&)*���3�,�&)*��� !�"��!%&'('�&)�����3&(��,�&�"&)*'����6��3�)�����+ �$&"!��)��"" !''��&'(��7�!$! ��"!+� (8!)(�)!!"&)*�+#�)!'�.&(#�)�8,! ��7�+#�)!'��(�!�-#���-�(&�)�+! �(#!�,!��.��9�8!��7��!+� (8!)(�:�.�;�)��+#�)!'�)!!"!"��(���-�(&�)�<"" !''�1�=� �-�  !)(�'�'(!8�"�!'�)�(�����.��'�(��'!+� �(!�+#�)!'�,����-�(&�)���>!�� !�!'(&8�(&)*�(#! !�� !�?@AB@�+#�)!'��(�3&(��:����4C�,�&-�>� D'E�F&)�)-!E�3�88�)&(���!$!��+8!)(E�/2E�C� D'��)"�G!- !�(&�)E�3&(��;�)�*!8!)(E�3&(��3�! DE��)"�3�88�)&-�(&�)'5���H@AI@�+#�)!'��(�(#!�C�,�&-�J�7!(��3�8+�!%��)"� !8�(!�7& !�'(�(&�)'���H@��C�!�'!��"$&'!��)����-�(&�)'�.#! !���-�)7! !)-!�+#�)!�.���"�,!�)!!"!"K�9�8!��7�"!+� (8!)(��)"��"" !''��1�4L5�3�)7! !)-!�C#�)!'��(�3&(��:���E��)"�4M5��(�(#!�C�,�&-�J�7!(��3�8+�!%�4I�7� �C���)"���7� �F& !5�� H���C�!�'!�-�)7& 8�&7���'(�)"� "�I��!� �(! 8�&'��--!+(�,�!��-���"�)�(�7&)"���(! 8��!)*(#�)�(!"��)�(#!�GFC� !N�& !8!)('��1�C! �=�3�O�<���� �-�)( �-('�� !� !N�& !"�(��(! 8&)�(!��))������!&(#! ��(�(#!�!)"��7��� �7&'-����!� �� �-��!)"� ��!� E�.&(#�(#!��+(&�)�7� ���(�A !)!.�����/(P'��� �&)(!)(�7� �(#&'�-�)( �-(�(��#�$!���8&)&8�8��7�(.���))���� !)!.��'��7(! �(#!�&)&(&����!� ���HH��>#�(�&'�(#!�-&(��-�  !)(����'&)*�7� ��& !-(� ��'! $&-!'K�4<-(&$!�"& !-(� �E�J�&�C�&)(E�<>JE�!(-5K�1��<-(&$!��& !-(� ���HI����!'�(#!�+ �+�'!"�+#�)!�'�'(!8�)!!"�(��'�++� (�(#&'��/)��(#! �.� "'�"�!'��)���7�(#!��*!)-��"!+� (8!)('� !-!&$!�6���-���'��)"�"&'+�(-#��)��!8! *!)-��'! $&-!'�� �&'�(#&'�#�)"�!"�,��-��)(���)"�� �7!"! ���+� ()! ��*!)-&!'�1��>!�"��)�(�-�  !)(���"&'+�(-#�6���-���'���HM��>#�(�&'�(#!�-&(��-�  !)(����'&)*�7� ��& !-(� ��'! $&-!'K�4<-(&$!�"& !-(� �E�J�&�C�&)(E�<>JE�!(-5K�1�<-(&$!��& !-(� ���HL��>#�(�(�+!��7�CJ29�'! $&-!'�&'�(#!�-&(���'&)*��)�(#!�!%&'(&)*�CQR�42�SCG/E�J/C�2 �)D'��)"S� �3�++! �C=2J��&)!'5K�>#��&'�(#!�-�  !)(�CJ29�-�  &! 4'5���!'�(#!�-��)(��#�$!���7!!��7� �#�.�8�)��/),��)"��)"���(,��)"�CJ29�3���'�� !�8�)�*!"�,��(#!�-&(��&)��)��$! �*!�;�)(#K�1�J/CE�<2T2E�.!�"��)�(�#�$!�'(�('��)�&),��)"�� ���(,��)"�-���'���H?��>���"�&(�,!�+�''&,�!�(��+ �$&"!�&)7� 8�(&�)��'�&(� !��(!'�(��(#!�2�+!��)"�)�8,! ��7�+#�)!'��'�.!����'�CJ29�U&)!'S( �)D'��&'(!"�,��"!+� (8!)(S��-�(&�)K�;&�(�)�3&(���!+� (8!)(�3&(��Q�&�"&)*�9�8!S�"" !''�CJ29�2 �)D�3& -�&(�2�+!�T�)�8,! ��7�
68

Section 6, Item F.



�����������	��
������������������

���������� ��!"#�$%&'�(&$�)*++ ��$,"(-�.,&$�/ ���*+�012���$3*� ��� 4��� 1�)*22*��0� 5�.,&$�$3*� ��� 4��� 1�.,&$�012���(*6�+3*� ��% 4��� 1�0�5�*7�/ 8�9 ��!:5;'�<� 85�*�'� �9-�% 4��� 1�$*��9 =�:�� =�)��>�?5�57 �@��)��>�)� ��=�)*22����>�/ 8�$�A��9�B*���=�?���9�+5��)*���=�)*22���95��*��=�C�25��% �*��9 �=�:��5�9 =�&�6*�25��*��" 93�$5����D�% 9� 5��*�=E��">+ �5�1���2A ��*6�+3*� ��F5��7�8 �����5�*�3 ��5��F ���5�� 51>G��(&$��������5� ������ �5��5���)��>�A���1��7�'�5��*�5��*6�H�5��)��>�C5���5�1�H�5���3 �$�A��9�(56 �>�9*2+� ;G��0�5�*7���� ��5� ��� 1�6*�� � 85�*��5�5�2��!H-'��*2 �65; ��!IJK-��HLG�B35��.*�9 �2 ��57��7�+�5�6*�2�!0��*�5�� �15���5�1�.*�9 �?5��-�����3 �9*���>�9��� ���>�����7M�&������*95��>�3*�� 1�*������3 �9�*�1M�C*F�25�>�.*�9 �?5��A*; ��1*�>*��� 4��� M�N�(3*�� �'�*��+� 2�� '�#OO�25��A*; �����5��56 �A �G��HPG�C*F�25�>�0��*�0�� �15���? �����  @��1*�>*��� 4��� M�/*�>*��� 4��� �2����J���7�5��00�? ����/*�>*��� 4��� �Q��6� 1�? ��57��7�!.?�? ��57 ��� ����*��� ��� 25���599*���-M�N�K'��*�2����J���7�5������  1 1�5��*6��*FG��HRG�/* ���3 �9*���>�5�� 51>�358 � �*�73�$,<�5�1�S,(� �5A� 1�15�5�<�3 �� ��TI�TK�A5� 1�(F��93�+*�������+�59 ��*���++*����3 �.,&$�+3*� ���  1 1�6*���3���+�*U 9�M�,��/*�F ��  1��*���9��1 �$*F ��A��9���6*���*95��+*F �G�N��V �'��3 � �5� � �*�73�$*<��F��93 ���*�+*F ��A��9����  1 1G��IOG�/* ���3 �)*���>�� 4��� �5�>�.*�9 �,��>�5�1�*��,2���)35�� ��!.*�9 '�<25��'�)35�'�:5;'� �9G-�A5� 1�)*��59��) �� ��0)/�6��9��*�5���>M�&6�> �'�95��>*��+� 5� � �5A*�5� �*���3 ���2A ��*6W�)*��59��) �� ��X�*�+���+������  1 1�)*��59��) �� ��07 ����!Y52 1�5�1�)*�9��� ��-��  1 1�)*��59��) �� ��(�+ �8��*��$*����*��J�)5���  �� 5�J��2 �57 ���5�1�95���9 �� ����5���5��F ���5��+�����93 1�� �� +*����)*��59��) �� ��9���*2�5��*��9 2 �����  1 1�N�Y*��I#G�/*�>*��358 �5�>�&�� �59��8 �.*�9 �% �+*�� �� 4��� 2 ���G�T����0�>�5185�9 �))�0)/�:��9��*�5���>����+�59 �9��� ���>�<25���4� ���7�5�1�5��*J� +�>�)35��4� � ��7�)5���� 9*�1��7�N��Y*��IHG�0� ��3 � �5�>�*8 �3 51�+57��7���� �659 �� 4��� 2 ���M�&6�> ��+� 5� �1 �9��A �F35��A���1��7��358 ����5�1�������5���95���+57��7'�Z*� JA5� 1�+57��7'�*��A*�3M�N�Y*��IIG�B35������3 �9��� ������ �659 ��*��3 �$[\'�(�5��*�'�*��"�����+*��!�-M�N�(&$�"�������IKG�B35���>+ �*6�512������5��*��5�1�*��<�1J�� ����5����7����+� 6 �� 1�A>��3 �9��>M�&��*���� ���5����7�� 4��� 1�*�����% 2*� �B A ;�A5� 1���5����7'�*�M�N��<��3 ��� 2*� �*�����+ ��*���I]G�C*F�25�>���5����7�� ���*���+ ��15>�5�1�3*F�25�>�15>��F*��1�>*����� ��*��  ���9��1 1����*���+�*+*�5�M�/*�>*��+� 6 ��̂"�5����3 �"�5�� �_��>+ ���5����7J����
69

Section 6, Item F.



�����������	��
������������������

���������������� ������!"#����$����%�"� ��&��!'��(�)��((�����$���!�����!"#����$��������*$�$�&�%��((+�,��#��-�!�'��(����"�%%���*�.�%�#����$�$�&�(����""�%��((�*�*.��%/�01��$���������$����$%�($������ "�%%���*����$�$�&��$�����$��'��%��������*���+��23+��,4156�1,5�677896:81�649�6;5<<=<41���>!$��%�%$&���!�����#������-?�$%��"� ����$ �%$&���!�����#������-��  �'��."�/�0�@�%��2A+�7���������>!$��#���B���C�&�?�$%��"� ����$ �%$&���!����  �'��."�/�0�@�%��2D+�1� ��$ �"�C��'�%�"� ���.�����*��������������-�EFGH�%$�&"��%$#�#�'�&�%+���B���'�&�E%H?���."���(� ������%?���.%?���#���>!$��#�(��*%�#������ �!��������#�����'�&��"$*$�+�9��%�'�����"-�"�.�"�#�%� �$��%�%! ���%��I� !�$B��%!**��-?� ��'�������B��B$��?� �%��%�!#$�%?���#�%!**��-��(�%�"!�$���(���!��%� �!��������#�����FGJ'�&��1� ��$ �"�C��'�%�"�"$*$�/�0�1���%!**��-��(�%�"!�$���(���!��%���!"#�.�� ��%$#���#�'�����(������� ��$ �"�'��'�%�"K�����B��?�����������'�&�%���!"#����� �!��������#%������"$*$���$��+��2L+�6�#�����*��-���"�'����%����!%�������������'���"� ��$��/�0�1�$%�$�(��*��$�����%�'��B$#�#�$����'��B$�!%�>!�%�$��%��MG+�6�����������-����"�&�"$��%/�N���*��-����"�&%������ ��"� ��$��/�0�D?�M�����$�-�N�""���#�M��������C!."$ �)�(��-���*'"�I��MO+�9��%���$%�8C�������P� !�����"-��""���(���Q�)�EQ!�"$�-��(�)��B$ �H�����""�"� ��$��%/�0�@�%��MF+�9��%�����8C�������P���� ���""�"� ��$��%/�0�@�%��M2+�9���""�"� ��$��%���B��C,<�EC������B���<�������H� �'�.$"$�$�%�����""�"� ��$��%/�0�@�%��MM+�8%�"� �"���!�P$�&�'��B$#�#?�)8C���!�P%����C58��"���#-�$��'"� �/�R���$%�����%��B$ ��'��B$#��/��0�)8C���!�P%��S��61T1��MU+�7����7�I�%��B$ �V�$%�����������%�$*�����(�����"����(($ ���>!$��#�E$�.�!�#S��!�.�!�#�'�&�%S*����/H�0�4���M3+�7����7�I�%��B$ �V�����*��-�989%�#��%������$�-� !�����"-���B��(���$�.�!�#�(�I/��0�6''��I$*���"-�OG��
70

Section 6, Item F.



�����������	��
������������������

����������� !��"#�$��%�$�&�''��%��(��!�$&�)�*�#���'�+,--.�/!��0%#�1'�!$���2���*�� ��345�)�$1%�$����6��7%)�!�%� �)�� )���8+9�&��:$;�<�= ��*#��*!���7%)�$#(6�����>�1)%1%$!'$� !$�(�����2���*�*��%�-?@@�1�6��%��A�*��$*!0.�B1)�'�C.�-@-+����D��A !��'�/��$�$�*%�0%#� !���&�� �E�/)%$%7�;�F%#�6����%�� !���>�� ����$�)��$�'�/��$�$�(#��!)��� �0��G.��+.��C;�H7��G�%)��+�*%�0%#� !���� ��5 %���I0$��6�!**J%��'�/��$�;�<���G�!�*��+�&�� %#��� ��=�!6$�5 %���'�/��$��>���K��H$�� �$�!>)��6�����21�/��*��%�(��4�*�3!61�E%*�)!���8%�J$ %)�9�/%61'�!��;�<�L%��C@��A !��HI5��$�(���>�#$�*��%�$#11%)��� ��M��0�%7�E�'�%�;�A�''�� �$�345���/'#*��)�1'!/��>�� ���2�$���>�HI5;�H$�$%.�& !��)�"#�)�6���$�!)�����*�*�8�����$1��*,)%#��)��01�9;�<��B=N=.��%�)�1'!/��>�� ��HI5��$�O��!�)�"#�)�6���.�(#��6!0�(��/%�$�*�)�*���CG��I�/��%��G.�1!>��G@.��(��A%):�5'!��J�H��$�!��$?�P1)%��*��!��!���/�1!��*�1)%Q�/��$/ �*#'��&�� �G-,G,--�!$�!��!$$#6�*�L%��/���%�5)%/��*�P�5'�!$��1)%��*��� ��/%))�/��*�*!����<�H�O$�!���/�1!��*�� ��L%��/���%�5)%/��*�&%#'*�(���$$#�*��66�*�!��'0�!7��)�� ��/%��)!/��!&!)*�& �/ ��$�1)%1%$�*��%�(��(0�6�*JE!0�-@-+���C-��R%&�6!�0�#$�)$�!)��!��� ��4�)��R!''�!�*�M%66#���0�M����);�B)��� %$��#$�)$���/'#*�*����� ���%�!'�%7�K�;�<��= �$���7%)6!��%��&!$�1)%��*�*����!�1)���%#$�"#�$��%�$��C+��A !���$�� ���%�!'��#6(�)�%7�/%�7�)��/��)%%6$;�A !���$�� ��/!1!/��0�%7��!/ ;�<�D.�/!1!/��0��!)��$�7)%6�GCJ-@��C���A ���*%�0%#�!���/�1!���/ !�>��>�� ��/#))����E�/)%$%7��'�/��$���%�E+SC�;�<B1)�'�-@-+��CC��A !���$�� ��/#))����7!2��>�$%'#��%�;�H$�����6!�'�7!2��>�%)��$����6!/ ����(!$�*.��)!*���%�!'�&�)�*�'���$;�<�B�!'%>.�� )%#> �� ��TUH5�$0$��6�!�*�$%6��*�*�/!��*�'���$��CS��H$�K�� !�*$��$�� ���%�!'�!6%#���7%)�� ��& %'��/��0;�V%�0%#�)�"#�)��!**���%�!'�%��$�1)�/%�7�>#)�*�7%)�1%$$�('����&��61'%0��$;�R%&�6!�0��%�!'� !�*$��$�8��/'#*��>��2�)!9�!)��)�"#�)�*;�R%&�6!�0��%�!'�#$�)$;�R%&�6!�0�1 %����#6(�)$�!)�����0%#)�/#))����������%)0�8'%/!'.��%''J7)��9;�<�K���$��%�!'�!6%#��.�&�O''�1#)/ !$���2�)!�1 %��$�!$����*�*���
71

Section 6, Item F.



�����������	��
������������������

���������� �!�"#$%&'%��� �()���)�%*�+�),��-'&&��./��0&�%,���� +�)1��2�,�340��,�� &5�+�)��2��(��5��+�6�&�� *��2��,� �� ���� �-'&&���7�� 8��%��,�9(����,:��;�<�,*�=',���2��(��5��+�6�&�� �����

72

Section 6, Item F.



73

Section 6, Item F.



74

Section 6, Item F.



75

Section 6, Item F.



76

Section 6, Item F.



77

Section 6, Item F.



78

Section 6, Item F.



79

Section 6, Item F.



80

Section 6, Item F.



81

Section 6, Item F.



82

Section 6, Item F.



83

Section 6, Item F.



84

Section 6, Item F.



85

Section 6, Item F.



86

Section 6, Item F.



87

Section 6, Item F.



88

Section 6, Item F.



89

Section 6, Item F.



90

Section 6, Item F.



91

Section 6, Item F.



92

Section 6, Item F.



93

Section 6, Item F.



94

Section 6, Item F.



95

Section 6, Item F.



96

Section 6, Item F.



97

Section 6, Item F.



98

Section 6, Item F.



99

Section 6, Item F.



100

Section 6, Item F.



101

Section 6, Item F.



102

Section 6, Item F.



103

Section 6, Item F.



104

Section 6, Item F.



105

Section 6, Item F.



106

Section 6, Item F.



107

Section 6, Item F.



108

Section 6, Item F.



109

Section 6, Item F.



110

Section 6, Item F.



111

Section 6, Item F.



112

Section 6, Item F.



���������
113

Section 6, Item F.



114

Section 6, Item F.



115

Section 6, Item F.



 
  STAFF MEMO: 

                                                                                     FINANCIAL 

 

 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
FROM: Ashley Smith, IT Director 
DATE: Submitted on August 10, 2023 for the August 21, 2023 Regular City Council 

Meeting 

AGENDA ITEM: Approval of MSA between GoTo Communications, Inc. and the City of 
Milton for hosted VOIP Phone Services 

  
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
 
This is an MSA and Service Contract for hosted Voice Over IP Phone Services for the City.  IT 
conducted a competitive bid process for a hosted VOIP solution and services and selected 
GoTo Communications and Vertical Communications as the vendor of choice.  Vertical 
Communications is the integrator for the project providing installation services and on-going 
support.  GoTo Communications is the software vendor and hosting/service provider.  The 
project will encompass the full deployment of the GoTo VOIP platform, hardware 
configuration (handsets and conference phones), Microsoft Teams integration setup, and 
end user/administrator training.  This system will be replacing the current on-premises Shortel 
system that is end-of-life by the vendor. 
 
 
PROCUREMENT SUMMARY 
 Purchasing method used:   RFP 

Account Number:  100-1535-523850106 
 Recurring Monthly Total:  $2,877.45 
 Annual Total:   $34,529.40 
  

REVIEW & APPROVALS 
 

 Financial Review: Karen Ellis, Finance Director – August 10, 2023 

 Legal Review: Jennifer McCall, Jarrard & Davis, LLP – July 26, 2023 

 Concurrent Review: Steven Krokoff, City Manager 

Attachments: Master Services Agreement with Addendum 

116

Section 6, Item G.



���������	
�� ������������������������������������ !�"�!#�� �!���$���% �%��%��� �&�!�% �'(�)*��+	,-�%��(.�)-/������ ��!%�!�����������%0�1��2�3��'(�	,+*-/�� 4�!����$$��3�"���3% !��3!� ��� !�!�����!�!!$�566###7�%!%73%�63%�$� 86�����63% !��3!� �9� !�!����'(:���;-�()*;-�%��(<	-/7�=8�33�$!� ��!����������;���� � ��� �>�4��;�%��?�� ��!���1��2�3��;�8%?���$���� !�!��!�8%?����%0������������ 4���2��!����?!�%��!8�!%�"� 4�!���@?�!%����!%5�'�/�!���>�4��A�'��/�!����������A'���/�!���B�	,CD�	�E	*�,DF�D�G*B��2����"����!��!!$�566###7�%!%73%�63%�$� 86�����6���2�3�94��3��$!�% �A�'�2/�!���3%? !�89�$�3�H3�B�	
D�G����)FF�	+	G�B��2����"����!�!!$�566###7�%!%73%�63%�$� 86�����6����% ��9�?$$���� !;��0�� 8A�� 4�'2/�!���I�%0����% ��1��2�3���������� 4�@% 4�!�% ���2����"����!�!!$�566###7�%!%73%�63%�$� 86�����6$�%0����% ��9���2�3��9!����;�� ���3��3���;����$$��3�"���'3%���3!�2��8�!���(J
,		+	G�-/7K7�J�����JLE�M������N�������OK7K7��D
P�����M*	��	,CD�	*O�Q%?�������!%�?���!���1��2�3���� ��33%�4� 3��#�!��!��?�����2����"8�#��3��#������?��;�$��3�;�� 4�%00���%?��1��2�3������$%�!�4�% �%?�#�"��!��;�8%?��>�4��;�%��!���1��2�3��R��3��$!�% ��'(M*	��	C	�*-/7�Q%?���8�?��%?��1��2�3���% �8����$����!!�4�� �!����������;�� 4�8%?��3S %#��4���%?��I��2�38I%��38��!��!!$�566###7�%!%73%�63%�$� 86�����6$��2�38;�#��3������ 3%�$%��!�4�"8��0��� 3�7�T����� !�8%?�������!�4�����!�!%�?���%?��1��2�3���% �8�0%��"?�� ����� 4$�%0����% ���$?�$%���7���3� �3����?$$%�!�0%��!���1��2�3������4��3��"�4�� �!��1��2�3��R��3��$!�% �7�U0�8%?���V���!���?���%?��1��2�3��;�8%?�#���� !�!��!�8%?��2��!����?!�%��!8�!%�"� 4�!�%����V���!���� 4�8%?�#����"�����"����0�8%?���V���!��4%� %!�3%�$�8�#�!��!���W������ !7�(�	,CD�	X*Y-���� ��%?���%0!#���9��9�9���2�3�%00��� ���� 4�%?���?4�%����2�3���'� 3�?4� ��� 8�����!�4����4#���;�#��3�����%00���4�"8�Z%�%���3� %�%�����U���� 4�[ ����!�4�@%�$� 8;�Z%�%�W?4�%;�\\@;Z�����%$$���Z�%?$�\\@;�%��Z%�%�@%��? �3�!�% �;�U 37;�%��!������?"��4������;�%?�!���3%��? �3�!�% ��$�%2�4�������$% ��"���0%��!�����!���� 4�!���������!� ��!%�!�����$�3!�2���?4�%����2�3��/7�����1��2�3��R��3��$!�% ������� 3%�$%��!�4�� !%�!���������7�Q%?�? 4���!� 4�!��!�8%?��$���% ���4�!����8�"��$�%3����4�� �3%  �3!�% #�!��8%?��?���%0�%?��1��2�3��;��%0!#���;�� 4�#�"��!���#��3������$�%2�4�4�2���]?�$�� !�� 4����%?�3����%3�!�4�� �!���[ �!�4�1!�!���� 4�%!�����%3�!�% �!��%?��%?!�!���#%��47
_̂̀a�baacdefg

117

Section 6, Item G.



������������	
��	
������������������������������������������� �!"��"�������!"��������������#�������$$��#�������$�$��%�&�'�#�"���(��(����#�����$����)��*���"����������������������������������+�%��&�*��)���!��������!����$!�����������������������)���$ �$�����������#����($��������$)��*��������������$������$ ����������+�%���&$����'�$�$ ���� �$ ��������������� ������������#����$����������������!�)"�!'�$����!+�%��&�'��*�$���������!!�$ �����������$������$ ��#�(��$�+�%�&�����$ ����������������!�$�����"��((!����!��!�)����������!�$����+�%��&�����$ �����������$�����#����$ ���,�#��#���$�����������(�'+�%���&� �����$����!!��$�������$ ��������#�$�)�$ ��$�$ ����������$+�%����&�$����'�$�$ ���� �$ ���������������'�$����!�$ �$�'����"������$ ����$�!!��$��!�(��(��$���(������������$ ������ $���"�$ ��#�(��$���+����%�-&����$ �����������$����''�$�"���#�����'(������$������(�����������$�$����.��/0�
1����	�2�34�5����6����������$ ����� $�$���� �������(���#����'(��������'�#�"��"��$������"�����������������)��#��'��((��(���$����#��������#�����$����6��)�!!���$�'�$����!!����#����$ �������"���$����!�$��%�����$�"��$ ����$ ���������7�����($����&����#�����$��������������������!����)��(����#������)�$ �(����)��$$�����$�����6��'����""����##�$����!�"���$����!�$��$�������$��#��#������������(��'��'�"��$�����'(����'��$��"�������##�$����!����$���8��93	:3����3;�<�10����
=�>	?	�@�3A���B�����*��)!�#���$ �$�)��������!�����������$�����!!�(��(���$������� $��$�$!����#���$����$����$ ������������������'��!��������$ ���'��*��%$���$ ����$ ��C>	?	�@�3A�D&����#�������!�$�#���$�!!��$��!(��(��$����� $������!�#�����)�$ ��$�!�'�$�$������!!�'�#�E��$�������� ����'��$��#�����$����)��*�����#��(���#���$ ���$���B���������$ �$�����)�!!���$������������$�������$��#�'��*����������'��*�������������'���#�'������'����������!'�#���������$���'����� ��#!��) �� ������(���$������) �!��������(��$�$ ��F�G�H��*����������'�!���$�������"�$ �����B���������$����'(!��)�$ ���������#���F��#�!����������!��!���$� $$(�IJJ)))���$����'J��'(���J!���!J$��#�'��*��) �� ���������(���$�#���$��$ ���K����'��$������"����������L<MN<2O�PNN2�QRM�9QS@NR?������L3=�3���B���'�����#����������������������$ ��T������$���#������(��������%CL3=�3D&��K!!�U�#���������""��$�������$ �����!�����"�%�&�$ ��#�$���������'�$�����U�#�������%��&�$ ��#�$�����$ �������$�����!��*��"�$ ��U�#���%CNVV�5��4��M���D&�K���($������"������U�#���'���������W��$�$����������E��$������#����#�$��((����!(��������X�� �U�#���� �!!����$���$�#��������(���$����#���#�(��#��$�U�#����KY��� ����U�#��������Z����#�"������T���#�$����#�$������$�����������[�\\\�]�7�����Z����!��$����!����̂��$�'���#������$���Z�������Y��� ����U�#������(��$��"��$�(��� ������(��������������/L_̀Mabc�N��31�
5;�d���2�34�5����K����������($�����$����������!���!�#����ĈUef7T�g�X'��������h�$D�����"�������������������������,�$���#������$ �����$���$�$��'�!��$�#����$ ��U�#���"������ ��������($�������#�)�!!
ijkl�mllnopqr

118

Section 6, Item G.



������������	
��������
����������
���
��
	��
����
������
������������
���
�����������
����
����������
�
���
�������
��
���
�������
����
���
�����
�
��������
��
���
���������
��
	���
�����	��
����
�����������
�����
��
	������
������
������������
���
���
��������
����
����������
���
������ !"������	
#��
������������
���
���$���
��
	���
�������
�������
%���
&�'���
��
��
�����
���
�����
��
�	
���������	
���������
���������
(��
��	������
��
��������
�	
��
���
������ !
"������	
#��
������������
�����
��������
������
���
	��
���
����
�
���������
��
��
���)�)�
*++,
-./
0-12+.34
(��
�����
��
��	
���
�����������
���������
����
���
�����������
�
���
�����
���
�����
�
����
5�������
��
	���
�������
"�����
��
��������
�
������
6�6
����%
��
�
���
�������
������������
�	
��
���
��	����	��
��7�
��
��
���
������
��
���
��������
���
8��
��
������������
(��
�������������
���
���
����
��
�������
	��
����
��
	���
�����
�������
���������9����
	���
��������
��
������
��������:
�
�������
%���
	���
���
��
������������
(��
���
����������
���
��������
��������
��
������
�������
��������
��	���
���������
��
��
��
�	
���������
(��
�����
����
%�
��	
������	���
��	���
����
��
����
	��
���
���
������
���
���
	���
���
��
���
�����������
%�
��	
��7�
�����
��
������
	���
��	���
����
���������
9%�������������:
��
�����
����
��	���
��
��
����������
(��
�����
����
	���
����������
���������
��
�������
�������
����
��	
��
��������
��
�����
�������
�����	���
���������
��
�����
��������
���������
;�
��	�
%����
����������	
����������
��%�
������
��
��������
	���
��������
��
��
�	
����
%���������
����
	���
��	���
���������
��
���������
��
��
�������
��
	�����
����������
���
����
��
���������
�������
����
%�
��	
����
%��
%�������
	���
����
���
��	����
;�
%���
��
�����
��
������
�������
���
�	��������
�������������	
����
������
��
"��������
����
���������
9"��:��������
;�
�������
���
�����
��
������
���
�����
���
��������
��
�	
����
�����	���
������
'����
��
�����
������
%���
��
���������
��
��
	���
���
������
�	�����
���������
%���
����������
��%�
%�
%���
����	
	��
�
�
�����	
����
��
�	�����
������
�	
���������
�
���
%�������
��������
<������
��
�������
	���)�6�
=->+,?
0@A2A3BA.->
CDD+@,?
EAFGA.,
-./
0@BHB.I4
������
���������
�������
�������
���������
������
������
���
��������	
���
���
���
���%��
��	���
������������
�	
����
���������
������
������
��	
�������
;�
�������
��������
��
���������
��
�����	
�	
�������
��������
������
��
�����������������
������
�
���
����
����������)�J�
KB,GF3+,L
K+>B.MF+.3
NHHAF.3,4
(��
����
����	
��
��
�	
���
�������
%���� O
��	�
��
���
������
�����
��
���
���������
	��
�����
��
��	
�����
����%����
 O
��	��
;�
��	�
�
�����
��
	���
������
��
��������
	���
��������
��	��
��
��
��	
���������
�����
��
	��
�����
��
���������
��
���
������������
�����
��
�������
�������
�
���������
���������
����<����������
PQRS
TSSUVWXY

119

Section 6, Item G.



���������	��
���������
����������������������� ������������!����������"���#�!��"�#����$�%%�%"�&��%����%����#�!��"�'�())��%��&"�(���  �"�*��#�����+��#�!���,��%�-*+,.� ���������/��()�����0����� �������0�/���������!��������()���!�(�������')�!)�()��+��#�!�����������&����#�%�%�-� ������!�����(��()��1�%��+��#�!������/.���%���0�����(�2������ ����-!����!(�#��/"�3����	��
��4��	5.��0����%�/���/�&�#���0��(���(�(/����!����!(��&��&��!/�����%����()��+��#�!��"��2!��(()����6�2�����%�,��������%����������(���!�0�"����6�2�����%�,���� ���')�!)�/��)�#�����#�%�%�����2�0�(����!��(�7!�(���8������!����"�/���'������/�()���0���(�%�����%���()���1&���0��(�(�������� ����'�()��(���/���&)(�� ���($�  ����%�%�!(����9���:;<�=>?��:;<@>=�@A>�9�B����CD��6)�����(����(��0�!�00�(0��(� ���/�������!)����� �+��#�!���'������������!�7�%�������E�%���-3@
������CD5.���%���&�������()��F  �!(�#��G�(���1 (���()�8��(����6��0"�()��+��#�!���'���"���������()��'�������!�7�%����()��+��#�!�G��!���(���� ��������(�!�����+��#�!�"���(�0�(�!���/�����'� ����%%�(������B�$0��()�����%��-3;�
�H�����CD	5."����������()������(/����#�%�����(�!��� ����$����'����(����(�9I�%�/���� ����()��!�����(�(��0��2�����������0�/����#�%����(�!��� ����$����'��� �����!)�+��#�!��/���%����(�'��)�(������'�)((��JKK������(�&�(��!�0K��L�0�/��&����(�����&��()����#��!��&���%���0��(�����E�%���"���(�()���'������(���%�!�()��(��0�� ���/�E�%����6��0���(��&����!�7!�+��#�!���%������(��  �!(�()��(��0�� ��/��()���+��#�!����(��������  �!(��8 �'�����0�(�/���(�������(�(��+��#�!����(���/�(�0�� (���(��0���(���"�/����&����()�(�/���'�����������%��/�()��()��$!�����(�6��0���%�()������'���%�(��()�(�'�������  �!(����� �()���  �!(�#��(��0���(����%�(��9������CD
���
�M�C�N�O	���F�()������(/�0�/�(��0���(��()��1&���0��(�-�.�� �()��()������(/�����!)����(��0�(����������&�(�������%� �����(��!����'�()���9I�%�/��� ��!���(�� �'��((�����(�!�"����-��.�')�������0�((�%��/������!�������'"�� �()���()�����(/���!�0��������#��(�������P���("���Q��%�(�%�������%�����#�%"����!���������(��(����/������ ��(����������"���%�'��0�/�������%��!!�������(��0���(��00�%��(��/�� �/�������!)�+�!(����B��"�R�B"�R�9"������9�9��:MM�S���M���CD
���
��8 �()��1&���0��(������/�+��#�!�������(��0���(�%"�/����!!���(�0�/����!��#��(�%�(����3 ���5����3����!5�#�������� �()��+��#�!�"�� �#�������"��(�����%��!��(�����E()��'���"�/���'�����00�%��(��/�%��!��(�������������� ()��(��0���(�%�+��#�!��"��2!��(�()�(��������Q���("�'��'�������#�%��/���'�()��0�(�%��!!����(��()��+��#�!��� ����������%���(�(���2!��%�9I�%�/�"������/�(��������/���(����(���#��/����T��(��(� ��0�()��+��#�!����L��)�#���������&�(����(�0���(����/����T��(��(�� (���()�(������%��6��()���2(��(����0�((�%��/������!������'"����()������(/�'�������������� �����/�%�0�&��������(��&� ��0�(��0���(����� �()�1&���0��("���%�(��0���(����'������(��  �!(���/�!���0�������&�������(��()���  �!(�#�(��0���(����%�(���8 �'��%��!��(�����+��#�!������0�(������/���%�!��()��!��� ��!(������(/�����!!��%��!��'�()�+�!(����B�9����#�"�()������(�%�E�%���'������(��0���(�%"���%�'��'�������#�%��/���'�()���������(���� ��%�� ���/�������%"
UVWX�YXXZ[\]̂

120

Section 6, Item G.



�������������	
��������
������
���������
����������������������������
��������
��
���������
��������������
��������
��������
�����������
��
��������������������� �!"#�$����
����
���
�������
���%�&'���(�)��������*������+(����&,������
��$�������
�+(���&	
��-
����������.��
����+(�/�&0������1����
�+(�2&3�������
��
��3����4���+(�5�6�&7
�-4����.���
��+(�5�89�&7
�����+(�����5�8�&-
���������*���(�-�
����
��3�������3
����
���
�:��
4�����;�������+�������������������
��
������.�����������<=>?�@=ABCAB�DAE�D@@=>AB�#��8��<F���@FGHIGH#�	
���������44��������
��
��-
������&��1������4
�+���������
�
��
���
�4��������
��-
�������J���������(��
����(���
����(���������������
��-
���������
����
��
���������
�������������������	
�������������&�+�
�����������������
���4
���
�
�������������-
�������������(�����&��+��
���4
������
��
��������
���
��-
��������������
������
��
�����������
����
���������
������������
�����������������,����������������
����4�����
���4���������4(�
����K���
��4(������������������������������������
�L����-
������
�������������
�����������������������������J����44��
������(��������
�
���������
���
��-
�����(�������M�&�+��������
�K���
���������������
��
�
���������������.��������
��������
�������������������������������(�
&�+�����N������
��
��4�������
���
4�����(����4����4��4��(�
��
��������4�N������O@FGHIGHP�����������14��(��
�������(���
�����(������4
��(���������(���������4������������������������
���
��
��
������Q�����4�(�����44��������
�������
����
���
��
��
�������������4
����
��
�����������
��������
������
���������������������%��<F���R� �!ST�!GU��IS�� HT#�J��������������4
��4��������������������
��������������
��
������
��-
�����������������
����������
��4�������������
44�������V
��
�����
���
������4���	
������������
��$����W�*�����-�����&�����MVV�����
�
��
�V�
�����V����+��
����������4����4�������
��������4
����
����������X*
����
�;���4
����(������44����������X�����1����
����
����
���
����������4�����
����K���
��4�����������������&4
������������$�������4�����'����K���
��4�Y��������
�Z$'Y�Z��
���������
�+��J����
�������
���������(�������������������
����
(���������
����(�
�����N����4�����
��������$
�������������������
��;����*
��������.�������&ZERDZ+(��4����������������MVV�����
�
��
�V�
�����V4���4������<F���DSSF�GH[#�	
������
4�4�����
����4���
�&�+��44�����
�����������������
�������
������(�&��+�������������4����4��������
������
44����
�(����(��
������������������
��-
�����(�����&���+��
��������
������
�
����������
���������4���44��N���������
������
��������������������J���
��
�����������4����L�����
��
����������
������
��(������
�L�����
�����
����������(��
����
�4��L�����44
\]̂_�̀__abcde

121

Section 6, Item G.



������������	�
������	�����	�����������������������������������������������������������������	�
���������������
������	���������������������
��	�������������������������������������������������������������������	����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	���������
�����������������������	���������������������������������
��������������������������������	���������	��������������������������	������������������������������������������� ��!"#$%&'(!)�*&+,�%'*-.�/��������������������
������������������	���������������������	����������������������
�����������������
�������������

��������������������	�����������������	�������������������	�����0
�����
���������	�	���
����������������	��������������1���
�������
���������������������������	�������2���������������	����	3
�����������4��������5������������������
��������������������������������������������5������������2������������	������������������������������2�����0
�����������������������/�������������	�������	����������

���������������������
��������������������������	�������	���������������������������������������������
�������������������6����������	��������������
������������������7����������������	����������������������������������������
������������

������������8��*'99'(+&)-.��1���::�67�7;�7�7;1��1:</51���/==�5>64>:?�7>�7;1�1:</51�@1�5:/A7/>6��26@1:�6>:?�=�2�1���1�@>�6>7�:1A:1�167�>:��::�67�7;�7�B�C�7;1�2�1�>4�>2:��1:</51���/==�D1�7/?1=���26/671::2A71@>:�1::>:�4:11��>:�>A1:�71�/6�5>?D/6�7/>6��/7;��6���A15/4/5�;�:@��:1��>47��:1�����71?�>:�@�7���B��C�>2:��1:</51���/==�?117��>2::1E2/:1?167���>:�B���C��==�1::>:��>:�@14157���/==�D1�5>::1571@��2�1�>47;1��1:</51��/���7��>2:��>=1�:/�F��>2:�167/:1�=/�D/=/7���6@��>2:1G5=2�/<1�:1?1@��26@1:�7;/����::�67���/==�D1���7�>2:��>=1�>A7/>6�6@��2DH157�7>��AA=/5�D=1�=����7>�A:></@1�5>64>:?/6I��1:</51���>:�7>71:?/6�71�7;1�6>635>64>:?/6I��1:</51��>:�7;1��AA=/5�D=1�>:@1:���6@A:></@1���A:>3:�71@�:1426@�>4��6��A:1A�/@�411��4:>?�7;1�@�71��>26>7/4��2��>4�7;1�6>635>64>:?�651�7;:>2I;�7;1�16@�>4�7;1:1?�/6/6I�71:?��7>�7;1�1G7167�A1:?/771@�D���AA=/5�D=1�=�����1@/�5=�/?��==�>7;1:���::�67/1���6@�5>6@/7/>6����;17;1:�1GA:1���/?A=/1@���7�727>:��>:�>7;1:�/�1��/65=2@/6I��6��1GA:1���>:�/?A=/1@��::�67/1��>4�?1:5;�67�D/=/7�����7/�4�57>:��E2�=/7���7/7=1��4/761��4>:���A�:7/52=�:�A2:A>�1��6@�6>63/64:/6I1?167���>?1�H2:/�@/57/>6�@>�6>7��==>��7;1�1G5=2�/>6�>4�51:7�/6���::�67/1���6@�5>6@/7/>6��7;1:14>:1��>?1�>4�7;1��D><1�1G5=2�/>6��?���6>7��AA=��7>�52�7>?1:�=>5�71@�/6�7;>�1�H2:/�@/57/>6��J��&(K)#(&L&!'+&"(.������������	���������	�	����	��������������������	�
������������������������������������������M�N��O�M����O�P�������������������������������5�����������������
�������
����������
�������������������������	���������������
��������	�������������
����������������������Q�������������������	������������������	�	����
RSTU�VUUWXYZ[

122

Section 6, Item G.



����������	��

�����
	���
�	�
�	������
	
�	���	����	������	��	���	�����
��	��
������	��	���	�����	���	�������
�	�
�	���	��	���������	
��	������	���	���	���������	�����	����������	��������	��������	��	���������	���	�������
���	��	�����
�����	���	�������	����	���
���	���	��
����
�	����	
��	�������	���	��

�����
	��	���	������	�����

��
�	���	���	��

�����
	���������	��	
�	����
	�������
�	��������	�����	��

��	������
�	��

�	��	������������	�
�����	��	��������	���	����	�	���	 ���	��	
��	�������	�
�	�����	�������	�
	���	��	��������!�	"#$#%&%#'(	'(	"#&)#"#%*+!�,�	"#$#%&%#'(	'(	#(-#./0%	"#&)#"#%*+	1234526	7864�	�399	:2	938:92	4;452	;4526	7864�	;6	4;	81�	;4526	726<;1	=;6	81�	31>362?4�	<72?389�?;1<2@A214389	;6	31?3>21489	9;<<�	2B2C7986�	;6	;4526	<A?5>8C8D2<�	31?9A>31D�	�345;A4	93C34843;1�	>8C8D2<	863<31D	;A4	;=	;66298431D	4;�	���	9;<<	;=	>848�	����	9;<<	;=	31?;C2�	�����	9;<<	;=;77;64A134��	����	9;<4	76;=34<�	;6	���	?;<4<	;=	62?;E26��	5;�2E26?8A<2>	81>	:8<2>	;1	81�	452;6�	;=	938:3934��	31?9A>31D�	:A4	1;493C342>	4;�	:628?5	;=	?;1468?4�	4;64	�31?9A>31D	12D93D21?2��	;6E3;9843;1	;=	<484A42�	�524526	;6	1;4	<A?5	7864�	58<	:2218>E3<2>	;=	452	7;<<3:3934�	;=	<A?5	>8C8D2<�	<;C2	FA63<>3?43;1<	>;1;4	899;�	93C34843;1	;6	2B?9A<3;1	;=	938:3934�	=;6	31?3>21489	;6?;1<2@A214389	>8C8D2<�	<;	<;C2	;=	452	8:;E2	93C34843;1<	C8�1;4	8779��!�G�	"#$#%&%#'(	'(	&$'H(%	'I	"#&)#"#%*+	2B?274	=;6	�;A6	:628?5	;=<2?43;1<	,�G�	J�,�	;6	J�K	81>	�;A6	31>2C13=3?843;1	;:93D843;1<�	81>4;	452	2B4214	726C3442>	:�	87793?8:92	98��	452	4;489	?ACA9843E2938:3934�	;=	234526	7864�	81>	45236	62<72?43E2	93?21<;6<	81><A779326<	863<31D	;A4	;=	453<	8D622C214	3<	93C342>	4;	452	<AC	;=452	8C;A14<	783>	=;6	452	87793?8:92	<26E3?2	>A631D	452	,G	C;145<3CC2>38429�	762?2>31D	452	31?3>214	D3E31D	63<2	4;	452	938:3934��	452=;62D;31D	>;2<	1;4	93C34	�;A6	;:93D843;1<	4;	78�	81�	A1>3<7A42>=22<	81>	;4526	8C;A14<	>A2	A1>26	81�	;6>26�L�	&--#%#'(&"	%/.$M+L�,�	INOO	MONPQROS	TUV	%NQTWS+	����	����
	
�	������	���	���	���	����	<�������	����
	������
���	���	���	������	��	
���	���	�	�������	
��	����
�	��	���	����������
����	
�	����
	��	
������
�	����	���	��	���	����	��������	��	���	<�������	�����	����������	��	��
�
��	3�	���	���	�����	
��	<�������	��	�	
����	��	�����
����������	�X%NQTW	YONQZV[��	����	4����	7�����	���	������	
�	
��	<�������	���	
������
����	�
	
��	���	��	
��	4����	7�����	�
�
��	��	����	;�����	��	����	��	��	��
�	��	�����\���K]	����	��
��	����	���
���	������	
�	
��	<��������	�����	��	����	����	����������	
�	���������
����	>�����	
��	4����	7������	
�	
��	��
��
	�����

��	��	���	�	�������
_̂̀a	baacdefg

123

Section 6, Item G.



���������	�
�������������������������������������������������������������
�������
����������������������������
	�����������������
�������������
������������������������	�������� !"#�$%"&'�()"*!+),-����.�������	�
�����������������	���/��������������������0�����������1���������������������
���
���������	�����
�
�����������		�

���/����������������	��
���������
���������������
���
�/�����������������������
��
�	�
����	�
��2��������
������
	���������������������	��
�����	����	��������������������
����	�
�����������
���
�1��������
������/����������
��������
�
����	�
������������������������
����	�
���������
���������������
�/3�	��������
�1�����������	�����1��������������������
�
��	�4	�������
��
����	�
���������/��
���������������������	��5�
	�������
��6���

��������
��
��	�4��������������	��5�
	�������
�������������	�����	���
��
�������
��������	��
��
��
	������������������
���7���

������������������������/�������������������������
����	�
���������
�������������8��9)&%�()"*!+),-�������������������		�

����/����
����	�
����������/���1������������������1������������
���/���������������0������1��������
���������
�
����	�
������/�������1���������������/���:�9)&%�()"*!+),�;��2��������
���������1�������������<���������	�
�����	�������/�1
�������
����������������	�
������
���������<���������	�
��
���������
������
0��2����	0������1�������������
����<���������	�
��
�����������������������������/�
�
������������������/��1������������������	���	���
�����������������
	�������������
�������<���������	�
�������������������
������
	�����������������������������	����������=��
��<���������	�
���������������>���������������7���������������/�������	�/�������������
	�����������/����������������
������������
������	��������
�����������7���

����������
��������������������
��������������
��1�<���������	�
�������1���������	������������	����
������	������������
�������
������	0������1������������1����������
�������	��	������������������		�

��������<���������	�
�������������������/�	0�:�?))#@%+A�;��/��������<���������	��������1�������������������B���/�	0����������
�����������
��B�������<���������	�
����������
��=���

����
��������	��C�	���1�����
�����	��������
���������1���������/���������������7�������	�

���������
�����	��C�	����D��EFG'"!H &-�������/���������������������	�
������/�����
����������������	��
������
�	�����1���������1�����������
��������������������	�

��������������I����
IJJ����1����	��J	������J��1��J��	����K��LF�EM%,,�N+&!FO,-�2��������������
�������
����
�������
�����������������/�
�
����������1�����������/���1���������	�������������	��

��	��
�����������������
����������	������1���
���
�����������������������
�����P�����
�
QRST�UTTVWXYZ

124

Section 6, Item G.



���������	
�����	����
���������������������� ��!"��� #� � #����$%�" ������%�&��'"$������"����� �%$ %���!������$�!(��!"�����%�� ��#�$)"�*��  �!( �+����"��������'"$���  �$)�+����� #���!��"$"�%���$ "'" "��+����!��� �!(����"����%�(���� #�&��'"$�����������"��� �)���$ "��� ��(��!( ��������'��������$%�" ��"��%����,���"���� "�����%���������%�(���"������� #����$ "��� �)���������$%�" ������������-��.
�/01
�2�3����4�%�%����� ���� #� � #��&��'"$��������� ����"*������"� ����������%����%�"�*�#"*#5�"�)��$ "'" "����#"$#�"�$�%��+��% ������� ��"!" ��� �%���"��#�6����%����'"���!�� ����7%"�"�*���"�5�����$�� ����+����(������� �!�+�"�$��� ���'"*� "��+�$�� ���+����$�!!%�"$� "������� �!�+����8����"����%((�� ��� �!����9��1��:	;
����<�� �"��&��'"$���(��'"����%�$ "����" �� #� ����������%� ����$����%�"�������� ���#������%�"�*�����"�����4�%���������������(���"��������$�!(��"�*�" #������((�"$����������"�� #������'�� �=%�"��"$ "�����#"���%�"�*���$���"�*�%�$ "����" ���,���"�$��"!������"��"�" ��������%����$���"�*�����%�"������#������� �+������%��*���� ��#����%��#��!��������!���!�*�������"��"�" "������� ��� �� #���$���"�*���������%�"������� �������>��
��������?�" #���(�� ��!������"*��" ���"*# ���������*� ��" ���% "���%���� #��@*���!�� ��" #���"���#�������"��(�� ��" #�% � #��� #���(�� �A��(�"�����"  ��$����� +��#"$#��#������ ����%�������������" ##���+��B$�( � #� ��" #���(�� ��!�����"*�� #��@*���!�� � ������C�"� ����� " �+�������(�� ������$��(��� �����*��"6� "��+�$�����"�� "��+�!��*��+��$7%"�" "��+��������������������%�� �� "�����������" ���%�"������������ �� ���#"$#� #"��@*���!�� ����� ����@����  �!( �����"*�!�� ��" #�% �$����� ��"������'�"���D#��@*���!�� ��"����"�������"�%��� � #������E ������$#�(�� �A���%$$�������������"*�����FG��H:�
�����?� "$���!%� ������� ����(�����������"'���+��'���"*# �$�%�"�������*"� ��������$�� "E���!�"���,��!��������(��'"����� "$�� �� #���!�"����� ���"*�� ��������%���$$�%� +����$ ���"$�����'"��(�� "�*������%������" �+�"�5(���%$ ��� "$��+�����%������5���'"$��(�� ��������!"�"� �� "'��$�� ����I������(�$"E��������#����"�� #"��@*���!�� +��� "$����#�%��������� � ��%��� � #���������������%���((�"$�����$�� ��$ "�*��� " �+��" #���$�(�� ���%��J�*��K�(�� !�� +�LLL�&%!!���& ��� +�M�� ��+�N����$#%��  ��GOOFG�I&@+���������"��������� "$��� �� #������������� ����"*�� ��������%���$$�%� ��?� "$��"��*"'���P�Q%(���(�����������"'���R�P�Q������'���"*# �$�%�"��+���� #����$�����%�"���������� ����� "$��"����� +�P$Q�������*"� ��������$�� "E���!�"�+���� #��E� #��%�"���������� ����� "$��"����� +�P�Q������!�"�+��#��� #���!�"��"����� +����P�Q�"��(�� �����$ ���"$����+�%(���(�� "�*���FF��1��
:�ST�U�	���������%�������$� ���"����*"�����% �"��� #��I�" ���& � ����������(%�$#��"�*��%��V�D�<����$ �&��'"$��+����" "����� ��!���(�$"E$� ����%���*"���P����� ���� #�"���%��W�*"�����&%((��!�� �� 
XYZ[�\[[]̂_̀a

125

Section 6, Item G.



������������	
�
��
���
�������	����	�
��������������������������
��
������
���������������������������
�������������
����������������� ��!"#$%&�'(%&&)&"#*�+%,&%�-.�/%&0&,&"0&1�����2	�������3���������	������������4523�������
���������������	�����������������
�����6
�
�������	�
����������������������������������
������
�����
���
���
�������������	��������3��7�������
��������������������8�������������
�9��������������7�������:����3���
�����������;��<�	�
�������������3������������3�����4523���������������4��������
��3�����������3�����������3������
�9��������������
������������
����3�����
�����
�����������;������������������������������������:������=
����	��
��������������
���������������������
����������
�
��
����������
���������2	���������>�����������������������
��������
����3���������������������;������������������������3�������������������������������	
�
��
���
�������	������������
�����
����?
����
��������������
��������
����������������
�����������
������������
����������������������������@��A&"&%BC�D&%)E1�8����������
�������2	������������
�����
������3������������
����������
������������F
��������������������������
�����
�������
����	��������2	��������������������������3�	����3�;�������
������
����������
��������������������������=
�����
��
����������
���������
����2	��������������������������������;������:������
��G������������
����
��
�����������	����
��
���������2	��������
���
��H���
����������������	�
�����I�������
����
���������	�������������2	��������������
�������������	����J�����
��������������;��3����������������������������2	��������������	������

������
���7����������������
������	������������
���
���
����
�����������=
�����������������
��������
����������
����������
�����
�������������2	������������
��
�����K������������L��	����������������M�����
��������������3�����������
����������������������
������3���
����������M��������
��	
�������������������
��������N�����
������
���
�3�����
�����
���
��
�	�����
����
�����
�������������O��P-"#%B0#$"(�/B%#QR�PS-$0&�-.�TBU�B",�T-0B#$-"�.-%�V&E-CW$"(�X$EYZ#&E1����6
�
��
�������	�������3��
��������
����
�3����	
������	�����
���
������
���������������������������
���������
�����������������;������������
�����
������3��������
����������������������	
�
��
���
�������	���
�������	����������
[\]̂�_̂^̀abcd

126

Section 6, Item G.



������������	

����������������������������������� ����������
��� 	�����������
��� ������� �������� ��� ������!������� �������"�
���
#$%&�'&&()*+,

127

Section 6, Item G.



���������	
���	���	��	�������������������	���	��������������� �����!"�#$�%�"#&�"����'�"��"���(!!)��(*)��+�,��%�"������-��#.��������(�(�)(*)��("/��""!�/00'''1&#"#1�#-0�#-!($20)�&()0"��-�3($,3�#$,�"�#$�%�($,%��.�(!!)��(*)�%"���4�&�#$()��5!!)�-�$"�(�(�)(*)��("��""!�/00'''1&#"#1�#-0�#-!($20)�&()0��&�#$()3�5!!)�-�$"%�.#�-�"���67&���-�$"8�(!!)��(*)��"#�"������������"#�'�����2#5��(���5*����*�,1�9$)����!�#��*�"�,�*2�(!!)��(*)��)('%�'����������"�����&�"�"#�5!,("��"������������ �����!"�#$��.�#-�"�-��"#�"�-��'�"�#5"�$#"����"#�2#51�:;��!"�(��#"���'������"�.#�"��$�"������-��#.���������#��"���4�&�#$()��5!!)�-�$"%�2#5���#$"�$5�,�(������"#�($,�5���#."������������'�))��$,��("��2#5��(���!"($���#.�"���"��$3�5���$"����-��#.��������1<#�#����������(���!�#��,�,�*2�"���(!!�#!��("��<#�#�=#$"�(�"�$&�:$"�"����(����"�.#�"������/�""!�/00'''1&#"#1�#-0�#-!($20)�&()0�#$"�(�"�$&3�$"�"���1>����?������>�@@A���������<#�#�B��"�$&C#�$1-�B����$&��<#�#�4##-<#�#�D�*�$(�<#�#��"(&�<#�#�D�*�(�":��$"���������<#�#���(�$�$&:$�($��,�75,�#+!�$E#���+!�$E#����F$"�&�("�,+!�$E#����F$"�&�("�,9$)�-�"�,+!�$E#����F$"�&�("�,�G)("4("�=())�B�<�(���#!!��<#�#�=#$$��"

>A���@	�H�
�
	@	���A����<#�#�7����"<#�#�7����"�=#�!#�("�<#�#�7����"�4�-#"���5!!#�"<#�#�7����"��������� ��I4���5�4���5��J����J�$�4���5��J����<5�,�4���5�7����"<#�#�4��#)��B��(,#��
KL	����M�N�O��	��P���
	@	��J(�"Q(���R5��$���J(�"Q(�����+J(�"Q(���BG7J(�"Q(�����(-�J(�"Q(���Q��-�5-�($,J(�"Q(���G(-�)���=�$"�()Q�#<#�#B2Q= STUV�WVVXYZ[\

128

Section 6, Item G.



����������	���
��
�����������
�������
�
������������������������� �!"� �!#$�%�&�'���(�)'*+�,��-+'�.�/'-�-+'�������$�(�#�0
�1
2
3��
����4
���5
3�67�849	4�8
��
���
:�;�9	
���5��<<
���4
=
�29	
���
��<���4�����4
��;;39	�63
�;�9	
�39�:�>�5
�:���5?���=
�29	
�@
	�9;�9��A�B����
��
;��963
�<���5
9����9�����5������9���7����0
����5��4
9���
��<��4
�=
�29	
�9��		��5��	
�89�4��4
�C��

�
�����5��4
�0
�1
2
3�
��<���4�9���4
�>�5
����5?����4
=
�29	
�@
	�9;�9��A���	4�0
������4�2
�����9D�
�E��
5�0
��F@��4�����7�����6
4��
5�������0
�A��4
������
��C5�9�9���������7��
�9������
����63
����6
���<0
�:�EC�:�������	���
���=
��:�<�����9�
�����9�
:���5�<�33�89�����7��
�9���
����4
;�
29��37�5
9����
5�0
�:�EC�:�������	���
���=
���4�33����3���
��6
�
��9�3
5����		
��4
�=
�29	
�89�4����9�	���9����559�9���3�G

A�H
��

�2
��4
��9�4������
29
8�7������
:�9�������3
�59	�
�9��:�5
�
��9�
�9<�7�����
�
I	

59����4
��;;��;�9��
�0
�1
2
3:��5:��6J
	������;;39	�63
�3�8KK�L9M��;
�5�7�����		
�����4
�=
�29	
N�L99M��
��9���
��4
=
�29	
N���5?���L999M�9�2�9	
�7���<����	���3����
A�=4��35�8
��;
	���4�����7�0
�9�<�����9���9������		����
:�	���
������	��;3
�
:�8
��

�2
��4
��9�4������;
�5����
��9���
�7�������7����0
�O����
��<��4
�=
�29	
A.�/'-�-+'�#�C33��
���������4
�89
�5
P�
5�4
�
9��4�33�4�2
��4
��
��9���
��<���4�9��4
�C��

�
��A�G�����7�	��Q9	��6
�8

���4

�=
�29	
�@
	�9;�9�����5��4
��
���9����7��4
��	��;��
����<��4
�C��

�
��:��4
��
���6
3�8�	�����3�<����4
��;;39	�63
�=
�29	
��37AR�,-'-�����+���
������9�59295��3�7���5
9����
�L���67�5
<��3�:��4
����4��9S
59������7��<��4
�C��

�
��M�84�������
��4
�C5�9�9����9����
��
��9�	3�59��:�6������39�9�
5���:�5
9����9�����7�EC0AR�,-'-�����-+'�T�'�����
�����;����3�<���C5�9�9��������4���;��295
�
�5U�
����5�		����U�����
�
������3:���5���	
����39S
5�	�����3�<����5�9�9����9�����55
;3�7�
����<��4
�=
�29	
AT+'��'���
�����7�P3
:�5�	��
��:��
	��59��:���5���4
��9�<�����9���6
3���9�����7��:��
�������4
������7�6
��;3��5
5����7�����		�����<��������
���5?������
5:;�

��
5����4��
5�89�4��49�5�;���9
�9��	���
	�9���89�4��4
�=
�29	
AV�,���RW��+�-X���������VR���V�,���RW��+�-X���RW�-+�������VRR���
����4�
5
9����
5�9�59295��3�84����7��		
���5��
��4
�=
�29	
�9���		��5��	
�89�4��4
C��

�
��A���	4�EC0����ECC0�����4�2
���E��
5�0
��F@A�@
9����
5�9�59295��3
YZ[\�]\\̂_̀ab

129

Section 6, Item G.



��������	
�������������������������������������������������	���������
��������������
���������������������	����������	����������
��������
�������
������������������� !"#$%&���'#�( !�$)*�#$���')�������
��������
����������	�������������������������+���	�������������������������������
���������
�������������,�-�.�/0�1��+����������2)�$�34�����������	��5	���
����6�����������
��������
���
�+�
	������7�0�	�����8�
����	�������1��+��������7���
�9����:;��	�����	��5	����
��������������������������	���<������=����
��>��������������	��5	��7���
�9����:;?��������	���@>��������������������>���������������������������������	�����
����6���A�2)�$�#$�2B%!����������
�+�
	����������������+�����7�9��7��9����
C���7�0��D!�$B�!%E��F G)H$%(!%#B�I#��D)J����������+���	������������
����
����������K����
��
����������1��+�����������	��
�����+������
��������
�'#BH $$�B!�F��!����������	������������
���������������1��+�����	�
���������	�������7���
�9����:;��������������
�����������������	��+��������������+�0���	������1����L B�D��F G)H$%(!%#B����������������
�����������	��	����������	�������1��+���������������6���	�������9��+������9������M	�
���1	������������������
�6��
���
�����
�2B%E�$)�D�2)�$�������������
��������
���
�+�
	���������������������
�	���	�������1��+�������������
�������������������������N����9��+������9�����	�����+���7���
�9����:;����
������������	�������9��+������9������������������
���������������	�������M	�
����	�����������OD�P%GD��2)��I#��D)������������+�������������������+�����������
���������
�
����������	�������������+�������������������	���������������������������������+������	�������	�������	��������������������+��������������������	����������������������
���������
��-����	���������+���������
�������������������������
�����������+���������������1��+�����F G)H$%(!%#BQG�)���OD�P�F G)H$%(!%#B�<�R��S����+��T�������U����<�TUASAV�W�	�����	��������������	���	�������7�9��	�������������������������1��+�����������������������X�
���<S.����	�SA�������������	������������
���������������������
�������+���������������������	�������7�9��	������������5	������Y����������.����	��<S.����	�SA��:�������������������	��	����������
������.����	�����	���������+����
������	����������	��
������������5	������������V�<�A�Z[\���+��������������	�������������������	��X�
��?����<��A��������K
�6��
�]������������7�9��+������.����	�����������������	��X�
����̂�������6��������<ZA�����������������
_̀ab�cbbdefgh

130

Section 6, Item G.



����������	�
����������		�������	����������������������������������������	������������������� !"#$%&'(")�*+",�-.&(/012$13#4������5��	�6	��7��5�8�9���������������������8��5���88�����������9�6���������������8��������	��9�698������������������:������8��9�9���������;�5����6�9�9�-1$"�<1/"#("�����9��������8��9�������9���	��9�698������������������	�8�6	��7��5�8���������5���9�����������9���������7��5�8�������5�������	�������������������������=����8�������������9������>��������
���7����?�8��9�����8�������������99�8��������9�����8�	8�	�����6�9�������������6���������	����9�������������������9������������6���������9�����	����9������8���		���9������7��5�8��������������	�������7��5�8�����������@�9������7����?�8��9�����������>�8����8����������������6��������	����9�������������������9���A����������	������������	�����8�������		�6���9�9����������������7��5�8�9���������7��������9�8���������������	�8�6	��B�����C.($3D"0�'#)�E"/F#1/'+�-.2230$G�7��������9��5��	�6	���������9HII9������������8��I�E0'1#1#JG�K��������:���5��	�6	�����������	�������������9�99���9���������5����	9��������L�����M������N����9��9�����������N���6����������88�99�����7��5�8�9��M��������	����9�������	��O01!'/P�O3+1/PG���	�99��������9������������������	�8�6	��7��5�8��Q�98���������������5�8���	�8��	�8������������9HII���������8��I8������I	���	I���5�8�����	��9�R))1$13#'+�-"0!1/"(4�����7��5�8�9����	�������5��	�6	���������8��9������7��5�8�Q�98��������	�9�����	�8�6	�����9�8��7��5�8��9��		����	��C3DD.#1/'$13#(�C3++'&30'$13#C3DD.#1/'$13#(�C3++'&30'$13#�-"0!1/"(�������	����8������8������9��5�8�9���������6	�����5����	9�����������N�����9������9�	��9�8���	������8�9�;����8��5�	��������8���9��������8�9�������������9����8��5����9�6��7��5�8���������������������8	���H���9:����98�����9������SQ��8�9�5�����8�������8��������������������������
���7��5�8�9�������	�5�����5�����66���9�����6�	�����	�8���������8	��������8���6	�������������	�6�		����9���6�����������:����������������������������9����������9�����������������6��T�
����9��U	����9�����������9�����������9�9�������9��7��5�8�9����B�����N����9�����������N����9���������7��5�8�9�����8������������7��5�8�9�������5����M�������9����8��B�����N�����9����5�����99�8������L������9����Q���������M���������9��������5����	������9���5�����6�����B�����N��������������������������V5���� D"0J"#/P�-"0!1/"(G�V�8��������T�
��W����8�����=����6�	�������������9�������������7��5�8�9H������������������X���	;����Y����8�����	���Z������6��8������6���9�������8�		9����������8��9��5�8�����6��9�����8��������8	����[\\�[[[�����\\]�����������5������
_̂̀a�baacdefg

131

Section 6, Item G.



�����������	
�	������������������������������������������������	�	����������������������������������������������	���������������� !����������������������
��������������������������������������"�#��$�������%������
�������������������
�����&������������������'�%����(����������������������������
��������������������������������������(�������%������
�������������������
�����&������������������'�%�������������� !���))� !�*��������"�#��$������������������������������+�'+����������������������������������+��+������������������������,����������������+"�#��$���������������������$���������������������������������������	�%����"�#����������������$������������-��./0�*0��12�"�#��3��������%�	���������4����������������'�������������������	������	��������'�������������#���5��������������6�7�8�������%�������9�7��8�������'�"�#��3����%���������%�'���:$����;�%<�'�����������	�������������=�������"�#��$��������������(�����������#�����'�5���������������������6==%%%���������=������	=�����=����+���+���������9�����7���8��������������������������>�������'����������������;�����,���?@�'�����������'����;A,���4������������������������������������������#�������%���������������'�����+����	�����'�������
��''+���+���'������������������������������������
������������
�����������������
��������������7����
������������������	�������������8
������������������������'���������������7����:B��<8��"�#������������B�����	���������'�����	�������������������������'�	������C��������'���������'��������������A�������������'�"�#�D���������%�������4���������������������B�����	����"�#��%����������	�����������������������������������������%������������������	�'�������������������
���%�������������������	��������	����	������������������������	�����������#���B���%�����������������%����"�#��3�������������'����������������E���FG**G ���)2�H���������������	��'������������������B����������	�'������������������������	�����������%���������'������������'���������'�������������������������	����	����H���������'����"�#���'���	�������������������B�������������%������IJ�������'��������	��@����������KL+������������'����%��������������������
��'����
������	�����
��'�����B��������������'���
�"�#�%�������������������������������������������������	����M����%��������KL+�����������
�����B��������������������:A5�?5<�NA5?5�O?#PQ,#�OA33A;#?>5�QM�A;HB?;@
��&�������������&������������	�����'��������%������	������������''����"�#�������������������������'�����B�������%��������������'����'��������P�%����
�������������������	������������4���%�����������'���������'�����B��
"�#����	
�����������������
�����������������������B���������	�����������������������������'���
RSTU�VUUWXYZ[

132

Section 6, Item G.



��������	
��	���������������������������������������������� ���!��"�������"��������#�$��%��!���������&�"���"��!�����"�����'�������������������!��"����������(�����)����"����"*���&��+���������"�""��,--***.��"�.��!-��!����-�����-'+�/����&��������������"�'�������������.����''�"���&����������"���'���"���������������%��!/��/�/0��+����12%��034������������������� ���!��"�������"���������#�$��%��!�����������������������5����"�6&7878&�*��"����������"�������"�'����"���9�'���������'��'�*�"��0��+����&�"��������"��!���"��""��,--***.��"�.��!-��!����-�����-'����/������������"��������������'��������������"�'�������������.:�;��<��=>�?>�>@�	ABC��DE	CF�?�?���������������������������#�$��%��!�G�"������"������#�$��%��!�%��0���������&�"���#�$��%��!/��/�/0��+����1%��04�$��!�&�+���������"��""��,--***.��"�.��!-��!����-�����-�!�/����&�������"��������������.;�CFHBC���@EII�	J�#�$��*�������+�'���"��'��'����"�!�����'�"���������������"������"��"�*�"��"���������"���+�������#�$��K��"����L���&���'�M�+���N�������"����"���G�".�0�����"�����+���������"�"���L��'��"�0�����"�L��"�������"�'��"�""��,--������".��"�.��!-.:�;��O��BH�	���������������P�"�����"�����'��"�'�/�"/��������&����/"�/!��������!�"����������"�"�����+��"�������������������'��������5""��'�����+���"����"����".�Q����������������'���'&����+���'���'�!�'���"�'�������"���#�$��Q������*�����"����'-����R���"��������"�!������"*���.:�;��@J�S���������������+�'������"�������"���!�'������'�"�����������'�+�'�������'������P�"�����"��!��������'�������"���)��"��"�"��������"�&����*�������+��*�)��"��"����"�'�����"����.�T�����"���������������)��"��"����#�$��0"���&�����������"��"�����)��"��"�!���������"�'&�'��"����"�'��������'���"����#�$�&���'�������"�"���"�����������+�'����#�$����"�����!�+�'�������&��+�����"�������������"����������"�!��.�5���+��*��&�����*��������� ����'�"������"������'��"�"��"�������������+��"���'����!!��'�'����"��"���'�����������"�������������+��*�������"������'������������*�"��#�$����'����"��"�����"���&����U��"�"��#�$�V��L��+����L�����.:�;��O��C�?JWA�	AB���#�$��Q�����"������������������/���+���&�*�����"�������+����"��"��������������P�"����������'�+�'�����"������'���"�����"���!�+�'�����'���'�����+������/'�!��'�"����!�R�!�!����X&888��������5""��'����������Y+��".�Q�����"���������'���'���'����+���'�������"���#�$��Q�����"�*����"�.�Y����Z5[�!�����������N�#�$��Q�����"�Y+��"��"��������"�������"�!�&�*�"����!�R�!�!�'���"������\���������'����5""��'�����!�"������"����"�����"���9�'��.]��?̂�WA�	�S�?�������������Y+��"&�����!����R���'�"������"���"�'�5""��'�� ���"�"�������"�!����"����N8_�125""��'���T�����34&��"�����''�"������̀��.
abcd�eddfghij

133

Section 6, Item G.



���������	
������������������
����������������������������	�	
�������������� !���"� "�#�$���������������	����%���������������
���	���	
&���'��(�����
)����	�*)�+��)�,����)�-�	�.)������������-���/
��
��������	���������0��-����1���	��)����
.��''�	������'�	�	��)���*�)����������	
���2���3
*�������
������������4�%	&�.����������.����'
�	�����������/
��
��������)����
�-	��������	�'��.���*�	�����	
������50�$�������1���	��)��
�����
.���������-��������������.�������
.���	���'���.������	
��������/
��
�6��
�%		&�*�������
����'
�	�	�	�.����	��	�	�.���������	
�����	����������������/
��
��
��������--�
	���	
��-�	
��	
��������
�-	����������������������50$�������1���	���7 89":8;<�=�>>�!�#�50�$�������	
�������?��
����''������������������
���@�������A������
��A����
����@�������A����)�*��(����������������3
*�����������6��
����B�)�C	���/���)��
��D
������	���E	���@��'
���������
������
��'����
������2����
����������������''���'�	
���������.��50�$�����������
��FG "��= !G:8 ��	�����
����	
���
����''�������	�����������	����*	���'��

	
���
����	���.���*��	
���������	
	
����?��
��1���	����	
����������	�
-�
�����
����
�'��������
��-�.����'���������������'��	,��1���	����������?��
��1���	������������	
�	�����'
�����	
�)�����
����	�	�����������
����
����'	���	��
������.������*	��	
HI�-
���������������������������	�	
��������-�.��''�.����������'�����)����
���)����
�������*	��	
�JI����	
������������������������
���2�����������������?��
�1���	����'��	�����.�����������.�����
�,��
�.)��
��.����������.����'
�	�����������
��
����.���*��	
�����
�����	
	
����2������
��'��-	�������������)������)�	���	�����������*	����	�������
.����	�����	
������	
�'��	�����.����	
�

���	
�*	�������?��
��1���	����K�7��7!;:":"L��
����������������������)��
��
���
��-����������	
	
������	
���	
������50�0��	
	
��*����	��������������������-������*����F"9;"8 M�N�M:��= !G:8 �K " !;<�O"P�!�;�:�"Q  �����:�� "�#�2��*	�������	�����-
���.�	
�������������������������4�%	&����-
���.�-	
	-�-�'��	�	�������������������	
����������6���%		&�.����������������������'�	���'���-	
����'����	
��������������������	
������������/����
�����	
�����
��������������?
��
�������	�1���	�����������	������	
�������-	
	�����	
��
�����
�R��S.�����
��'����������/���-���'������1��
���������������������������
���*	�����
�	���
TUVW�XWWYZ[\]

134

Section 6, Item G.



����������	
������������������������������������������������� ���!"�����#��������$"!���%���&�������#�������#��'�!���!���"�#����(���������������"����"����"��!�!"����������(����!)�*���+�,�	-
.�/�0�������'�����������������'��#���"��"������������1������!$"!���2��'��������!����������������"����3��������"����������'�����������$�������)�0�����!����������������"���������"�����(�������#�����'������"������"�����(�������3�����"!������"����"��!3��"�������"��4"���"������������!3�"�����(�������3���!��������������)����#��!���������������"������������������������"������"�������������#����'������������$�������3�#����3����"�������!���������3������������"�����������((��(������2��'����(���3��������((�������������3��"�(��!3���!5��������������"��1������!�$"!���2��'�����#������#����"��������)����#�������'���������"���'��"��!�����1������!�$"!���2��'��������"���#�"��("�(����3�#�������!������������������"��$��������#������#����"�����������!����#��!���������'������"�����������!�������������������������((��(�������"����������������'�������������!�(�����"����)6�	�
7�8
�7��+�97:�7.���;<�
��,�	-
.�*�
7�=�7><7.8
�7�?
8:�,�	-
.�*/��������'����&"���������������������"�����(��������@� ��A������3�B���)�3�@� �0����������@� �� ����������������!�����#��������������������$�������3���"�1������!�$"!���2��'������������������������3���!�#��#�������"�!������"����(��(��!��"��"�"��!�%���)97:�7.���;<�
��(��'�!���C)2)���!��������������������������"����������������"�����������������!3��!!���������"!����(�����#����@� ��A������3�B���)�3�@� ��0���������!@� �� ��������D��!���4"�������������(��!�����"�����(������������������'����������"������������'������1������!�$"!���������"��!E)�%��������������!������(��F��"��3(��F�����"�����������������������������������������G�!��)97:�7.���;<�
��HI�8���8������'���������������������!�"���#����@� ��A�������D����������'����������������@� ��A������������E3��"�B�����������������������������������������������G�!��)�1������!�$"!���%����J�������(��'������!�#����������������!�&����A��"����������������"����������!!���������"!����(�����������"����������������)�K�"(������������������������"���((�!�"�����D"(��������A�������%����C���L���E����@� �A�������������M������������!����#���!�������"�������������F��������!�����"��"��������&����A���"����)�K�"�"�����(���������"�����������@� ��A������������!������"�������2��'���)� ����"�������N��!�$"�����M�!�$"!���C�����"����4"��������"������N��!�$"�����M�!�C��������@� ��A������)�1������!�$"!���%����J��������'�����������("���������������!��������!���"������)O�����;<8:�	
P���;<�
���*�	��	�O;;�/� ����"�������N$$C��������"�1������!�$"!���%����J��������"���������������"�!������QRQ���������������"������N��!�$"�����M�!�C�������������@� ��A�������2��'���3���!������������������!
STUV�WVVXYZ[\

135

Section 6, Item G.



������������	
����
��
�������
��
����������
�����
���������
�����
��
�����������
���
��������
��
	���
����
��������	
��������
���������� !"#$%&$'(
)**!
+(,
-'(&./0
)+$#
1!*2
3��
4���
5�
5�����
�������	
��
����������
��
6������
�����
7���
8���
7���
���
����
��
��
9�����
��
�����	
7������
:����
�����
��
�����	
���������
�����
��
;<===
�������
���
��������������
5	
��
�����
���5��
��
�����
���������
���
	���
�������
���
������������
5����
��
�������
����
4��
����
�������
���	�
�����
��>
?@A
����
�������5���
��
����
B�5����
��
����
��������C
���D��
?EA
����F����
���
G���
��
?�����������
���	A
�����
�������
��
��
���������
�����H��
��
��
9����<
4���
5�
5����������
��
��������
6������
�����
����F����
�������
������5��
�5���<
���
��
����������
��
��
�����	
7���
���
:����
������������1!*
'I
�*#J$"*2
B�
�������
��
����
��
�����4
	���
�����
��
��
6�����������
7���
8���
K������
��
���������
��
���
�����
�������
��
�����	
7���
���:����
��
��������
��
����������
B�
��	
���������
�5������
�����
���������������
4��
�������
��������
�����
��������<
���������
�������
����<���5��
��
���L��
���5���
���������<
�����
��������<
���
����
��������
M�
4����������
���
	��
���
��������
��
�����	
7���
���
:����<
��
	��
�����������
��
���
���
����4���
��������
��
���������<
4�
��	<
��
���
��������������<
��������
	��
��
�
����
�����������
K������
����<
�����
�������5�������<
��
�������
��
���������
	���
6������
�����
7���
8���
K������
4��
��4�����
�������
M�
4�
5������
���
G�������
��
����
��
�����
K������
���
������4���
�������<
4�
��	
����������	
���������
	���
���������
4��
��4�����
������
���D��
���4���
��
��������
�������������
���
����
�������������
��
�����������
����������
���
�������������
���
������������N+//
-*
��
�
�������
������5��
���
���
4��
����
�������
���
����4�
�����������������
��
����
���������
��
�
�������
��
����������
����
��
������
��
�����
�����
���5��
���
�������
�
����
����
��
����
�������
�������
��
���
���5��
����
����
��
�������
�������
7���
���
�����>
?@A
������
��
�
���F������<
���F���������
5����
��
��
����
�����
���
����
��
��
9����
���
6������
�����
����F����C
��?EA
��
�
O��
����
?��
��
��
�����	
7���
���
:����A
��
���
����
��
��
9����<
4��
G�����
��
��������
��
�
�������
��
6������
�����
7���
8����
��������
��
��������5��
�����
�������	
��
��
����
���5��
�������<
���
9���������
���
��������5��
��������	���
��
�������	
��
���������
P������
�����
G���
��<
���
��	
������
�������
������
���<
����
��
��
��������
������
��
����������
����
���5���Q%*(R'$"*
�*#J$"*!
ST*/*"'UU�($"+&$'(!VW*(*#+/
X(I'#U+&$'()**
N'UU$&U*(&2
3��
4���
5�
5�����
�����	
��
�������
���
��
�������
��>
?�A
�������	
�������
��������
7���
��	�5��
��
����
�����
��
���
����
��
��
9����C
YZ[\
]\\̂_̀ab

136

Section 6, Item G.



�������������	
��	���	���	���������
�����������������������	���	�������������������������������������	���	��	����	������������������
��	���	�	��	����������	�������	�����
������	����������

������	����������������������	�����	��	���	���	�������
�����
�	���� �����������
��!"#$�%$�&'()*+���	������,���-���������
�
����������.����	��/����������� ��
�����������0�������������� ������� 	�����	������� �����	�����������	
��	���������������������	���������%1'�*2�3'(4)5'6�7�/��������������������������������� �������	��������������������
���������������	�����	���	��8����	����	�����	������	�����������������7�/���������	������������	�����	���	�����������
���	���� ��������	���
��������	����	�����8���
�����������������8��������������9���������
����
���8��	����	�����8�	����������	
�����.��7�/�������������������	������	������	��������	�����	�������������	������� �������	���������������8�7�/���������	�8�������������
������8���	������������	�����	�������	��������
����	�8�
�	����	����
	�����	��8������8�	������������	�����������:��
�������
�� ������� �����������
���.��7�/������������������	������	���������������:��
�������
���������	 ����������8�7�/���������	�������	�����������	������������������ ������� �����������
��	������ 	�����������	���
������
	�����	���������������	������������	�������	���	��������������������	�����	�������
������;'(#)<"=)*<�*2�>$'<?*)5'�3'(4)5'1�)<�@*<AB<5=)*<�C)=D�3'(4)5'16�.�������������������������	��������
�����������7�/���������8��������8�7�/��E����	����7�/��/�	���������	

���	�
�� �����������������������������8����������:��
������
���	���	���������	��8�	���7�/�������� ������������������	�������	������������0���>$'<?*)5'���	��	��F	�����	�����
�������
�����������8�	

������	����
��������������8�	�����������������	������	�8��	��F�������	�����	����������������	

�����������GHH�	�����
�������
����
����
��������	�������������������	��I����	��-J�K�	

���������F��	�����������	����F���	�����
�������
���8�	��������	��	

���������	�������	�����	

����8���������	����	�	������� �������	�������:��
���
�	��������	����F������8����F������	����	��	�������	�������������������������L���
	������������������������	��I���	

����8�	����	
�����	��I��� ������
�����	���9���
�������
�������������8����	��I���M.N�	���	

������������	��I��O���������	�	������� �������	��>$'<?*)5'�P<='Q("='+���������R����	���������	����	�������������������������������	�	��������	���8�	�������	��	������������ ����7�/���������8��������8�7�/��E����	�	���7�/��/�	�������	�����9�����	�
��������������
���������������������
����	��������	���	
����������:.�������������0���	���
�	��������	����F������8����F�����	����	��	�������	��������������������������.������
	�
�������
�������������
�����������7�/���������8��������8�7�/��E����	�����7�/��/�	�����8�������:.
STUV�WVVXYZ[\

137

Section 6, Item G.



����������	
����������	�����������
���������	����
�	�����������������	�����������	���
�����	
�	�������������������� !��"�#�$%&#�'�(�) * #�'�+,��"(-.�������������	���
��/���������������0	1	2����
/3����4�����	�������
����������	
����������	����	
��������������56���	��
�����������������	
�����
������������	
��	����
�	�������������������	����7	�������	����	
���������	������
��������	����	����������
�������	
������	�	���	
��	��	���	
�
�������
/���7	�������������	
���������	���
����������/�����0	1	2����
/�	�/�
�8����	������
�������	������
����
/������	9�����
������3��
��������/���������	
����/���������������������
���������
��������������	
�����������7	����������������������������	�0	1	�2����
/��
�	������	�������������������1��
������	��:�����;���	��8���;���	�6�����������<�������
������	��:����;���	��8���6�����	��0	1	�2����
/�����
�	����5
��/������6
�������������������	����������	
���
�����/
������	�
������=&*�'�>?#@�% A�'�>?' ��(B�%��%�=>>(C�1���
������	��:;;6���	���	�����56���	�
����������������	
���DED�����	��	���������������0	1	�2����
/��������3��
���������
�����������	����������	
��������������	��������	
��:����;���	��8���6�����	��0	1	�2����
/��
���
�	�����	
��	���
�F����/��������������
�	����G?HB!% �# ���I��B�&�'�J��#@)K�I& %�(B�C�7	��������������	
�����
�����
���	��������56�L���������	�����
������������1���2	
����L����6���M��������
������	
�����//��/�����	���	��N3OOO���
���������:;;6������������������	��
������	��:;;6������	��8����	���	������	�
���
������������
���������	
��
���������������0	1	�2����
/�	
���6��/��	���	������
��������
�0	1	P���
���	��0	1	�1���
�
/����������
�����������
��������
�	����5
��/�������	9�������������������������	��3��
�����
	���	�
�����
�����2	
����L����6���M�����������	
�(B���Q�G�%R !�C�0	1	�;���	����������������/����	���������	������/��	��������56���������	��������
�������������/���F����������2	
����L����6���M�����	���	���������;/�����
���0	1	�;���	������������
����
	�������/�����	�/��	������	
������	���������	�������/��������
�3��
����
/���
���������3
������	���
�<���
��������	

�����3����/��������
�3��
��	���������	����5��0	1	;���	��������
���������	��������F�����������2	
����L����6���M����3�	���	������
/�/�
/��
����������	�����������	���������;/�����
�3�0	1	�;���	����3��
�����	����������	
3����
������	���	����	�������	�����������������
3�����/���������������3�	�������
��	�������
�����	�����56��������������	������	��
	������5��0	1	�;���	��������������S���	�����������������;���	����������	���
�
���������	��3�0	1	�;���	���������������������
�����	���;/�����
������	������	���
	������
�T	���	���������������
���	���
�����	
��
��	�����
�	�����	
��	���������	�����������	��������	���
�����/���	
��
����	������	
�
UVWX�YXXZ[\]̂

138

Section 6, Item G.



���������	
��������	����	����	���
���	��	���������	���	�� �!�� �"	#��	$� %	&�'�(�� ��!	)* �� ��+	,��+	,�#�+	��"-��	$%��	# ���.��!	�	/��0	*#��1��2 ���3+	�#�4�1 	 �1�� ���	��� ��1 ����	��	�� 	��� %	��	 %�	5�"��6	578/9	����	��1�#"��	�	��2��� �1��1#���� 	�#��1��2 ���	 �	52��7��1�	��	"��1����"	�����	��"	��	2���������"	$� %	 �������	��"	:���	(�	�#;����	�����<	���	#��	��	��	�""� �����	�#"��	�2 ���	���	<�#�	������;�� ��!�6	=�#	2�<	�	�� 	;�� %�<	���	���	#�1�22�"	#��!�	)#2	 �	 %�	(�� %�<	/���	>��?�;� 3	�<	&�'�	(�� ��!	��!���.���	��	�  ��"���	$%�	"���	��	#���!	 %�	 ���@����	��	"����# 	#���!	 %�	:���	(�	�#;����6	=�#	;#� 	��2��� ��<	�#��1����	 �	&�'�	(�� ��!	����"��	 �	#��	 %��	*����1�6	'%�	�#;���	��	A�;�"	B# %���.�"	B#"��	>����	;#� 	�C#�� %�	�#;���	��	A�;�"	B# %���.�"	>����	��	&�'�	(�� ��!6	578/9	��	���������	���2#�1%���	���<	��	"���!�� �"	1�#� ����6D�E��	FG�H��I��	FG���	JK�	�	DFFJL	'%�	�#;���	��	ABB>�	���	<�#�	578/9�11�#� 	�%���	��	���#�"	��	�	MNM	�� ��	 �	 %�	�#;���	��	A�;�"	B# %���.�"	>�������	 %�	&�'�	(�� ��!	*����1�+	��"	�%���	��	��1�����"	�# �;� �1���<	#2��	 %�2#�1%���	��	�""� �����	A�;�"	B# %���.�"	>����	��	&�'�	(�� ��!	��"	�����1�"��	<�#�	��0 	��!#����<	�1%�"#��"	�����1�6OGPK�������	���K	���	Q���H�R	���	JK�L	=�#	$���	��	�����"	���#���<	��	�"���1����	 %�	578/9	/���	�� 	��� %	��	 %�	5�"��6	'%�	(�� %�<	/���	>��	?�;� 	;����	 %�;�� %�<	�!!��!� �	 � ��	��	S+TTT	;��# ��	2��	ABB>	;#� �2���"	�<	 %�	 � ���#;���	��	ABB>�	�# %���.�"	���	<�#�	�11�#� 	��"	��	"� ��;���"	����"	��;��# ��	#��"	$� %	&�'�	(�� ��!	���<6	>��!�	��N	)M3	 ���	����	�#;����	��	&�'�U������	��	&�'�	'������!V	��"-��	)W3	 ���@����	��"	:���	(�	#��!�	�# ��"�	��	 %�1�#� ����	�2�1�X�"	��	 %�	5�"��+	$���	��	�����"	#�"��	 %�	� ��"��"	52��7��1�8� �!�� �"	 ���@����	�����1�	"��1����"	�����+	��"	��	�� 	1�#� �"	��	 %�	(�� %�</���	>��	?�;� 	1��1#�� ���6JK�	�Y	O�Z���L	&�'�	B#"��	��������	 %�	��!% 	 �	�����$	<�#�	#��!�	��	 %�	578/9*����1�	 �	"� ��;���	��	�#1%	#��!�	�01��"�	 %�	(�� %�<	/���	>��	?�;� 	������� ��	 %�	B!���;�� 6	&�'�	B#"��	;�<	"� ��;���	�����;��	#��!�	 %��#!%1�;2������	$� %	�������	1#� �;��	#��!�	2�  ����+	��1�#"��!	;��# ��	#��"+�#;���	��	#��C#�	�#;����	1����1 �"+	#��!�	2�  ����+	��"	� %��	��1 ���6	8�	&�'�B#"��	"� ��;����	 %� 	<�#	%���	�01��"�"	 %�	(�� %�<	/���	>��	?�;� +	��	<�#	�����!�!��!	��	#��	 %� 	� %��$���	����� ��	 %�	B!���;�� +	&�'�	B#"��	;�<+	��	� �����	"��1�� ���+	 �������	<�#	 �	�	;���	�22��2��� �	*����1�	2���+	1%��!��22��1����	�� ��+	��	�#�2��"	��	 ��;��� �	<�#�	578/9	*����1�	$� %	��	$� %�# �� �1�6	8�	&�'�	B#"��	��������	 %� 	:#� �;��	%��	#��"	 %�	B#"��	*����1�	���	��#���$�#�	2#�2���+	&�'�	B#"��	;�<	�;;�"�� ��<	 ��;��� �	<�#�	B!���;�� 	$� %��	$� %�# 	�� �1�	��"-��	���$��"	 %�	������� 	1�;;#��1� ���	��"	� %�������;� ���	 �	 %�	�22��2��� �	�# %��� ���	���	����� �!� ���	��"	2����1# ���6[���	Q�	��	�	��� #��	���������	���	#��	$� %	&�'�	(�� ��!	 %� 	����$�	;�� ��!��!���.���	 �	!���	�  ��"���	��	�	;�� ��!	��	1�������1�	1���	 %�	�2 ���	 �	�� ��	�
\]̂_	̀__abcde

139

Section 6, Item G.



���������	�
�����
�������������
����������������������
���������������	�
���������������������������
����������
�������
��������
�����������
�����������
�����������	�����������������
�����������
���������� 
��
���
� ���!����"����
�����������
��#��
��$�������%���
���������������������&����
�'���(���������������
���������� 
��
�)����*�����������
�����������������
����� !"�+��,�����������
�������	�����
������
�&�����������������	�
�����
�������� 
����-�
���
��
�������	�����
���
��&��������������&����,���������.�������������*��������������&���
�����
�������
�����������������������������������
���������
�������������	�
�/0122345560�76089:62��
���
�������	&��
��������
��
����((*��;�
��������
<��������������������
�����
�
�������	�����
�����
��������
�����������������
���������������
��������
�=�
�����>860896?@��
��������
������!�
�����ABC���
������	
�����D������������������������
����������
�������&���)����������
����
���������	�
���E����)��
�������������	�
��������&���
�����������	�
�������&�����
��
�����
��
��
�����
������������&��
��������F��������	�����
�����

�������	�
���
��������	�����)))��
��������
���G���	�
��
������,�������������������������������������������������������
������
����������������	����
������
��������	�����������GG�
��������
���G��)����)�
H�����������
��G��������/0122345560�I4JJ6:K�76089:62��
��������������������������)�������������������������&�����
��������
�����
�����������������������	�
���������
L��������������)���
���������������-���������������	������������������D����������������������������������M�����	�D��������������)�����
�������������������
�����
���������������
���������������������
�������N�������
�����������
����	&������������)��������������������������
������������������������������������)����������������
����
�������
���������	����&����������
�	������������������������
���&������
��������
�������
��OPQR�O6:65K94J92K2�76089:62@�"��&����
����
���������&�+�	&�+�����������=�
����������
�����&��
��
��������
���
�����������������������
������������������GG)))��������G�����&G�����G
�	&���
�������&����������
����������
����
��
�����	&�
���
����ST60U6J:R�76089:6@��+,==V AAN+�"=�W ��,�XF",(�� WNX�A+ !"FN+��+,==V AAN+�*,WW ��BN�'=NF�� +�N�N+�NW*E�=N+!"*N=��"W��VN�N!NW�� �,W�N�N+�NW*E�YV"(N�'="W���VN�=N+!"*N=��E '��'=��V,W��'A�,WF�F",(�,( *,(�N�N+�NW*E�W'�BN+�'="W���VN��N(NAV WN�=N+!"*N�A+ !"FNF�BEE '+�( *,(�*,++"N+�O6124J1QZ6�[26�\4Z9:R@��
��������
�=�
������������
������
���������X������������<����G�
�;�����������������<�	����������������&����&�	���������
���
����	����������#�������
���
����������&���
�������������	��)�����)�������������#������������D����
]̂_̀�àb̀cdef

140

Section 6, Item G.



�������������	
�������	��
�	��	���������	���	��	����������	����	�����������	�����
�����	���	��	����	���	���	��	���	��������	����������	�������������	��	���������	����	�����������	������	��	�������	�����	������
������	��	��������	��������	������������	
�����	��	��	�	�� 	��	�	���	������!��������	��	��������	"�����	�������	#$$	��	����	����	���%��	&���	���
�����	����'��	��������������(!����	
���)��	�����	"�����	
�������	�������	��	�����	
���	
�������	*��������*�	+$$��������	������)����	��������	��
�(!��'�	�������	��������	"���	������	��	��'�	��������	����	��	����	��
�����������	���	���	���	��	�����������,�	������	��	�������	��	���	������	�����	�����	���������	��	����������	��	�����������(-���)�������	��	*�����
����*	�������	"�����	���)������	�������	��	�����	�	��������������	��	�����	�����	��	
�����������	����	��	���
�	���)�����	
����(������������	��������	���	�����	������	�����	����
�	���	"�(	���
����
�	��	�������	���������
�	��	�����������	����������	����	����	���	��	���	�����
�	��������	����.���������	/��	����
��	��	��	���	
�����������	�'
���	0$�$$$	�������	���	�����	��0$	
��
������	
����	��	���	����!	���	"��(	��	���������	���
�	
����	�'
������	�	1	������������	���	��'	
����	�'
������	�	2	����	���������	����	.���������	/��	����
�	�����������	��	3���������4	�'��������	����	���	�������	��	#�$$$	�'��������	��	��
�	�

�����-���������	�'��������	���	��5����	��	����������	�����������	�

�����	/��������6��
�	������	�������	���	��	��
���	��	3���������4	������	��	���������	�����������	��	��	��	70$	����	��
��	���������	��	��������	��	�'
���	��	70$	�������	��	���&�
�	��	��	����������	8��	��	70�$$	/�9	���	�����	70$	�����	��������������	���	���	������	��	�����	���	.���������	/��	����
�	��	���	����	���	���	������	�����	����	���
�������:;;<=>?	@AB>CDE	B>F	@GHI	@<JKLMB>;DN	O��	���	��5����	
������	��	�����
���������	��	�����
�	�����	"
������	��	�	�����
�	�����	���	���	����	����
�	�����	������'�	����(	��	���������	�����������	��	������	��	��	���������	���	���	
����
����������������	����	��������	�����	��������	�

����	�������	���	��������������	�PQ���	��	���������	����	���	��������	�����	�������	��	R���	�����������	�����
��	���������������	Q�����	P����������	"S�QP(	��	�����	����	����	����
������
���������������	���	���&�
�	��	���	8SS,�	�����	�����
����	S�QP�	-���������	�����������	�����S�QP	��	���������	��	���	8SS	������	��	�����%%������

����%��%S�QP%����'�
���TDUJN	���	P������	����	���	���	�����������	�����
��	���	��	������	�������	��	������������	��	���	������	����
�����	���	���	�����
��	���
�����	���	���	���
�	����������	���	P������	����	������	��	���	����	�����������	�
�������	�����
��	���	����
VWXY	ZYY[\]̂_

141

Section 6, Item G.



����������	�
�������
����������	������������������������������������������������	���������������������������������������
������������
������������	�����������	 ��������������!�����������������������������	�����	 ����������	������������������������"� ���������������#�����	�������������	���$�������������������������	������������	�����	 ����%!�		&������	�����	��!���	����&��������������#��������&����������#�%�������%�����������	��������������	���������������#������ �����%!�������������!�����	����������	�	������������������������!���	���$�����	����������#�����������������������"�������$!��''�(������������!�(���������(��� �������!���	��	����)�� �����"� �������	�#)"�%%�"� ������������������&������	�������������������	�*�#�%���+�����������"� �������
���������������������������������	�
��������"� ��������������	���������������������	�,��	��������"� ��������-�#��%�������������������	�	�������������#.�������	�������/%-���	�#���%�����		�������������������#����������$�����������������������������������������"� ��������!�0���������
������������������������������	���� ����������
����%!���������������������������������������)����	�"������#�$���	��������1����	�2�
������	�)����	�"�������������%���	�'���	���"� ����3�������	���������� ��������������0���������
���������������*44��������������������4�������������������������#���������	�������������'���	�%���	��������������������	�����������������)����	�"������#�����	���!���������������	���!�����1����	�2�
������	)����	�"��������������%!������	������������
�	�	���������������������)����	"��������	�'���	���������������������������!���������	�����	���������������������������	�����������	��������0���������
��������������*44�������������4������������&����4�0��������������������������������	��		��������������������������������!��		&���!���	��		����������	�������	�"� ������"�����������������	�������0���������
���������������*44��������������������4�������0����������� �����������������������������������	4������������������������������	����������0���������������������������������$�#5%������	�����������
���������������#67%������	��������!����������
�������������������������������"� ����������8�9(:;(��9�;8�<=;��8�;(8���98�=�'�==�80�98��8��''9)8��>9)?)"��3�>��8��8����=�:;39"���9��@AA�AA�)":���2�"�:;39"���B�==�<;�)";:�9�3�>�'2�(0;"��"��2;>��(;��8')((;:�98�>9)(��''9)8���)�������������������	����������;$��������������������		������������������������	�������������������������������
��������������!���
�������������������������������������$���	�������������	���������'�	�����	�������	��
�������������������������	����������������*�����������������������������������	������!���	�����		�������������������������
������������	����������������������	�����	�������	������������<���������������	�	���������������������������
CDEF�GFFHIJKL

142

Section 6, Item G.



���������	�
������	���������������������
	�����������
	�
��������	�����
����������
���
�����
��	
����
�������	���
	�������
���	�������������
	�
�����
����������
�����
�����
		�
�������	�����������	�����
����
�������
���
�����������������������	���
������
������������� ���������!���	����������
����	�������������������"����� ��� ���������!���	��������������
��������
	���
���
����
�����	��������
	���������������
��
	��
����	����������#��������������������������
�����
�����
�����
����������
����
���
���	����$���
�����$��������%����	���		�����	������
	���������	����������������������&��������������	�����'	�������
���������������������	������������
����������	�������	�������	(�������
	������
���	�����������	���
�����������������
����
������	����
��
	�)�������������
������������
	������	��	��
�	������ ����������	���
��
�������
�����(���������
�����������
	������	��	���$���
����$��������%����
��������	����
�����
�
�����	��������	��	��������
	�������	���
��
�����������������������	�
	��(���������������������
����������
���	���
����������
�����������
��������������������������	������*+,-./0�-12�3+4561-06718�9����
�������	
���������
������������������	�
�����
	����������� ����������������
	������������	�	��������������	
���	������������	�
������������
��������:��;����	�<��
����	��
������=))���������
��������������
	����	����������������������
���������������	��
���
��
	����
���	������������
	��������!����	��
	���������
�������
��
	����
���	��������	�����������	"�����
��������:����������������������	
���	�	������� ����	
���	���(�����������������"����������	�>����	�����
���?���������	�����������
��
	����
���	��������	������������	
���	�	������
��	����
������	���������������
����������
	���������������	�
���&���������������
��>�@AA�@BA�@B>A����>�C>D�EFG�GDAA����������������	��
���	����
�
	����
���	��������	�������;��
������	�����
����
����	�
���
����
�"	
���
���	�������	������
���������������������	������	���������	��
���
����������	
���	��%������	�����	
���	����������
�������������������������
����
���	�������������������
	���
���������������
���	������
���	��������
���
	���	��
������	��	������
������������
	���������
�������
����������
����(�������
����
���	���
���������	�����������
����������	
���	���������	���	��'��	������	
���	������
��������	����������
��	�
����	���������
���	���
	����
�������	��	���������!�����	���H
�������
�
	����	����������������������
����	�������������
��������������
�
	����������	���	�	�
�	���
����	��������
��	�����������������������
����	�"���I/-JK/6L0+2�*+L061-0671L8���
�����������������������������	�������������������	����������
�������������
�	��	���	
���	
�����	������
	�����
���	����
��
������(��	���������
�����	���
�����	���
����MN;�
���������<����	
���	�OP��!���������(�����
	�����������������"����	�����	�����
����������
��������������
���������;�
��������<����	
���	��Q46R-JS�-12�T+J74261U8�9���
������V����
�����������=�M�P���	�����
	����������
������&������������������
���	������
����	�����������������W�
	��M��P���	�
�����������
XYZ[�\[[]̂_̀a

143

Section 6, Item G.



������������������	
�����	�����
���	������������	���������
�����	���
�������������	����������
��
���������������������	���������������������
��
�����������������������	���������������
�	��������������������	�������
�����
��	����	�����	��
���������
����������������	���������������	����������	����������	��	�����
����������������	�����	���
������������	�����������
����� ��	
���������������������������������
��	
�!���"���������	�������
��������� ���������������������������
���"���������#�����������
���	�������
������������������	������
	��
������	
�������������
���������
�����������������	�����	
����	�
�
�����������$%%&''()(*(+,�-&&.)/%01�#����������	������������������	� ������	
���������2���������3	
	�	�2������������������	�����������
��������	������������������	� ����������
�	
	����
	�������	��������	
���
�	������	��	�����������������	� 4������������567��689:7;86�<=>=�?=@@&%+�A&BC(%&'<=>=�?=@@&%+����������D��������	������:�	����E�FG��������������������
���	������������	
�������
��	��
���	�	�������������������:�	�����������
��	
������	��
������������
�����
����
�	�����
�������������	
��	�����	�����
	���
���	���	���������������	�������
����	����	�����	���
���	��	�����������������

����	
�������
��	����
���
	����	
������
	������	�	�������������������
��	�	����	�����	���
��2������
	���������	�
��	� 	���������#��3�

�����	���
������	�����������#��"��������������
�����
�������"������H���������
���	
����������	���������I�����������������	�����	������������"���������2���
�
:GJK��	����	�������
����
��
���������������
�	�����	
������������L��
E�����"�����������������	������#����:�	����	��:�
����������	�M#�����G	����"������N��
��������#�������"���������	����������	����������#��3�

����������	����������������������O<=>=�?=@@&%+�P�>&/Q'�R.(+(=@1���#��3�

����:�#�	���S�����
�����	������:�
���������
�����#��3�

������
��������������3�

���������
������������
	���
����������	 ��	
����������	���������
������T���������#�	���	����
��<=>=�?=@@&%+�>&/Q'�?=@@&%+=B1���#��3�

����#�	���3�

���������M3�

�����N�����	�����:�	����	��:�
������������������������
����#��3�

����	����
���������
	�����������#��3�

��������������	 ��	
�����������	���������
�������T���������#�	���	����
�����
�������#��3�

������	������>&%U@(%/*�AVW%(&@%,�?B(+&B(/1���#��3�

�������������	���������:��
�������������������	
�����
��������:��	������	��	
��FG�
����� �	
����

�����
��X��������#�3�

���������	
��
����� �����������������

�����
�
�������	�������������#��3�

����	����������
��	���	���������������
	�	��	���������
���������
������
����������	
�������#��3�

���������������������������Y�
�������	���
����� �����������������

�����
�3���������������������	
���	�
�	�
��	��������
�������	
�FG�
����� ������������	
���

�����
������
�������������
����	
�	���	
��	����������
��
�����	���������#�3�

���������

�������	
�����������
����� ������������	
����

�����
�
Z[\]�̂]]_̀abc

144

Section 6, Item G.



����������	
�������
����
����������������������������������������������������� �� �!!�"��������#�������������$��%����&#��'���(����#��)��������#*�+����������#����,����(�������������������������#����'����������������������(��������!�����#���-.�����,�(�����#�������(��#��+����������#��������������������������� �!!���/���((����(�����#�������(��#���#��0��������+���*�1(���������%���!!�,�!!�,!����%�����(��������������������� �!!�������������,��,�!!���(��������������(�������%��������!��#�����%�������������������������������!���%��������������*�2����#��"��"������(��#���3��������4
����
�567��
�8�������)9�������#!���#��'���(����#��$��%��������������������*	7:
���;�+��&����������!�����<��,=�������(�������'�>���0����������!!��'�����#��""!���,!��!���!����������,�!��"#�������,���<�9�!����'���(������������%���?�"����!���,���"��)9��'>*�@����(���������<������������!���!!��'>� ��!����#��������#��""!���,!��;�+��&�������������������!���!!��'�"!��� ��#���������)����,���������������!!���"��<�*�*��!���!���������,�!�>*�1������������������������������!���!!�����!���!���� ��!������������#��'������#��&��������<��,=�������(�������'�>*�3!!���#�����!!�� �!!�,�,�!!���,���������#������������'����!��������������������(���#�����#���""!���,!��;�+�&���������!!��'�"!��*	7:
���AB�:�
�:��$��������������������,=��������#��'�� ��#����������*�C�������%��#����'#�������%���������������"���������������������(�����#��1�����!�+���������"����#����<D.>�����E�"����� �������������*�F�����'������!����#��'�����������'�!�������G��������������/��������������������#���"�����#���'#��#��'��*�+#��"�������'"��%�����������������=���������#�!!������""!���(��#��H�'����!�$�""!������<����,�!� >�������������((������"�������(����������=�����������������������*	
����7I�BJJI
�
�:��1(���������"���#����'�;�+��&�������(�������������(�K���#3���������#��H�'����!�$�""!���������#��"�L??   *'���*���?���"���?!�'�!?��'����!0��""!�������#�!!��""!��������*M�
��
��N�
����
�����O��:6���
���7���7�I7P�I�:N�7���Q�
��R�M�
��
��N�
����
���������/�� !��'��<->��#�������#�%�������������������������S--�$��%����3%��!�,�!����F�!����� #��#�����%��!�,!����#��"�L??   *'���*���?���"���?!�'�!?S--0���%���0�%��!�,�!���0"�!���������<T>��#���#��S--����!��'����%���� ���((���<U;�+��&�������S--�V��!��'W>���((����(����S--���!��'����%�����((�����,������������!���!�"#�����������������#�� ����������,������#��S--�$��%����3%��!�,�!����F�!��������!����'��#���;�+��&�������S--�V��!��'� �!!����(���������(�����!�����!�������!�"� ������,����,����������������������������(����#��'��������� ������������ ��/����!���!��������� ��/�,!��/������������������������"!��(���*�3!����;�+��&�������S--�V��!��'� �!!�����(���������(� �#�%��������%������#��$��%�����(������������������!����'���������0"������*X6N���7I�Y��7:����Z�R���7:��������������"��%��������#��"#�����!�!���������(���#���%��������������/����������%����!!������� �� �!!���������%��������%��������! ��#�%�������%����#�����(��������*�1(�������!������������%��������������"���"�!�
[\]̂�_̂^̀abcd

145

Section 6, Item G.



���������	�
�������������	�������������������������������������������������	����������������������������������������������������������������������������������
�	�������	������������������������� !"#$%"&�����������������������������������'��������������������������������	���	�����	����������������(���	�	�����������������������)�	�����*+,,-+%.�/01234+5$206�7�������������������(�����	�������������������������������������	�����������������������	��	���������� "4"38"0%9�!$:;+5%<%"05"3�&����������������������	���������������	������������	�=>>������������������?�@��A�������=>>����������B�������������	��������������������	���	������C����������	��������������������������������(�����	�������������(�����������������������������	��������������������������(�����	��������	�����������������	��	����������������������������(�����	�������������������������	�������������������������������������������������������������������@����	���������	�������������������������������������������������	����	�������?�@��A����������D�	������������	��������������������E��������)�����������	�	������	������������	����������	��������	������F4"38"0%9�G"3#$%":�HI5:$!"�J235<�K4"3$%+6�L�������	����	��������?�@��A�����������������M�	�����	�����������������E��������)�����������	�����	������������	���������	��������	������N"8I,+5239�N"%2#"39�O"":6�D'��������	���	������������������������������������	������������	�������	��	�����	�����������������������������������������	������	�������������������������P������)������������������������������	�������������������C��	����������������������������������������	������������������������Q�	�����		�������	�����������������	���������������@�������������������'��	����	���	�C��	���	���������������������	������R��������	������	����	���������	�������	�	�����	���������������������N"+:20+-,"�S:"6TS0,$4$5"!U�S:+8"6�V�����(�������������W�X�Y�����	���	������������������� ��������&������������������	������	���	���	�������	��	�����������������	�����	����)�	�������������	����������	���������	���	����������������������	���������Z�����X�Y��������������������	� ��������&���������	�����������	���	����������'��	�����������������	�����	������������������������'�	��	����	��������������������������������������������������������������	(X���� [)@M&Y��P����������	������������X�����������	�\	��	��	��������E�������)��������Y�������������[)@M�����������������������	��������	���	�����������	������	��'��������������	���	�������������	����������������	��������X�Y���	�����������	����	������	����	�[)@M���������������'�������������������	���������������]�̂__����������	���������������������������������	������	�������	�̀�����	����	�����������	�X��Y���	�������������	������	�������������
abcd�eddfghij

146

Section 6, Item G.



��������������	
������	�
	����������������	
����������������	��
�����	
������
���������������� �!�"��
�#���	�$�������	���������������	���%�����������������	�����%�����	���&��������'����
������	�������&��(����#�
������������������%��
�#�������	�����
������)��������%����������%����	��������#�����������	��&����*+,�-��. �/.0�100� �2./3�4520,6 �!4,567/���/.0�8/.6�33/ �2.!�9	����$�	%������������������������&	�������	%������(���
������������������:��������	����&��������;��������������(���
������������	����	�����
����������<����
����	����#�)��������#	����������������9	��
�#������������(���
����	����#	������������	���#������=�����#��	��&#��������	������������>?��	�����&�������
�����������@���A�	�������&���&���
	��������>?��	����&�	
�@�������
����	���#	���������%��������	������	�����	
	��������BC��#���&�������
�����������@���������#���>DE�����	�$����&���&	��������������	����F������(���
���������������"��%�����	������������&�������������(���
����������������	�����G��������(���
����
������������$����%�	����	�����	�����������$�������H������	���	���������	�$����&����#	��
������#�����	�����	����������
�����(���
����	��
��������	
�	������	�����$������I7�-��. !�<����(���
��������	��J@K�	�������������	�����������	����%�����	���L������#�	&��(���
�����	�	���	����	������	������	����%�����	���������������#��	#	����������������	&�������������
���#	��%����������������$�	&��	���	���
��������������M/.,N/6 ,5�5O��P/55/. Q!"���������#	����#���������������%��������������#
���&�������R��%������#�&	���(���
����#	�����������&�	
�����"��
�#�����	���������	����������#	�����	����������������
�����(���
����	���(���
��������������������
���&�������R��%������#�*+,�-��. �S�. /3!�H&�#	����������������#��(���
����&�	
�����%�����������������������������#�������	������@����	�����������%����)����������������
��	&�����(���
����������������
����������������������=TT%%%��	�	��	
T�	
���#T�����T�(���
����������������
��������������#���	��	������#���&�������UV8*�8W2.�!�H&�#	�����������������������������	���	�����XH;Y�;Z	����&	�
���#��;	��������	�����������������������[XH;Y�;Z	���)�������\����������
��	&����XH;Y�;Z	���)�������������
����������������������=TT%%%��	�	��	
T�	
���#T�����T��	��������������
������������#���	��	������#���&�������]�̂��_,��.����82. �.,� Q!�H&�#	�����������������������������	���	�����̀���K��������;	�������#�����������������
��	&��������%	�$���������������
����
abcd�eddfghij

147

Section 6, Item G.



�������������	��
�����������������
���������������������������������������	�����������
������������������������ !�"#$%&'()*�+����,�����
,��	������-.�/01������������	������������	��-.�/01�
,��	����������������������������	��
�����������������
���������������
,��	�������������������	�����������
��������������������2345$6'7'(8*�+����,�����
,��	������+������9�������������:��������������;��������������	��<������-����������=����,��,�������,������������������,���������;�=������	��	��	������������
�������������,�����	�����,��������,�	����:�������������	������������
����>��
�������������,���������
����������������������?�;��=����������,�����	������������,����
����������������,����������������,�	���
�������������	��	����������������,��@���������������?����;���=��������������,���������
��������������A�,����������
��-�����������+����;�	����������+������9���=�������	����
���������:����������	�����������������
,�
��������B�����������������,�����	�����������������	��
����������������,�������������������������	��+������9������������C)$6�D�C)$6E3'8E53*C)$6*�1�����	�������������	��������	���������������	��F��������-���������	��+������F���������������	��G���������.�������������������,�������	���,��������
���:������	��H����������,����������	��:������������	������	������������	��G���������.����0������	��+�������F������	��-��������������,�����������������������	�������
���������	��
���������������,
��������B��,�����IJ�����	�����������	������������������

������������;���	����KL�������F���M=�N'$OP�C)$6E3'8E53*�+����,������������	��0�������������	��-��������
,��	����	���,��������������������;�B��
�������,����������������	=����������������������	�0�������������	��-��������
,��	�����	���,������,�������,�������	����,���������������
�����������������

��������-�������9	�������	��,�	��	����������	�F����C)%&3E%'O�'3Q�R$S'3ET'8E53'O�U)'(#$)(*�V�F��	�����
�������������,������������������,����

��
������
�����������,���������������������������:��������������V�F�9���������A�,�����:����,����������,���	��������,�����������������	��V�F��9������
��������	��KW���,���L���,����M������������V�F�>��F�,���X�W�������9������Y5C5�7538'%8�7)38)$���������,��������������������������������	��������������������������	V�F��9�����������
������������,�����������,���������Z,�,������������������������������������
�����������,����Y5C5�7#(856)$�N3S'S)6)38���������,������������������������������������������	�������������������������	�V�F��9�����������
���������	���������������������,���,��
[\]̂�_̂^̀abcd

148

Section 6, Item G.



�������������	�
���
����
����	
���	
�����������	
���������	
�������������������������� �� ����!�"��#$%�
��&���'�������#��	�"�
"���"��!��" ���(	"	
"	�����)	���*(	��	����"	�
�&+�	��� �,��"�"��"��-�.��#$�.������)�	&��&���"""��/00(((���"�����0�����
10&���&0�	%"�����2���34���567�7�4�6��8�9�::3��;3<3���=���	������"��>�(��%�����>�?�!"(���%��%�%?��)	����
&	
������"��� ����"��
�����������)	���"�"�����	
�������
"	�&��&� �%������� ����"��
��$.���
�����
"�"��&��
��	�����	�
���"���&�����
"��� ����"����� "���>����	&����)	���>��
��
�"(��@	
!���"� �" ���&���"����
1(����(	"�	
"��
�"����������� ���1�� ����	���"��"��-�.�#��	�"?��)	����
�������A�����# "��	B���C�������D�
� ���
"�?��"����	�>������"�!��"�	
�"�E�����;3<3���=���23�:3������
��&���	
�	)	� �&���
��� ����"�����
	B�"	�
��"����

��"�"�� �"�������
�����)	���&	)������"�����	�"�
��� �	
��"(�%(�1������
%���	
�>	
"����"�����">��
���� ����
��@�1��������
"��&�"������&)��"��
	��&�	�� ���;3<3���=���F�43���9�::3����
��&���	
�	)	� �&���
������
	B�"	�
��"����

��"�"�� �"������ �	
��"(�%(�1������
%���	
�>�����"��������>���
"��&>��	��
��"	��>���"�
�������"������&)��"��
	��&�	�� �������"�&1�(	"���& "	�
��"�	&�����!�����)��	�"1��!�����"��
"��	
�& �	
��� &"	%���
"���&&���
"���>��&�����@���
��$.������"��
"����� ��1� ���"�� 
�""�
����� ����"�!��" ����
� ��"���
�� 
�����*GHH+����� "�������"��
 ������!�A�����# "��	B���C��������D�
� ���
"�?��"����"�!��"�	
�"��E�����#
1�A�����# "��	B���C������1���������
1��!�"������ "�����"��
1�"	���;3<3���=���I3�=J��9�::3���	���
����%�
�"��-�.�#��	�"�K���"��? ����"����)	��"�"��&&�(�����
"��"������"�&1�)	�(>��
��	
����"�	
���������
"��&>���&��"����	&���)	����"�� ����(������(����������&	��"	�
�;3<3���=���9��L=M��N��O��
��&���	
�	)	� �&���
������
	B�"	�
��"����
�������)	�����@���"	)	"	��>�	
�& �	
��	
�	��
"�>�����&���>���
���>���&�����>�@
�(&�������"	�&���
����
P� ��"	�
�	"���>�!���"��� ��������!�� ����"	
��	
"��
�&��
����"��
�&"��
�&��1����)	����F��M���	����(��%����������"��� ����"��
��� �"�������������)	��>�(	��	�� �����1�&����@����!���	�
�&��"�����)	�������"��� ����"�)	��"��	
"��
�">�(	"� "�"��
����!�����%	
�"�&&�����!"(�����C�	
��K��� �>�� ����"��
�����)	������!���	�
�&����
����� 
	��"�(	"��
�% �����"�� ���
�	
"��
�"���"�(	
��(�	
�������"���	��
�����
������	��$.�	�� ���$!��	)�
�����	��	�
��1�"���
�% ���>�"��� ����"����!���	�
�&���
�������>�)	�(>����"�@���
"��&��!�"���
�% ���Q������ "���"��"�@��
�������1�� ����"���"	�
�����"��"��	
�"���
�% �����
�"�� ����!���!"(�����
�������"	
���1�"������&	��"	�
��
RSTU�VUUWXYZ[

149

Section 6, Item G.



���������	
������������������������������������������������������������ ���!!������!!����������� ����������"#����$������!�����������!%�������������������&'(�)����������*!��+*���%������� ������������!���,�������-
.��-�/�������������������������������!�0��������������$��������%��0����������������������$��� ������������ %���!������������,�# ��'����������!�����������������!1��� ����������������������������� �����������!��������������!�����������+��������������$������!��� ��������!1����������������������!����������,�������-
.��2�
3�������������������������������!�$��������%��0�������������������������!�0������������������0�,��������4���5�����!!��������0������������������������0���� �� ����������������!����,������6��
�7�8��$������5�#�)������������'������������92�:�������.������������������������������(�������(�����0�����(�������+���0�������������%� �!����+����$������!�������������������!������;�����!�����������������,<������������������������ ������ �����������!!�����$������������������������(������!(���0������(�� ��������������!�$���������������!������ ���!�������������!%,'���������=������������������������������0�����������$$������ �!����+����������� � ����+���0�$�������!�%�� � ���!��������+>���$��������!+����+��������1����(�������(��������0(���������,2�:�������.����	
���633?@/����������������5�#������!���'������� ����!!��� �!����+����$������!�����������!%����(��������������������������!(���!�������!�������,2�:�������.��ABC�DB�EFBD��633?@/����������������5�#������!���'������� � ��������!�0��������������� �������!������������������!1��� ���������������������������� �����������!��������������!�����������+���������������$������!��� �������!1����������������������!����������,6G�H�B7�D���I	�7BJK�L���������$�� ��)"�����!���'�����5��������������$��������� �� ���������8� � ���������!9������M�������� ��5�#��)"�#��������!��!���� ����NOO���,0���,���O������%O!�0�!O�������,�
DB3�D��������!�������(��������������!�%(�������P���������������0��������!����� ����!!����"#��������������0��������������������������%��$��������8�,0,(�&'(�)�����(Q�����(�����R��&'9,��"�������0�����������!��"#����$������!��������%�������������� � ���������>���(��������������������0���������������!��!���������0��%�����(������������!������(�����������������������������������������,G3�/7
7S�T�6�������B/BU�C�/7
VWXY�ZYY[\]̂_

150

Section 6, Item G.



������������	
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ����!"��#��$������%%��������������������������������������%��������������������������&���%��������'������������������������(����%����������������������������%���������������������������������"��#���������������������&��������������!���������)*+�
,�*�-	
./��-	.
01
�)**01
�23���������--145����(�������������������������������������������������������������&�������������������'�������������������6������������������������������(����%���������������������������!���������)*+�
,�*�7�/�	8�,�9:�)��;�
�	,��	9
�)**01
�23���������7<)45���������(������������������=�����%�������������%�������>����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������!�"��#��?@ ��%%�������������������������������=������������������(�������������������������������������A#B�����6�����������������������������!���������C��D������������������������������������������(���������������(����������������������������������������������������������������������������%���������������������������(���!����������:�D	�D��
*����������<�D	/	����������������������%����������������������������'������������������������������%����������������������������(���!E�
�:�/�������(&(������������������������������(���FG����%�����������������������������������������������������������%���������������������������������FG���6������������������%���������%�����������%�����!�:9��������������������������������������������������F�������&���(�����������%�������������F���������������������������������������������������������(���!�H�����������������������������������������������������������>���6�����'�������������������������6������������������%����������������F�������&���(����������!I9C97J�E����(�����������������������������(�����&(������������������6�����������������������������������K�����������������������L�(&(���M�������%�������F�������&����������?������#N����������������(����������!�G������������������(�����������O�(��������������������%������(��������������F������������������!�P�G�?�#N����������Q���������������%���������������6����'���������������!� �����������������������(���������������������&��&����������������������!
RSTU�VUUWXYZ[

151

Section 6, Item G.



������������	

����������������������������������� ����������
��� 	�����������
��� ������� �������� ��� ������!������� �������"�
���
#$%&�'&&()*+,

152

Section 6, Item G.



153

Section 6, Item G.



154

Section 6, Item G.



1  

ORDER FORM AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF MILTON AND FULTON 
COMMUNICATIONS, INC. 

 

ADDENDUM NO. 1 
 

This Addendum supplements the Services Agreement (the “Agreement”) between GoTo 
Communications, INC., DBA ”GoTo”, a Delaware corporation with principal office located at 
333 Summer Street, Boston, MA 02210 (“Service Provider”) and the CITY OF MILTON, a 
political subdivision of the State of Georgia (“Customer”), of even date herewith, to add the 
following provisions thereto: 

 
1. Conflicting Provisions. 

 
This Addendum is attached to and is a part of the Agreement described above. The provisions 

of this Addendum control over any contrary provisions found in the Agreement. No provision of 
the Agreement shall operate to override the provisions of this Addendum. 

 
2. Statutory Auto-Termination and Renewal. 

 
The term of this Agreement shall commence as of the date both Parties have last signed both 

the Agreement and this Addendum (“Effective Date”), and the Agreement shall terminate two (2) 
years following the Effective Date (“Term”) (provided that certain obligations will survive 
termination/expiration of this Agreement). If the Term of this Agreement is longer than one year, the 
Parties agree that this Agreement, as required by O.C.G.A. § 36-60-13, shall terminate absolutely 
and without further obligation on the part of the Customer on December 31st of each year of the Term, 
and further, that this Agreement shall automatically renew on January 1st of each subsequent year 
absent the Customer’s provision of written notice of non-renewal to Service Provider at least ninety 
(90) days prior to the end of the then year. Title to any supplies, materials, equipment, or other 
personal property shall remain in Service Provider until fully paid for by the Customer. 

 
3. Sovereign Immunity; Indemnification.  

 
Nothing contained in the Agreement shall be construed to be a waiver of Customer’s 

sovereign immunity or any individual’s qualified, good faith or official immunities. Any provision 
of the Agreement requiring the Customer to indemnify the Service Provider is only valid to the 
extent allowed by Georgia law. The parties hereto agree and acknowledge that the Customer is 
under no obligation to procure additional insurance related to the Agreement, including this 
Addendum. 

 
4. Termination  

 
Customer may terminate this Agreement for convenience at any time upon providing written 

notice thereof at least thirty (30) days in advance of the termination date provided Customer shall 
not be entitled to receive any refund and any fees Customer may have paid to the Service 
Provider are nonrefundable.

DocuSign Envelope ID: CA8ACCC7-AC2E-48B6-83BC-381C13373200

155

Section 6, Item G.



2  

 
 

5. Nondiscrimination. 
 

In accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d, section 
303 of the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 6102, section 202 of the 
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C. § 12132, and all other provisions of Federal 
law, Service Provider agrees that, during performance of this Agreement, Service Provider, for 
itself, its assignees and successors in interest, will not discriminate against any employee or 
applicant for employment, any subcontractor, or any supplier because of race, color, creed, national 
origin, gender, age or disability. In addition, Service Provider agrees to comply with all applicable 
implementing regulations and shall include the provisions of this Section in every subcontract for 
services contemplated under this Agreement. 

 
6. Confidentiality. 

 
Service Provider acknowledges that Customer’s disclosure of documentation is governed 

by Georgia’s Open Records Act, and Service Provider further acknowledges that if Service 
Provider submits records containing trade secret information, and if Service Provider wishes to 
keep such records confidential, Service Provider must submit and attach to such records an 
affidavit affirmatively declaring that specific information in the records constitutes trade secrets 
pursuant to Article 27 of Chapter 1 of Title 10, and the Parties shall follow the requirements of 
O.C.G.A. § 50-18-72(a)(34) related thereto. 
 

7. Authority to Contract.  
 

The individual executing the Agreement on behalf of each party covenants and declares that 
he/she has obtained all necessary approvals of the necessary board of directors, stockholders, board of 
commissioners, general partners, limited partners or similar authorities to simultaneously execute and 
bind the party to the terms of the Agreement. 
 

8. Ethics Code; Conflict of Interest.  
 

Service Provider agrees that it shall not engage in any activity or conduct that would result in 
a violation of this code of ethics described herein this section or any other relevant and applicable 
law or regulation. Service Provider certifies that to the best of its knowledge no circumstances exist 
which will cause a conflict of interest in performing the services required by this Agreement. Service 
Provider and the Customer acknowledge that it is prohibited for any person to offer, give, or agree to 
give any City employee or official, or for any City employee or official to solicit, demand, accept, or 
agree to accept from another person, a gratuity of more than nominal value or rebate or an offer of 
employment in connection with any decision, approval, disapproval, recommendation, or preparation of 
any part of a program requirement or a purchase request, influencing the content of any specification or 
procurement standard, rendering of advice, investigation, auditing, or in any other advisory capacity in 
any proceeding or application, request for ruling, determination, claim or controversy, or other particular 
matter, pertaining to any program requirement or a contract or subcontract, or to any solicitation or 
proposal therefor. The Service Provider and the Customer further acknowledge that it is prohibited for 
any payment, gratuity, or offer of employment to be made by or on behalf of a sub-consultant under a 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CA8ACCC7-AC2E-48B6-83BC-381C13373200

156

Section 6, Item G.



3  

contract to the prime Service Provider or higher tier sub-consultant, or any person associated therewith, 
as an inducement for the award of a subcontract or order. 

 
 

9. Governing Law. 
 

This Agreement is governed by the laws of the State of Georgia to the extent that such laws 
apply to the Customer as a political subdivision of the State of Georgia and as a party to this 
Contract. 

 
10.  Employment of Unauthorized Aliens Prohibited – E-Verify Affidavit. 

 
Pursuant to O.C.G.A. § 13-10-91, Customer shall not enter into a contract for the physical 

performance of services unless Service Provider shall provide evidence on the  forms attached hereto 
as Addendum Exhibits “A” and “B” (affidavits regarding compliance with the E-Verify program to 
be sworn under oath under criminal penalty of false swearing pursuant to O.C.G.A. § 16-10-71), that 
it and its subcontractors have registered with, are authorized to use and use the federal work 
authorization program commonly known as E-Verify, or any subsequent replacement program, in 
accordance with the applicable provisions and deadlines established in O.C.G.A. § 13-10-91, and 
that they will continue to use the federal work authorization program throughout the contract period.  
Service Provider hereby verifies that it has, prior to executing this Agreement, executed a notarized 
affidavit, the form of which is provided in Addendum Exhibit “A”, and submitted such affidavit to 
Customer.  Further, Service Provider hereby agrees to comply with the requirements of the federal 
Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 (IRCA), P.L. 99-603, O.C.G.A. § 13-10-91 and 
Georgia Department of Labor Rule 300-10-1-.02.   

In the event Service Provider employs or contracts with any subcontractor(s) to perform 
services for Customer, Service Provider agrees to secure from such subcontractor(s) attestation of 
the subcontractor’s compliance with O.C.G.A. § 13-10-91 and Rule 300-10-1-.02 by the 
subcontractor’s execution of the subcontractor affidavit, the form of which is attached hereto as 
Addendum Exhibit “B”, which subcontractor affidavit shall become part of the 
contractor/subcontractor agreement. Service Provider agrees that the employee-number category 
designated below is applicable to it:   

 
___x_ 500 or more employees 
____ 100 or more employees 
____ Fewer than 100 employees 
 
Service Provider hereby agrees that, in the event Service Provider employs or contracts with 

any subcontractor(s) in connection with the Agreement and where the subcontractor is required to 
provide an affidavit pursuant to O.C.G.A. § 13-10-91, Service Provider will secure from the 
subcontractor(s) such subcontractor(s’) indication of the above employee-number category that is 
applicable to the subcontractor. If Service Provider does not employ or contract with any 
subcontractor(s) to perform services for Customer, the provisions of this section related to 
subcontractors shall not apply. The above requirements shall be in addition to the requirements of 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CA8ACCC7-AC2E-48B6-83BC-381C13373200

157

Section 6, Item G.



4  

state and federal law and shall be construed to be in conformity with those laws. 
 

 
[remainder of this page intentionally left blank] 

[signature page follows] 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CA8ACCC7-AC2E-48B6-83BC-381C13373200

158

Section 6, Item G.



5  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF Customer and Service Provider have executed this 
Agreement, effective as of the Effective Date first above written. 

 
 

SERVICE PROVIDER:  
 
GOTO COMMUNICATIONS, INC. 

 
 

By:   
         

 
 
 
 

ATTEST: 

[CORPORATE SEAL] 

 

By:___________________________ 
Print Name:____________________ 
Title: _________________________ 
 

CITY OF MILTON, GEORGIA 
 
 
 
 

By: Peyton Jamison, Mayor 
 

[CITY SEAL] 
Attest: 
 
 
Signature:     
Print Name:    
Title: City Clerk 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
City Attorney                         Date 

 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CA8ACCC7-AC2E-48B6-83BC-381C13373200

Bergen, Claire

July 28, 2023

Deputy General Counsel

8/10/2023

159

Section 6, Item G.



160

Section 6, Item G.



      STAFF MEMO: 
                                                                                              FINANCIAL 

 

 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
FROM: Robert Buscemi, Community Development Director 
DATE: Submitted on August 10, 2023 for the August 21, 2023, Regular City Council 

Meeting 
AGENDA ITEM: Approval of Professional Service Agreement between the City of Milton 

and William F. Ross dba Ross+ Associates for the Preparation of the Impact 
Fee Program Amendment 

  
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

The City has engaged with Ross+ Associates for the preparation of a thorough update and 
amendment to the City’s Impact Fee Program which will include preparation of the following 
components: (1) Methodology Report, (2) amended Capital Improvement Element (CIE), 
(3) revised schedule of impact fees, and (4) review of the Impact Fee Ordinance to assure 
conformance to current State law.   
 
Background:  The City adopted its first Impact Fee Program in 2015 and since then, many of 
the capital projects outlined in its CIE have already been accomplished. With Milton 
projecting to continue its previous rate of growth over the coming years, the City will need 
to update and amend the existing Methodology Report to reflect these forecasts for 
population, housing units, and employment.  This aids in accurately calculating the impact 
fee structure and ensures that new development pays its fair share of the costs of public 
facilities. Further, the report also determines the City’s investment in parks and recreation 
facilities, fire protection services, law enforcement, and road projects and identifies any 
needs for new facilities.  This would include a compilation of the capital facilities where 
impact fee revenue can be spent, and the impact fee costs for specific public facilities.  
Funding source for this project will come from the impact fee administration account. 
 
PROCUREMENT SUMMARY 

 Purchasing method used:   Professional Services 
Account Number: 350-7410-521200000 

 Requisition Total:   $48,700.00 
  
REVIEW & APPROVALS 
 
 Financial Review:  Karen Ellis, Finance Director – August 14, 2023 
 Legal Review:   Jennifer McCall, Jarrard & Davis, LLP – August 10, 2023 
 Concurrent Review:  Steven Krokoff, City Manager 

Attachment(s):   Professional Services Agreement 

161

Section 6, Item H.



��

�����������	
����������
������	����������������������
���������� �����
������	������ !"� #!�"#$"%"!��#$&�$'��(((((�! )�&*�(((((((((((((+�,-(((�.$'"�/0**"1$�2"�3 $"45+��6)� #!�6"$7""#�$'"���8���������	9�������
+� ��:#�1�; <�1&%;&% $�&#�&*�$'"�=$ $"�&*�>"&%?� +� 1$�#?�6)� #!�$'%&:?'��$��?&2"%#�#?� :$'&%�$)+�$'"�@ )&%� #!�A�$)�A&:#1�<�.'"%"�# *$"%�%"*"%%"!�$&� ��$'"�/A�$)45+� #!�BCDDC����E���FF�G�HIH����FFJ�FF��C���FK+� �>"&%?� �=&<"�L%&;%�"$&%�'�;+�.'"%"�#� *$"%�%"*"%%"!�$&� ��$'"�MA&#�:<$ #$M5+�1&<<"1$�2"<)�%"*"%%"!�$&�'"%"�#� ��$'"�ML %$�"�NM�� B��	������O�� B����
�9�A�$)�!"��%"��$&�%"$ �#�A&#�:<$ #$�$&�;%&2�!"�1"%$ �#��"%2�1"���#�$'"�1&�;<"$�&#�&*� �L%&P"1$�.!"*�#"!�6"<&75Q� #!�� B����
�9�A�$)�*�#!��$' $��;"1� <�R"!�S#&7<"!?"+��S�<<�+� #!�$% �#�#?� %"�#"1"�� %)�$&�;"%*&%��$'"�T&%S�.!"*�#"!�6"<&75�1&#$"�;< $"!�:#!"%�$'���U?%""�"#$Q� #!�� B����
�9�A&#�:<$ #$�' ��%";%"�"#$"!�$' $��$����V: <�*�"!�6)�$% �#�#?� #!�"W;"%�"#1"�$&�;"%*&%��$'"�T&%SQ� #!�� B����
�+�A&#�:<$ #$�!"��%"��$&�;"%*&%��$'"�T&%S� ���"$�*&%$'��#�$'���U?%""�"#$�:#!"%�$'"�$"%��� #!�1&#!�$�&#��;%&2�!"!��#�$'���U?%""�"#$Q� #!�� B����
�9�$'"�;:6<�1��#$"%"�$�7�<<�6"��"%2"!�6)�$'���U?%""�"#$Q� #!��B����
�+�A&#�:<$ #$�' ��* ��<� %�R"!��$�"<*�7�$'�$'"�# $:%"� #!�"W$"#$�&*�$'"�U?%""�"#$+�$'"�L%&P"1$+� #!�$'"�T&%S+� #!�7�$'� <<�<&1 <�1&#!�$�&#�� #!�*"!"% <+��$ $"� #!�<&1 <�< 7�+�&%!�# #1"�+�%:<"�� #!�%"?:< $�&#��$' $�� )��#� #)�� ##"%� **"1$�1&�$+�;%&?%"���&%�;"%*&%� #1"�&*�T&%SN�� 	�B9����������9�*&%� #!��#�1&#��!"% $�&#�&*�$'"��:$: <�;%&���"�+�$'"�;:6<�1�;:%;&�"�+� #!�$'"� 1S#&7<"!?"�"#$�� #!� ?%""�"#$��1&#$ �#"!�'"%"�#+� #!�&$'"%�?&&!� #!� !"V: $"�1&#��!"% $�&#+�$'"��:**�1�"#1)�&*�7'�1'����'"%"6)� 1S#&7<"!?"!+�$'"�L %$�"��!&��:$: <<)� ?%""� ��*&<<&7�X��
162

Section 6, Item H.



��

��� �������	���
�����������
������������� ��� �������������������������� �!""�#$� % ��$&���% �'�$&�  %$�!"�(��)%#� �����������!�*��!#��$&�����+,�%-%� ������$.�/�%#��!���%�#$�0$�!��*�����%��-1���&����#�.�%�#"2*%��3�� �45676��8�9�:�;+(+;<+=��45676��8>9�:�?$� 2"�!���'�$0$ !"��45676��8�9�:�;+(+;<+=��45676��8�9�:�?$���!#�$���&&%*!)%���45676��8�9�:�(2-#$���!#�$���&&%*!)%���45676��@	9�:�A�1�'�� $���"��>�� ��BC�D����ED�6F�6B��������G'�$H�#�I�!��%  2��%����% �����������% ������!""1�*� #�%-�*�! 3�0�$)%*��0�$&�  %$�!"� ��)%#� ���J2%��*��$�#$�0"����20*!���$&�����$�%�%�!"�K�0!#��L���M���$*$"$�1�;�0$���$&�NOPQ�/%���20R�$R*!���&���#!"#2"!�%$� .�!�*�!���*�*�?!0%�!"�K�0�$)����� �+"�����.�! �/�""�! �����0��0!�!�%$��$&�!���)% �*�%�0!#��&��� #��*2"��&$������?%�1�����%���!""�"��!"�!�*�!*�%�% ��!�%)����J2%������ S���� ���� �5��TB�U�������V$�W��$�-��#$�0"���*�2�*�����% �����������X����GV$�WIY�%�#"2*� .�-2�� �!""��$��-��"%�%��*��$.�����/$�W�*� #�%-�*�%������(#$0��$&�V$�W�0�$)%*�*�%���45676��8�9.�!��!#��*������$�!�*�%�#$�0$�!��*�����%��-1���&����#�S��Z�"�  �$����/% �� �!��*�%���45676��8�9.�����V$�W�%�#"2*� �!""��!���%!".�"!-$�.�%� 2�!�#�.��$$" .��J2%0����.��!#�%���1.�/!���.���!�.�2�%"%�%� .���!� 0$��!�%$�.�&!#%"%�%� .� ��)%#� �!�*�!�1�$������% #�""!��$2 �%��� �!�*�/$�W���#�  !�1��$�#$�0"��������V$�WS��($���*��!%" ���#�  !�1�&$��0�$0����,�#2�%$��!�*�#$�0"��%$��$&�����V$�W��!1��$��-�� 0�#%&%#!""1�*� #�%-�*�%������(#$0��$&�V$�W.�-2�����1�!���!���J2%�������$&�����V$�W�%&����1�!���!�2 2!"�!�*�#2 �$�!�1�#$�0$�����$&�����#$����0"!��*� ��)%#� �$��!���$����/% ����#�  !�1�&$��0�$0���#$�0"��%$��$&�����V$�WS���� ��� �D5�[\]�̂��B�F]��6B���_��̂�_�[������B̀�������������?$� 2"�!���2�*�� �!�* ���!���%���% �$&������  ��#��$&���% �����������!�*�/!��!�� �!�*���0�� ��� ���!��%��/%""�0��&$�������V$�W�%��!�0�$�0��!�*��%��"1��!����.�/�%#�� �!""��$��%�0$ ��*�"!1 �$������0�$���  �$&�����V$�WS�����������$&���% �����������XG����IY� �!""�#$����#��! �$&�����+&&�#�%)��=!��.��������������� �!""�����%�!���20$��#$�0"��%$��$&�!�*�0!1�����&$��!""�V$�W���X0�$)%*�*���!��#���!%��$-"%�!�%$� �/%""� 2�)%)������%�!�%$�a�,0%�!�%$��$&���% ����������Y�$��b2"1�cP.�NONdS�K&����������$&���% �����������% �"$�������!��$���1�!�.�����'!��%� �!�������!����% ����������.�! ���J2%��*�-1�eS?SfS�S�g�chRhORPc.� �!""�����%�!���!- $"2��"1�!�*�/%��$2��&2������$-"%�!�%$��$������0!���$&�?%�1�$��(�0���-���cO��!#��&% #!"�1�!��$&���������.�!�*�&2�����.���!����% ����������� �!""�!2�$�!�%#!""1�����/�$��e#�$-���P�$&��!#�� 2- �J2����&% #!"�1�!��2��%"�#$�#"2 %$��$&���������.��!- ����?%�1i �0�$)% %$��$&�/�%������$�%#��$&��$�R����/!"��$�?$� 2"�!���!��"�! ��&%)��XQY�*!1 �0�%$���$�������*�$&����������#2������&% #!"�1�!�S���%�"���$�!�1� 200"%� .��!���%!" .��J2%0����.�$��$�����0�� $�!"�0�$0���1� �!""����!%��%��?$� 2"�!���2��%"�&2""1�0!%*�&$��-1�?%�1S���� ���� T�
j��k�l������� �5_������[�����̀6��[�����G?�!����e�*��I���!� �!�/�%������$*%&%#!�%$��$&��������������.� %���*�-1���0�� ���!�%)� �$&�?%�1�!�*�?$� 2"�!���/%���!00�$0�%!���!2��$�%m!�%$�S�
163

Section 6, Item H.



��

���� �������	�
������������������������������������������������� ����� �����!��"����#��$��%��&���' ���������(����&� ��#���)���� �*����� ����*�������'��� ��%��&�����!��"+��())��'������ �������))�#��� ���$�������� �,����� ���� ���-������� ���.��'����#���� �')�� ��� ������+��/'������ ���-���������))��$���%��������� ������������� ��� �� �����������0'��&� ���%���&$� ����� �� ����&$)���� ���&�+��1%�����2���������  ���������� ������&� ��� ��������&��%���$��%��&� ��������� ����,��"�,���� �������� �#)����&�������������)������������' %�����#)���&$�������������&� ���#�������� �������)����������� *���������))������������������������&� ������� �#)�����&�*�� ���� �')�� �����))�$�������,����������� ����,��"+������ ������
�����34��5�����( ��,��"�����������������$���%������(����&� ��#������� ���-��������))�#���.��'����' �����))������$$)���#)���� ����� ���%������(����&� �+�6���)��&�%���������� �)���&$� ����� �����.�� ��� ��%���&�����))�#������� �7��*�' )������ ��� ���� ���,����� ���� ���-������')���.��'����� �#���)%��%������� ���� �')�� �+�� 8��� 94��	���:��	�;<=4��������
������>��������?� ����������'������������.��'��*�,����'��%'����������� ��%�����?���������������' ��)*�� �� '&#����%���� ���-���������)� ���������������)��%%��������� ���&������))���)�����������&���%������(����&� �����&������))��� �����������?�.�&'&��� ������2����*��������%������ �/����� �111@AB�#�)�,+�( ���'������ ���-������&������))���)���� ���������&���%������(����&� �*����� ����� ���-������%%���� ������$�����,���������?�.�&'&��� ������2�����@����&� ���B����� ��.������%�CDE*EEE*�&'���#���$$������#������)'��� ��%�����?������ ���������' ��)+��(&� �&� ������))� ������')��� �������� ���� �$������.����� ���� �$���� ���%���������� �)��� �������&�' �+�� FFF�� �
GH;IJ9KF
I�9I8�G;KL
8�
M�H9NG;IK��� 9�� H�:5���K�5�������������������$����� �')�� ��%�������!��"�$��%��&���� ��������� �'�����#���� �')�� ��'$� ������%������ �#����������������!��"�,������'�))��$��%��&���� �����������'�))��� �'������ �������� ���,��������(����&� �+����&$� ����� �%���!��"�$��%��&���� �*��%��$$)���#)�*����&#'���&� ��%���������� �'��������))�#��$��������� �')�� ��'$� �����O�������$��� ���$$����)��%�� ������*������ ��%������ ������)��������������$��%��&���� ��������� �'����*��)� ��,�����))��'$$���� �����'&� �����P'������#����������$������������ �����+�1 ����������))�#���'#&������� ���&� ��)��#����������������$����������&$)����+��( ��&������)��������� ��� ����������� �$����� ��$��%��&��*������&������)������ ����P'����������&$)�����'������������� �$����� �*�� ��)�"���������� ��%��&�����!��"�������#���� ������(����&� �����))�#���)���)����&&' ���������������QRSTUR�VWXUYRZ�XUR�[\V]UUR̂�� �����))�#���� �)�������'������ ���-���������������#���� �/����� �11��#���+���������))�$����� �')�� ��,���� ��������@_EB�������%�����$$����)��%������ ������#����������%%+�� ��� G�<�545��	����=��H��=���>�������)��&�' ��$����' ���������(����&� �������&$� ����� �%���!��"�$��%��&���� �����&#'���&� ��%���������� �'��������))� ��*�� �� ������*��.����� -̀a>bcd1ef>�>f-g/(6h*�/did6�fg6hadh�(6h�EEjkEE�h-ll(a/�@Cmn*oEE+EEB�@����p?�.�&'&��� ������2����qB�%���>��"��kck_*��.��$������'�)� ���� �/����� �11@�B��#���*�� ���� �')�� ����$���� ��������������&�' ������'%%���� �����$��%��&��))��%�����!��"�����%������ �� ���� ��&$)�����#�������(����&� �+�( ��������� �)������������P'������#�����������' ����>��"�km�,�')��#����&$� ������#�����'$� �� ���'�)�������� �������)���&�����&'�'�))���������#��#����2������+��
164

Section 6, Item H.



��

� ��� �����	
��������
����������������������������������� ���!��������"�������###$%&��'�(�����)�*� ��))��� � +�*��������*���*�����+����*�*����,��!��������-��.���*����,)�����������/���+���*�����'�� ������!����� � ��������*� ��))�'��)�����*�� �!�))�0 1������������ ��))�'���������'�� ������!����� � 2���� 34�� �5467879:�5;��57:<=9879���8�� 6>?�
�����������	@A�B�=�C�����D���
���CA����A�E�F�
��������� �)���������,� �������)����� ��,��!���� ����*����!�*������ ��')� ��*�'��0���������*����G+�����H��I��H���������GJ �������������*�,��,� ������������H��������� �KH��������� ������H�H����������G�0����������L�� ������,����G+���,�������+���*�,��!�  ����)� .�))���*�/�*H��������,��(�*������-��.����,�� �����!���������)G���*����,���������,)�������!�����-��.���*����.���'G���� �)�������*������ �KH�������2����� �)����� ��))���,)�G���)G�,�� �� �*�)G�L��)�!��*���������,,��,������������!���,���� �����,��!��������-��.�*� ���'�*������� �KH�������2���� ��� �)�������(����� ���*�*��)��� ����������� ��'�����*��))�*�,)��� +������!����� +�)���� � +�,����� ��������)�.����L����*��!���� �)�����'G���G���*��))��������)+� ����+���H����)+������G+����)���)�'���* +��H����� +������  ��� +���������� ������������H�)����G�'�*�� ������*������,��!��������-��.����������*�!�����*������ �KH�������2�M������+���� �)������H��� ���������0�))�,��!�����))�-��.���������*�����0�������� ���*��*��!��������*�L��)��G���*�����)G���,����*��!����,������,��!�  ����) ���*�������,)������0�����))�!�*���)+� ����+���*�)���)�)�0 +���H�)����� +���*� +���*������ +������*�� ��,,)���')������������/���+����)�*��H+�'�������)�����*���+���G��,,)���')�������* �������������L�������� ���*�N���H��J �O,���P����* �K���$O2�2N2K2�Q�RSTUVTWU+�XY�ZX[2&2��K�G��**������)�0��.������ � ��������*�� ����� �)���!���������*\������  ����'G���� �)������ ����� �)���!�����������H������,,)���')�� ���*��*��!���������L��)��G�0�))�'��,��(�*�*�'G���� �)������������**������)��� ��������G2����� �,��(� ���� ��))� ��(�(���������������!���� �KH�������2�� ]�� ]	Ê�A
_�=���A���������� �)������H��� ���*���.��0)�*H� ������'�*H����G�)��������� �����������/� ��!��������!���'�������!� ���*�,�����,�) ��!���� �)����J �,��!�  ������*���*� ��G2����� �)����� ��))���.�������)��)���*��� .��������,��!���������!�����-��.2��",���!���))G+���� �)������H��� �����+���������(��������������,��!��������-��.�0����������'�*H����G�)��������� �� ��')� ��*�0�������*� ��H��*��H� ���*�,�����,)� ��!���� �)����J �,��!�  ������*���*� ��G+���� �)�����0�))�H�(��0������������������*����)G�������G2�� ��� ��_̀����@�A�C�����a��b�
c������ �)�������.��0)�*H� ���*��H��� ���������G�*�� �������*����.������,,��(�����,�  ��,��������� ��!���,���� ���!���� �)�������*�����+������!���+����G�'��� ������ ,�� �'�)��G�!������ �)����J �-��.�,��!����*���*������ �KH�������2����� �)�������.��0)�*H� ���*��H��� ��������������,�������!�-��.�'G����G�� �)�����*��������!���������!�*���������H�0��������������� �'�������,)������0����0����� ���L����*����'��,��*���*���*������ �KH�������2�����G�0�))����+���*����*����+���L�����������*�L���G+�!����  +� ����'�)��G�������������  ��!���� �)����J �,��!�������2����� �)�����!��������H��� ����������,,��(�)��!�*� �H� +�,)�� +� ,���!������� ����������0��.�,��*����'G���G�,�� ��+�'�*G�����H���G� ��))���)��(����� �)������!������� ,�� �'�)��G�!����*�L���G+�!����  +� ����'�)��G+���*����������  ��!���� �)����J �-��.���*���,��!�  ����)���*���*� ��G� ���*��* +����!���,��!�����H� ��(��� ���*������ �KH�����������
165

Section 6, Item H.



��

�����������	
��������������������������
���������
���������
��
������ ��� �������������� �!��" ����#�$%!��!����$&��!�&���'���������(�����)���
(����
����(��
�������
��������(�'
���
�����������������(�����*��+���,�
������������
�-.���(������'���������
����
������������������
����(��
������)
����/��'
��0�/���'�����������������)
���
((��
����	�
��������
������'
���
��'���������+��	����������/���������+��	����������
����(��
������)
����/��'
���
���������0�
����
����0���������	
�����/��(��
���� 1�� �������������� 23 � ����!4 ���� *
��
�(�5��67
��8�9�������/��������
:�������������'��������;�/������	
�����������������*��+���'��������;���
.����������������
)�0����)
�����������
���
.���
���������������
�)���
�����<������������	�
��������
�����,�
��(����������������	�����
����
�-.���(������ =�� >��!?�% ����@�>?3  % ����'�����������)�����������.������������
.�����������������
�������
�0��������.�����������
�������
�-.���(���0�	
������������
����A����	�
���������������'
����-�������������)����/����������0�'��������������/�������������
/���������
(/��
�.����(0�����'
����������)������/�
.��
���������(��� B�� � �2���!$!�!�&��@��������������C�D�C %�!@!"��!����@��!�&���'�����������)�����������.���������+��������(�����������
/
�
�����������*��+����������
���������
���	
�����
�-.���(�����'��������������/������������������(�.���
����������
��
������������
�.����
�����E���'
���������������������������(�������������������������*��+�����������������������
�-.���(������'��������������������0�
���(�
���������������(���'
�������'
��;�����������������
��������
�
��0����
���0�/����0���((

��0��(������0�����������
)�0����������0���)���0��.���0��������������)���������6
��
)
����������FG���(�
�
���<����H������������
)����FG���(�
�
���<���
�H8����(������.�
������������������
(0��
�0����
��0�I��.(���0�
�I��
�0���(�.�0����0����0��A����������
�/
�
����������+
���	�����)��0�
�����
�.�/��������
(
���������������;�����������������������6FJ
�/
�
�
�H80�	�
���(�����
�����(����/����������������������.���	
�����0���.�
.�����������
�����������(

�����

�.������������*��+0�������(���������������������)
��0����������
���/��'��������0������/����������0���������
����������
��
��������(�������/��'�������������/�������������������������	������������(

���'�������������/�����������(���/���
�/��0���.���������	��������������������������(

���
�������
�������/����������
���(�
�
������������K����)
�����������
�
���(�
����/�
.��
���������������������������A�����J
�/
�
�
������������/��������������(�������.�
.����0����+����0����
�����
�������	���.�������������������'�������������������������(������������
�
:���/������'���������
������������(����������
�-.���(������L�
�
���(�
����/�
.��
������������/����������������.���0��/�
�.�0���������	
��������������������
.�������/�
.��
������
���(�
���	�
���	����������	
���A
������������������������������
/���
����
����)

�������G�����������������
(��.�
������G���(�
�
���<����0�/�������(����������'��������0�
���/����������0���������
����������
��
��������(�������/��'�������������/�������������������������	��������'�������������/�����������(���/���
�/��0�����
���(�
�
���
����/�
.��
������������
����
����)

������������/���
(
����
������	���/�������
(
���
�����������(������������������(�.�0���(�����
������/����
������/���/���������'�����������������/�����������������	��+��;����	��+(��;���(�����
������0��
�/
�
���/����
����������������(�������/����
��������L�
��/�
.��
������
���(�
��0�������0�������������(�������G���(�
�
���<����6
�8��������)
)��
166

Section 6, Item H.



��

��������	
�	�������
���	
�	�������������
�����	��������������������������������	
�	��������	���	������	
��	��	�����	
������	������������
���������	���
���	�������������
���� ��� ���������� �!"� #$% "#���&	
�����
������'��	��
�
����
����������������������
�������
��
��
����
��
������
�����
����������	�����	������(	�)�����
��
����
��
���	
�����	���
��
	�����������
��	������	'���	��&��'���*	��
���
������������
�����������	
��������	���)��&	
�����
��	���
'�	����������	'����������
����	������	
�����	�����
�����	'���������
��	�����
��	��&��'��	���
'�����	�����&	
�����
����������	�����	���'�����	
�������	������	+
���������������
���	����������
�����������(	�)��������	������
��������	��������	�����	�������(	�),�����
������
�����������		��������������
�-	������������
�������'��	��	����������(	�),����
��	���	
�����
�������
���	������	'�����	��	����������(	�),��
�������'��
��	������	'������
�����
����
�������
���	�����
���+���.	�����.������'��+��	���
���
������	������������	
���	���
�
���������������&	
�����
����������	�����	���'�����	
�������	������	+
�������
���	���	���������	���
����������	'������
������	
�����	�������
����������	�������������
����/������������
	��	
���������������	
�������+��
��
'�����	
�����	��	������������
��&��'��'��������	�������������
��+���&	
�����
�����
'���	����	
��	�������������
��������'���������	������&��'����������	��������&	
�����
������	������������	���������������	��������	������'�&	
�����
��	���	��������������������	���	
��	��	�����������������+���������������	����
�����&	
�����
��������	��	+�����������	
��	��&��'�+�����������	������������	���������������	
�'���0�������������
�����		�����������������
�����
	��������������
��&��'���'�����������	
����
��������	�����	������(	�)����������	������������
������0
���������&��'��
��&	
�����
�������
����
��
��	������	�����
���������������	���'��	���
�����	�����	��
'����������	
�	��	���+�����	������
��
'�+�'��������������
�������	�����	������
�����	���+������������'���������	��
�+����
�����
����'��	��1�����������	���&	
�����
���������
	���	��������
������������&��'2�����
���	���
'�����	����	��
'�����'�	���	����	+��
'�����	'���	��&	
�����
���	��	��	���
����������������'����	��3�����
�����
����
���
�+����
����	��	��	���
����
�	
�'��	�����������������	�����������
��������	��3���	
���&	
�����
���������������������������'��	���
'��	
�������	���������
���&	
�����
���
������
�	�	
�������	��&��'�+��	��������������)
	+�������
�����	��+�����
��	
��
��	��&��'��� ��� ��45#$�%���� 678� 9�:������
��;��&	
�����
������������
�����
���
��
�������	�����
����������	�����������	
�	�������������
����
����
����
����
������
�����������	���
<�������	�����	
��	�����������	���	����'�+�����'���������	��	���
��	

����	
�+����������	���
���	�����(	�)��'�&	
�����
����������
�����������
�������������	'����	������	
�����	���������	������������������<�����	�����	�����'�&��'�����	��	����
���	
��
���/������:������
����������<�����	����
���
��	��+����������	�����	�����
�+����
���'����&��'�=�
������� 6>8� =�
�����?������	��0
����
��;��&	
�����
����������
���
�����	��	+�
���
����
����	�������+����	��������
���������
	��������
;�� 6�8� &	���������@�
�����?�������'��	�������	�����������A7�BBB�BBB�6	
�������	
��	�����8��	���
�����
��������������	������
����
��
167

Section 6, Item H.



��

��������������	�
����	��	������������������	���	
�����������	����������������	���	������������	���������������������������	����������������	�	�����������	�	����	����������������	���	����������������������	
��� ����  	

�������!��	
	�����"����������	�����	#	�������������	�������	������������$����������	��
����	��	��������	
�������������
�������	����������	���	
�����������	����������������	������������	���������������������������	����������������	�	�����������	�	����	����������������	���	����������������������	
��� ���� %�	�����	���"���������	������������$����������	��
����	��	���������
����	������
���������	���	����	�����	������������������������� 	������&�����	����	
����	���	����������������� ���� '	�����&� 	
������	(� 	���������������������������������)�	����������	���	����*������	�����&��	
������	����������	��������	���������������������	�
���'	�������������!����
������ ����  	

�������+
�������"��������� 	������(���,,,-�,,,,,,,,,,,,,��,,,,,,,,,,,,,�������	��������������������	��������������������	�������������������	������������	����.�����	��������������	����
������	� 	

�������)������"���������� 	

�������!��	
	�����"����������/
��	����&�"�������������%�	�����	���"����������� �0�� 1��������������2���#3������4�����	�(��!��������������	������#�������������	��
�����������������	��������	������� ��������������	������ ����
����������������������	������	�� 	������5�����#�������������	����	���������������	�����������������	������������ �6�� 7�����3�������%�	����	�(��/�����	������������	�����	�������	������	��	����������	��	������	����	��������������(�� ���� )������"����������!��	
	�����"����������������������������+
�������"��������� 	��������� ���� !�����	���3������4�*����
����� ������� ���&����������������	�����	����������	����������	�������	

����	������
��	�����������������������	����������������������������	���������������������83������%����9�����	�����������83������%������9������������
������������	����������������������(������������������	���	�����������������	�
������	��	��������	�� 	������5���	����������	
�������	������	��	�� 	������5����
�����	�������������	���������� 	������5�
168

Section 6, Item H.



��

��������	
����
���	
��
������
������������
���������	�������
����
���
����		�����������
���	�	��������������
�����
��������
�����������
�������
�����
�������
����������������
����������
��������		��
�������
������
����
���
�����	�������������
�	����	����������
����
���
�����������
�������������	��������
��
������������������
������������������	
�
�	��
�
��� ��� � ��������������
�!
����
�
��������	���"��������
����
���
����		��
���������������������������
�����
��
�������������
��������
�����
	�#������
�����	��	
������
�����
�������
���$��������
�����
	�#������
�������
�������
�����
�������
�����		��
���
%�
����������	���"��������
�������		������������
����������� ���� � !
�������!
����
�
����$�����	��
��������	��������
����������������������
���	���
�����		�������
������
���
�������
�������
�����
�������
���� ��� � &
�����
����
���
�����
���
����		�����
����������	���"��������
����		����	���
�����
	�����
��������
���������������	����������
���������������������
%�
���������
��
������	���������������
�������
���� �� � '
�
�
������(������)����	����� ���
���
����		��
�������
������*�������
��	�+��������������
�
�
������������	
����������������	����	����������
�
����		��
��������#�	����	����
%�	������� ��� � &�������������
�����
�����		����

��������
��		�������������������������������
�����
�������
������	���
��������������,��-��
�����
���������	����������������� � ,��-
��"�����
���������
���
���(��� �� � $		����
���
���� �� � �����
�!
����
�
���.����������
���	�����
����
����������$��

�
�����		��
�
����
���������
���������
���
����		�����
�����
�
�������
���������
	
��
%�
������
����������/0 ���	
��������������������
�����
�����10���	
��������������
�����#����
� ������

����
�����������������
�
��
����
�������������
����	�
���
�����
��
������������������������
����
���

����
���������
����
�
�����
��2
������	������
169

Section 6, Item H.



��

����� ������	
��	���	��	
�����������������������������	�����	��������	
��	���	��	
��������� ��������	����������	�����	���	��������	�����
����	��������������������	�������	��	�������	���	���������	
������	���	��������	�����
����	���������������	�����	���	���������������������� 
�����	�!��	�����	
�����	��������������������	��"�#���������� 
�����	���� �$��  �����������������	������%��&����	����	������������	���	��������	�����	���������������������������	������	������������������������	����	������������	���������	���������	�����	��������������#���
�����������	����	����������������������������'�����	���������'�����	� �(��)����������������*����������	����������	�+ ,-��	��'��������	�	���������	
����������"������
���������&�����	�����	����������������	�����������	���������������	
��������������������������	��������������������������������
���	����������������������� �.�� "����������	����������
�%����	�����	�����������	�����������������������������������������������	����	����	���	�������	������������������������	��	
�����������
����/�������������� 
�����	������������������������'��0��1�������������	
�����
�	���������������������/������	�!���	�����	��������������������/������������������	��	�������	��	���	
����������	��������	����	������'��	���/��������&��������������������	����	����	���	�������	�������������	����	���������������������	�������������2��������	�����	�*���	�������	�����	��������������������	�����	��������������
	�������������	��������2������������	�����������	��������
���	�����������!��	����������	������������	�������	����������������������	���	����������	��	������������������������������������������������
��������/�������������!���������������������������/�������	����	����������������	����������	�����	����������������������������	���3����	
�������
���������	���	�'�����������������������������3�������	��������������
���� �4��� �����	��������%����	�����	����������������5���	���������������	����	�������������������������������	�����������������	����������	������1��0������������������������	�������������6���	�����������	�������	����������������������������������������	
�����������	���������	������1��0�� ���������
�����������	���������������������7��������������������/������	�����������	������ 
�����	�!��	�����	
!�����	�������������!�	���	
������	������������������������	����	��������� �8�� ������,(������������%����	�����	���������3��	���	��������,������	����	�������������������������3��.�������������������	����	������	��������	���	�������� 
�����	�!�'�����������������!��	��������	����������������'���������	����������������������������������9�� �������� ������	����	�������	��:���������%����������������	���������	�
170

Section 6, Item H.



��

�������������	
����������		�������������������	����
�����������	������������������������������������������	�����������������	
����������		������������������		�������������������������������	�������	������������������� !�� �"# � ������		��������	$��%������������������		�������	�������	
������	���������������	��
����	������&�������	
�����������	�	
�����������	������	
�������������	��������&������������&���������
�����������	����������!�� '(� )*+,-.*/01�-2�304516-789/:�;,8/0<�=7-68>81/:�?�)@A/782.�;228:4B81(���
�	
�������C!�!D!�!�E�"FG"#GH"�������	�����������������������������������������	�������������������	��&���	�
���		$��� �" �� ���	
������	�������&�����&��������������G��&���������	�������������������	�)I68>81<�JKL�40:�J)L��������&��	���������������������M��������NGO�������������������	M����
����������
���������������������������	��	M�������
�	
�������C!�!D!�!�E�"PG"#GQ" �����������������	
������	�	
�����������	���&������	������M����������
�����R������
	������
	��������������M�����
�����R�������������������������M���	�NGO��������������	
�	��
�������������������������������������M�������������������&�	���	�������������	��	�����	�������C!�!D!�!�E�"FG"#GH"����������������M����������
�����
	��������������M�����
�����R�����������������
���
����������������������-7�� �S � ���	
��������&���	��&����������������	��������
����������&�������������&�������
	������	����TUVTWTVXYZ�������������� ������	���
�	
�������%�����SP����%�����[F�����������\�����]������D������������	���������	�������!���� ���	
�������������&������	�����������	��������������
��������	����������������
������������R���������&����������������M������	���&��������)I68>81�JKL������	
��������	
���������&����������������&����������M�����&����������������	��������&��
����������
����������&����	
������������&�������
	������	������	���������������	���������	����������	
�G	
�	��������S ����&�!��̂
����������	
������������������	����������M�����������
�������	����������������_�����������̀�������������������������"HaP��_̀�� ���!�!�HHGP#F��C!�!D!�!�E�"FG"#GH"�����D�������b������������������
̀���F##G"#G"G!#S!���� _�������&�������	
�����������	������������	�M��������	
������������	 ���������������M����������&������������������	
�����������	����	��
��������	
���	
������������	 �����	��������������	
������������	�����������M����C!�!D!�!�E�"FG"#GH"�����̀ 
���F##G"#G"G!#S��������	
������������	�����
������������	
������������������&����������������M������	������������������	�)I68>81�J)L��M�����	
������������������&���	��������������������������	
�����c	
���������������������������&����������������	
�������������	��������
����������&����	
������������&�������
	������	����TUVTWTVXYZ������	���������������	���������	����������	
�G	
�	��������S ����&�!��_����	
������������������&����	��������������	
�����������	������&���������������������������M��������&���d ��
	���		����	��������������������	
�����������!����
171

Section 6, Item H.



��

���������	
������	����
���������������������������
�	
������������������������������������ �!��������	"������	�!����	����#��
�����$������%���
%������	��%�����������	
����&	�������	
����&	�	
#%����%���	&�������%��������%�		��������'����������'������������������%�����(	�%����%�����%�'�����������	
�����������	
����&	�	
#%����%���	�	���������������%
'���	������%���	������������	��%�����������%��������%�		���������������������)*+����	������(��!�%�'���������������%����%����,
�������(��������	
������	����
���������������������������
�	
������������������������������������ �!��������	"������	�!����	�����
������#��
�����$������%���
%���������%���	��%����	������	
������������������	
�����������	
����&	�	
#%����%���	��'�����
�
�����$�������	���������%����%�	���-���������!�������%����%��(�������������	
�����������	
����&	�	
#%����%���	�!�������%��������(�������	
%������	��!�����#��'.��!���������%���	�������	���������#���
������	��#�������%��������	��%���������
�	������!������������	
�����������	
����&	�	
#%����%���	������
�����������'���������
�
�����$������������������ �!��������	"������	�!����'���������	'���������/����'�������0�'�����1�%
����������	
����&	����
������%��������(������������	��!�����'��#��	�%�������#�����'���������������!���'�����������	
�����	����#����#�����������'!�	��������	��%%	������#������������#���� ���	
�����!���	����������'��������
'#���%��!������	�!�����#���(��	�����%#���������	
�������23����'�������������
���������%����%�������������	����
������
�	
��������������������������4���� 5555�*������'�����'������	��� 5555��������'�����'������	��� 56555�,�(������������'������	������	
���������#��!���	����������������������	
������'����	����%����%�	�(�������	
#%����%���)	+����%����%�����(�������	��!���'�������(���������	
#%����%�����	����
���������������������������
�	
������������������������������	
�����(����	�%
������'�����	
#%����%���)	+�	
%��	
#%����%���)	&+�����%������������#�����'��������
'#���%��!���������	�����%#����������	
#%����%��������7���#�������
���'���	�	����#�����������������������
���'���	����	���������������(�����	����#��%��	��
������#�����%�����'����(�������	���(	���89� :;<=>?@A�:;B=>C@�DE?�FG?HC@9�� )�+� I�%���	J�� )+� -��.	����%���	����%
'���	��%%�
�����!��	�����#	�	�����	�'����'�����	�������!�����������.�������'������������
��������	��!���'����)KI�%���	L+�	����#���	�#��	�������'��������#�����	
��������%%����%��(��������%#����(�������
���'���	����	%��#���#�������(������	��%��������'����	�%�������#�����	��!���'�����M6%����	������(�	��
�����$���������
������	
%��I�%���	�	����#��'����������������	��������)�+����	����'���������
172

Section 6, Item H.



��

�����������	�
��������������������������
����
��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
�������������������������������������������������� ������������������� ���� �������������������������	���������������������������	�������������������������������������		�������
�	��	���
��!�������	�
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	��	�������������������������	��	����
������������������������"��	�
���������������������������������������������������������������������	������������� �����������	�����������������������������������
����������������������
������������ �#�� ��	��������$����������%��&	�����'���������������������������������
���
������������������������������'�������
����
��������������	���������������������
�����������������������	������� �������
(����	�����
����������� ������ ���� ����������$�	������%�������
������������������������������������������������
���
������������
�������������������"������������������
�������
(���	������������������!�������������������������������� ����	���������
�������
(���	������������������������!�������������"���!���	������������	�����������������������������������	�������	��	��������������������
�������
(���	���������������������������	�����������������������������'����������
���������"�����������������������������	�������������
(����������������������������������	���������
�������
(���	�����������������������������	������
��������������������(�������������������������������������������������������������	��	��������������������������(����	������� ��������������������������������$������������������
�������
(���	�������������������������������� �����������	������������������ )*� +,-./0�12345�12678./,�27�96,4:40,*�����������������������������������������������
��������
����������������� ������������������������������������
����;��������������<����������
���������������� ����������������������������������������������������������"�� ����������������������!��� ����� ����������������������������������	��������������=��"���>������������������������ ���������
��������������������
���������������������������������������?�����������������������������������������������
������
����
���$�����
���������������������������������������!�������
���
���'����������������������"�����������������
���������������������������������������������������� ���������������
������
����������������������������������
�����	�������������������������
����������� ��������������� ����	��������� ����������������������������!����������������������"�� ��������������������������������������������������
����
� ������������@����������
�������������� ������������!�����������������������������������������������������
���"�� ����������������	����������������
�	����������������������������������������
����
���	��
�������������������������
����
���	��
��������������������������������������	�������������������	���������������	���������������
�����������������������������������������
173

Section 6, Item H.



��

��������������	
������������������������������������		����
�����		����
��������������������	��	��������������	���������	�����������������������	�������������������
���������������������������	������������	�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	�����������	�������������		
���������������������
������������������
����������������������������	�����
�����������	���������������	������������������������������������������������������������
����������	��	���
�����������������
���������������������������
��������������	����������������	�������������������������������	
�������������������������������
����������������
�����������������������������	���������
���������������������������
�������������	������������������������������������������������������������������������������������ ��� � !"#$%!&#'(#&)��������
�����������
���������������������������������
������������������������������

�	��������������������
������������������������
����������������

���������������������������������������
����������*������������
������	���������������������
�������������������
��������������������������
�������������
���������������������������	������������������	������������
����������������
�����������������������+������������

����������������
��
���������������������������������
���������,��������
���������������������������	������������		����
��������������
��������

��-��������������
��	�������������	�������������������,������
����������������������������������������	�����

������������������
���������������
�����������
��������������.�����
������������������������������������/�����.��0	���1�������+�������������
�������������������
������������������
����������������������������������������������������������������
�����������������	�����������������������
�������
���������������������������������������������������������������
�����
�����������	������������������������������������������������������	�����������+���
��23�������	����4����5�
��46����������7���������

���

����������������������0���/�+��8�96�4:�32;�<;=><���
����������������� ?��� @%)�A%BC !!%(���+

��������������
������������DEF#G#&�HIJ��������������������������������������������������
����	
������������K�����������������������-	������������	�������������������-	��������5��������

���������������������
����.��7��L����M�������������������������7��L�������������
�������DEF#G#&�HIJ�����������������		����
��������������
�����������,���������������	��������������������������������
������.����������������������K������������
�����������������	�

��������������������������������������
������������������������������.�������������������������+�����������������

����	�������������	����
�������	������-	�����������-	��������N�
����������	
����������	���������������	������	�����

�������������������
����������������
����.����
�����������������+����������������

������������������������������ O�� �%%&#!PC��������
������������������������������.��	�������
�����������������	��������������������
����������
��������������
�	���
�����������������������������5�����������+����������������������
���������������M��������

����������	���
��������������

�������������������������������

������������
����.��1�	�������������������������������������������������������������
������������������������
�����������;=<���

��������������	��������������������������������N���������������������������������Q����������������
����.���	���������-	���������������������

����������������������������������������
�������	����	������	���
���
174

Section 6, Item H.



��

�������	�
�����	
���������
�����	����	������������������������	
��������	����������������������	�����������������������������������������	
�����	
��	�
������	���������
����������������� ��� !"#�$��!�%!&�"'(����)���	
�	�	������*����	
����	���������
���
�����������+�
�����
������
�
����
����������������	����������	
�������
����������������������+�
�����
�,������������	�����������������������
���������
�����	�	��������
��������	�	����������	�	�������	�����
��������*�������
���	
��+�
�����
��������������������	���������
��	������	�������� -�� ./&0"1 #2�!3�4!"5������������������	�
������	
������
������	�	���	�
��������������������������
�������������	����	
����	
������
����	�	�������������	
��������
	�������������������	
������������������	
�������������������6�����������������������+�
�����
��789����	���:;��������������������������+	����
��+	�������������
�	���������������������
�����	����������9����	����	
����������������	�������+	������
��9����	��������	
	
��	
�������
������+�
�����
����������
�����������
��������	�
��������	
��	�
��������6����������������	������	����	���������+	��������������
�������<��=�������6����	�������
����������������>�����	�����������������+�
�����
����������	
������������
�����	�������������	�������������+�
�����
���������������	�����������������������������	�
����������9����	�����?���
��9����	������������������������������������������	
������	��������+	���+�
�����
������������������������	�����
��*��
�����
���
�����������	�����������=�����������	
�����9����	����	������������	�
������+	����
��+�
�����
�������������*�������
�����	�	�
���������
���������������
��������������	��
�����������	�
��
����@�� A!&B#1("#C#&'�#!&��?
��������
����	���)	����D?��������+	�	��E	������������FGHI�������
����IJ�K�L�+��M�JNNN������	�
�ONO������������P	���	�	
��	�
��������FGQR�������
����IJ�K�L�+��M�HFNJ�����	�
�JNJ������������	��
���	���P	���	�	�	����������FGGN�IJ�K�L�+��M�FJFOJ��
����������������	�	�
�����S�����������+�
�����
�����������������	
����������
��������	���������
��+�
�����
������	������	������	�
�����
�������������	
�	
��������	���
����	���	�	
�������	
����
������������������	��
��������������
���
�������
������������
�������	�������������������������������������	������	�	�������	�	��	�
�
��	�
�����	�	
���
������������	���	�	�����?
����	�	�
�+�
�����
��������������������	�����������	������	������
�	
���������	�
���
��������	
��������������	�	�
�������	������������	
������������
��������������	������
�����������
������	���������
����T�� %!&1�U�'&�1��11#1�#&V�/#� ��"!(�"0C0&���������W�	�������X�+�Y����M�OHZ[NZJ[�	�������������
����W�	��������+�
�����
����������������������������������	�	���	�
�������W�	����
������������	�	���	�
�7	
����	
���	�����W�����������������������������
���������������������������;�������������	
�����
������	�����������	
�����	���������������������	�
����
����	��	�
��������\�7�;�����+�
�����
�����������	���
���������
������	������	�����
����������������������	����
����
��	��Z��Z	
����������	�	����
��������������������+	��>�7�;�����+�
�����
��������	����	�������	��������������+	����
�������	������
����	�
���������	�
��	��	
����	
������
����	�	�������������������+�
�����
������+�
�����
�,�������������������+�
�����
�,�����
����������	�	��	�������������
���������������*�����������	����	����������
��	������	
�������	
����	
������
����	�	�����������������
������
��
���������	����
������
���	
�������
��	
��	�	���	�
�����������	��������	�
�������	�
��	���������������	
��������	
�
�	���	
��������
��������	����	�������	��������
�������	������
����	�
���������	�
��	�������W��
�����	������������	
��������
��
�����������������
�>��
��7�;�����+�
�����
����������
�����
���������������
���	����	�
�����������
����	����	�
������	��
175

Section 6, Item H.



��

��������������	�
����������������
�����������������������������������������
�	������������������������������������������������� ��� ���� ! "#��$��%"&��� !�� '()*+�,-��.+/0����������������������������������������������
����������������	��������1
�����������1
������������
���������	������������2���3������������������
����������������
��������������	
���������4����	�����5�6�7����������������1
�������� 8�� �(+09:�';</;:;.+=+(>;���?������@
�	�������������
����A�������	��������B���������7��������	���������2����������B���������������������������������4����	�3������������������	��������������2������������������������C����������
����������������������������D�	����EE��������� �%�� "�'F% !"%� ��� !��� $,/��,.>;.(;.G;������������������������C�������������	�������	�������������
������������7���������	�������������������������5H6�	��������������������	�����������������������������8�� $,/��=I:;�������
�����������������������������������������C�����������������	����������������2������J	����������������������B�����
��������������
������7����������5KL6�	��������������������
������������������7������	�����������1
�������������������������
�������	
�����E�������������������
�����B������	���������
���
���������C�������������������������������C�������������	�
����������������������
���������������������5H6�	������������B�7���������	������������������������������C�������������	�
������������������������������E������
��������������	
�����������	���������
���7���������������5H6��������������������7������������������	���������
���������������������������	�����������������������������������	���M�5�6���7������������������C�����������7��������������3�5�6�	
����
	������
�������������	����������
��������������	��������	
������������
���������������
����
�����7�	����	�����
���������
������
���������C��������3����N���5	6��
��
���������������������������������������7�������1
����������������
	������
�������� #+=+I+,/0�";/O(.=+(,.���E��	������	��7���P���Q�C��R�KSTSLTUK������C������������������������������������������������E5V6��������C�����������W
�����������C�������������������������������������������
���������
	�����������������������������7���
�����������
�������������������������������������������������������������X��� Y=0O;.+�Z<,.�";/O(.=+(,.���[���������������������������������������������������
��������������	�����������������7������
����A�����J��������	
�������������������������������3���������������7���������C�������������������������	�
���������������
	��������
	����������������������������	���������������	��������5������������������	�������6�����2����������������������������������������������������7���	����������������������
�����\�J�
��������	��4�	������ ��� �,.>;/:(,.�+,�";/O(.=+(,.�-,/��,.>;.(;.G;���E��������������������C���������
176

Section 6, Item H.



��

��������	��
���������	���		���
	�������������
�����	�����
�������������	�	���
���
�������	���
�	�	�����
���	�	�������	���
���
�������
�	
�	
�	��
�	���	�	��������	���
�����������	���� �� !"#$%&"'"()*�+,-(�."&'%(/)%-( ��01�
�	���
���
����
����
������2��3��1���1��������
�
�	������	����	�����
�	�������
������
��
����������
�����1������	���
��
���
�����
��
	����������
����
�	����	��������	�����	����	4��
���5��1���1����	���	����������������������
�����	1������������	����
���������	���
�������
��
����	����������������	��		
��	
	��	�������	�������
����
��
�1	������
���������		�	
����	�	�����1�		������
�1���	�����
��	�������1	����	����������� 6 �� !"*"&7/)%-(�-8�!%9:)*�/(;�!"'";%"* ��<�	��������
���	�	��	����������
����
����
�1�����	���
����������	���	��
�������
����
����	���������
���	�	��	��1�����	���
�	���������		�	
��������������
�	=������ >?? �@?ABCDDEFCG+A��E � C()%&"�E9&""'"() ��<�������		�	
���
�����
���
��	H�������	�	�����
���	���	����1�		����		�	
��	�		
��	�I���	���
����1	��	�	���
���
��������	�����		�	
���	��	�����������
�����
����	�		
��	�I���	�������	�1	�����	����J	����	������������		�	
��K����	�����		�	
����	�	
����1�����	��	���
�����	����J	����	������������		�	
�
����
��
	���
��������		�	
��������	������������
��
���<�������		�	
������	�������	�������	
�	���
�����������	
����
�	�L��	������1�����	���
��	���
��������	�������	�������	
����
	������	1�	�	
���	���������I���	�������11��1���	�������M���
���N � A$OO"**-&*�/(;�E**%9(* �����J	�����	�1�������
�����������		�	
��	�����
�������
�	
���������		�	
��������	���
��
���
��	��	�����	H	�����������
�������������	�������
�������
������	��	�1	���	�I���	����B � 6-7"&(%(9�D/P ��<�������		�	
��������	����	�
	������
����
���	���
��������
�	������	����������	���	����Q	�������������	������������	��������1��
��1�	��������
������
�����������
�	=����������������	
����	�����
	�1�	��	�1�������
������������		�	
���	����	����	������
������	���
�����������	���	����Q	�������������
�������
������
���������	��	�����������		�	
��������	���������
��	���1	�������������R���
����
���Q	�����������	�0����S����������������	�K���	�
�S���������Q	������T����
��S������
���
����
����
�����������	�J���������
��
���	
�	������������������U � B/,)%-(*�/(;�A"7"&/V%W%)X �������	���
����	�	�
���	��
	
�	��������
�	
�	
�	��
��	��	�����	�	�	
�	�1��1��	���
����
���
�
�������	��
	�����������	�����	��	����1	�����
	
��	�	�����������������		�	
������
��
���������	���������		�	
�����������
�������	��������	���
��������������		�	
������
��1����	�	������	���	��		�	�����	������
����������
	
����	���	�����������������1		
�J���������
���	����	
��
��1����
�����	����		�	
���������	��	�	�	����
���	��	���
�	������������		�	
��������	���
��
����������	��
��	��	�����	�	H	
�1������	��������������		�	
������		
�	H	��	�������	��
������1����
��	�	���	����
�	������	�
���	��
	
��
�����	�I���	������	�����������	�	H	��	���	��	���
�
��1����
�����������		�	
��������
�����
���
�������1����1��������1����
��������������
���	���
��	��	�	��	���	����	���
���������
177

Section 6, Item H.



��

��� �����	���
��	��	������������������������������������������������������������ �!�"��� �"!!�"��!#�������#����"��� ���  �!���� ����"#�����"��!��"�!���� ���  �!���� �������"����"���"��� "����� ���  �!���� ������$�����%��������� �&$����������!�  ���� �!�"��������� ������������"����� ����!���� ��� ��'����(��)�� *+,��	������ -./�� 0+11����2,�+���3	42,��5�,+�6278,+8627�9�,�:�,�	���� &!!���������"���� ��!"���$���������"#;��;�"#�"�������� ������������ �"!!�����<��"�$������=�������#> �?��� ���"�����-�"����"����/�������#�"������ �!�"��> �?��� ���"�����-�"����"����/������� �!�"��(�� -@/�� ABB���24�*+,��	����&!!������������ ���'�� � �����"�� ��=����$ ������� ����������" ��'������#���� �&$�������� �"!!�������=����$�"��� �"!!��������������������"��� �"!!���������������=���C��-./��� ��"!!#���!���������-@/��������������"#�"���������� ��"���"���=�����"�!����#�����������"�!���� �"$�����"�����������������'�� �������-D/������"���"!���!���#�=���� ������"��"����"!������$����������"!��"�����������"�#�"������"���  �$�������!�=����"��"� �� �������"���  ������� !#����� �����������������"�#��#�=����������������"����"�������=���(�� *AEF0��EA�0FEG� �"!!���� ������C�� ����������H"�"$�����#����H�!�����I��$�"�@JJK�L���"$���"!��H�!�����I��$�"�DJJJM��� *AEF0��EA�0A*NO
E9*E� �"!!���� ������C����� � ?�  P"  ���"�� �� � &���C���!!�"��Q(�-R�!!/�?�  �� � DMJ�S����H"���T��� � H"�� ����I&��DJKUJ��� V�� W2�:	X�+B�95X		1	�,���S���"�!����#����#�����������"�#��$�������=��$"������������� �&$��������������� � ������� ���������!�"�����#���� �!�"���=������� �&$��������"�������� �������"������������#�"���"�"����=����������� �"������������ ������� �&$������� �"!!���� �������"�$���"!�="�������"�#���������"��������"�!����"���������#> ��$���������"����<"���"��� ���������!�"�����#���� �!�"���=����������� �"������������ ������� �&$������(��Q����������<��  �="���� �"!!�"������"�#�%����������������������"���������� ������������ ����="�����"�����"��������!#�������������"����"���� �������"!!#� �"���(�� Y�� N�X:�:24���&!!� ������ ������� �&$�������=������#�������"���� ���!�� �����������"�����=�!!� �����������"���������!����$��=�������!����"����������������"!��#���!�$"���� �"����� �"�����"�����"�����'������� (�
178

Section 6, Item H.



��

���� ������	
���	������������������������������������ !�"��#��$�%&����������%���&%�����'���������(��������&��)�&#�(����$�����(�)�������*������$�����($+�!����+���������$+������"�������+�!�"���&%��!��&��&��&����������,�� -�� .�/0	0��1��2231��4����5�6���1���7&������!&������(����������������������������!&����"�(��&������*��#���&%�8��$9���&#����������"���$�&����$���(�#�("��9��:"���%��(+��&&(�%�����&��&%%�!�������"������,�;���%�!���&��&%�����������������$�����<&���$�&%�����=�$&����(�8��$�8&"�!����������"��&��>������=�$&���&�� �!"������������������&�������%�&%�8��$,���?�� ����0	��1�@�A��B�@�����7&����������������������!&����"�(����!����������$���(�#�("���&��)���&������������$�&������)����&%���$�&%�8��$9�����!��(�&���))&����(�&%%�!����+�&%%�!���+��&��(�+�!&������&��+���)�&$���+���)���������#��+�!&��"������+����#����+�������+����&���$��&��#&�"������,��7&��"!����(�#�("������������)���&����$���������&�8&��"������&����$��"!!���&����������������������#����&%���$�(�%�"���&������!���$�8��$�&��%&����$���&"���*��!����$���!&���("���&�8&��"������&���"!!���&��&��&����$�&�������&��"�(�������������&%���������������,��C�D�*���+�8&��"�����9��)��%&����!��&%����#�!���"�(�������������������������&���"�<�!��8&��"�����9����(�#�("�����)�&$���+�&%%�!���+�&��(���!�&����&���$�)���&����!&����!�"�����������$+�� !�)��*�����8&��"������������&���)�&)����&�,������'�����������������+�� !�)��*�����8&��"������������&���)�&)����&�+��������&�����(�� !�"��#������($+�!����+�(����(�&���"���%&��!&����!�"�����������$����������(���!��(���(E&���������(�&��$���������8&��"������&��8��$+����)�!��#��$+���(��&������������$����!��(�&���))&����(�&%%�!���+�&%%�!���+��&��(�+�!&������&��+���)�&$���+���)���������#��+�!&��"������+����#����+�������+����&���$����(�#&�"������,��A�� F�310	G�	�4�H�	00201�F�1�	36��1��1
��10	G	0���1���������������������$����� �!"��(������$��"�����&%�!&"����)����+���!��&%�*��!�����������(����(����&�������+��"������&%�*��!����D����&�������������!&�����"���&�����(���������������"����,��8&��"��������)����������������������#��*�(���(���!&���%��������*���������������������(������&��%��(�8��$�&%���$�(��!��)��!���+�!&�%��!���&�����&���������,��I�������#����&%���!&�%��!���������������&%������������������(E&������� �����������!��(������&+������������&�������%�!�����&�8��$��������&#���,������'������������&�����������+��%���������"��$�&��:"����&��&%��������&�������)������&��������+��������������������&����!&����"�(�����%�����'���������(�(��%��(����<&����$+����&))&��(��&�������!&����"�(�����������'���$���!�"������*������)&�������%&��(��%�����&���&���&���)�&#���&���&%��������������,��I���������������&%����#��$+�����������������$�&�����&(�%$����*&�(���"!�����J���K���(�J��$K���(�����!�����"!�����J���K���(�J��+K��"������%�!����������&(�%����&���������!�������������%�&��&���������������(��))����������&���������&�������(�(��&��%%�!�����������)������&��&%�����������������,��L&�(��&��������"��(�����&"�������������������������������!�"��#��&%�����������"������(�)�"����%&���+�"����������!&��� ��&%�������"�����!�����$���:"�����!&�����$��������,����� M�� N�	60�M�O03	0���7�������8��$��&��8&��"����������������������%&���������)�!��#���&�P����������&���&�P*���%"��%���"����&�)��%&���&�����������(����(����(�%�"���*�������)�!���&�����%���"����&�)��%&���Q&��!"�����%���"����&�)��%&��R���$�&%��������)�!��#��("�����&��&�������&���"�(������������������&��%&����$�(���$�����"!��)��%&����!��("���&S��Q�R���$�!�"�����$&�(��������)�!��#������&������!&���&�T�Q��R���$��!��&%�U&(T�Q���R���$�!����������))��!������&#�����������"����&�����"����&������(����������)��%&����!��&%���$�)&���&��&%����������������������$���)&������T�Q�#R������:"�D�+�%���+�� )�&��&��&��%�&&(T�Q#R�����D��&�����&��(��)"��+�� !�"(��������D���&�����&��(��)"����
179

Section 6, Item H.



��

�����������	�
�����
����	�������	���
������������
������
���������
������
�������������
����������
���
�������������������
����
�����	�����������
�����	
���
������������	����
�������������	����������������
	���������	�������������������������������
����	�
������������������
��
��������������� �
����������������������
���
�	������	����
��	��
���
��������������
����	�	�
������
������
������ !"� #$%&'($)�*+,-(%(+,"��.
��������������	�/����������	��
����
���
������	���
��0	����
������
��������������	�/���������	�
���������	�������
��
����
�����
�����������������/���������
���	�
������������	�����������
��������������	�����
����������������	�
�
��
������������
���
��������� ���������� 1234!567892�:!�;:<<:=3!4�>549?�

180

Section 6, Item H.



���������
181

Section 6, Item H.



��

���������	
���������� �

182

Section 6, Item H.



��

����������	��� �

183

Section 6, Item H.



�����������	
���	�����	�	���	������������	

���������������		�		���	�����	���	������		�		�������	�������	�� !�		�	�����"	����#�������$���		�		���"	���% & %' (�	

		)*+,	-./	-0-1			234	567,38	9*:;,<=	>6<<*+=8?	@,A,B6C<,+8	@=3,;863	>=8?	6D	2=B86+		E1000	@,,3D=,BF	GH3IJH?	2=B86+/	KL		1000M		 5NO	P,J	-0-1	Q<CH;8	R,,	G36S3H<		967	TT	UV=:	=:	86	C36C6:,	;6+:*B8=+S	:,3A=;,:	86	8V,	>=8?	6D	2=B86+	3,SH3F=+S	8V,	C3,CH3H8=6+	6D	H	;6<TCB,8,	*CFH8,	8V36*SV	H<,+F<,+8	6D	8V,	>=8?W:	Q<CH;8	R,,	G36S3H<	=+	-0-14	UV=:	C36C6:HB	J=BB	;6+:8=8*8,	H	+,J	;6+83H;8	3,CBH;=+S	6*3	63=S=+HB	;6+83H;8	6D	)*B?	-0/	-0-0	H+F	>VH+S,	X3F,3	YE4		Q8	=:	:,CH3H8,	D36</	H+F	J=BB	+68	H<,+F/	6*3	3,;,+8B?	HCC36A,F	C*3;VH:,F	63F,3	86	;6<CB,8,	8V,	-0-1	L++*HB	ZCFH8,4	X*3	:,3A=;,:	J=BB	=+;B*F,	HFA=;,	H+F	H::=:8H+;,	86	8V,	>=8?	3,SH3F=+S	8V,	C3,CH3H8=6+	6D	H	;6<TCB,8,	*CFH8,	6D	8V,	63=S=+HB	Q<CH;8	R,,	2,8V6F6B6S?	5,C638	6D	-0E[	\H:	CH38=HBB?	3,A=:,F	=+	-0--]	J=8V	*CT86TFH8,	=<CH;8	D,,	;HB;*BH8=6+:/	H+	H<,+F,F	>HC=8HB	Q<C36A,<,+8:	NB,<,+8/	8V,	C3,CH3H8=6+	6D	H	3,A=:,F	=<CH;8	D,,	:;V,F*B,	86	7,	*:,F	H:	H+	H<,+F<,+8	86	8V,	,̂=:8=+S	Q<CH;8	R,,	X3F=+H+;,/	H+F	*CFH8,:	86	6*3	2=;36:6D8	L;;,::T7H:,F	D,,	;6BB,;8=6+	C36S3H<	H+F	LF<=+=:T83H863_:	Q<CB,<,+8H8=6+	2H+*HB	86	3,DB,;8	8V,	+,J	=<CH;8	D,,	:;V,F*B,	H+F	H::6;=H8,F	BH+F	*:,:4	UV,	3,:*B8:	6D	6*3	C36C6:,F	:,3A=;,:	J=BB	7,	8V,	;6<CB,8=6+	6D	H+	*CFH8,F	=<CH;8	D,,	C36S3H<	D63	8V,	>=8?	<,,8=+S	HBB	B,SHB	H+F	HF<=+=:83H8=A,	3,̀*=3,<,+8:/	=+;B*F=+S	H+	*CFH8,F	=<CH;8	D,,	:;V,F*B,	H+F	H<,+F,F	Q<CH;8	R,,	X3F=+H+;,4	X*3	H::=:8H+;,	J=BB	=+;B*F,	8V,	D6BB6J=+S	=8,<:O	E4	5,A=,J	6D	H+F	3,A=:=6+:	86	8V,	C*7B=;	DH;=B=8=,:	C36a,;8:	=+	8V,	;*33,+8	=<CH;8	D,,	C36S3H</	J=8V	:C,;=D=;	H88,+8=6+	86	C6::=7B,	;VH+S,:	=+	H+?	63	HBB	6D	8V,	D6*3	C*7B=;	DH;=B=8?	;H8,S6T3=,:	\CH3I:	H+F	3,;3,H8=6+/	D=3,	C368,;8=6+/	C6B=;,/	H+F	36HF:]/	H+F	=+;B*F=+S	H+?	HCCB=;H7B,	*CFH8,:	86	8V,	C36a,;8:	H+F	,:8=<H8,F	;6:8:	=+	H+?	6D	8V,:,	C*7B=;	DH;=B=8?	;H8,S63=,:4		-4	L+	*CFH8,F	Q<CH;8	R,,	2,8V6F6B6S?	5,C638	J=BB	7,	C3,CH3,F/	=+;B*F=+S	+,J	=<CH;8	D,,	;HB;*BH8=6+:	JV=;V	J=BB	3,DB,;8	H+?	+,;,::H3?	;VH+S,:	=+	8V,	D6BB6J=+S	H3,H:O	H4	G6C*BH8=6+	H+F	FJ,BB=+S	*+=8	C36a,;8=6+:	=+;63C63H8=+S	8V,	3,;,+8	C36a,;8=6+:	J,	C3,TCH3,F	D63	8V,	b7*=BFT6*8c	:;,+H3=6	H:	J,BB	H:	+,J	,<CB6?<,+8	C36a,;8=6+:	D63	8V,	;=8?	,̂8,+F,F	86	8V,	?,H3	-0M[d	74	UĤ	F=S,:8	63	UeGfXeU	D63,;H:8:/	H:	HCCB=;H7B,d	
184

Section 6, Item H.



��������	
�������������	��	���	����������������
��������
��������������������
������

���� !""#$%!&'"��(��)*+�,#-&.�/!%0��&-''&��(��/!1%"#02�3'#-4%!�)+56+��(�'7!%89�:%88;<8!0-#""=$#7��(��&'89�*+*>5?5>@5A+�

�B��
������C������D���E���������������E����C����E��������������C����F��C����
�G����C������D�����������H��B����I�������������	����������������������C�����	
������
��I����H��B�J���	�����
�G����C������D�
��I����K�����L������H������CB�MF���������������C�K����
�������E����L�C�����D�����������������	���������C���������F���

����G�����E�����������������������JNOL��P������������Q������������Q�����������B���B�������������������Q��D�Q�������R��S��������������E��R��F��C���D��
���������F������D�O�
�����RF��F��F���R����G��C�����T�����C���������F��Q������L����		����B�UB����
���������C�����	������Q�
������	
��E�	�����J��	����VQ�JW�G���������F��C�����T������F������D�O�
����������������������
������XYZ����Q�		����D�[��S�������	B��XB����
���������C��������	�������������������������������
�G��������������������C����F��Q�J��	���	����M����	��������G����\������B�]B����������������F������̂����Y	��������
�G����F�������G�C�����F��Q��D�Q���������������	��Y�����C��F���	������Q�J�GD����CC�C������������������������E��RB�_B�O�E��R��C���		�����C��	�̀Q������F����������O��������Q�		�������V�C���DW�����F�����C��Q�JB�aB�O�E��R������
������C��F�����������	
�������b�����������c��������C��	������D���R���Yd����	�����
���������GD��F����������	���	�����C��F��̂�����e�R����̀Q����d����	������RF��F�R����G��C�����T����
�����E��R�������
���GD��F��Q��D��������DB�fB����
���������C�����
������	�c�	�	��	
����C�����F������C���������������������	���	��������F���	
�������b��������������������������������Q��D�Q�������	����������������������C�����T���F��C�����F���������G�����
���B����B����������������F���R��̂����Y	��������
�G����F��������G�C�����F��Q��D�Q��������������������
������C��F���	�������	
�������b��������B���B����
���������C�������
��������������������������������������	��������C��F��Q��D�Q�������������
���F���	������Q�J������	�������	
�������b��������B�����������������F����F�����
������C��F��Q�J������F��b���������R��������������F���������
�G����F�����������F��b�Y�������B���B�̀���E��D��C��F��C��������
����Q�J����G��C��R����������OQ�GD����CCB���B����
���������C�����
�������	
����C�������G����V����������C��������W�������������F����R�C�����F�����B��UB�̂��F���������������E������F����F��Q��D�	�D��
���C�����D���d����B��b�����	
���������R����G��G�������������	
���	�G�����C������	�����F����F����V�F����	
������	Y
����C���
�����	��	���	���W��������������������c�����gUa�_��B����������������E�������d�������GD����P�������	�����F����F��R��S�������G���F����d����C���������h�D���	��	
��E�	��������i��������F���	
����C�����R����������G�������
��������
��������C��F��Q��DL���	
����C���������������C������F�
�G����C������D��������DB���
185

Section 6, Item H.



��������	
�������������	��	���	����������������
��������
��������������������
������

���� !""#$%!&'"��(��)*+�,#-&.�/!%0��&-''&��(��/!1%"#02�3'#-4%!�)+56+��(�'7!%89�:%88;<8!0-#""=$#7��(��&'89�*+*>5?5>@5A+�

�B��C��D����������	��E���F���D��G�����H����I������������B����D�H�����F���
��F����������������I�����	������������������B����D�����������	������D�������H���H��G������J�K�����B���G��������G�D���I����H���������G���L�������������
��I������I�����B������������D����
����������������������I��I���������B�������
������
���H���J�M��B�I����N�D�������
����D������F����I��������B��C��D���������	
����F���
�����	��������O�F��PG�������G��O����G��B�D��������B��C��D�Q��FF�����B���
��N���������J�� Q�������D���������R� ������S����D��S����D�������TTC���

186

Section 6, Item H.



���������� �	
������
����������

���������
����� !�

"#$%&'�()'*+,'&
-.#/)

0+1,2'�3&&�4'#$5�06*'*
,'*.6 789:;<=�>?<@ABCC�DEF�G?EDH?I;
�J<K;FLH;

�MNN
�����
	

OPFD=;�Q;;=?ER�STU?=V�W;PD
8=X;E=Y

�MNN
�����
	

0+1,2'�3&&�Z&'[.$.\.
%5�]&1./'

�̂���������
_;<;?̀;�WD=D�C89X�U?=V�W;D

8=X;E=Y
aM�b
�����

�a
78;PD8;�79Pc�dOc�eXP�f�g8

DCC?<�G98;<DY=Y
NMha
�����

aN
78;PD8;�7D8=?DH�W8DC=�9C�=K;�Q

;=K9F9H9RV�_;P98=
bMN	
�����

hb
W8DC=�G?EDH�iXPD<=�G;;�Q;=K

9F9H9RV�_;P98=
	MbN
�����

N	
Q;=K9F9H9RV�_;P98=�AA�U?=V�U

9LE<?H
j

�MNN
�����
	

G?EDH?I;�Q;=K9F9H9RV�_;P98
=

aM		
�����
�b

k,1*',\�0+1/.l&+&6')
�(\&+&6'

m̂�n̂������
W8DC=�UDP?=DH�iXP89̀;X;E=Y�

eH;X;E=�STUo7
bMN	
�����

hb
Uie�g8DEYX?==DH�7LpH?<�d;D8

?ER
j

�MNN
�����
	

Uie�_;̀?;S�7;8?9F�AA�q_UTW
Uq

ra
��������
N

s$.1'*.6�.t�'[&�0+1,2
'�3&&�u/.%/,+

��v��������
W8DC=�iXPD<=�G;;�B8F?EDE<;

�qX;EFX;E=Y
NMha
�����

aN
G?EDH?I;�iXPD<=�G;;�B8F�AA�U

?=V�q==98E;V
aM�b
�����

�a
G?EDH?I;�J<K;FLH;�9C�iXPD<=

�G;;Y�=9�p;�UKD8R;F
j

�MNN
�����
	

iXPD<=�G;;�B8F�AA�7LpH?<�d;
D8?ER�wx

j �MN
N
�����

	
iXPD<=�G;;�B8F�AA�7LpH?<�d;

D8?ER�wy
j �Mz

�����

�
{|||
U?=V�U9LE<?H�qF9P=Y�Uie�f�iX

PD<=�G;;�B8F
j }���������


 ~~�̂v������
j����������������!

������ ����������������������42[&$#\&�.t��&5�(l&6
')

Z*\'.6�0+1,2'�3&&�s+
&6$+&6'�

187

Section 6, Item H.



��

���������	
���������

188

Section 6, Item H.



189

Section 6, Item H.



�

����������	��
������������������������������������������� 
������������������������������������ �!�"##�$"%��&�� ����$�'!����$�!�(�)��'"��)'�%�'�#��!���!��)*+,�"����-�� �./0/1/2/�3�45647684&�!�"�����"##�'*"��%�,��� "��� ����$�%�$�",&�#�'*�)'��)'+)'"��)��- �� ��!����"��$����� ��+ �!��",�+�'#)'*"����)#�!�'%���!���$�'�"��)��'"���-�� �9�,,�"*�:/�;)!!�<$=(="�;)!!>"!!)��"��!?�)��(� ",#�)#�� ��0����)#�@�,�)�&�1�)'��"� "!�'���!��'�$�-�� &��!�"�� )'�A�$��)��!��"�$��!�!�� ��#�$�'",�-)'B�"�� )'�A"��)��+')�'"*��)**)�,��B�)-��"!�C6D�'�#�&�)'�"���!�(!�E�����'�+,"��*����+')�'"*&����"��)'$"����-�� �� ��"++,��"(,��+')%�!�)�!�"�$�$�"$,���!��!�"(,�! �$����./0/1/2/�3�45647684/��:�'� �'*)'�&�� ����$�'!����$�!�(�)��'"��)'�-�,,��)��������)��!��� ��#�$�'",�-)'B�"�� )'�A"��)��+')�'"*�� ')�� )���� ���)��'"���+�'�)$&�"�$�� ����$�'!����$�!�(�)��'"��)'�-�,,��)��'"���#)'�� ��+ �!��",�+�'#)'*"����)#�!�'%���!����!"��!#"���)��)#�!�� ��)��'"���)�,��-�� �!�(6!�(�)��'"��)'!�- )�+'�!����"��"##�$"%����)�� ��!�(�)��'"��)'�-�� �� ����#)'*"��)��'�E��'�$�(��./0/1/2/�3�45647684<(?/��2$$���)�",,�&�� ����$�'!����$�!�(�)��'"��)'�-�,,�#)'-"'$��)�����)#�� ��'����+��)#�"��"##�$"%���#')*�"�!�(6!�(�)��'"��)'��)�� ���)��'"��)'�-�� ���#�%��<F?�(�!���!!�$"�!�)#�'����+�/��G#�� ����$�'!����$�!�(�)��'"��)'�'����%�!��)������ "��"�!�(6!�(�)��'"��)'� "!�'����%�$�"��"##�$"%���#')*�"���)� �'��)��'"���$�!�(6!�(�)��'"��)'&�� ����$�'!����$�!�(�)��'"��)'�*�!��#)'-"'$&�-�� ���#�%��<F?�(�!���!!�$"�!�)#�'����+�&�"��)+��)#�� ���)������)�� ���)��'"��)'/����H�(�)��'"��)'� �'�(��"���!�!�� "����!�#�$�'",�-)'B�"�� )'�A"��)���!�'��$����#��"��)����*(�'�"�$�$"���)#�"�� )'�A"��)��"'��"!�#),,)-!I��JJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJ�:�$�'",�9)'B�2�� )'�A"��)��K!�'�G$����#��"��)��L�*(�'��JJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJ�M"���)#�2�� )'�A"��)����JJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJ�L"*��)#�0)��'"��)'����G*+"���:���N')�'"*�2*��$*����L"*��)#�N')O������0����)#�@�,�)�&�1�)'��"�L"*��)#�N�(,���C*+,)��'������������

G� �'�(��$��,"'����$�'�+��",���)#�+�'O�'��� "��� ��#)'��)�����!��'���"�$��)''���/��C������$�)��JJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJ&�P7JJ����JJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJ�<����?&�JJJJJJ�<!�"��?/��JJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJ�H���"��'��)#�2�� )'�A�$�.##���'�)'�2�������JJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJ�N'����$�L"*��"�$�Q��,��)#�2�� )'�A�$�.##���'�)'�2�������HK�H0;G�CM�2LM�H9.;L��C:.;C�@C��.L�QRGH�QRC�JJJJJJ�M2S�.:�JJJJJJJJJJJJJJ&�P7JJJ/������JJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJ�L.Q2;S�NK�TG0��� UL.Q2;S�HC2TV��@��0)**�!!�)��C�+�'�!I��JJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJ�
190

Section 6, Item H.



�

�

���������	
������������������������������������������������������������������ ������!������"�!�����"���������������""������#���"������������$��%&��'�()��*���+��

191

Section 6, Item H.



 
  STAFF MEMO: 

                                                                                     FINANCIAL 

 

 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
FROM: Robert Buscemi, Community Development Director 
DATE: Submitted on July 14, 2023, for the August 21, 2023, Regular City Council 

Meeting 

AGENDA ITEM: Approval of a Professional Services Agreement between the City of Milton 
and It’s My Party, LLC for Rental Equipment at Crabapple Fest 2023 

  
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
The City of Milton has requested the rental and delivery of several items for Milton’s Annual 
Crabapple Fest. For safety, logistics, and seamless set up and tear down of the festival, the 
City installs all tents and rental items for vendors. It’s My Party provides approximately 110 
tents each year (10x10 or 10x20 white canopy tent). These tents are set up by It’s My Party 
on Friday evening and taken down once the festival concludes on Saturday evening. They 
are inspected in advance by the Fire Marshal and are rated for fire safety and properly 
weighted with large concrete weights to withstand heavy winds.  The rental costs for the tent 
(approximately $90-$100) have been built into the application fee for each vendor, so the 
City passes along these costs to applicants though the contract is secured in advance. 
Additionally, the City rents banquet tables, high top tables, tablecloths, picnic tables and 
folding chairs for the community eating area, generators with accessories as well as a light 
tower to enable safe set up for vendors the evening before the festival and in the early 
morning hours on Saturday to add additional light for safety and security on Crabapple 
Road.  The costs associated with this professional services agreement is within the scope of 
budget for professional fees and benefits staff, public safety, event organizers, vendors, and 
attendees of the festival.  
 
PROCUREMENT SUMMARY 
 Purchasing method used:   3 Written Quotes ($5,000-$49,999) 

Account Number:  201-1571-522320002 
 Requisition Total:   $17,748.90 
  

REVIEW & APPROVALS 
 

 Financial Review:   Karen Ellis, Finance Director – July 14, 2023 
 Legal Review:    Jennifer McCall, Jarrard & Davis, LLP – June 28, 2023 
           Concurrent Review:    Steven Krokoff, City Manager 
 Attachment(s):  Professional Services Agreement 

192

Section 6, Item I.



193

Section 6, Item I.



194

Section 6, Item I.



195

Section 6, Item I.



196

Section 6, Item I.



197

Section 6, Item I.



198

Section 6, Item I.



199

Section 6, Item I.



200

Section 6, Item I.



201

Section 6, Item I.



202

Section 6, Item I.



203

Section 6, Item I.



204

Section 6, Item I.



205

Section 6, Item I.



206

Section 6, Item I.



207

Section 6, Item I.



208

Section 6, Item I.



209

Section 6, Item I.



210

Section 6, Item I.



211

Section 6, Item I.



���������
212

Section 6, Item I.



213

Section 6, Item I.



214

Section 6, Item I.



215

Section 6, Item I.



216

Section 6, Item I.



217

Section 6, Item I.



218

Section 6, Item I.



219

Section 6, Item I.



220

Section 6, Item I.



221

Section 6, Item I.



222

Section 6, Item I.



223

Section 6, Item I.



 

 

 

To:    Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

 

From:     Robert Buscemi, Community Development Director 

 

Date:   Submitted on August 14, 2023 for the August 21, 2023 

Regular Council Meeting 

 

Agenda Item:   Approval of Subdivision Plats and Revisions  

____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Department Recommendation:  

 

To approve the subdivision related plats as stated below. 

 

Executive Summary:  

 

The Milton Subdivision Regulations require that the Mayor and City Council approve all 

Final Plats, Final Plat Re-recording, Revisions and Minor Plats once the matter has been 

reviewed and certified by the Community Development Director in accordance with 

the Subdivision Regulations.  

 

 

1. The Minor Plat for Lot 9 Canterbury on the Lake – Ron Barber described herein 

consists of 8.05 acres located at 210 Canterbury Lane.  The purpose of this plat is 

to subdivide the parcel into two lots.  Lot 9-A will contain 4.187 acres and Lot 9-B 

will contain 3.863 acres. 

 

 

 

Funding and Fiscal Impact: 

None. 

 

 

Alternatives: 

Do not approve. 

 

 

 

Legal Review: 

None – not required. 

 

 

 

224

Section 6, Item J.



 

 

Consent Agenda Plats Staff Memo 
 

Page 2 of 5 
 

 

Concurrent Review: 

Steven Krokoff, City Manager 

 

Attachment(s):  

Plat List, Location Map, Plats 

 

 

Name of Development / 

Location 
Action 

Comments / 

 # lots 

Total 

Acres 
Density 

1. Lot 9 Canterbury on the 

Lake – Ron Barber 

210 Canterbury Lane 

LL 457 & 480 

Dist. 2  Sect. 2 

Minor Plat 

 

Subdivide the parcel into 

two lots.  Lot 9-A will contain 

4.187 acres and Lot 9-B will 

contain 3.863 acres. 

8.05 

Acres 

0.25 

Lots/Acre 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

225

Section 6, Item J.



 

 

Consent Agenda Plats Staff Memo 
 

Page 3 of 5 
 

Lot 9 – Canterbury on the Lake 

 

226

Section 6, Item J.



 

 

Consent Agenda Plats Staff Memo 
 

Page 4 of 5 
 

Lot 9 – Canterbury on the Lake 

 

227

Section 6, Item J.



 

 

Consent Agenda Plats Staff Memo 
 

Page 5 of 5 
 

Lot 9 – Canterbury on the Lake 

 

228

Section 6, Item J.



 

RZ23-02 – Memo for Text Amendment prepared for the City of Milton Planning Commission Meeting on July 

26, 2023 

 

Page 1 of 3 

 

To:    Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

 

From:   Robert Buscemi RA, Community Development Director 

 

Date:  August 14, 2023, for September 6, 2023, Mayor and City 

Council Meeting (First Presentation – August 21, 2023) 

 

Agenda Item:  RZ23-02 - A text amendment with respect to notification 

requirements for various types of land use permits and 

variance requests and other procedural updates to comply 

with latest amendment to Georgia State Zoning Procedures 

Law in Chapter 64, Zoning of the City of Milton City Code. 

 

Department Recommendation: 

The Community Development Department recommends approval of the proposed text 

amendment.  

 

Executive Summary:  

 

During the 2022 Georgia legislative session, the Georgia Legislature adopted revisions to 

the Georgia Zoning Procedures Law (O.C.G.A. § 36-66-1, et seq. “ZPL”) establishing 

minimum procedures for the conduct and enforcement of zoning by local jurisdictions. 

In addition, the revisions to the ZPL require local jurisdictions to meet certain minimum 

procedural requirements as part of their zoning ordinances. The City will be required to 

enforce these requirements no later than July 1, 2023.  

 

The following boards and commissions will be impacted by these new changes: 

 

• Board of Zoning Appeals 

• Planning Commission 

• Design Review Board – Currently does not require any notice requirements. 

• Mayor and City Council  

 

The primary change is the increase the notice of the hearing be published in the 

newspaper utilized by Milton as the legal organ (The Milton Herald) of 15 days minimum 

notice to 30 days (but not more than 45 days) prior to the public hearing.  

Many jurisdictions with the state did not have adequate notice requirements but the 

City of Milton has since its incorporation. In fact, in regard to requests for rezonings, use 

permits and associated concurrent variances we have required more than the required 

notification of 300 feet from the subject property and we require 500 feet with or until a 

minimum of 75 owners are included. In addition, we conduct a Community Zoning 

Information Meeting (CZIM) which requires certain notification prior to the meeting.  

 

229

Section 8, Item A.



 

 

RZ23-02 – Memo for Text Amendment prepared for the City of Milton Planning Commission Meeting on July 

26, 2023 

Page 2 of 3 

 

On the last page, Staff has included a revised Flow Chart.  

 

In practice, the Community Development Department has already been 

implementing the changes prior to the City adopting the new Zoning 

Procedures Law for all new applicable petitions. 

 

Community Zoning Information Meeting – April 25, 2023: There was one member 

of the public who made comments/suggestions on the proposed text 

amendment.  

 

Planning Commission Meeting – May 24, 2023: There was not a meeting based 

on the fact that there was not a quorum of the Planning Commission. Based on 

direction from the City Attorney, the item had to be re-advertised for the July 

Planning Commission meeting.  

 

Planning Commission Meeting – July 26, 2023: Mr. Paul Frickey from the City 

Attorney’s office presented the proposed text amendment to the Commission 

with a change to name the Community Development Director  authorized to 

accept service on behalf of the respondent if an appeal is submitted to Fulton 

County Superior Court instead of the Chairs of the various boards and 

commissions. This change has been reflected in the text amendment presented. 

There was no one in attendance from the public. The Planning Commission 

unanimously recommended approval of the ordinance with the proposed 

amendment presented by Mr. Frickey.  

 

Funding and Fiscal Impact: 

The required additional legal advertising will increase the line item for advertising 

from $9,250 in FY 23 to $11,713 in the upcoming FY24 budget. This is an increase 

of $2,463.  

 

Alternatives: 

The Mayor and City Council may choose not to approve the proposed text 

amendment.  

 

Legal Review: 

Paul Frickey, Jarrard & Davis, July 2023 

 

Concurrent Review: 

Steve Krokoff, City Manager 

 

Attachment(s): 

Ordinance RZ23-02 

 

230

Section 8, Item A.



 

 

RZ23-02 – Memo for Text Amendment prepared for the City of Milton Planning Commission Meeting on July 

26, 2023 

Page 3 of 3 

 

 

231

Section 8, Item A.



RZ23-02 – Text Amendment prepared for the City of Milton Mayor and City Council Meeting on 

September 6, 2023 (First Presentation on August 21, 2023).  

Page 1 of 7 

 

STATE OF GEORGIA    ORDINANCE NUMBER ____________ 

COUNTY OF FULTON 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MILTON, GEORGIA TO AMEND 

CHAPTER 64 OF THE CODE OF THE CITY OF MILTON, GEORGIA 

TO COMPLY WITH AMENDMENTS TO THE GEORGIA ZONING 

PROCEDURES LAW; TO PROVIDE FOR THE REPEAL OF 

CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; TO PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE DATE; 

AND FOR OTHER LAWFUL PURPOSES. 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Milton, Georgia while in a regular Council 

meeting on September 6, 2023, at 6:00 PM as follows: 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to its Charter and other laws of the State of Georgia, the City of 

Milton, Georgia has the power to adopt clearly reasonable ordinances, resolutions and regulations 

for the protection and preservation of the public health, safety and welfare of its citizens; and 

 

WHEREAS, Chapter 64 of the City of Milton Code of Ordinances regulates zoning within 

the City of Milton, and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Georgia Legislature adopted revisions to the Georgia Zoning Procedures 

Law (O.C.G.A. § 36-66-1, et seq. “ZPL”) establishing minimum procedures for the conduct and 

enforcement of zoning by local jurisdictions; and  

 

WHEREAS, the revisions to the ZPL require local jurisdictions to meet certain minimum 

procedural requirements as part of their zoning ordinances; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council have determined that it is in the best interest of the 

City’s residents to amend the Zoning Ordinance to satisfy the minimum requirements set forth in 

the State ZPL; 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MILTON HEREBY 

ORDAINS as follows: 

 

SECTION 1.   

 

Chapter 64 – Zoning, of the Code of the City of Milton, Georgia is hereby amended as follows: 

 

Add a new Section 64-26 – Designated Officials for Appeal Proceedings to read: 

 

(a)  In order to comply with O.C.G.A. § 36-66-5.1(c), the Community Development Director  

is authorized to issue appeal bonds and certificates of costs upon confirmation with City 

staff that such approvals are appropriate. 

(b) For purposes of appeals pursuant to Chapter 4, of Title 5 of the Official Code of Georgia 

Annotated, the Community Development Director  is authorized to accept service on behalf 

232

Section 8, Item A.



RZ23-02 – Text Amendment prepared for the City of Milton Mayor and City Council Meeting on 

September 6, 2023 (First Presentation on August 21, 2023).  

Page 2 of 7 

 

of the Respondent.  The Community Development Director  is authorized to accept service 

of process on behalf of the City as the defendant/opposite party. 

 

Section 64-1022 is amended to add a new subsection (c) to read: 

 

The Design Review Board shall conduct a public hearing with respect to each application 

for a certificate of endorsement before considering the application. The hearing shall be 

conducted according to the procedures established in Section 64-2082.  Notice of the 

hearing shall be published in the newspaper utilized by Milton as the legal organ not less 

than 30 and not more than 45 days prior to the date set for the public hearing.  Notice shall 

also be mailed to the owner of the property as reflected on the current tax records of Fulton 

County as retrieved by the city's geographic information system.   

 

Add a new Section 64-1573 to read:  

 

Any administrative permit decision under this Division of Article IX of Chapter 64 may be 

appealed in accord with the procedures set out for secondary variances in Article X of 

Chapter 64. 

 

{Adult Bookstore Use Permits}  Section 64-1655(c) is amended by deleting the subsection in its 

entirety and replacing it with the following: 

 

Processing. The city shall have 90 days (unless the application is suspended by failure of 

the applicant to provide data, information or records as reasonably requested by the city 

and required by this Code, to complete the investigation) from receipt of a completed 

application for a use permit to make a decision in which to grant or deny a use permit. The 

community development department and the planning commission shall make 

recommendations to the city council regarding the approval or denial of the use permit and 

the council shall make the final decision after a public hearing regarding.   Notice of the 

hearing shall be published in the newspaper utilized by Milton as the legal organ not less 

than 30 and not more than 45 days prior to the date set for the public hearing.  Notice shall 

also be mailed to the owner of the property as reflected on the current tax records of Fulton 

County as retrieved by the city's geographic information system. The public hearing shall 

be conducted according to the procedures established in Section 64-2082.  In the event the 

city council has not granted or denied the application within 90 days (unless the application 

is suspended by failure of the applicant to provide data, information or records as 

reasonably requested by the city to complete the investigation), the use permit shall 

automatically issue. 

 

{Adult Entertainment Establishment Use Permits}  Section 64-1677(c) is amended by deleting the 

subsection in its entirety and replacing it with the following: 

 

Processing. The city shall have 90 days (unless the application is suspended by failure of 

the applicant to provide data, information or records as reasonably requested by the city 

and required by this Code, to complete the investigation) from receipt of a completed 

application for a use permit to make a decision in which to grant or deny a use permit. The 

community development department and the planning commission shall make 

233

Section 8, Item A.



RZ23-02 – Text Amendment prepared for the City of Milton Mayor and City Council Meeting on 

September 6, 2023 (First Presentation on August 21, 2023).  

Page 3 of 7 

 

recommendations to the city council regarding the approval or denial of the use permit and 

the council shall make the final decision after a public hearing regarding the same.   Notice 

of the hearing shall be published in the newspaper utilized by Milton as the legal organ not 

less than 30 and not more than 45 days prior to the date set for the public hearing.  Notice 

shall also be mailed to the owner of the property as reflected on the current tax records of 

Fulton County as retrieved by the city's geographic information system. The public hearing 

shall be conducted according to the procedures established in Section 64-2082.  In the event 

the city council has not granted or denied the application within 90 days (unless the 

application is suspended by failure of the applicant to provide data, information or records 

as reasonably requested by the city to complete the investigation), the use permit shall 

automatically issue. 

 

Add the following language to the end of Section 64-1885:  “Any administrative variance decision 

under this section may be appealed in accord with the procedures set out for secondary variances 

in Article X of Chapter 64.” 

 

Add the following language to the end of Section 64-1886:  “Any administrative minor variance 

decision under this section may be appealed in accord with the procedures set out for secondary 

variances in Article X of Chapter 64.” 

 

Section 64-1887 is amended by deleting the second sentence and replacing it with:  “Any minor 

variance decision under this section may be appealed in accord with the procedures set out for 

secondary variances in Article X of Chapter 64.” 

 

Section 64-1940 is amended by adding new subsections (c) and (d) as follows: 

 

(c) Any of the decisions described in subsection (b) above, may be appealed in accord 

with the procedures set out for secondary variances in Article X of Chapter 64. 

 

(d) The public hearings conducted in accordance with the Subsection (a) above shall 

allow a minimum of 10 minutes for both proponents and opponents to present data, 

evidence and opinions. 

 

Section 64-1942(a)(1) is amended by deleting “15 days” and replacing it with “30 days”. 

 

Section 64-1942(a)(3) is amended by deleting the subsection in its entirety and replacing it with 

the following: 

 

Notice of the public hearing shall be sent at least 30 days prior to the hearing date and shall 

be given by regular mail to the property owner and all property owners within 300 feet of 

the boundaries of the property who appear on the current tax records of Fulton County as 

retrieved by the city's geographic information system. Renotification is not required when 

a petition is deferred by the mayor and city council or the board of zoning appeals. 

 

The mailing of public notices other than to the subject property owner, is not required when 

a secondary variance is sought by other than the property owner. 

 

234

Section 8, Item A.



RZ23-02 – Text Amendment prepared for the City of Milton Mayor and City Council Meeting on 

September 6, 2023 (First Presentation on August 21, 2023).  

Page 4 of 7 

 

Section 64-2082(a) is amended by deleting the subsection in its entirety and replacing it with the 

following: 

 

Before adopting any change to the zoning maps or text of the zoning ordinance, the mayor 

and city council shall hold a public hearing following a community zoning information 

meeting (CZIM) and a public hearing by the planning commission.  The public hearings 

held pursuant to this section shall allow a minimum of 10 minutes for both proponents and 

opponents to present data, evidence and opinions. 

 

 

Section 64-2082(c) is amended by deleting the subsection in its entirety and replacing it with the 

following: 

 

Notice of the public hearings held pursuant to this section shall be published in a newspaper 

of general circulation at least 30 days but not more than 45 days prior to the date of the 

public hearing. Renotification is not required when a petition is deferred by the mayor and 

city council. 

 

Section 64-2082(g) is amended to add “the subject property owner and” immediately after “The 

department shall give notice by regular mail to”.   

 

Section 64-2082(h) is amended by deleting the subsection in its entirety and replacing it with the 

following: 

 

The hearing notices required by this section shall include the time, place and purpose of 

the hearing, and, where applicable, the notice shall also include the location of the property, 

the present zoning classification of the property and the proposed zoning classification, use 

permit, permit or other permission requested with respect to the property.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

235

Section 8, Item A.



RZ23-02 – Text Amendment prepared for the City of Milton Mayor and City Council Meeting on 

September 6, 2023 (First Presentation on August 21, 2023).  

Page 5 of 7 

 

 
 

236

Section 8, Item A.



RZ23-02 – Text Amendment prepared for the City of Milton Mayor and City Council Meeting on 

September 6, 2023 (First Presentation on August 21, 2023).  

Page 6 of 7 

 

Add a new Section 64-2427 to read:   

 

The Design Review Board shall conduct a public hearing with respect to each demolition 

permit application before considering the application. The hearing shall be conducted 

according to the procedures established in Section 64-2082.  Notice of the hearing shall be 

published in the newspaper utilized by Milton as the legal organ not less than 30 and not 

more than 45 days prior to the date set for the public hearing.  Notice shall also be mailed 

to the owner of the property as reflected on the current tax records of Fulton County as 

retrieved by the city's geographic information system.  
 
 
Amend Section 64-2454(d)(3) by deleting the subsection in its entirety and replacing it with the 

following: 

 

“The HPC and the Milton City Council shall hold a joint public hearing at a special or 

regular HPC meeting on any proposed ordinance for the designation of any historic district 

or property. Notice of the hearing shall be published in the newspaper utilized by Milton 

as the legal organ not less than 30 and not more than 45 days prior to the date set for the 

public hearing.  Notice shall also be mailed to the owner of the property as reflected on the 

current tax records of Fulton County as retrieved by the city's geographic information 

system.  The public hearing shall be conducted according to the procedures established in 

Section 64-2082.   
 
 
Amend Section 64-2455(e) by deleting the subsection in its entirety and replacing it with the 

following: 

 

Public hearings on applications for certificates of appropriateness, notices, and right to 

be heard. The HPC shall hold a public hearing at which each proposed certificate of 

appropriateness is discussed. Notice of the hearing shall be published in the newspaper 

utilized by Milton as the legal organ not less than 30 and not more than 45 days prior to 

the hearing.  Notice shall also be mailed to the owner of the property as reflected on the 

current tax records of Fulton County as retrieved by the city's geographic information 

system.  The public hearing shall be conducted in accordance with the procedures set forth 

in Section 64-2082.  The HPC shall provide the property owner and/or applicant an 

opportunity to be heard at the certificate of appropriateness hearing.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

237

Section 8, Item A.



RZ23-02 – Text Amendment prepared for the City of Milton Mayor and City Council Meeting on 

September 6, 2023 (First Presentation on August 21, 2023).  

Page 7 of 7 

 

 SECTION 2.  That all Ordinances, parts of Ordinances, or regulations in conflict herewith 

are hereby repealed. 

 

 SECTION 3.  This Ordinance shall become effective upon a majority vote by the City 

Council as ratified by the Mayor of the City of Milton, Georgia. 

 

 SO ORDAINED this the 6th  day of September 2023, the public’s health, safety, and 

welfare demanding it. 

 

      Approved: 

 

 

 

      ______________________________  

      Peyton Jamison, Mayor 

 

 

 

 

 

Attest:   

 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Tammy Lowit, City Clerk 

238

Section 8, Item A.



 

RZ23-03 – Text Amendment prepared for the Mayor and City Council Meeting on September 6, 2023 (First Presentation on 
August 21, 2023) 

Page 1 of 2 

 

To:    Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

 

From:   Robert Buscemi RA, Community Development Director 

 

Date:  August 14, 2023, for September 6, 2023, Mayor and City 

Council Meeting (First Presentation – August 21, 2023) 

 

Agenda Item:  RZ23-03 - A text amendment with respect to the following 

alcohol-related uses of Limited Food Service Restaurant and 

Limited Tap Establishment within Chapter 64, Zoning of the 

City of Milton City Code.                          

 

 

Department Recommendation: 

The Community Development Department recommends approval of the proposed text 

amendment.  

 

Executive Summary:  

 

The proposed creation of these two Use Permits and definitions are a result of 

providing the opportunity for the owners of these uses to have the ability to 

move physical locations if necessary. These types of uses are only currently 

permitted within the Crabapple Form Based Code area.  

 

Please note that only establishments that were initially licensed on or before 

January 1, 2022, pursuant to Chapter 4, of the Milton Code of Ordinances will be 

considered.  

 

Community Zoning Information Meeting – April 25, 2023: There was no one from 

the public who made comments/suggestions on the proposed text 

amendment.  

 

Planning Commission Meeting – May 24, 2023: There was not a meeting based 

on the fact that there was not a quorum of the Planning Commission. Based on 

direction from the City Attorney, the item had to be re-advertised for the July 

Planning Commission meeting.  

 

Planning Commission Meeting – July 26, 2023: The Planning Commission 

recommended that after adding the use “Limited Food Service Restaurant” 

under the Crabapple Form Based Code Standards and Tables, Table 9: Specific 

Function and Use remain “blank” across all Districts (By doing this, it would 

indicate that this use is not permitted in the City.). The Commission also 

239

Section 8, Item B.



 

Page 2 of 2 

 

RZ23-03 – Text Amendment prepared for the Mayor and City Council Meeting on September 6, 2023 (First Presentation on 
August 21, 2023) 

Page 2 of 2 

 

requested that Staff investigate when the last time the only previously approved 

“Limited Food Service Restaurant” paid excise taxes to the City. The City’s 

Finance Department’s indicates that the last time excise taxes were paid was in 

March of 2023.  

 

The Commission unanimously recommended approval of the proposed text 

amendment as presented with Staff with the one change to leave the Table 9 

for “Limited Food Service Restaurant” blank across all districts in the Table. Staff 

notes that by eliminating it as an allowed use, the proposed use permit is not 

needed. The proposed text amendment reflects these changes as 

recommended by the Planning Commission.  

 

Funding and Fiscal Impact: 

There is no impact on Funding or Fiscal Impact 

 

Alternatives: 

The Mayor and City Council may choose not to approve the proposed text 

amendment.  

 

Legal Review: 

Paul Frickey, Jarrard & Davis, July 2023 

 

Concurrent Review: 

Steve Krokoff, City Manager 

 

Attachments: 

Ordinance RZ23-03 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

240

Section 8, Item B.



Page 1 of 3 

8/14/2023 

STATE OF GEORGIA                                                                                                 ORDINANCE NO.________  

COUNTY OF FULTON           RZ23-03 

 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 64, ZONING WITH RESPECT TO THE 

FOLLOWING ALCOHOL-RELATED USES OF LIMITED FOOD SERVICE RESTAURANT AND 

LIMTED TAP ESTABLISHMENT 

 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Milton, GA while in a regularly called council 

meeting on September 6, 2023, at 6:00 p.m. as follows: 

SECTION 1.  That the amended Chapter 64, Zoning regarding alcohol related uses 

specifically Limited Food Service Restaurant and Limited Tap Establishment is hereby 

adopted and approved; and is attached hereto as if fully set forth therein; and  

SECTION 2. That the amendments of Article XIX Crabapple Form Based Code and Article IX 

Administrative Permits and Use Permits are hereby adopted and approved; and are 

attached hereto as if fully set forth herein; and 

SECTION 3. All ordinances, parts of ordinances, or regulations in conflict herewith are repealed; 

and 

SECTION 4. That this Ordinance shall become effective upon its adoption. 

 

 

 

ORDAINED this the 6th  day of September 2023.  

 

 

Peyton Jamison, Mayor 

 

Attest: 

 

 

Tammy Lowit, City Clerk  

 

241

Section 8, Item B.



Page 2 of 3 

8/14/2023 

Article XIX- Crabapple Form Based Code, Article 6- Definition of Terms 

Limited food service restaurant: any establishment that meets all of the requirements of a restaurant but 

does not meet the requirements of an eating establishment. A limited food service restaurant must 

derive at least 30 percent of its total annual gross food and beverage sales from the sale of prepared 

meals or food.  

Limited tap establishment: any establishment that does not sell food prepared on the premises and that 

provides a limited selection of craft beer on tap for consumption on premises only. An establishment 

with a limited tap license is limited to having five or fewer malt beverage taps. Establishments with a 

limited tap license must limit consumption for any individual to a maximum of 48 ounces within a 

calendar day and must obtain approval from the fire marshal and building official in accordance with 

applicable codes. 

Article XIX – Crabapple Form Based Code, Article 5 – Standards and Tables, Table 9: Specific Function 

and Use.  

d. Retail 

Limited Food Service Restaurant10 “U”— T5 

Limited Tap Establishment10 – “U” — T4-Open 

10. No use permits will be considered unless the establishment was initially licensed on or before 

January 1, 2022, pursuant to Chapter 4, Article III, Division 3 of the Milton Code of Ordinances. 

Article IX – Administrative Permits and Use Permits 

Sec. 64-1851 – Limited Food Service Restaurant 

(a) Required districts. Crabapple Form Based Code T-5 

(b) Standards. 

(1) No outdoor amplified music shall be allowed. 

(2) No signage shall face residential uses. 

(3) Deliveries shall occur between 7:30 a.m. and 7:30 p.m. 

(4) Days and hours of operation shall be pursuant to chapter 4 of the Milton code of 

Ordinances. 

(5) Must derive a minimum of 30 percent of its total annual gross food and beverage sales 

from the sale of prepared meals or food. 

(6) It may not operate as a nightclub as defined in chapter 4 of the Milton Code of 

Ordnances. Nightclubs are strictly prohibited. 

(7) Limited Food Service Restaurants shall not sell or offer to sell: 

a. Any cannabidiol (CBD), vape products as described with the definition of vape 

shop in section 64-1 of the Milton Code of Ordinances, or any prohibited 

substances as defined in section 32-114 of the Milton Code of Ordinances. 

b.   Any games of chance including but not limited to those identified in O.C.G.A. 

§ 50-27-3. 

(8) Coin-operated or amusement machines prohibited. 

 

242

Section 8, Item B.



Page 3 of 3 

8/14/2023 

Sec. 64-1852 – Limited Tap Establishment 

(a) Required districts. Crabapple Form Based Code T4-Open and T-5 

(b) Standards. 

(1) No outdoor amplified music shall be allowed. 

(2) No signage shall face residential uses. 

(3) Deliveries shall occur between 7:30 a.m. and 7:30 p.m. 

(4) Days and hours of operation shall be pursuant to chapter 4 of the Milton code of 

Ordinances. 

(5) May have five or fewer craft beer taps. 

(6) Consumption is limited to 48 ounces for any individual within a calendar day. 

(7) The establishment must obtain approval from the fire marshal and building official in 

accordance with applicable codes. 

(8) Limited Tap Establishments shall not sell or offer to sell: 

a. Any cannabidiol (CBD), vape products as described with the definition of vape 

shop in section 64-1 of the Milton Code of Ordinances, or any prohibited 

substances as defined in section 32-114 of the Milton Code of Ordinances. 

b.   Any games of chance including but not limited to those identified in O.C.G.A. 

§ 50-27-3. 

(9) Coin-operated or amusement machines prohibited. 

 

243

Section 8, Item B.



       STAFF MEMO:  GENERAL 
                                                                                 

 

 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

 

FROM: 

 

Robert Buscemi, Community Development Director 

 

DATE: 

 

Submitted on August 9, 2023 for the Monday, August 21, 2023 Regular City 

Council Meeting 

AGENDA ITEM: Consideration of a Resolution Authorizing the Transmittal of a Draft Capital 

Improvements Element (CIE) 2023 Annual Update Relating to the City’s 

Impact Fee Program to the Atlanta Regional Commission (ARC) for Regional 

and State Review. 

  

 

SUMMARY 

The City of Milton adopted a Development Impact Fee Ordinance on October 5, 2015. As a 

municipality that collects Impact Fees, the City is required by the Georgia Department of 

Community Affairs (DCA) to submit a Capital Improvements Element (CIE)Annual Update 

Report, specifically an annual financial report and a new fifth year schedule of project 

improvements.  A draft Capital Improvements Element (CIE) 2023 Annual Update was 

prepared by the city’s impact fee consultant and was reviewed by staff.  The 2023 CIE 

Annual Update contains a financial report for Fiscal Year 2022 and a schedule of impact-

fee eligible project improvements for 2024-2028 that is based on the adopted September 

21, 2015 CIE. 

 

This Resolution allows the City to transmit the draft CIE 2023 Annual Update to the Atlanta 

Regional Commission for Regional and State review.  Upon approval by DCA, the City of 

Milton may adopt the 2023 CIE Annual Update.  Adoption is anticipated to occur by 

October 31, 2023. 

 

DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION 

Approval of the Resolution Authorizing the Transmittal of a Draft CIE 2023 Annual Update. 
 

REVIEW & APPROVALS 
 

 Legal Review:   Ken Jarrard, Jarrard & Davis, LLP  

 Concurrent Review:  Steven Krokoff, City Manager  

Attachment(s): Draft Capital Improvements Element (CIE) 2023 Annual Update 

for FY 2022 (10/1/21- 9/30/22; Resolution to Transmit the Draft 

Capital Improvements Element (CIE) 2023 Annual Update. 

 

 

 

 
244

Section 9, Item A.



STATE OF GEORGIA 

COUNTY OF FULTON       RESOLUTION NO.  

 

 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE TRANSMITTAL OF A DRAFT CAPITAL 

IMPROVEMENTS ELEMENT 2023 ANNUAL UPDATE TO THE ATLANTA REGIONAL 

COMMISSION FOR REGIONAL AND STATE REVIEW 
 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Milton previously adopted a Capital Improvements 

Element as an amendment to the Milton Comprehensive Plan; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Milton has prepared a 2023 Annual Update to the 

adopted Capital Improvements Element, which incorporates an impact fee 

financial report for FY 2022; and 

 

WHEREAS, the draft Capital Improvements Element 2023 Annual Update 

was prepared in accordance with the “Development Impact Fee Compliance 

Requirements” and the “Minimum Planning Standards and Procedures for Local 

Comprehensive Planning” adopted by the Department of Community Affairs 

pursuant to the Georgia Planning Act of 1989, and a duly advertised Public 

Hearing was held on August 21, 2023, at 6:00 p.m. in the City of Milton City Hall, 

2006 Heritage Walk;   

 

BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED that the City Council does hereby authorize the 

transmittal of the draft Capital Improvements Element 2023 Annual Update (a 

copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit “A”) to the Atlanta Regional 

Commission for Regional and State review, as per the requirements of the 

Development Impact Fee Compliance Requirements adopted pursuant to the 

Georgia Planning Act of 1989.  

 

RESOLVED this 21st day of August, 2023. 

 

             

        _________________________ 

Peyton Jamison, Mayor 

   

 

Attest: 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Tammy Lowit, City Clerk 

245

Section 9, Item A.



 

 

To:    Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
From:     Karen Ellis, Finance Director 
 
Date:   Submitted on August 11, 2023 for the August 21, 2023 Regular Council 

Meeting 
 
Agenda Item:   Consideration of the Issuance of an Alcohol Beverage License to 

BevShop LLC dba Beverage Shop, 13800 Hwy 9 N, Suite S, Milton, 

Georgia 30004 

____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Department Recommendation: 
Approve the issuance of an alcohol beverage license for BevShop LLC dba Beverage Shop 

for Retail Package - Wine, Malt Beverages, Distilled Spirits, Resident Caterer and Sunday 

Sales. 
 

Executive Summary: 
City of Milton Code of Ordinances Chapter 4 allows for the issuance of alcohol beverage 

licenses to businesses that properly submit application for and meet all the legal 

requirements to hold such license. This application is submitted due to the sale of the 

restaurant to a new owner.  

  

Staff has processed the application, has placed advertisements for 8/10/2023 and 

8/17/2023 and recommends issuance of the applicable license for: 

 

Business Name: BevShop LLC dba Beverage Shop 

Contact Name:  Amandeep Mavi 

Business Address: 13800 Hwy 9 N, Suite S, Milton, Georgia 30004 

Type of License: Retail Package – Wine, Malt Beverages, Distilled Spirits, Resident 

Caterer and Sunday Sales 

 

Funding and Fiscal Impact: 
There is a positive fiscal impact of license fees and/or monthly excise taxes. 

 

Alternatives: 
None. 

 

Legal Review: 
Not required. 

 

Concurrent Review: 
Steven Krokoff, City Manager 

 

246

Section 9, Item B.



 

 

To:    Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
From:     Karen Ellis, Finance Director 
 
Date:   Submitted on August 11, 2023 for the August 21, 2023 Regular Council 

Meeting 
 
Agenda Item:   Consideration of the Issuance of an Alcohol Beverage License to 

Whitetail Bicycles Inc, 1885 Heritage Walk, Milton, Georgia 30004 

____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Department Recommendation: 
Approve the issuance of an alcohol beverage license for Whitetail Bicycles Inc. for Limited 

Tap Consumption On-Premises. 
 

Executive Summary: 
City of Milton Code of Ordinances Chapter 4 allows for the issuance of alcohol beverage 

licenses to businesses that properly submit application for and meet all the legal 

requirements to hold such license. This application is submitted due to business moving to a 

new location.  

  

Staff has processed the application, has placed advertisements for 8/10/2023 and 

8/17/2023 and recommends issuance of the applicable license for: 

 

Business Name: Whitetail Bicycles Inc. 

Contact Name:  Shaune Huysamen 

Business Address: 1885 Heritage Walk, Milton, Georgia 30004 

Type of License: Limited Tap - Consumption On-Premises 

 

Funding and Fiscal Impact: 
There is a positive fiscal impact of license fees and/or monthly excise taxes. 

 

Alternatives: 
None. 

 

Legal Review: 
Not required. 

 

Concurrent Review: 
Steven Krokoff, City Manager 

 

247

Section 9, Item C.



 

STAFF MEMO: GENERAL 

 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
FROM: Bernadette Harvill, Deputy City Manager 
DATE: Submitted on August 2, 2023 for the August 7, 2023 Regular Council 

Meeting, August 14, 2023 Special Called Council Meeting, and August 
21, 2023 Regular Council Meeting  

AGENDA ITEM: Consideration of an Ordinance of the Mayor and Council of the City of 
Milton, Georgia, to Establish the Ad Valorem Tax Rate of the City of 
Milton for Fiscal Year 2024; and for Other Purposes. 

  
 

Executive Summary: 

The City has advertised and enclosed an ordinance based on a Maintenance and Operating 
(M&O) millage rate of 4.469 mills, which represents the City’s current millage rate for Fiscal Year 
2023). This approach allows Council to consider any millage rate up to the existing millage rate 
under the current advertisement rules outlined by the State (consideration of a millage rate 
above the current 4.469 mills will require additional advertising and public hearings).  

Staff will be presenting alternative reduced millage rate options below the existing 4.469 mills at 
three public hearing presentations along with a discussion of the draft FY 2024 budget at the 
August 14, 2023 Work Session.   A final ordinance will be drafted based on the approved millage 
rate at the August 21, 2023 Regular City Council Meeting.   

Staff has also calculated a bond millage rate of 0.364 mills for the General Obligation Bond, 
Series 2017 (i.e. greenspace bond) that was approved through referendum on the November 
2016 ballot. This will cover the seventh year of debt service payments totaling $1,710,125 and is 
separate from the M&O revenue projections enclosed.  

 

The Fulton County consolidation and evaluation of digest for tax year 202 reflects taxable 
assessments for real and personal property at $3,599,173,366 net of exemptions (please note 
HB710 passed in 2018 created a new floating exemption based on the consumer price index for 
properties with a current homestead exemption including the primary residence and five (5) 
contiguous acres of land which has more than doubled the City’s exemptions).  

 

The State of Georgia requires two calculations when comparing year over year tax collection 
rates.  The calculation of percentage increase/decrease in property taxes involves the 
calculation of a rollback rate. The rollback rate takes reassessments of existing real property and 
other net changes to the digest, such as new construction, into consideration (please see 
advertisement #1 enclosed).  According to this calculation, maintaining a 4.469 M&O millage 
rate represents an increase of 1.82% from the updated 2022 digest figures provided by Fulton 

248

Section 9, Item D.



County. The main factor causing this increase is the reassessment of existing real property and 
the related impact of the floating exemption calculation related to these reassessments.   

 

The second calculation (advertisement #2 enclosed) represents the five-year history of levy. This 
formula compares taxes levied year over year without consideration of the impacts related 
directly to reassessments of existing real property. The result is a 11.6% increase year over year 
levy anticipation (based on a 100% collection rate) for the 2023 tax year when compared to 
the updated figures for 2022.          

 

Motor vehicle assessed values in 2023 are $8,740,350 and have decreased by 6.5% since 2022. 
This decline is a result of HB386, which is phasing out motor vehicle taxes (or the “birthday tax”) 
and replacing it with the title ad valorem tax (TAVT). The TAVT is a one-time title fee that is paid 
on all vehicle sales. It is not a property tax and is, therefore, not included in the tax digest. 

 

Funding and Fiscal Impact: 

For each millage rate option, the projected amount of property taxes to be levied for M&O 
purposes can be seen below in the 100% collection rate column and the year one forecasted 
collections based on historical trend can be seen in the 97% column for real property and the 
65% column for personal property.  

Real Property - Projected Revenues by Millage Rate 

               

 
Personal Property – Projected Revenues by Millage Rate 

 
 

100% 97%
4.469 15,706,232  15,235,045  
4.395 15,446,160  14,982,775  
4.389 15,425,073  14,962,321  

Millage 
Rate

Collection Rate

100% 65%
4.469 300,352       195,229       
4.395 295,379       191,996       
4.389 294,976       191,734       

Collection Rate

Millage 
Rate

249

Section 9, Item D.



Historically, Milton has experienced a collection rate of approximately 97% of the projected real 
property digest and 65% of the projected personal property digest in year one of collections.  

  

Alternatives: Other Council directed action. 

Legal Review: Not required.  

Concurrent Review: Steve Krokoff, City Manager 

250

Section 9, Item D.



- THE CODE OF THE 
Appendix A FEES AND OTHER CHARGES 

 

 

 

Milton, Georgia, Code of Ordinances    Created: 2022‐03‐22 16:34:12 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 40) 

 
Page 1 of 3 

Appendix A FEES AND OTHER CHARGES1 

FEES AND OTHER CHARGES  

Chapter 52—Taxation 
 

52-19(b)  Ad valorem taxes on 
property  

For property subject to the ad valorem 
tax  

$4.9214.833 on 40 
percent of each 
$1,000.00 of property 
(general government 
purposes at $4.469 
and retiring 
outstanding general 
obligation bonds at 
$0.4520.364)  

52-22(b)  Penalties and interest 
for the delinquent of 
the ad valorem taxes  

For property subject to the ad valorem 
tax  

A penalty of 5% is 
applied to the 
amount of tax due if 
not paid within 120 
days of the bill date. 
After 120 days from 
the imposition of the 
initial penalty, an 
additional 5% of any 
tax amount 
remaining due shall 
be imposed. This will 
continue every 120 
days not to exceed 
20% of the principal 
amount of the tax 
originally due. The 
penalty shall not 
apply to the 
following:  
(1) Ad valorem taxes 
of $500.00 or less on 
homesteaded 
property;  

 

1Editor's note(s)—Section 1 of Ord. No. 12-09-147, adopted Sept. 17, 2012, repealed the former App. A, and 
enacted a new App. A as set out herein. The former App. A pertained to similar subject matter, and derived 
from Ord. No. 11-12-120, adopted Dec. 5, 2011. See the Code Comparative Table for a complete derivation.  

251

Section 9, Item D.



- THE CODE OF THE 
Appendix A FEES AND OTHER CHARGES 

 

 

 

Milton, Georgia, Code of Ordinances    Created: 2022‐03‐22 16:34:12 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 40) 

 
Page 2 of 3 

(2) Homesteaded 
property acquired 
during the tax year by 
a new owner who did 
not receive a bill and 
who before acquiring 
such property resided 
outside the State of 
GA and if taxes are 
paid within one year 
following the due 
date.  
   
Interest on 
delinquent taxes due 
shall be calculated at 
an annual rate equal 
to the bank prime 
loan rate as posted 
by the board of 
governors of the 
Federal Reserve 
System in statistical 
release H.15 or any 
publication that may 
supersede it, plus 3%, 
to accrue monthly.  

52-46 Penalty for delinquent 
payment  

For hotel and motel tax  Penalties of 10% of 
amount of taxes due 
to the city, plus 1% 
interest per month 
on the unpaid tax  

52-47 Hotel and motel 
excise tax  

For hotel and motel rent  3% of the rent for 
every occupancy of a 
guestroom in a hotel 
in the city  

52-94 
(a)(1)  

Rental motor vehicle 
excise tax  

For motor vehicle rented  3% of the rental 
charge. If paid on or 
before the 20th day 
of the preceding 
calendar month, the 
tax payer may retain 
a credit in the 

252

Section 9, Item D.



- THE CODE OF THE 
Appendix A FEES AND OTHER CHARGES 

 

 

 

Milton, Georgia, Code of Ordinances    Created: 2022‐03‐22 16:34:12 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 40) 

 
Page 3 of 3 

amount of 3% of the 
tax due.  

52-116 Penalties and interest 
for failure to remit 
taxes  

For rental motor vehicle excise tax  A penalty of 5% of 
the tax then due, plus 
1% interest per 
month thereon the 
unpaid principal 
amount due  

52-118(b)  Interest on the 
deficiency determined  

For excise tax  1% per month or 
fraction thereof from 
the due date of the 
taxes  

 

253

Section 9, Item D.



 

 

 
    Created: 2022‐03‐22 16:33:29 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 40) 

 
Page 1 of 1 

Sec. 52-19. Levied. 

(a) Authority.Section 1.12(40) of the city Charter authorizes the city to levy and provide the assessment and 
collection of ad valorem taxes on all property subject to taxation.  

(b) [Rate.] The ad valorem tax rate for the City of Milton, Georgia for the 20214 fiscal year, on property subject 
to ad valorem taxation by the city is hereby fixed at $4.9214.833 on 40 percent of each $1,000.00 of property 
subject to ad valorem tax by the city.  

(Ord. No. 08-08-22, § I, 8-11-2008; Ord. No. 09-09-52, § I, 9-28-2009; Ord. No. 18-08-371 , § I, 8-13-2018; Ord. No. 
19-08-401 , § I, 8-12-2019; Ord. No. 20-08-443 , § I, 8-10-2020) 

Sec. 52-20. To be used for general governmental purposes. 

(a) For general government purposes $4.469 on 40 percent of each $1,000.00 of taxable property.  

(b) For the purpose of retiring outstanding General Obligation bonds, $0.4520.364 on 40 percent of each 
$1,000.00 of taxable property.  

(Ord. No. 08-08-22, § II, 8-11-2008; Ord. No. 09-09-52, § II, 9-28-2009; Ord. No. 18-08-371 , § II, 8-13-2018; Ord. 
No. 19-08-401 , § II, 8-12-2019; Ord. No. 20-08-443 , § II, 8-10-2020) 

 

254

Section 9, Item D.



Page 1 of 2 
 

 
STATE OF GEORGIA      ORDINANCE NO. 
COUNTY OF FULTON 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MILTON, GEORGIA, TO ESTABLISH THE AD VALOREM TAX RATE OF 

THE CITY OF MILTON FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024; AND FOR OTHER 
PURPOSES 

 
 
WHEREAS,  the Charter of the City of Milton, Georgia authorizes the City to levy and 
provide for the assessment of ad valorem property taxes on all property subject to 
taxation; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Charter of the City of Milton, Georgia provides that the valuation of all 
property subject to taxation by the City shall be determined according to the tax digest 
prepared by the Fulton County Board of Tax Assessors; and 
 
WHEREAS,  the Mayor and City Council, after hearing and after duly considering all 
such relevant evidence, testimony and public comments, has determined that it is in the 
best interests of, and necessary to meet the expenses and obligations of, the City of 
Milton, Georgia to set a levy in the amount of $4.833 on each $1,000.00 of taxable value 
for all property subject to ad valorem taxation by the City; now 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Milton, Georgia as 
follows: 
 
SECTION I:    The ad valorem tax rate for the City of Milton, Georgia for the 2024 
fiscal year, on property subject to ad valorem taxation by the City is hereby fixed at 
$4.833 on forty percent (40%) of each $1,000.00 of property subject to ad valorem tax by 
the City. 
 
SECTION II:   Said rate of $4.833 on forty percent (40%) of each $1,000.00 of taxable 
property is hereby levied as follows: 

 
(a) For General Government purposes $4.469 on forty percent (40%) of each 

$1,000.00 of taxable property. 
 

(b) For the purpose of retiring outstanding General Obligation bonds, $0.364 on 
forty percent (40%) of each $1,000.00 of taxable property. 

 
SECTION III: All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed. 
  

255

Section 9, Item D.



Page 2 of 2 
 

 
ORDAINED this the ____day of ________, 2023. 
 
 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Peyton Jamison, Mayor 

 
 

 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
___________________________ 
Tammy Lowit, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
(SEAL) 

256

Section 9, Item D.



 

STAFF MEMO: GENERAL 

 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
FROM: Bernadette Harvill, Deputy City Manager 
DATE: Submitted on August 2, 2023 for the August 7, 2023 Regular Council 

Meeting, August 14, 2023 Special Called Council Meeting, and August 
21, 2023 Regular Council Meeting  

AGENDA ITEM: Consideration of an Ordinance of the Mayor and Council of the City of 
Milton, Georgia, to Establish the Ad Valorem Tax Rate of the City of 
Milton for Fiscal Year 2024; and for Other Purposes. 

  
 

Executive Summary: 

The City has advertised and enclosed an ordinance based on a Maintenance and Operating 
(M&O) millage rate of 4.469 mills, which represents the City’s current millage rate for Fiscal Year 
2023). This approach allows Council to consider any millage rate up to the existing millage rate 
under the current advertisement rules outlined by the State (consideration of a millage rate 
above the current 4.469 mills will require additional advertising and public hearings).  

Staff will be presenting alternative reduced millage rate options below the existing 4.469 mills at 
three public hearing presentations along with a discussion of the draft FY 2024 budget at the 
August 14, 2023 Work Session.   A final ordinance will be drafted based on the approved millage 
rate at the August 21, 2023 Regular City Council Meeting.   

Staff has also calculated a bond millage rate of 0.364 mills for the General Obligation Bond, 
Series 2017 (i.e. greenspace bond) that was approved through referendum on the November 
2016 ballot. This will cover the seventh year of debt service payments totaling $1,710,125 and is 
separate from the M&O revenue projections enclosed.  

 

The Fulton County consolidation and evaluation of digest for tax year 202 reflects taxable 
assessments for real and personal property at $3,599,173,366 net of exemptions (please note 
HB710 passed in 2018 created a new floating exemption based on the consumer price index for 
properties with a current homestead exemption including the primary residence and five (5) 
contiguous acres of land which has more than doubled the City’s exemptions).  

 

The State of Georgia requires two calculations when comparing year over year tax collection 
rates.  The calculation of percentage increase/decrease in property taxes involves the 
calculation of a rollback rate. The rollback rate takes reassessments of existing real property and 
other net changes to the digest, such as new construction, into consideration (please see 
advertisement #1 enclosed).  According to this calculation, maintaining a 4.469 M&O millage 
rate represents an increase of 1.82% from the updated 2022 digest figures provided by Fulton 

257

Section 11, Item A.



County. The main factor causing this increase is the reassessment of existing real property and 
the related impact of the floating exemption calculation related to these reassessments.   

 

The second calculation (advertisement #2 enclosed) represents the five-year history of levy. This 
formula compares taxes levied year over year without consideration of the impacts related 
directly to reassessments of existing real property. The result is a 11.6% increase year over year 
levy anticipation (based on a 100% collection rate) for the 2023 tax year when compared to 
the updated figures for 2022.          

 

Motor vehicle assessed values in 2023 are $8,740,350 and have decreased by 6.5% since 2022. 
This decline is a result of HB386, which is phasing out motor vehicle taxes (or the “birthday tax”) 
and replacing it with the title ad valorem tax (TAVT). The TAVT is a one-time title fee that is paid 
on all vehicle sales. It is not a property tax and is, therefore, not included in the tax digest. 

 

Funding and Fiscal Impact: 

For each millage rate option, the projected amount of property taxes to be levied for M&O 
purposes can be seen below in the 100% collection rate column and the year one forecasted 
collections based on historical trend can be seen in the 97% column for real property and the 
65% column for personal property.  

Real Property - Projected Revenues by Millage Rate 

               

 
Personal Property – Projected Revenues by Millage Rate 

 
 

100% 97%
4.469 15,706,232  15,235,045  
4.395 15,446,160  14,982,775  
4.389 15,425,073  14,962,321  

Millage 
Rate

Collection Rate

100% 65%
4.469 300,352       195,229       
4.395 295,379       191,996       
4.389 294,976       191,734       

Collection Rate

Millage 
Rate

258

Section 11, Item A.



Historically, Milton has experienced a collection rate of approximately 97% of the projected real 
property digest and 65% of the projected personal property digest in year one of collections.  

  

Alternatives: Other Council directed action. 

Legal Review: Not required.  

Concurrent Review: Steve Krokoff, City Manager 

259

Section 11, Item A.



- THE CODE OF THE 
Appendix A FEES AND OTHER CHARGES 

 

 

 

Milton, Georgia, Code of Ordinances    Created: 2022‐03‐22 16:34:12 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 40) 

 
Page 1 of 3 

Appendix A FEES AND OTHER CHARGES1 

FEES AND OTHER CHARGES  

Chapter 52—Taxation 
 

52-19(b)  Ad valorem taxes on 
property  

For property subject to the ad valorem 
tax  

$4.9214.833 on 40 
percent of each 
$1,000.00 of property 
(general government 
purposes at $4.469 
and retiring 
outstanding general 
obligation bonds at 
$0.4520.364)  

52-22(b)  Penalties and interest 
for the delinquent of 
the ad valorem taxes  

For property subject to the ad valorem 
tax  

A penalty of 5% is 
applied to the 
amount of tax due if 
not paid within 120 
days of the bill date. 
After 120 days from 
the imposition of the 
initial penalty, an 
additional 5% of any 
tax amount 
remaining due shall 
be imposed. This will 
continue every 120 
days not to exceed 
20% of the principal 
amount of the tax 
originally due. The 
penalty shall not 
apply to the 
following:  
(1) Ad valorem taxes 
of $500.00 or less on 
homesteaded 
property;  

 

1Editor's note(s)—Section 1 of Ord. No. 12-09-147, adopted Sept. 17, 2012, repealed the former App. A, and 
enacted a new App. A as set out herein. The former App. A pertained to similar subject matter, and derived 
from Ord. No. 11-12-120, adopted Dec. 5, 2011. See the Code Comparative Table for a complete derivation.  

260

Section 11, Item A.



- THE CODE OF THE 
Appendix A FEES AND OTHER CHARGES 

 

 

 

Milton, Georgia, Code of Ordinances    Created: 2022‐03‐22 16:34:12 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 40) 

 
Page 2 of 3 

(2) Homesteaded 
property acquired 
during the tax year by 
a new owner who did 
not receive a bill and 
who before acquiring 
such property resided 
outside the State of 
GA and if taxes are 
paid within one year 
following the due 
date.  
   
Interest on 
delinquent taxes due 
shall be calculated at 
an annual rate equal 
to the bank prime 
loan rate as posted 
by the board of 
governors of the 
Federal Reserve 
System in statistical 
release H.15 or any 
publication that may 
supersede it, plus 3%, 
to accrue monthly.  

52-46 Penalty for delinquent 
payment  

For hotel and motel tax  Penalties of 10% of 
amount of taxes due 
to the city, plus 1% 
interest per month 
on the unpaid tax  

52-47 Hotel and motel 
excise tax  

For hotel and motel rent  3% of the rent for 
every occupancy of a 
guestroom in a hotel 
in the city  

52-94 
(a)(1)  

Rental motor vehicle 
excise tax  

For motor vehicle rented  3% of the rental 
charge. If paid on or 
before the 20th day 
of the preceding 
calendar month, the 
tax payer may retain 
a credit in the 

261

Section 11, Item A.



- THE CODE OF THE 
Appendix A FEES AND OTHER CHARGES 

 

 

 

Milton, Georgia, Code of Ordinances    Created: 2022‐03‐22 16:34:12 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 40) 

 
Page 3 of 3 

amount of 3% of the 
tax due.  

52-116 Penalties and interest 
for failure to remit 
taxes  

For rental motor vehicle excise tax  A penalty of 5% of 
the tax then due, plus 
1% interest per 
month thereon the 
unpaid principal 
amount due  

52-118(b)  Interest on the 
deficiency determined  

For excise tax  1% per month or 
fraction thereof from 
the due date of the 
taxes  

 

262

Section 11, Item A.



 

 

 
    Created: 2022‐03‐22 16:33:29 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 40) 

 
Page 1 of 1 

Sec. 52-19. Levied. 

(a) Authority.Section 1.12(40) of the city Charter authorizes the city to levy and provide the assessment and 
collection of ad valorem taxes on all property subject to taxation.  

(b) [Rate.] The ad valorem tax rate for the City of Milton, Georgia for the 20214 fiscal year, on property subject 
to ad valorem taxation by the city is hereby fixed at $4.9214.833 on 40 percent of each $1,000.00 of property 
subject to ad valorem tax by the city.  

(Ord. No. 08-08-22, § I, 8-11-2008; Ord. No. 09-09-52, § I, 9-28-2009; Ord. No. 18-08-371 , § I, 8-13-2018; Ord. No. 
19-08-401 , § I, 8-12-2019; Ord. No. 20-08-443 , § I, 8-10-2020) 

Sec. 52-20. To be used for general governmental purposes. 

(a) For general government purposes $4.469 on 40 percent of each $1,000.00 of taxable property.  

(b) For the purpose of retiring outstanding General Obligation bonds, $0.4520.364 on 40 percent of each 
$1,000.00 of taxable property.  

(Ord. No. 08-08-22, § II, 8-11-2008; Ord. No. 09-09-52, § II, 9-28-2009; Ord. No. 18-08-371 , § II, 8-13-2018; Ord. 
No. 19-08-401 , § II, 8-12-2019; Ord. No. 20-08-443 , § II, 8-10-2020) 

 

263

Section 11, Item A.



Page 1 of 2 
 

 
STATE OF GEORGIA      ORDINANCE NO. 
COUNTY OF FULTON 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MILTON, GEORGIA, TO ESTABLISH THE AD VALOREM TAX RATE OF 

THE CITY OF MILTON FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024; AND FOR OTHER 
PURPOSES 

 
 
WHEREAS,  the Charter of the City of Milton, Georgia authorizes the City to levy and 
provide for the assessment of ad valorem property taxes on all property subject to 
taxation; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Charter of the City of Milton, Georgia provides that the valuation of all 
property subject to taxation by the City shall be determined according to the tax digest 
prepared by the Fulton County Board of Tax Assessors; and 
 
WHEREAS,  the Mayor and City Council, after hearing and after duly considering all 
such relevant evidence, testimony and public comments, has determined that it is in the 
best interests of, and necessary to meet the expenses and obligations of, the City of 
Milton, Georgia to set a levy in the amount of $4.833 on each $1,000.00 of taxable value 
for all property subject to ad valorem taxation by the City; now 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Milton, Georgia as 
follows: 
 
SECTION I:    The ad valorem tax rate for the City of Milton, Georgia for the 2024 
fiscal year, on property subject to ad valorem taxation by the City is hereby fixed at 
$4.833 on forty percent (40%) of each $1,000.00 of property subject to ad valorem tax by 
the City. 
 
SECTION II:   Said rate of $4.833 on forty percent (40%) of each $1,000.00 of taxable 
property is hereby levied as follows: 

 
(a) For General Government purposes $4.469 on forty percent (40%) of each 

$1,000.00 of taxable property. 
 

(b) For the purpose of retiring outstanding General Obligation bonds, $0.364 on 
forty percent (40%) of each $1,000.00 of taxable property. 

 
SECTION III: All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed. 
  

264

Section 11, Item A.



Page 2 of 2 
 

 
ORDAINED this the ____day of ________, 2023. 
 
 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Peyton Jamison, Mayor 

 
 

 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
___________________________ 
Tammy Lowit, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
(SEAL) 

265

Section 11, Item A.



 

 

 

To:    Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

 

From:     Robert Buscemi, Community Development Director 

 

Date:   Submitted on August 14, 2023 for the August 21, 2023 

Regular Council Meeting 

 

Agenda Item:   Consideration of Final Plats  

____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Department Recommendation:  

 

To approve the final plat as stated below. 

 

Executive Summary:  

 

The Milton Subdivision Regulations require that the Mayor and City Council approve all 

Final Plats, final Plat Re-recording, Revisions and Minor Plats once the matter has been 

reviewed and certified by the Community Development Director in accordance with 

the Subdivision Regulations.   

 

1. The Final Plat for Whisper Woods described herein consists of 5 lots on 11.492 

acres located on New Providence Road.  This is a gated development with lots 

ranging in size from 1.208 to 2.630 acres and a separate lot dedicated for 

stormwater detention. 

 

 

 

 

Funding and Fiscal Impact: 

None. 

 

 

Alternatives: 

Do not approve. 

 

 

Legal Review: 

None – not required. 

  

 

 

 

266

Section 12, Item A.



 

 

New Business Agenda Plats Staff Memo 
 

Page 2 of 6 
 

 

 

Concurrent Review: 

Steven Krokoff, City Manager 

 

 

Attachment(s):  

Plat List, Location Map, Plats 

 

 

Name of Development / 

Location 
Action Comments / # lots Total Acres Density 

 

Whisper Woods 

New Providence Road 

LL 847 & 848 

Dist. 2   Sec. 2 

 

Final Plat 

 

5 Single-Family Lots 

 

 

11.492 

Acres 

 

 

 

0.44 

Lots /Acre 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

267

Section 12, Item A.



 

 

New Business Agenda Plats Staff Memo 
 

Page 3 of 6 
 

Whisper Woods - Location Map 

268

Section 12, Item A.



 

 

New Business Agenda Plats Staff Memo 
 

Page 4 of 6 
 

Whisper Woods 

 

269

Section 12, Item A.



 

 

New Business Agenda Plats Staff Memo 
 

Page 5 of 6 
 

Whisper Woods 

 

270

Section 12, Item A.



 

 

New Business Agenda Plats Staff Memo 
 

Page 6 of 6 
 

Whisper Woods 

 

271

Section 12, Item A.



 

 

 

 

 

To:    Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
From:     Steven Krokoff, City Manager 
 
Date:   Submitted on August 17, 2023 for the August 21, 2023 Regular Council 

Meeting 
 
Agenda Item:   Consideration of a Resolution of the City of Milton, Georgia Authorizing 

Issuance of Seven-Day Notice of Termination of Consulting Contract 

with Vernetta Keith Nuriddin and Termination of Said Contract and 

Approving Consulting Contract with Lavania White  
____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Department Recommendation: 
Approve the resolution as submitted. 
 

Executive Summary: 
This resolution authorizes the City to terminate the consulting agreement with Ms. Nuriddin 

following the necessary issuance of a seven-day notice of termination. Furthermore, it 

approves and authorizes the Mayor to sign a consulting arrangement with Ms. Lavania 

White, who brings with her more than a decade of expertise as a poll worker in Fulton 

County. Ms. White’s roles have ranged from poll clerk to poll manager. Having already 

contributed significantly to our election preparations, we are excited to formalize this 

consulting arrangement with Ms. White as our consultant. 

 

Funding and Fiscal Impact: 
The fiscal impact will be approximately $12,500 for Ms. White’s agreement.  

 

Legal Review: 
Ken Jarrard, Jarrard & Davis, LLP – August 17, 2023 

 

Concurrent Review: 
None 

 

Attachments: 
1. Resolution 

2. Termination Letter 

3. PSA for Consultant 

272

Section 12, Item B.



Page 1 of 2 

 

 

STATE OF GEORGIA              RESOLUTION NO.      

FULTON COUNTY 

 

 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF MILTON, GEORGIA 

AUTHORIZING ISSUANCE OF SEVEN-DAY NOTICE OF TERMINATION OF 

CONSULTING CONTRACT WITH VERNETTA KEITH NURIDDIN AND 

TERMINATION OF SAID CONTRACT AND APPROVING CONSULTING 

CONTRACT WITH LAVANIA WHITE   

 

  

 WHEREAS, the City of Milton (“City”) is a duly authorized municipal corporation with 

all the powers vested in such municipalities by the Georgia Constitution, general law, and its 

City Charter; 

 

 WHEREAS, the City is currently undertaking to conduct its own 2023 municipal 

election; 

 

 WHEREAS, to that end, on June 5, 2023, the City retained the services of Vernetta 

Nuriddin to act as an independent election consultant/contractor via a Professional Services 

Agreement (“Nuriddin Contract”) to aid the City Election Superintendent; 

 

 WHEREAS, the City wishes to terminate the Nuriddin Contract under Section VI(A), for 

convenience; 

 

 WHEREAS, the City wishes to approve an election consultant contract with Lavania 

White (“White Contract”); and, 

 

 WHEREAS, the City otherwise authorizes City staff and the City attorney to issue any 

required notices and expend any required or necessary fees or funds to fulfill the objectives of 

this Resolution and the City. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Mayor and Council of the City of 

Milton, Georgia, that the following is authorized, directed, and approved: 

 

1. The City hereby directs that the seven (7) calendar day notice of termination of the 

Nuriddin Contract be issued in a form substantially in accord with that attached hereto as 

Exhibit A; 

 

2. That, following the seventh (7th) calendar day of that notice being received, the Nuriddin 

Contract shall stand terminated; 

 

3. That the City hereby approves the White Contract (Exhibit B); and 

 

4. City staff and the City attorney are hereby authorized to undertake any additional tasks, 

functions, or actions, to include any necessary or appropriate expenditures of funds or 

fees, to fulfill the objectives of this Resolution. 

 

SO RESOLVED, this ____ day of August, 2023. 

         

 
273

Section 12, Item B.



Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 

 

        ______________________________ 

        Peyton Jamison, Mayor 

 

 

Attest:         

 

 

 

 

       

Tammy Lowit, City Clerk     

 

 

 

Exhibit 

 

 

 

 

274

Section 12, Item B.



 

 

VIA OVERNIGHT DELIVERY 

Vernetta Keith Nuriddin 
 

 
 
 Re: 7-day notice of termination of Professional Services Agreement 
 
Ms. Nuriddin: 
 
 On August 21, 2023, the City Council authorized issuance of the 7-day notice of termination letter 
regarding your Professional Services Agreement (“Agreement”) with the City. Termination is for 
convenience pursuant to Section VI(A) of the Agreement.  Termination shall automatically occur following 
the seventh (7th) calendar day of your receipt of this notice.  Under Section VI(D), the City is committed to 
ensuring full payment to you for expenses incurred prior to the date of termination.  Please provide 
documentation of any expenses at your earliest convenience. 
 
 The City of Milton requires adherence to Section VI(E), following termination. 
 
 Thank you for your service.  Best of luck in future endeavors. 
 
 
 [Signature] 
 
 

275

Section 12, Item B.



 

 
 
 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this  day of   , 20     
(the “Effective Date”), by and between the CITY OF MILTON, GEORGIA, a municipal 
corporation of the State of Georgia, acting by and through its governing authority, the Mayor and 
City  Council  (hereinafter referred  to as  the “City”), and LAVANIA WHITE  , a Georgia 
individual/sole proprietor, (hereinafter referred to as the "Consultant"), collectively referred to 
herein as the "Parties." 

 
WITNESSETH: 

 
WHEREAS, City desires to retain Consultant to provide certain services in the completion 

of a Project (defined below); and 
 

WHEREAS, City finds that specialized knowledge, skills, and training are necessary to 
perform the Work (defined below) contemplated under this Agreement; and 

 
WHEREAS, Consultant has represented that it is qualified by training and experience to 

perform the Work; and 
 

WHEREAS, Consultant desires to perform the Work as set forth in this Agreement under 
the terms and conditions provided in this Agreement; and 

 
WHEREAS, the public interest will be served by this Agreement; and 

 
WHEREAS, Consultant has familiarized herself with the nature and extent of the 

Agreement, the Project, and the Work, and with all local conditions and federal, state and local 
laws, ordinances, rules and regulations that may in any manner affect cost, progress or performance 
of Work. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual promises, the public 

purposes, and the acknowledgements and agreements contained herein, and other good and 
adequate consideration, the sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties do mutually 
agree as follows: 

276

Section 12, Item B.



I. SCOPE OF SERVICES AND TERMINATION DATE 
 

A. Agreement. The Agreement shall consist of this Professional Services 
Agreement and each of the Exhibits hereto, which are incorporated herein by reference, 
including: 

 
Exhibit “A” – Scope of Work  
Exhibit “B” – Certificate of Insurance 
Exhibit “C” – Reserved 
Exhibit “D” – Contractor Affidavit 
Exhibit “E” – Reserved  
Exhibit “F” – Reserved 

 
B. Project Description. The “Project” at issue in this Agreement is generally described 

as: provide consulting services for city elections and assist Milton’s Election Superintendent with 
preparations for conducting the City’s general election in November 2023 and subsequent run-off 
election, if needed and terminates the day following the deadline for County Certification of 
Election Returns for the November Municipal General Election per O.C.G.A. §21-2-493(k). 

 
C. The Work. The Work to be completed under this Agreement (the “Work”) may 

include, but shall not be limited to, the work described in the Scope of Work provided in Exhibit 
“A”, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. Unless otherwise stated in Exhibit “A”, 
the Work includes all material, labor, insurance, tools, equipment, machinery, water, heat, utilities, 
transportation, facilities, services and any other miscellaneous items and work necessary to 
complete the Work. Some details necessary for proper execution and completion of the Work may 
not be specifically described in the Scope of Work, but they are a requirement of the Work if they 
are a usual and customary component of the contemplated services or are otherwise necessary for 
proper completion of the Work. 

 
D. Schedule, Completion Date, and Term of Agreement. Consultant understands 

that time is of the essence of this Agreement and warrants and represents that it will perform the 
Work in a prompt and timely manner, which shall not impose delays on the progress of the Work. 
The term of this Agreement (“Term”) shall commence as of the Effective Date, and the Work shall 
be completed, and the Agreement shall terminate, on or before December 31, 2023 (provided that 
certain obligations will survive termination/expiration of this Agreement). If the Term of this 
Agreement is longer than one year, the Parties agree that this Agreement, as required by O.C.G.A. 
§ 36-60-13, shall terminate absolutely and without further obligation on the part of City on 
December 31 each calendar year of the Term, and further, that this Agreement shall automatically 
renew on January 1 of each subsequent calendar year absent City’s provision of written notice of 
non-renewal to Consultant at least five (5) days prior to the end of the then current calendar year. 
Title to any supplies, materials, equipment, or other personal property shall remain in Consultant 
until fully paid for by City. 

 
II. WORK CHANGES 

 
A. Change Order Defined. A “Change Order” means a written modification of the 

Agreement, signed by representatives of City and Consultant with appropriate authorization. 

277

Section 12, Item B.



 

B. Right to Order Changes. City reserves the right to order changes in the Work to 
be performed under this Agreement by altering, adding to, or deducting from the Work. All such 
changes shall be incorporated in written Change Orders and executed by Consultant and City. Such 
Change Orders shall specify the changes ordered and any necessary adjustment of compensation 
and completion time. If the Parties cannot reach an agreement on the terms for performing the 
changed work within a reasonable time to avoid delay or other unfavorable impacts as determined 
by City in its sole discretion, City shall have the right to determine reasonable terms, and Consultant 
shall proceed with the changed work. 

 
B. Change Order Requirement. Any work added to the scope of this Agreement by 

a Change Order shall be executed under all the applicable conditions of this Agreement. No claim 
for additional compensation or extension of time shall be recognized, unless contained in a written 
Change Order duly executed on behalf of City and Consultant. 

 
C. Authority to Execute Change Order. The City Manager has authority to execute, 

without further action of the Mayor or City Council, any number of Change Orders so long as their 
total effect does not materially alter the terms of this Agreement or materially increase the 
Maximum Contract Price, as set forth in Section III(B) below. Any such Change Orders materially 
altering the terms of this Agreement, or any Change Order affecting the price where the Maximum 
Contract Price (as amended) is in excess of $50,000, must be approved by resolution of the Mayor 
and City Council. Amendments shall not result in a variance in price exceeding ten percent of the 
original contract amount. 

 
III. COMPENSATION AND METHOD OF PAYMENT 

 
A. Payment Terms. City agrees to pay Consultant for the Work performed and costs 

incurred by Consultant upon certification by City that the Work was actually performed and costs 
actually incurred in accordance with the Agreement. Compensation for Work performed and, if 
applicable, reimbursement for costs incurred shall be paid to Consultant upon City’s receipt and 
approval of invoices, setting forth in detail the services performed and costs incurred, along with 
all supporting documents requested by City to process the invoice. Invoices shall be submitted on 
a monthly basis, and such invoices shall reflect costs incurred versus costs budgeted. Any material 
deviations in tests or inspections performed, or times or locations required to complete such tests 
or inspections, and like deviations from the Work described in this Agreement shall be clearly 
communicated to City before charges are incurred and shall be handled through Change Orders as 
described in Section II above. City shall pay Consultant within thirty (30) days after approval of 
the invoice by City staff. 

 
B. Maximum Contract Price. The total amount paid under this Agreement as 

compensation for Work performed and reimbursement for costs incurred shall not, in any case, 
exceed TWELVE-THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($12,500.00) (the “Maximum 
Contract Price”), except as outlined in Section II(C) above, and Consultant represents that this 
amount is sufficient to perform all of the Work set forth in and contemplated by this Agreement. 
The compensation for Work performed shall be based upon a flat fee to be paid in three equal 
payments, commencing August 21, 2023 and ending November 30, 2023. Each installment is to 
be paid by the 1st of each month beginning September 1, 2023.        

278

Section 12, Item B.



C. Reimbursement for Costs. The Maximum Contract Price set forth in Section 
III(B) above includes all costs, direct and indirect, needed to perform the Work and complete the 
Project, and reimbursement for costs incurred shall be limited as follows: 

 

There shall be no reimbursement for costs. 
 

 

IV. COVENANTS OF CONSULTANT 
 

A. Expertise of Consultant; Licenses, Certification and Permits. Consultant 
accepts the relationship of trust and confidence established between it and City, recognizing that 
City’s intention and purpose in entering into this Agreement is to engage an entity with the requisite 
capacity, experience, and professional skill and judgment to provide the Work in pursuit of the 
timely and competent completion of the Work undertaken by Consultant under this Agreement. 
Consultant shall employ only persons duly qualified in the appropriate area of expertise to perform 
the Work described in this Agreement. 

 
Consultant covenants and declares that it has obtained all diplomas, certificates, licenses, 

permits or the like required of Consultant by any and all national, state, regional, county, or local 
boards, agencies, commissions, committees or other regulatory bodies in order to perform the Work 
contracted for under this Agreement. Further, Consultant agrees that it will perform all Work in 
accordance with the standard of care and quality ordinarily expected of competent professionals and 
in compliance with all federal, state, and local laws, regulations, codes, ordinances, or orders 
applicable to the Project, including, but not limited to, any applicable records retention requirements 
and Georgia’s Open Records Act (O.C.G.A. § 50-18-71, et seq.). Any additional work or costs 
incurred as a result of error and/or omission by Consultant as a result of not meeting the applicable 
standard of care or quality will be provided by Consultant at no additional cost to City. This 
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement. 

 
B. City’s Reliance on the Work. Consultant acknowledges and agrees that City does 

not undertake to approve or pass upon matters of expertise of Consultant and that, therefore, City 
bears no responsibility for Consultant’s Work performed under this Agreement. Consultant 
acknowledges and agrees that the acceptance of Work by City is limited to the function of 
determining whether there has been compliance with what is required to be produced under this 
Agreement. City will not, and need not, inquire into adequacy, fitness, suitability or correctness of 
Consultant’s performance. Consultant further agrees that no approval of designs, plans, 
specifications or other work product by any person, body or agency shall relieve Consultant of the 
responsibility for adequacy, fitness, suitability, and correctness of Consultant’s Work under 
professional and industry standards, or for performing services under this Agreement in 

x 

279

Section 12, Item B.



accordance with sound and accepted professional and industry principles. 
 

C. Consultant’s Reliance on Submissions by City.  Consultant must have timely 
information and input from City in order to perform the Work required under this Agreement. 
Consultant is entitled to rely upon information provided by City, but Consultant shall provide 
immediate written notice to City if Consultant knows or reasonably should know that any 
information provided by City is erroneous, inconsistent, or otherwise problematic. 

 

D. C onsultant’s Representative.  Lavania White  
shall be authorized to act on Consultant’s behalf with respect to the Work as Consultant’s 
designated representative, provided that this designation shall not relieve either Party of any 
written notice requirements set forth elsewhere in this Agreement. 

 
E. Assignment of Agreement. Consultant covenants and agrees not to assign or 

transfer any interest in, or delegate any duties of this Agreement, without the prior express written 
consent of City. As to any approved subcontractors, Consultant shall be solely responsible for 
reimbursing them, and City shall have no obligation to them. 

 
F. Responsibility of Consultant and Indemnification of City. Consultant covenants 

and agrees to take and assume all responsibility for the Work rendered in connection with this 
Agreement. Consultant shall bear all losses and damages directly or indirectly resulting to it and/or 
City on account of the performance or character of the Work rendered pursuant to this Agreement. 
Consultant shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless City and City’s elected and appointed 
officials, officers, boards, commissions, employees, representatives, consultants, servants, agents, 
attorneys and volunteers (individually an “Indemnified Party” and collectively “Indemnified 
Parties”) from and against any and all claims, suits, actions, judgments, injuries, damages, losses, 
costs, expenses and liability of any kind whatsoever, including but not limited to attorney’s fees 
and costs of defense (“Liabilities”), which may arise from or be the result of an alleged willful, 
negligent or tortious act or omission arising out of the Work, performance of contracted services, 
or operations by Consultant, any subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by 
Consultant or subcontractor or anyone for whose acts or omissions Consultant or subcontractor 
may be liable, regardless of whether or not the act or omission is caused in part by a party 
indemnified hereunder; provided that this indemnity obligation shall only apply to the extent 
Liabilities are caused by or result from the negligence, recklessness, or intentionally wrongful 
conduct of the Consultant or other persons employed or utilized by the Consultant in the 
performance of this Agreement. This indemnity obligation shall not be construed to negate, 
abridge, or otherwise reduce any other right or obligation of indemnity which would otherwise 
exist as to any party or person described in this provision. 

 
In any and all claims against an Indemnified Party, by any employee of Consultant, its 

subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by Consultant or subcontractor or anyone 
for whose acts Consultant or subcontractor may be liable, the indemnification obligation set forth 
in this provision shall not be limited in any way by any limitation on the amount or type of 
damages, compensation or benefits payable by or for Consultant or any subcontractor under 
workers’ or workmen’s compensation acts, disability benefit acts or other employee benefit acts. 
This obligation to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the Indemnified Party(ies) shall survive 

280

Section 12, Item B.



expiration or termination of this Agreement, provided that the claims are based upon or arise out 
of actions or omissions that occurred during the performance of this Agreement. 

 
G. Independent Contractor. Consultant hereby covenants and declares that it is 

engaged in an independent business and agrees to perform the Work as an independent contractor 
and not as the agent or employee of City. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to make 
Consultant or any of its employees, servants, or subcontractors, an employee, servant or agent of 
City for any purpose. Consultant agrees to be solely responsible for its own matters relating to the 
time and place the Work is  performed and the method used to perform such Work; the 
instrumentalities, tools, supplies and/or materials necessary to complete the Work; hiring of 
consultants, agents or employees to complete the Work; and the payment of employees, including 
benefits and compliance with Social Security, withholding and all other regulations governing such 
matters. Consultant agrees to be solely responsible for its own acts and those of its subordinates, 
employees, and subcontractors during the life of this Agreement. There shall be no contractual 
relationship between any subcontractor or supplier and City by virtue of this Agreement with 
Consultant. Any provisions of this Agreement that may appear to give City the right to direct 
Consultant as to the details of the services to be performed by Consultant or to exercise a measure 
of control over such services will be deemed to mean that Consultant shall follow the directions of 
City with regard to the results of such services only. It is further understood that this Agreement is 
not exclusive, and City may hire additional entities to perform the Work related to this Agreement. 

 
Inasmuch as City and Consultant are independent of each other, neither has the authority 

to bind the other to any third person or otherwise to act in any way as the representative of the 
other, unless otherwise expressly agreed to in writing signed by both Parties hereto. Consultant 
agrees not to represent itself as City’s agent for any purpose to any party or to allow any employee 
of Consultant to do so, unless specifically authorized, in advance and in writing, to do so, and then 
only for the limited purpose stated in such authorization. Consultant shall assume full liability for 
any contracts or agreements Consultant enters into on behalf of City without the express 
knowledge and prior written consent of City. 

 
I. Insurance. 

 

(1) Requirements: Consultant shall maintain in effect at its own expense 
liability insurance as follows: one million dollars ($1,000,000) of 
comprehensive general liability insurance (bodily injury and property 
damage). Consultant shall also maintain at its own expense one million 
dollars ($1,000,000) of professional liability insurance.  Consultant does not 
have employees, subcontractor nor any agent acting on its behalf.  See 
Exhibit B.  

 
(2) Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions: Any deductibles or self-insured 

retentions must be declared to and approved by City in writing so that City 
may ensure the financial solvency of Consultant; self-insured retentions 
should be included on the certificate of insurance. 

 
(3) Other Insurance Provisions: Each policy shall contain, or be endorsed to 

contain, the following provisions respectively: 
 

(a) General Liability, Automobile Liability and (if applicable) Umbrella 
Liability Coverage. 281

Section 12, Item B.



(i) Additional Insured Requirement. City and City’s elected and 
appointed officials, officers, boards, commissioners, 
employees, representatives, consultants, servants, agents and 
volunteers (individually “Insured Party” and collectively 
“Insured Parties”) shall be named as additional insureds as 
respects: liability arising out of activities performed by or on 
behalf of Consultant; products and completed operations of 
Consultant; premises owned, leased, or used by Consultant; 
automobiles owned, leased, hired, or borrowed by 
Consultant. The coverage shall contain no special limitations 
on the scope of protection afforded to the Insured Parties. 
Nothing contained in this section shall be construed to 
require the Consultant to provide liability insurance coverage 
to any Insured Party for claims asserted against such Insured 
Party for its sole negligence. 

 
(ii) Primary Insurance Requirement. Consultant’s insurance 

coverage shall be primary noncontributing insurance as 
respects to any other insurance or self-insurance available to 
the Insured Parties. Any insurance or self-insurance 
maintained by the Insured Parties shall be in excess of 
Consultant’s insurance and shall not contribute with it. 

 
(iii) Reporting Requirement. Any failure to comply with 

reporting provisions of the policies shall not affect coverage 
provided to the Insured Parties. 

 
(iv) Separate Coverage. Coverage shall state that Consultant’s 

insurance shall apply separately to each insured against 
whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to 
limits of insurance provided. 

 
(v) Defense Costs/Cross Liability. Coverage shall be 

provided on a “pay on behalf” basis, with defense costs 
payable in addition to policy limits. There shall be no cross 
liability exclusion. 

 
(vi) Subrogation. The insurer shall agree to waive all rights of 

subrogation against the Insured Parties for losses arising 
from Work performed by Consultant for City. 

 

 
(4) Acceptability of Insurers: The insurance to be maintained by Consultant 

must be issued by a company licensed or approved by the Insurance 
Commissioner to transact business in the State of Georgia. Such insurance 
policies shall be placed with insurer(s) with an A.M. Best Policyholder’s rate 
of no less than “A-” and with a financial rating of Class VII or greater. The 
Consultant shall be responsible for any delay resulting from the failure of its 
insurer to provide proof of coverage in the proscribed form. 

 
(5) Verification of Coverage: Consultant shall furnish to City for City approval 

282

Section 12, Item B.



certificates of insurance and endorsements to the policies evidencing all 
coverage required by this Agreement prior to the start of work. Without 
limiting the general scope of this requirement, Consultant is specifically 
required to provide an endorsement naming City as an additional insured 
when required. The certificates of insurance and endorsements for each 
insurance policy are to be on a form utilized by Consultant’s insurer in its 
normal course of business and are to be signed by a person authorized by 
that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf, unless alternate sufficient 
evidence of their validity and incorporation into the policy is provided. City 
reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all required 
insurance policies at any time. Consultant shall provide proof that any 
expiring coverage has been renewed or replaced prior to the expiration of 
the coverage. 

 
(6) Claims-Made Policies: Consultant shall extend any claims-made insurance 

policy for at least six (6) years after termination or final payment under the 
Agreement, whichever is later, and have an effective date which is on or 
prior to the Effective Date. 

 
(7) City as Additional Insured and Loss Payee: City shall be named as an 

additional insured and loss payee on all policies required by this Agreement, 
except City need not be named as an additional insured and loss payee on 
any Professional Liability policy or Workers’ Compensation policy. 

 
H. Records, Reports and Audits. 

 

(1) Records: 
 

(a) Books, records, documents, account legers, data bases, and similar 
materials relating to the Work performed for City under this 
Agreement (“Records”) shall be established and maintained by 
Consultant in accordance with applicable law and requirements 
prescribed by City with respect to all matters covered by this 
Agreement. Except as otherwise authorized or required, such 
Records shall be maintained for at least three (3) years from the date 
that final payment is made to Consultant by City under this 
Agreement. Furthermore, Records that are the subject of audit 
findings shall be retained for three (3) years or until such audit 
findings have been resolved, whichever is later. 

 
(b) All costs claimed or anticipated to be incurred in the performance of 

this Agreement shall be supported by properly executed payrolls, 
time records, invoices, contracts, or vouchers, or other official 
documentation evidencing in proper detail the nature and propriety 
of the charges. All checks, payrolls, invoices, contracts, vouchers, 
orders or other accounting documents pertaining in whole or in part 
to this Agreement shall be clearly identified and readily accessible. 

 
(2) Reports and Information: Upon request, Consultant shall furnish to City any 

and all Records in the form requested by City. All Records provided 
electronically must be in a format compatible with City’s computer systems 

283

Section 12, Item B.



and software. 
 

(3) Audits and Inspections: At any time during normal business hours and as 
often as City may deem necessary, Consultant shall make available to City 
or City’s representative(s) for examination all Records. Consultant will 
permit City or City’s representative(s) to audit, examine, and make excerpts 
or transcripts from such Records. Consultant shall provide proper facilities 
for City or City’s representative(s) to access and inspect the Records, or, at 
the request of City, shall make the Records available for inspection at City’s 
office. Further, Consultant shall permit City or City’s representative(s) to 
observe and inspect any or all of Consultant’s facilities and activities during 
normal hours of business for the purpose of evaluating Consultant’s 
compliance with the terms of this Agreement. In such instances, City or 
City’s representative(s) shall not interfere with or disrupt such activities. 

 
I. Ethics Code; Conflict of Interest. Consultant agrees that it shall not engage in   

any activity or conduct that would result in a violation of the City of Milton Code of Ethics or any 
other similar law or regulation. Consultant certifies that to the best of its knowledge no 
circumstances exist which will cause a conflict of interest in performing the Work. Should Consultant 
become aware of any circumstances that may cause a conflict of interest during the Term of this 
Agreement, Consultant shall immediately notify City. If City determines that a conflict of interest 
exists, City may require that Consultant take action to remedy the conflict of interest or terminate the 
Agreement without liability. City shall have the right to recover any fees paid for services rendered 
by Consultant when such services were performed while a conflict of interest existed if Consultant 
had knowledge of the conflict of interest and did not notify City within five (5) business days of 
becoming aware of the existence of the conflict of interest. 

 
Consultant and City acknowledge that it is prohibited for any person to offer, give, or agree 

to give any City employee or official, or for any City employee or official to solicit, demand, accept, 
or agree to accept from another person, a gratuity of more than nominal value or rebate or an offer 
of employment in connection with any decision, approval, disapproval, recommendation, or 
preparation of any part of a program requirement or a purchase request, influencing the content of 
any specification or procurement standard, rendering of advice, investigation, auditing, or in any 
other advisory capacity in any proceeding or application, request for ruling, determination, claim or 
controversy, or other particular matter, pertaining to any program requirement or a contract or 
subcontract, or to any solicitation or proposal therefor. Consultant and City further acknowledge 
that it is prohibited for any payment, gratuity, or offer of employment to be made by or on behalf of 
a sub-consultant under a contract to the prime Consultant or higher tier sub- consultant, or any 
person associated therewith, as an inducement for the award of a subcontract or order. 
 

J. Confidentiality. Consultant acknowledges that it may receive confidential 
information of City and that it will protect the confidentiality of any such confidential information 
and will require any of its subcontractors, consultants, and/or staff to likewise protect such 
confidential information. Consultant agrees that confidential information it learns or receives or 
such reports, information, opinions or conclusions that Consultant creates under this Agreement 
shall not be made available to, or discussed with, any individual or organization, including the news 
media, without prior written approval of City. Consultant shall exercise reasonable precautions to 
prevent the unauthorized disclosure and use of City information whether specifically deemed 
confidential or not. 

 
 

284

Section 12, Item B.



Consultant acknowledges that City’s disclosure of documentation is governed by Georgia’s 
Open Records Act, and Consultant further acknowledges that if Consultant submits records 
containing trade secret information, and if Consultant wishes to keep such records confidential, 
Consultant must submit and attach to such records an affidavit affirmatively declaring that specific 
information in the records constitutes trade secrets pursuant to Article 27 of Chapter 1 of Title 10, 
and the Parties shall follow the requirements of O.C.G.A. § 50-18-72(a)(34) related thereto. 

 
K. Meetings. Consultant is required to meet with City’s personnel, or designated 

representatives, to resolve technical or contractual problems that may occur during the Term of this 
Agreement at no additional cost to City. Meetings will occur as problems arise and will be 
coordinated by City. City shall inform Consultant of the need for a meeting and of the date, time 
and location of the meeting at least three (3) full business days prior to the date of the meeting. 
Face-to-face meetings are desired. However, at Consultant’s option and expense, a conference call 
meeting may be substituted. Consistent failure to participate in problem resolution meetings, two 
consecutive missed or rescheduled meetings, or failure to make a good faith effort to resolve 
problems, may result in termination of this Agreement for cause. 

 
L. Ownership of Work. All reports, designs, drawings, plans, specifications, 

schedules, work product and other materials, including, but not limited to, those in electronic form, 
prepared or in the process of being prepared for the Work to be performed by Consultant 
(“Materials”) shall be the property of City, and City shall be entitled to full access and copies of all 
Materials in the form prescribed by City. Any Materials remaining in the hands of Consultant or 
subcontractor upon completion or termination of the Work shall be delivered immediately to City 
whether or not the Project or Work is commenced or completed; provided, however, that Consultant 
may retain a copy of any deliverables for its records. Consultant assumes all risk of loss, damage or 
destruction of or to Materials. If any Materials are lost, damaged or destroyed before final delivery 
to City, Consultant shall replace them at its own expense. Any and all copyrightable subject matter 
in all Materials is hereby assigned to City, and Consultant agrees to execute any additional 
documents that may be necessary to evidence such assignment. 

 
M. Nondiscrimination. In accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as 

amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d, section 303 of the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, 42 
U.S.C. § 6102, section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C. § 12132, and 
all other provisions of Federal law, Consultant agrees that, during performance of this Agreement, 
Consultant, for itself, its assignees and successors in interest, will not discriminate against any 
employee or applicant for employment, any subcontractor, or any supplier because of race, color, 
creed or belief, political affiliation, national origin, gender, age or disability. In addition, Consultant 
agrees to comply with all applicable implementing regulations and shall include the provisions of 
this paragraph in every subcontract for services contemplated under this Agreement. 

 
 

V. COVENANTS OF CITY 
 

A. Right of Entry. City shall provide for right of entry for Consultant and all necessary 
equipment as required for Consultant to complete the Work; provided that Consultant shall not 
unreasonably encumber the Project site(s) with materials or equipment. 

 

B. C ity’s Representative.  _Steven Krokoff, City Manager shall be authorized to 
act on City’s behalf with respect to the Work as City’s designated representative on this Project; 
provided that any changes to the Work or the terms of this Agreement must be approved as 
provided in Section II above. 

285

Section 12, Item B.



 
VI. TERMINATION 

 
A. For Convenience. City may terminate this Agreement for convenience at any time 

upon providing written notice thereof at least seven (7) calendar days in advance of the termination 
date. If the City terminates this Agreement for convenience, it will be responsible for the scope 
of Work in its entirety and will hold Consultant harmless for 

 
B. For Cause. Consultant and City reserve the right to terminate this Agreement for 

cause.. In the event of Consultant’s breach or default under this Agreement, City may terminate this 
Agreement for cause. City shall give Consultant at least seven (7) calendar days’ written notice of 
its intent to terminate the Agreement for cause and the reasons therefor. If Consultant fails to cure 
the breach or default within that seven (7) day period, or otherwise remedy the breach or default to 
the reasonable satisfaction of City, then City may (a) in writing, terminate the Agreement effective 
the date Consultant received written termination, and/or (b) pursue any other remedy available, at law 
or in equity, due to City for such default. Consultant may terminate this Agreement for cause only in 
the event of City’s failure to pay Consultant within thirty (30) calendar days of Consultant providing 
City with notice of a delinquent payment and an opportunity to cure. 

 
C. Statutory Termination. In compliance with O.C.G.A. § 36-60-13, this Agreement 

shall be deemed terminated as provided in I(D) of this Agreement. Further, this Agreement shall 
terminate immediately and absolutely at such time as appropriated or otherwise unobligated funds 
are no longer available to satisfy the obligation of City. 

 
D. Payment Upon Termination. Upon termination, City shall provide for payment to 

Consultant for services rendered and, where authorized, expenses incurred prior to the termination 
date; provided that, where this Agreement is terminated for cause. 

 
 

E. Requirements Upon Termination. Upon termination, Consultant shall: (1) 
promptly discontinue all services, cancel as many outstanding obligations as possible, and not incur 
any new obligations, unless the City directs otherwise; and (2) promptly deliver to City all data, 
drawings, reports, summaries, and such other information and materials as may have been generated 
or used by Consultant in performing this Agreement, whether completed or in process, in the form 
specified by City. 

 
F. Reservation of Rights and Remedies. The rights and remedies of City and 

Consultant provided in this Article are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided under 
this Agreement or at law or in equity. 

 
VII. MISCELLANEOUS 

 
A. Entire Agreement. This Agreement, including any exhibits hereto, constitutes the 

complete agreement between the Parties and supersedes any and all other agreements, either oral 
or in writing, between the Parties with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement. No other 
agreement, statement or promise relating to the subject matter of this Agreement not contained in 
this Agreement shall be valid or binding. This Agreement may be modified or amended only by a 
written Change Order (as provided in Section II above) or other document signed by 
representatives of both Parties with appropriate authorization. 

 
B. Successors and Assigns. Subject to the provision of this Agreement regarding 

286

Section 12, Item B.



assignment, this Agreement shall be binding on the heirs, executors, administrators, successors and 
assigns of the respective Parties. 

 
C. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in  

accordance with the laws of the State of Georgia without regard to choice of law principles. If any 
action at law or in equity is brought to enforce or interpret the provisions of this Agreement, the 
rules, regulations, statutes and laws of the State of Georgia will control. Any action or suit related 
to this Agreement shall be brought in the Superior Court of Fulton County, Georgia, or the U.S. 
District Court for the Northern District of Georgia – Atlanta Division, and Consultant submits to 
the jurisdiction and venue of such court. 

 
D. Captions and Severability. All headings herein are intended for convenience and 

ease of reference purposes only and in no way define, limit or describe the scope or intent thereof, 
or of this Agreement, or in any way affect this Agreement. Should any article(s) or section(s) of 
this Agreement, or any part thereof, later be deemed illegal, invalid or unenforceable by a court of 
competent jurisdiction, the offending portion of the Agreement should be severed, and the 
remainder of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect to the extent possible as if this 
Agreement had been executed with the invalid portion hereof eliminated, it being the intention of 
the Parties that they would have executed the remaining portion of this Agreement without 
including any such part, parts, or portions that may for any reason be hereafter declared in valid. 

 
E. Business License. Prior to commencement of the Work to be provided hereunder, 

Consultant shall apply to City for a business license, pay the applicable business license fee, and 
maintain said business license during the Term of this Agreement, unless Consultant provides 
evidence that no such license is required. 

 
F. Notices. 

 

(1) Communications     Relating      to     Day-to-Day     Activities. All 
communications relating to the day-to-day activities of the Work shall be 
exchanged between City’s Representative (named above) for City and 
Consultant’s Representative (named above) for Consultant. 

 
(2) Official Notices. All other notices, requests, demands, writings, or 

correspondence, as required by this Agreement, shall be in writing and shall 
be deemed received, and shall be effective, when: (1) personally delivered, 
or (2) on the third day after the postmark date when mailed by certified mail, 
postage prepaid, return receipt requested, or (3) upon actual delivery when 
sent via national overnight commercial carrier to the Party at the address 
given below, or at a substitute address previously furnished to the other 
Party by written notice in accordance herewith. 

NOTICE TO CITY shall be sent to: 

Procurement Manager 
City of Milton, Georgia 
2006 Heritage Walk 
Milton, Georgia 30004 
 
 

 
287

Section 12, Item B.



288

Section 12, Item B.



             L.  Counterparts; Agreement Construction and Interpretation. This Agreement 
may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all 
of which taken together shall constitute one and the same instrument. Consultant represents that it 
has reviewed and become familiar with this Agreement and has notified City of any discrepancies, 
conflicts or errors herein. In the event of a conflict in the terms of this Agreement and/or the 
exhibits attached hereto, the terms most beneficial to City shall govern. The Parties hereto agree 
that, if an ambiguity or question of intent or interpretation arises, this Agreement is to be 
construed as if the Parties had drafted it jointly, as opposed to being construed against a Party 
because it was responsible for drafting one or more provisions of the Agreement. In the interest of 
brevity, the Agreement may omit modifying words such as “all” and “any” and articles such as 
“the” and “an,” but the fact that a modifier or an article is absent from one statement and appears in 
another is not intended to affect the interpretation of either statement. Words or  terms used as 
nouns in the Agreement shall be inclusive of their singular and plural forms, unless the context of 
their usage clearly requires contrary meaning. 
   

M.  Force Majeure. Neither City nor Consultant shall be liable for its respective non-  
negligent or non-willful failure to perform or shall be deemed in default with respect to the failure to 
perform (or cure a failure to perform) any of its respective duties or obligations under this Agreement 
or for any delay in such performance due to: (i) any cause beyond its respective reasonable control; (ii) 
any act of God; (iii) any change in applicable governmental rules or regulations rendering the 
performance of any portion of this Agreement legally impossible; (iv) earthquake, fire, explosion or 
flood; (v) strike or labor dispute, excluding strikes or labor disputes by employees and/or agents of 
CONSULTANT; (vi) delay or failure to act by any governmental or military authority; or (vii) any war, 
hostility, embargo, sabotage, civil disturbance, riot, insurrection or invasion. In such event, the time for 
performance shall be extended by an amount of time equal to the period of delay caused by such acts, 
and all other obligations shall remain intact. 
 
            N. Material Condition. Each term of this Agreement is material, and Consultant’s breach 
of any term of this Agreement shall be considered a material breach of the entire Agreement and 
shall be grounds for termination or exercise of any other remedies available to City at law or in 
equity. 

289

Section 12, Item B.



 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF City and Consultant have executed this Agreement, effective 
as of the Effective Date first above written. 

 
CONSULTANT:   LAVANIA WHITE 

 
 

Signature:     
 

Print Name:     
 

Title: [CIRCLE ONE] 
Owner (Sole Proprietorship/Individual) 

 

 
 
Attest/Witness: 

[CORPORATE SEAL] 
(required if corporation) 

 

Signature:    
Print Name:                                                                    
Title:     

(Assistant) Corporate Secretary (required if corporation) 
 
 

CITY OF MILTON, GEORGIA 
 
 
 

By: Peyton Jamison, Mayor 
 

[CITY SEAL] 
Attest: 

 
Signature:   
Print Name:                                                                     
Title: City Clerk 

 
 
Approved as to form: 

 
 
City Attorney Date 

290

Section 12, Item B.



 EXHIBIT “A” 
 

Scope of Work 

Assist Milton’s Election Superintendent with preparations for conducting our general election in 
November 2023 and subsequent run-off election, if needed. This includes providing support for 
(some functions may no longer be applicable): 

 
• Creating an election critical event calendar and project plan; 
• Establishing an elections budget; 
• Developing policies and procedures for elections processes; 
• Developing security policies and protocols concerning election processes and 

equipment; 
• Developing continuity of operations plans and policies; 
• Determining the sufficient number of poll workers needed; 
• Crafting job descriptions for, recruiting, and hiring poll workers; 
• Training and certifying poll workers; 
• Reviewing all directives, advisories, memoranda, correspondence, and materials issued 

by the Secretary of State and advise any action the city should take; 
• Recommending equipment purchases and preparation of bids requisitions 

for supplies and equipment; 
• Polling location layout and setup; 
• Preparation of the election ballot, including printing and production oversight; 
• Recommendation and implementation of election management software, if 

needed; 
• Logic and accuracy testing of voting equipment, if necessary; 
• Publishing all legal notices, as appropriate; 
• Assessing and mitigating identified risks; 
• Processing, evaluating, and reporting election results. 

Most of the work can be handled remotely, but onsite support would be required for poll worker 
training, determining polling location layout, first day of advanced voting, and Election Day. 

291

Section 12, Item B.



E XHIBIT “B” 

292

Section 12, Item B.



 EXHIBIT “C” 
 

Reserved 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

293

Section 12, Item B.



 
 
                                                                   EXHIBIT “D” 

PRIVATE EMPLOYER EXEMPTION AFFIDAVIT 
O.C.G.A § 13-10-91 

STATE OF GEORGIA 
COUNTY OF FULTON 

 

By executing this Affidavit, the undersigned private employer verifies that it is exempt from compliance 
with O.C.G.A. § 36-60-6, stating affirmatively that the individual, firm or corporation employees zero (0) 
employees and therefore, is not required to register with and/or utilize the federal work authorization 
program commonly known as E-Verify, or any subsequent replacement program, in accordance with the 
applicable provisions and deadlines established by O.C.G.A. § 13-10-90. 

 
I hereby declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. 

 
 
 

Signature of Exempt Private Employer Date 
 
 
 

Printed Name of Exempt Private Employer 
 
 
 

Subscribed and sworn before me on this the  _ day of  _, 20  
 
 
 

 

Notary Public 
 

My Commission Expires:   

 
[NOTARY SEAL] 

 
 
 

A COPY OF A VALID DRIVER’S LICENSE IS REQUIRED TO BE SUBMITTED WITH THIS FORM 
 
 

THIS PART TO BE FILLED OUT BY THE COUNTY: 
 

DL Info: 
State:   Exp Date: 
  

 

Verified by: 
 
 

CC Procurement Office
 
Date 

294

Section 12, Item B.



E XHIBITS “E” AND “F” 
 

Reserved 

295

Section 12, Item B.


	Top
	Section 6, Item D.	Financial Statements - Period 9-June 2023
	SIGNED - Financial_Report_202306

	Section 6, Item E.	Agreement - Exceed Tree Care
	COMPLETE - CSA with Exceed Tree Care

	Section 6, Item F.	Agreement - Vertical Communications, Inc.
	03 - COMPLETE - MSA with Vertical Communications

	Section 6, Item G.	Agreement - GoTo Communications, Inc.
	COMPLETE - MSA with GoTo Communications

	Section 6, Item H.	Agreement - Ross + Associates
	03 - COMPLETE - PSA with ROSS+associates

	Section 6, Item I.	Agreement - It's My Party
	03 - COMPLETE  - PSA with It's My Party for Crabapple Fest 2023

	Section 6, Item J.	Approval of Subdivision Plats & Revisions
	01 - 8.21.2023_Plat_Staff_Memo_Consent

	Section 8, Item A.	RZ23-02 Text Amendment Zoning Procedures Law (ZPL)
	03 - COMPLETE - Text Amendment - Land Use Permits ZPL MCC 8.21.2023

	Section 8, Item B.	RZ23-03 - Text Amendment of alcohol related uses within Chapter 64 Zoning
	03 - COMPLETE - RZ23-03 - Text Amendment Alcohol within Chapter 64

	Section 9, Item A.	Transmittal of a Draft CIE 2023 Annual Update
	03 - COMPLETE - Resolution - CIE Transmittal

	Section 9, Item B.	ABL - Beverage Shop
	ABL_Agenda_Submittal.Beverage_Shop.08.21.2023.docx

	Section 9, Item C.	ABL - Whitetail Bicycles, Inc.
	ABL_Agenda_Submittal.Whitetail_Bicycles_Inc.08.21.2023.docx

	Section 9, Item D.	PH#3 - Ordinance - Establish the Ad Valorem Tax Rate for FY 2024
	COMPLETE - Agenda submittal - 2023 millage rate

	Section 11, Item A.	Establish the Ad Valorem Tax Rate for FY 2024
	COMPLETE - Agenda submittal - 2023 millage rate

	Section 12, Item A.	Final Plat
	01 - 8.21.2023_Plat_Staff_Memo_New_Business

	Section 12, Item B.	Resolution - Election Consultant Contract
	05 - COMPLETE - Resolution - Elections Consultant_Redacted

	Bottom

